The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes

Agenda

Committee of the Whole Meeting

COW2021-02 Tuesday, February 9, 2021 Commencing at 1:00 p.m. - Electronic Participation Council Chambers City Hall 26 Francis Street, Lindsay, Ontario K9V 5R8

Members:

Mayor Andy Letham Deputy Mayor Patrick O'Reilly Councillor Ron Ashmore Councillor Pat Dunn Councillor Doug Elmslie Councillor Tracy Richardson Councillor Kathleen Seymour-Fagan Councillor Andrew Veale Councillor Emmett Yeo

Note: This will be an electronic participation meeting and public access to Council Chambers will not be available. Please visit the City of Kawartha Lakes YouTube Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofKawarthaLakes to view the proceedings. Accessible formats and communication supports are available upon request. The City of Kawartha Lakes is committed to accessibility for persons with disabilities. Please contact Agendaltems@kawarthalakes.ca if you have an accessible accommodation request.

		Pages
1.	Call to Order	
2.	Adoption of Agenda	
3.	Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest	
4.	Deputations	
4.1.	COW2021-02.4.1	8 - 10
	Water Bill for 181 Kent Street, Lindsay Neil Arbour, APG Kent Street Properties Corp. Marco Pietrangelo, APG Kent Street Properties Corp.	
5.	Correspondence	
5.1.	COW2021-02.5.1	11 - 12
	Creation of a Jump In Forum for Citizen Discussion of Services David Webb	
6.	Presentations	
6.1.	COW2021-02.6.1	
	Pandemic Response and City Service Update Mayor Letham Ron Taylor, Chief Administrative Officer	
6.2.	COW2021-02.6.2	
	GIS Mapping Public Viewer James Auld, Manager, Mapping and GIS Division	
6.3.	COW2021-02.6.3	13 - 20
	Victoria Manor Redevelopment and Long Term Care Update Ron Taylor, Chief Administrative Officer Rod Sutherland, Director of Human Services	
6.4.	COW2021-02.6.4	
	Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Presentation Brenda Stonehouse, Strategy and Innovation Specialist	

6.4.1. Report CAO2021-002

Community Safety and Well-Being Plan

Brenda Stonehouse, Strategy and Innovation Specialist

That Report CAO2021-002, Community Safety and Well-Being Plan, be received;

That the Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Terms of Reference, appended as Attachment A to Report CAO2021-002 be approved;

That Mayor Andy Letham, Councillor Pat Dunn, Director Rod Sutherland, Kawartha Lakes Police Chief Mark Mitchell, and OPP Kawartha Lakes Detachment Commander Tim Tatchell, be appointed to the Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee;

That the appointed Advisory Committee members be delegated the authority to appoint the community representatives to the Advisory Committee from the sectors as identified in the Terms of Reference; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

6.5. COW2021-02.6.5

- Fleet Services Review Presentation Bryan Robinson, Director of Public Works Todd Bryant, Manager of Fleet and Transit Roger Smith, CEO, Richmond Sustainability Initiatives, Fleet Challenge and the E3 Fleet Program
- 6.5.1. Report FL2021-001

Fleet Services Review

Todd Bryant, Manager of Fleet and Transit

That Report FL2021-001, Fleet Services Review, be received; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

6.6. COW2021-02.6.6

Private Docking on City Land - Proactive Enforcement Plan Presentation Sharri Dyer, Manager, Realty Services 47 - 264

6.6.1. Report RS2021-004

Proposed Amendments to the Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Sharri Dyer, Manager, Realty Services

That Report RS2021-004, Proposed Amendments to the Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001, be received;

That staff be directed to obtain public input on the proposed policy and report back to Council by the end of Q3, 2021;

That By-Law 2018-017, City Lands Encroachment By-Law, as amended to date, be further amended to update the fees associated with dock and boathouse encroachments;

That By-Law 2016-009, Signing Authority By-Law, as amended to date, be further amended to delegate signing authority to the City Solicitor for dock licenses with 10-year terms;

That an amending By-Law be advanced to Council for adoption, accordingly; and

That these recommendations be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

7. Reports

7.1. CAO2021-001

Update on Modernization Review

Ron Taylor, Chief Administrative Officer

That Report CAO2021-001, Update on Modernization Review, be received;

That staff make application(s) for funding through the provincial Municipal Modernization Program – Intake 2, to complete digital modernization projects for a Comprehensive Roads Inventory & Database and Water Smart Meter Reading Technologies, where eligible; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

7.2. WM2021-001

2020 Lindsay Ops Landfill Gas Generator Summary Nikki Payne, Waste Technician II 297 - 320

321 - 327

	That Report WM2021-001, 2020 Lindsay Ops Landfill Gas Generator Summary, be received; and	
	That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.	
7.3.	FL2021-002	328 - 448
	Fleet Standardization Todd Bryant, Manager of Fleet and Transit	
	That Report FL2021-002, Fleet Standardization, be received; and	
	That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.	
8.	Memorandums	
8.1.	COW2021-02.8.1	449 - 449
	Memorandum Regarding Protective Pool Covers Councillor Yeo	
	That the Memorandum from Councillor Yeo, regarding Protective Pool Covers, be received;	
	That staff bring back a report by the end of the second quarter regarding the use of Protective Covers on swimming pools as an option in lieu of fencing; and	
	That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.	
8.2.	COW2021-02.8.2	450 - 451

Memorandum Regarding Fishing Over Bridges and Causeways Councillor Yeo That the Memorandum from Councillor Yeo, **regarding Fishing Over** Bridges and Causeways, be received;

That staff bring back a report by the end of Q2 regarding the use of municipally owned bridges and causeways for fishing;

That the report back include options for banning fishing from bridges and causeways, regulating fishing through local licensing, patrolling and cleaning areas on a daily basis, or doing nothing at all; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

8.3. COW2021-02.8.3

452 - 452

Memorandum Regarding Mariposa Elementary School Zone Flashing Beacons

Councillor Veale

That the Memorandum from Councillor Veale, regarding Mariposa Elementary School Zone Flashing Beacons, be received;

That Engineering be directed to change the signage for the school zone on Eldon Road in front of Mariposa Elementary School to flashing beacons indicating when the reduced speed limit is in effect;

That the new signage be implemented at a cost of \$16,000; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

8.4. COW2021-02.8.4

453 - 454

Memorandum Regarding Speed Reduction on Pigeon Lake Road Councillor Ashmore

That the Memorandum from Councillor Ashmore, regarding Speed Reduction of Pigeon Lake Road from 1899 Pigeon Lake Road to Perdue Road, be received;

That staff conduct a traffic study into the reduction of speed on the section from 1899 Pigeon Lake Road to Perdue Road;

That staff report back by Q3 2021; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

8.5. COW2021-02.8.5

Memorandum Regarding Medical Supply Manufacturing Councillor Ashmore

That the Memorandum from Councillor Ashmore, **regarding Medical** Supply Manufacturing, be received;

That Economic Development initiate the recruitment of medical supply manufacturers;

That Economic Development work to attract companies to set up healthcare manufacturing facilities in available existing buildings currently vacant; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

- 9. Closed Session
- 10. Matters from Closed Session
- 11. Adjournment



Request to Speak before Council

Request to Make a Deputation/Presentation to Council/Committee City of Kawartha Lakes City Clerk's Office 26 Francis Street, PO Box 9000 Lindsay, ON K9V 5R8 705-324-9411

Name: *

APG KENT STREET PROPERTIES	CORP	
Address: *		
11-231 MILLWAY AVENUE		
City/Town/Village:	Province: *	Postal Code:
CONCORD	ONTARIO	L4K3W7
Telephone: *	Email: *	
9056690666	neil@trans-ontaric).ca

There can be a maximum of two speakers for each deputation. Please list the name(s) of the individual(s) who will be speaking. The names that are listed here will be included on the Council Meeting Agenda.

Deputant One:

NEIL ARBOUR	

Deputant Two:

MARCO PIETRANGELO

WATER/SEWER BILL FROM THE GRAND 181 KENT STREET

Please attach any additional supporting documents you wish to provide and submit with this completed form.

Have you discussed this matter with City Staff?

🕞 Yes

🔿 No

If yes, Which department and staff member(s) have you spoken to?

What action are you hoping will result from your presentation/deputation?*

A REVERSAL OF SAID CHARGES OR A STAY UNTIL APPROPRITE PARTIES ARE HELD ACCOUNTABLE

By signing this form you are acknowledging that all of the information you are providing on this form is true, and giving the City permission to collect your personal information for the principal purpose of a request to make a deputation to Committee or Council as outlined below.

Signature:

NEIL ARBOUR

Date:

11/19/2020

The personal information is being collected by the City of Kawartha Lakes for the principal purpose of a request to make a deputation to Committee or Council pursuant to the City's procedural by-law. This information, including all attachments submitted may be circulated to members of Council, staff, the general public and posted on the City website. Questions about the collection of this information should be directed to the City Clerk or Deputy Clerk at 705 324-9411 ext. 1295 or 1322.

₩

Do you agree to the publication of your name and contact information on the City's website and the City Council agenda? *

🕞 Yes

🔿 No

Please complete this form and return to the City Clerk's Office by submitting it online or: Fax: 705-324-8110 Email: agendaitems@kawarthalakes.ca

David Webb 755 Cedar Glen Rd, Dunsford 905 914 5479

February 3, 2021

Cathie Ritchie - City Clerk, City of Kawartha Lakes

Re: Creation of a Jump In forum for Citizen Discussion of Services

Council;

Recently the performance and betterment of Services, has become a topic of significant council interest/discussion and staff effort. Several betterment activities have been initiated including a report back on Service/Case Enhancements and a Service Level Review. Other activities, including updating Customer Service Standards are being undertaken through departmental operating plans for the year and of course Service Excellence is a high priority item under Good Government in the city's Strategic Plan.

Any action aimed at service betterment must be based on an understanding of citizen's needs, expectations and experiences with service. Currently there is little known about how satisfied citizens are with city services other than phone complaints, public meeting comments and of course elections. The Jump In platform was designed primarily to gather that type of information from citizens and is working very well for other areas of interest. A Jump In Service forum can bring citizen input to the city, enable the city to inform citizens about services and promote and draw more traffic in general to the Jump In site. Giving citizens a way to have their say on their services is pretty much the definition of what Jump In is intended for.

A Jump In Service Discussion forum might include areas for:

- the city to showcase services and announce service changes.
- citizens to share their service experiences, both good and bad and recommend improvements.
- questionnaires and surveys to assist in setting/assessing service levels.
- a Service performance dashboard (how are services performing).
- posting of electronic performance data for citizen use in analysis (ie Open Data).

The Service forum up and running before service modifying activities start up (ie start of Q2) rather than scrambling to play catch-up when the data is required. The city has good experience setting up and operating the Jump In platform. I would be happy to assist with ideas on its configuration and operation for this forum and would volunteer my help to curate/moderate the site if that would ease the strain on staff.

I recommend a motion be made to immediately begin work on a Service Discussion Forum.

"That staff be directed to create and operate a forum on the Jump In platform suited to engaging citizens in Service Discussions prior to the end of Q1 2021 to be ready to provide assistance to expected Service activities. Staff are encouraged to engage citizens on the design and ongoing operation of the forum."

From the Jump In site:

Traditional public consultation usually involves attending public meetings, open houses or providing written submissions to Council, and this can often be time consuming, inconvenient and sometimes intimidating. Using an online engagement platform is an effective way for Kawartha Lakes to reach more residents and to give residents an opportunity to bring ideas forward and have their say on issues that are important to them.

- It is a quick, safe and convenient way to have your say on a range of issues and topics.
- It is a great way to keep up to date and contribute your views on issues affecting your community.
- You can see what other community members think about an issue or topic, respond with your own views and engage in a discussion.
- You don't have to attend community meetings at a set place and time, you can contribute at a time and place that suits you.
- It allows for a range of different people, with different views to discuss matters that impact on their community.



Victoria Manor Redevelopment Status and Long-Term Care Update

February 9, 2021



Background

- Opened in 1990 166-bed Municipal Long Term Care facility
- Long-Term Care Homes Act
- Enhanced Long Term Care Home Renewal Strategy (ELTCHRS) released in 2015
- July 2018 provincial commitment to creating 15,000 new beds



Central East LHIN Bed Rates



Total: 68 Homes and 9,707 Long- Stay Beds

- The provincial LTC Home bed rate per 1,000 aged 75+ is: 80.03
- For all Central East LHIN catchment areas, the LTC Home bed rate per 1,000 aged 75+ is: 86.84
- Of the 11 Central East LHIN catchment areas, only 2 have bed rates that are lower than the provincial rate:
 – Havelock and Durham West

Catchment Name	Population 75+	LTCH Beds Rate per 1,000	% of Total Population 75+
Campbellford Catchment	11,780	82.34	7.5%
Havelock Catchment	2,220	65.32	1.4%
Haliburton Catchment	5,180	83.40	3.3%
Peterborough Catchment	10,085	84.20	6.4%
Kawartha Lakes Catchment	10,710	101.03	6.8%
Brock Catchment	9,645	93.73	6.1%
Durham East Catchment	16,540	87.97	10.5%
Durham West Catchment	29,700	60.51	18.9%
Cobourg Catchment	6,205	122.48	3.9%
Uxbridge Catchment	11,840	97.21	7.5%
Scarborough Catchment	43,297	94.78	27.5%
All Catchments	157,202	86.84	100%
Ontario	961,320	80.03	•

Data Sources:

Population: 2011 Census, Statistics Canada Long-Term Care Home beds: Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care



Kawartha Lakes Population 75+ 10,710

LTCH Beds Rate (per 1000) 101.03

% of Total Pop. 75+ 6.8%

Development and Redevelopment



- 2019 Development process
- The MOLTC has not identified a future intake for new development or redevelopment
- Pandemic impacts on future development or redevelopment standards
- Victoria Manor Redevelopment to be reviewed in context of revised standards and Ministry direction

EOWC LTC Review

5



- KPMG contracted by the EOWC in 2020 to complete a situational overview of EOWC-member municipal LTC facilities (15 facilities, 2386 licensed beds)
- Study and review informed advocacy to the Province at the recent ROMA conference, and as a formal submission to the Provincial LTC Commission

EOWC LTC Review



To access the two-part review, visit www.eowc.org





EOWC LTC Review Key Takeaways

EOWC Commitment

- EOWC will work with the Ministry to achieve the four hour care model
- This model will allow EOWC to recruit additional staff, improve the quality of care for residents and increase daily direct care for each resident.
- The implementation will ensure that the EOWC has a solid workforce and financial stability to achieve provincial benchmarks.
- The EOWC shares the Province's objective of expanding long-term care beds, reducing operational red tape and increasing process efficiencies.

The EOWC requires Ministry support to implement the following in order to improve LTC service delivery:

Increase funding to achieve four hour care model	Changing funding formula	Increase Provincial capital funding	Promote and support resource sharing between LTCH's	Increase efficiency and effectiveness
Increase direct care funding to achieve provincial benchmark of four hours of care model	Transition to a per bed funding model to increase clarity, efficiency and transparency of the funding process	Increase capital funding to on-going capital maintenance costs	Promote collaboration	Support continuous improvement
Increase the use of Resident Support Aides	The formula would recognize high need residents – with an allocation dedicated for premium beds	Enhance the predictability, fairness and transparency for capital funding	Enhance IPAC Reporting	Develop a provincially led leading practice unit
Enhance training and retention of LTC employees		Provide upfront funding	Create incentives for shared purposes	Include municipal LTC in provincial policy and Ontario Health teams development
			Address labour relations	

EOWC appreciates the Province's support for the current LTC model where residents are provided a **final home**. The approach to LTC should be preserved; not transitioned into a hospital or medical institution model.



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	CAO2021-002
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	Community Safety and Well-Being Plan
Description:	
Author and Title:	Brenda Stonehouse, Strategy and Innovation Specialist

Recommendation(s):

That Report CAO2021-002, Community Safety and Well-Being Plan, be received;

That the Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Terms of Reference, appended as Attachment A to Report CAO2021-002 be approved; and

That Mayor Andy Letham, Councillor Pat Dunn, Director Rod Sutherland, Kawartha Lakes Police Chief Mark Mitchell, and OPP Kawartha Lakes Detachment Commander Tim Tatchell, be appointed to the Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee; and

That the appointed Advisory Committee members be delegated the authority to appoint the community representatives to the Advisory Committee from the sectors as identified in the Terms of Reference; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Department Head:	
Financial/Legal/HR/Other:	
Chief Administrative Officer:	

Background:

In 2019 the Province of Ontario legislated under the *Police Services Act* that municipalities are required to develop and adopt a Community Safety and Well-Being Plan (CSWBP). The plan is to be developed by working in partnership with a multi-sectoral advisory committee comprised of representation from police services and other local service providers in health/mental health, education, community/social services and children/youth services.

While originally required to be in place by January 1, 2021, due to the pandemic the deadline for the adoption of the plan has been extended until July 1, 2021.

Additional requirements are also outlined in legislation pertaining to conducting consultations, contents of the plan, and monitoring, evaluating, reporting and publishing the plan.

This report addresses that requirement.

Rationale:

The goal of Community Safety and Well-Being planning is "to achieve the ideal state of a sustainable community where everyone is safe, has a sense of belonging, access to services and where individuals and families are able to meet their needs for education, health care, food, housing, income, and social and cultural expression."

The planning process allows municipalities to take a leadership role in defining and addressing priority risks in the community through proactive, integrated strategies that ensure vulnerable populations receive the help they need from the providers best suited to support them.

The Community Safety and Well-Being Plan must include the identification of priority risks; strategies to reduce the prioritized risk factors; and setting measurable outcomes.

The provincial framework for the development of the CSWBP identifies very specific requirements, including the community engagement process and the creation of an Advisory Committee to oversee the process.

Members of the Advisory Committee will include two representatives appointed by Council, the Director of Human Services, Kawartha Lakes Police Service and Kawartha Lakes OPP. Representatives from the following sectors shall be confirmed by the appointed Council representatives within 7–10 days of the Advisory Committee being established:

- Education
- Health/Mental Health
- Community/Social Services
- Children/Youth Services

Support will be provided to the Advisory Committee by the City's Strategy and Innovation Specialist, Accessibility Coordinator, Fire Chief and Paramedic Chief. All City departments will inform and be engaged in the development of the Plan. The Advisory Committee will lead the development of the plan and participate in community engagement activities. Public participation will be south through multiple methods including the City's online engagement tool "Jump In, Kawartha Lakes" and through focus groups.

There are well established sector-specific networks already in place that will directly inform the development of the plan. The multi-disciplinary composition of the Advisory Committee is intended to be that connection to existing resources, avoiding duplication of efforts.

In addition to the primary members, the Advisory Committee may establish working groups that include City staff and other community representatives to address specific needs or sectors.

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

The Community Safety and Well-Being Plan is an action item included in "Build social infrastructure" under the priority of An Exceptional Quality of Life.

The plan also aligns with the goal to "Improve the health and well-being of residents" also an important part of An Exceptional Quality of Life.

Financial/Operation Impacts:

The approved 2020 City Budget included a special project of \$25,000 to support the development of the CSWBP. That budget is intended to support the consultation process, production and distribution of the plan.

Consultations:

Chief, Kawartha Lakes Police Services Detachment Commander, Kawartha Lakes OPP

Attachments:

Appendix A – Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee Terms of Reference

W
Community Safety
and Well-Being Plar

Appendix B – Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Frequently Asked Questions



Department Head email: rtaylor@kawarthalakes.ca Department Head: Ron Taylor, CAO Department File:

Terms of Reference

Name: Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee

Date Established by Council:

Task Force Completion/Reporting Date: December 31, 2021

Mission:

The Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee is established to develop a Community Safety and Well-Being Plan (CSWBP) for the City of Kawartha Lakes in accordance with the provision of the *Safer Ontario Act*. The CSWBP Advisory Committee's role is to provide input, direction, and perspectives on matters that impact the safety and well-being of Kawartha Lakes residents.

Roles and Responsibilities:

It is the responsibility of all appointed members to comply with:

- the City Code of Conduct for Task Force Members
- the City Procedural By-law
- Other applicable City by-laws and policies
- Municipal Act
- Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
- Municipal Conflict of Interest Act

No individual member or the Advisory Committee as a whole has the authority to make direct representations of the City to Federal or Provincial Governments.

Members shall abide by the rules outlined within the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act and shall disclose any pecuniary interest to the Secretary and absent himself or herself from meetings for the duration of the discussion and voting (if any) with respect to that matter.

The Task Force will abide by any terms and conditions which may be set out by the City's Council, CAO, City Clerk, City Solicitor, Auditor and/or Insurer for any activities relating to Advisory Committee business in keeping with the Advisory Committee's Terms of Reference and established Policies.

Activities:

The following represent the general activities of the Task Force:

- a) Defining the scope of community safety and well-being with awareness of current events and issues, diversity, sharing of community support services and functions, policing changes, and other factors affecting our community;
- b) Leading community engagement sessions to inform the development of the plan;
- c) Engaging with community groups and existing bodies to provide input into the development and implementation of the plan;
- d) Determining the priorities of the plan, including references to risk factors, vulnerable populations and protective factors;
- e) Ensuring outcomes are established and responsibilities for measurement are in place and approving performance measures by which the plan will be evaluated, as well as the schedule and processes used to implement them;
- f) Ensuring each section/activity under the plan, for each priority risk, is achievable;
- g) Owning, evaluating and monitoring the plan;
- Aligning implementation and evaluation of the plan with the municipal planning cycle and other relevant sector specific planning and budgeting activities to ensure alignment of partner resources and strategies
- i) Setting a future date for reviewing achievements and developing the next version of the plan;
- j) Thinking about ways in which the underlying structures and systems currently in place can be improved to better enable service delivery

Composition:

The Community Safety and Well-Being Plan Advisory Committee is reflective of the community and includes multi-sectoral representation.

The committee shall be comprised of a maximum of 15 members consisting of:

- Up to two Council members as appointed;
- An employee of the municipality;
- A person who represents the education sector;
- A person who represents the health/mental health sector;
- A person who represents the community/social services sector;
- A person who represents the children/youth services sector;
- A person who represents and entity that provide custodial services to children/youth;
- A person who represents the police service board or OPP community liaison committee

The Advisory Committee shall consist of a minimum of 8 members. Advisory Committee members will be appointed by Council in accordance with established policy.

Appointment of Officers:

The Advisory Committee shall, at its first meeting, elect from its membership a Chair, and Vice-Chair. It is acknowledged that there are no per diems for any Advisory Committee positions and it is acknowledged that none of the above positions shall be paid for their services. All Advisory Committee members are considered volunteer positions.

Term of Appointment:

Advisory Committee members will be appointed for a term ending upon final recommendation to Council/Staff and prior to December 31, 2021. An interim report will be provided to Council by the end of Q2, 2021 along with any recommended changes to the committee for the implementation of the plan. Any extension to this Term shall be recommended to Council via the liaison department through a report to Council prior to the expiration date with the final decision being that of Council.

Resources:

The Human Services Department and Office of Strategy Management will provide support in the form of advice, day-to-day liaison with the City and information sharing.

A member of staff shall be designated as Recording Secretary by the liaison department. The Recording Secretary shall prepare and publish agendas; attend all formal business Advisory Committee Meetings for the purpose of taking Minutes; and prepare and publish minutes in an accessible format acceptable to the City Clerk's Office.

The Recording Secretary shall ensure that a current Terms of Reference for the Advisory Committee has been provided to the City Clerk's Office and is posted on the City website.

Timing of Meetings:

Meetings will be held on a set day and time as may be determined by the Advisory Committee or at the call of the Chair.

Meetings:

The Advisory Committee shall hold a minimum of two (2) formal business meetings – one to start the work of the Advisory Committee and to set the work plan and one to conclude the work of the Advisory Committee. The Chair shall cause notice of the meetings, including the agenda for the meetings, to be provided to members of the Advisory Committee a minimum of three (3) business days prior to the date of each meeting through the Recording Secretary. Quorum for formal business meetings shall consist of a majority of the members of the Advisory Committee. No meeting shall proceed without quorum. Work of the Advisory Committee can be done through working groups.

At the first meeting of the Advisory Committee, an Orientation Session shall be held for members.

Working meetings throughout the term to advance the efforts of the work plan shall be held at the call of the Chair with the Chair providing notice of the working meetings to all members of the Advisory Committee a minimum of three (3) business days prior to the date of each meeting through the Recording Secretary. No formal minutes are required to be taken at working meetings; however, notes shall be taken.

Procedures:

Procedures for the formal business meetings of the Advisory Committee shall be governed by the City's Procedural By-law and Legislation or, where both of these are silent, by Robert's Rules of Order.

Electronic Participation:

The following procedural rules are established for electronic participation meetings:

- 1. City Council, Local Board or Committee members may participate in an open or closed session by electronic participation and be counted for the purpose of establishing quorum.
- 2. In the case of an interruption in the communication link to the member(s) participating electronically, the meeting will recess to a maximum of 15 minutes until it is determined whether or not the link can be re-established. If communications are not re-established, the meeting will resume without the electronic participant(s).
- 3. A Member participating by Electronic Means shall inform the Chair about their intentions to leave the meeting either on a temporary or permanent basis.
- 4. A Member participating by Electronic Means will be deemed to have left the meeting when they are no longer electronically connected to the meeting.
- 5. If a member loses electronic connection temporarily to the meeting, that member shall be treated as if they left the physical room of a traditional meeting and the time noted by the City Clerk or Recording Secretary.
- 6. All votes shall be by show of hands or by verbal consent (yes or no).
- 7. That subject to direction from the Head of Council or Chair to the City Clerk or Recording Secretary, the meeting will proceed without deputations. Written correspondence received from the public may be circulated to Council members prior to the start of the meeting electronically;
- 8. For public notice purposes, the location of the meeting published on the agenda shall be the physical location of the City Clerk or Recording Secretary during the meeting; If the location of the City Clerk can not be open to the public, the City Clerk shall provide notice to the electronic location of where the meeting can be viewed;
- 9. Members shall be provided instruction by the City Clerk, Recording Secretary, Chief Administrative Officer, or their delegate how to access the meeting by means of electronic participation.
- 10. A recording of the open session of the meeting shall be preserved for a period of time determined by the Records Retention by-law for the public record.

All electronic meetings of the full Advisory Committee will be available on Livestreaming or other video technology. Working group meetings will not be livestreamed.

Closed Meetings:

The Advisory Committee shall not be permitted to hold Closed Meetings.

Agendas and Minutes:

A copy of the Agenda shall be provided to the City Clerk's office at the same time it is provided to Advisory Committee Members. The City Clerk's office will distribute the agenda to Council members as per established procedures.

Minutes of all formal business meetings and notes from working meetings of the Advisory Committee shall be forwarded to the liaison department, and to the City Clerk's Office, not later than two weeks after the meeting. Action items requested of staff and/or Council will be brought to the attention of the Recording Secretary at that time. The City Clerk's Office will electronically circulate the formal business meeting minutes to all members of Council for their information. The City Clerk's Office will maintain a set of printed minutes on file for public review.

The Recording Secretary shall ensure that all Advisory Committee Agendas and Minutes are posted to the City website at the same times as they are circulated to the City Clerk's Office.

Reports:

The Advisory Committee recommendations shall be brought forward to Council via the liaison department through a report to Council.

It will be the responsibility of the Advisory Committee Chair to provide a memo to the liaison department identifying the Advisory Committee recommendations for final preparation of the report.

Purchasing Policy:

This Advisory Committee has no purchasing or procurement responsibilities.

Insurance:

The City of Kawartha Lakes' General Liability Policy and Errors and Omissions Liability Policy will extend to this Advisory Committee and its members. The applicable insurance policies extend to Advisory Committee members while in the performance of his/her duties and to those activities authorized by the City of Kawartha Lakes and Council. Members must adhere to the policies and procedures of the City of Kawartha Lakes and Council, including the Terms of Reference.

The Advisory Committee must provide, via the liaison department an annual updated listing of all members, including member positions, to the City of Kawartha Lakes to ensure the applicable insurance coverage remains in force.

Advisory Committee members are not entitled to any benefits normally provided by the Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes, including those provided by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board of Ontario ("WSIB") and are responsible for their own medical, disability or health insurance coverage.

Expulsion of Member:

Any member of the Advisory Committee who misses three consecutive formal business meetings, without being excused by the Advisory Committee, may be removed from the Advisory Committee in accordance with adopted policy.

Any member of the Advisory Committee may be removed from the Advisory Committee at the discretion of Council for reasons including, but not limited to, the member being in contravention of the Municipal Act, the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, the Provincial Offences Act, The Municipal Conflict of Interest Act or the Code of Conduct for Task Force Members; disrupting the work of the Advisory Committee; or other legal issues. The process for expulsion of a Advisory Committee member is outlined in the City's **Council Committee, Board and Task Force Policy**.

Terms of Reference:

The Recording Secretary shall ensure that a current Terms of Reference for the Advisory Committee has been provided to the City Clerk's Office and is posted on the City website. Any responsibilities not clearly identified within these Terms of Reference shall be the responsibility of the City of Kawartha Lakes. Council may, at its discretion, change the Terms of Reference for this Advisory Committee at any time. Any changes proposed to these Terms of Reference by the Advisory Committee shall be recommended to Council via the liaison department through a report to Council.

At the discretion of Council the Advisory Committee may be dissolved by resolution of Council.

DRAFT

<u>Frequently Asked Questions: New Legislative Requirements related to</u> <u>Mandating Community Safety and Well-Being Planning</u>

1) What is community safety and well-being (CSWB) planning?

CSWB planning involves taking an integrated approach to service delivery by working across a wide range of sectors, agencies and organizations (including, but not limited to, local government, police services, health/mental health, education, social services, and community and custodial services for children and youth) to proactively develop and implement evidence-based strategies and programs to address local priorities (i.e., risk factors, vulnerable groups, protective factors) related to crime and complex social issues on a sustainable basis.

The goal of CSWB planning is to achieve the ideal state of a sustainable community where everyone is safe, has a sense of belonging, access to services and where individuals and families can meet their needs for education, health care, food, housing, income, and social and cultural expression.

2) Why is CSWB planning important for every community?

CSWB planning supports a collaborative approach to addressing local priorities through the implementation of programs/strategies in four planning areas, including social development, prevention, risk intervention and incident response. By engaging in the CSWB planning process, communities will be able to save lives and prevent crime, victimization and suicide.

Further, by taking a holistic approach to CSWB planning it helps to ensure those in need of help receive the right response, at the right time, and by the right service provider. It will also help to improve interactions between police and vulnerable Ontarians by enhancing frontline responses to those in crisis.

To learn more about the benefits of CSWB planning, please see Question #3.

3) What are the benefits of CSWB planning?

CSWB planning has a wide range of positive impacts for local agencies/organizations and frontline service providers, as well as the broader community, including the general public. A few key benefits are highlighted below:

- Enhanced communication and collaboration among sectors, agencies and organizations;
- Transformation of service delivery, including realignment of resources and responsibilities to better respond to priorities and needs;
- Increased understanding of and focus on local risks and vulnerable groups;
- Ensuring the appropriate services are provided to those individuals with complex needs;
- Increased awareness, coordination of and access to services for community members and vulnerable groups;
- Healthier, more productive individuals that positively contribute to the community; and
- Reducing the financial burden of crime on society through cost-effective approaches with significant return on investments.

4) When did the new legislative requirements related to CSWB planning come into force and how long do municipalities have to develop a plan?

The new legislative requirements related to CSWB planning came into force on January 1, 2019, as an amendment to the *Police Services Act* (PSA). Municipalities have two years from this date (i.e., by January 1, 2021) or until the later date prescribed by the Solicitor General to develop and adopt their first CSWB plan. The Solicitor General has the ability to prescribe a later deadline in regulation as a result of amendments to the *Police Services Act* that came into force on April 14, 2020 (see question #5 for more information). The CSWB planning provisions are set out in Part XI of the PSA.

The two-year timeframe was based on learnings and feedback from the eight pilot communities that tested components of the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet (see Question #33 for more information on the pilot communities).

In the circumstance of a joint plan, all municipalities involved must follow the same timeline to prepare and adopt their first CSWB plan (see Question #11 and 12 for more information on joint plans).

5) Given the current circumstances regarding COVID-19, will the ministry provide an extension on the timeline for municipalities to prepare and adopt a CSWB plan?

With the COVID-19 outbreak, the ministry appreciates that municipalities are currently facing unprecedented circumstances in their communities. The ministry also understands that some municipalities may experience delays in their planning and engagement processes as a result of the current provincial emergency.

On April 14, 2020, the government passed the *Coronavirus (COVID-19) Support and Protection Act, 2020,* which amends the *PSA* to allow the Solicitor General to extend the deadline to prepare and adopt CSWB plans. The amendments came into force immediately upon Royal Assent. The amendments allow the Solicitor General to prescribe a new deadline past January 1, 2021, which will help ensure municipalities are able to meet the legislative requirements and complete their CSWB plans. For reference, the new Act can be found at the following link: <u>https://www.ola.org/en/legislative-business/bills/parliament-42/session-1/bill-189.</u>

The ministry will work with the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, as well as the City of Toronto, to determine an appropriate new deadline that will be set by regulation at a later date. The ministry will continue to keep stakeholders updated on this process.

6) What changes to the CSWB planning requirements were implemented as a result of the introduction of the *Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019*?

On March 26, 2019, the government passed the *Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019*, which included amendments to the CSWB planning provisions in the current PSA. These amendments came into force immediately upon Royal Assent (i.e., March 26, 2019) and include the following:

- Advisory Committee:
 - The chief of police of a police force that provides policing in the area (or delegate) must be included on the advisory committee.

- One person may satisfy multiple representation requirements on the advisory committee (e.g., one person could represent a community service as well as an educational service).
- Plans adopted in compliance with the PSA before these changes to the advisory committee section continue to be valid despite these changes.
- Transition:
 - A transition provision allows for plans where consultations took place before January 1, 2019, to be deemed to have met consultation obligations under the PSA if the Solicitor General determines there is substantial compliance with the PSA consultation obligations.
- Publication:
 - Reports relating to the CSWB plan (i.e., reports on the effect the plan is having, if any, on reducing the prioritized risk factors) must also be published on the Internet.

Further, the *Comprehensive Ontario Police Services Act, 2019* created the *Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019* (CSPA). When it comes into force, the new CSPA will replace the PSA. The CSPA will contain the same CSWB planning requirements as the PSA. The following additional CSWB planning provisions will come into force under the CSPA:

- Additional transition provisions relating to the repealing of the PSA, including:
 - Plans that were prepared and adopted under the PSA before it was repealed are still valid under the CSPA despite any changes in the legislation.
- Municipalities must consult with individuals who have received or are receiving mental health or addictions services when preparing or revising a CSWB plan.

7) What are the main requirements for the CSWB planning process?

A CSWB plan must include the following core information:

- Local priority risk factors that have been identified based on community consultations and multiple sources of data, such as Statistics Canada and local sector-specific data;
- Evidence-based programs and strategies to address those priority risk factors; and
- Measurable outcomes with associated performance measures to ensure that the strategies are effective, and outcomes are being achieved.

As part of the planning process, municipalities are required to establish an advisory committee inclusive of, but not limited to, representation from the local police service/board, as well as the Local Health Integration Networks or health/mental health services, educational services, community/social services, community services to children/youth and custodial services to children/youth.

Further, municipalities are required to conduct consultations with the advisory committee, members of public, including youth, members of racialized groups and of First Nations, Métis and Inuit communities, as well as community organizations that represent these groups.

To learn more about CSWB planning, please refer to the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet. The booklet contains practical guidance on how to develop a plan, including a sample CSWB plan.

8) Who is responsible for developing a CSWB plan?

As per the PSA, the responsibility to prepare and adopt a CSWB plan applies to:

- Single-tier municipalities;
- Lower-tier municipalities in the County of Oxford and in counties; and
- Regional municipalities, other than the County of Oxford.

First Nations communities are also being encouraged to undertake the CSWB planning process but are not required to do so by the legislation.

In the case of regional municipalities, the obligation to prepare and adopt a CSWB plan applies to the regional municipality, not the lower-tier municipalities within the region. Further, the lower-tier municipalities are not required to formally adopt the regional plan (i.e., by resolution from their municipal council).

However, there is nothing that prohibits any of the lower-tier municipalities within a region from developing and adopting their own CSWB plan, if they choose, but it would be outside the legislative requirements outlined in the PSA.

In addition, while lower-tier municipalities within counties are responsible for the development of a CSWB plan, under the legislation municipalities have the discretion and flexibility to create joint plans with other municipalities and First Nation band councils. This may be particularly beneficial for counties, where services are often shared across jurisdictions and to increase capacity by leveraging resources through the development of a county-wide plan.

9) Why did the Government of Ontario mandate CSWB planning to the municipality?

CSWB planning was mandated to municipalities to ensure a proactive and integrated approach to address local crime and complex social issues on a sustainable basis. It is important that municipalities have a leadership role in identifying their local priority risks in the community and addressing these risks through evidence-based programs and strategies, focusing on social development, prevention and risk intervention.

Please remember that even though the municipality has been designated the lead of CSWB planning, developing and implementing a CSWB plan requires engagement from all sectors.

10) If a band council decides to prepare a CSWB plan, do they have to follow all the steps outlined in legislation (e.g., establish an advisory committee, conduct engagement sessions, publish, etc.)?

First Nations communities are encouraged to follow the process outlined in legislation regarding CSWB planning but are not required to do so.

11) Can municipalities create joint plans?

Yes, municipalities can create a joint plan with other municipalities and/or First Nation band councils. The same planning process must be followed when municipalities are developing a joint plan.
12) What is the benefit of creating a joint plan (i.e., more than one municipal council and/or band council) versus one plan per municipality?

It may be of value to collaborate with other municipalities and/or First Nations communities to create the most effective CSWB plan that meets the needs of the area. For example, if many frontline service providers deliver services across neighbouring municipalities or if limited resources are available within a municipality to complete the planning process, then municipalities may want to consider partnering to create a joint plan that will address the unique needs of their area. Additionally, it may be beneficial for smaller municipalities to work together with other municipal councils to more effectively monitor, evaluate and report on the impact of the plan.

13) When creating a joint plan, do all municipalities involved need to formally adopt the plan (i.e., resolution by council)?

Yes, as prescribed in legislation, every municipal council shall prepare, and by resolution, adopt a CSWB plan. The same process must be followed for a joint CSWB plan (i.e., every municipality involved must pass a resolution to adopt the joint plan).

14) What are the responsibilities of an advisory committee?

The main role of the advisory committee is to bring various sectors' perspectives together to provide strategic advice and direction to the municipality on the development and implementation of their CSWB plan.

Multi-sectoral collaboration is a key factor to successful CSWB planning, as it ensures an integrated approach to identifying and addressing local priorities. An ideal committee member should have enough knowledge about their respective sector to identify where potential gaps or duplication in services exist and where linkages could occur with other sectors. The committee member(s) should have knowledge and understanding of the other agencies and organizations within their sector and be able to leverage their expertise if required.

15) Who is required to participate on the advisory committee?

As prescribed in legislation, an advisory committee, at a minimum, must include the following members:

- A person who represents:
 - the local health integration network, or
 - an entity that provides physical or mental health services;
- A person who represents an entity that provides educational services;
- A person who represents an entity that provides community or social services in the municipality, if there is such an entity;
- A person who represents an entity that provides community or social services to children or youth in the municipality, if there is such an entity;
- A person who represents an entity that provides custodial services to children or youth in the municipality, if there is such an entity;
- An employee of the municipality or a member of municipal council;
- A representative of a police service board or, if there is no police service board, a detachment commander of the Ontario Provincial Police (or delegate);

Page **5** of **14**

• The chief of police of a police service that provides policing in the area (or delegate).

As this is the minimum requirement, municipalities have the discretion to include additional representatives from key agencies/organizations on the advisory committee if needed. Consideration must also be given to the diversity of the population in the municipality to ensure the advisory committee is reflective of the community.

As a first step to establishing the advisory committee, a municipality may want to explore leveraging existing committees or groups with similar multi-sectoral representation and mandates to develop the advisory committee or assist in the selection process.

16) What is meant by a representative of an entity that provides custodial services to children or youth?

In order to satisfy the requirement for membership on the advisory committee, the representative must be from an organization that directly provides custodial services to children/youth as defined under the *Youth Criminal Justice Act* (YCJA). The definition of a youth custody facility in the YCJA is as follows:

• A facility designated under subsection 85(2) for the placement of young persons and, if so designated, includes a facility for the secure restraint of young persons, a community residential centre, a group home, a child care institution and a forest or wilderness camp. (lieu de garde)

The member must represent the entity that operates the youth custodial facility, not just provide support services to youth who might be in custody.

It is also important to note that, under the legislation, if a municipality determines that there is no such entity within their jurisdiction, the requirement does not apply.

17) How does a member of the advisory committee get selected?

The municipal council is responsible for establishing the process to identify membership for the advisory committee and has discretion to determine what type of process they would like to follow to do so.

18) In creating a joint plan, do you need to establish more than one advisory committee?

No, regardless of whether the CSWB plan is being developed by one or more municipal councils/band councils, there should only be one corresponding advisory committee.

At a minimum, the advisory committee must include representation as prescribed in legislation (refer to Question #15 for more detail). In terms of creating a joint CSWB plan, it is up to the participating municipal councils and/or First Nation band councils to determine whether they want additional members on the advisory committee, including more than one representative from the prescribed sectors.

19) Who does a municipality have to consult with in the development of a CSWB plan? What sources of data do municipalities need to utilize to develop a CSWB plan?

In preparing a CSWB plan, municipal council(s) must, at a minimum, consult with the advisory committee and members of the public, including youth, members of racialized groups, First Nations, Inuit and Métis communities and community organizations that represent these groups.

To learn more about community engagement, refer to the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet which includes a tool on engaging the community. The booklet also includes resources which help to guide municipalities in their engagement with seniors, youth and Indigenous partners, as these groups are often identified as vulnerable.

In addition to community engagement sessions, data from Statistics Canada and local sector-specific data (e.g., police data, hospital data, education data, etc.) should also be utilized to assist in identifying local priorities. Municipalities and planning partners are encouraged to leverage resources that already exist in the community, including data from their multi-sectoral partners or existing local plans, strategies or initiatives that could inform their CSWB plan (e.g., Neighbourhood Studies, Community Vital Signs Reports, Public Safety Canada's Crime Prevention Inventory, etc.).

Recently, the Ministry of the Solicitor General (ministry) developed a resource document which outlines examples of data sources available to support the planning process. This resource document was developed in collaboration with the ministry's Inter-Ministerial CSWB Working Group, which consists of representatives from nine Ontario ministries and the Federal government. Specifically, the document highlights examples of sector-specific data that is available at the provincial, regional or local level, which can be leveraged to assist in the identification of local priority risks in the community. For a copy of this resource document, please contact <u>SafetyPlanning@ontario.ca</u>.

Further, the ministry also offers the Risk-driven Tracking Database free of charge to communities that have implemented multi-sectoral risk intervention models, such as Situation Tables. The Risk-driven Tracking Database provides a standardized means to collect data about local priorities and evolving trends, which can be used to help inform the CSWB planning process. To learn more about the Risk-driven Tracking Database, please contact <u>SafetyPlanning@Ontario.ca</u>.

20) What is the best way to get members of your community involved in the CSWB planning process?

There are a variety of ways community members can become involved in the planning process, including:

- Attending meetings to learn about CSWB planning and service delivery;
- Volunteering to support local initiatives that improve safety and well-being;
- Talking to family, friends and neighbours about how to make the community a better place;
- Sharing information with CSWB planners about risks that you have experienced, or are aware of in the community;
- Thinking about existing services and organizations that you know about in the community, and whether they are successfully providing for your/the community's needs;
- Identifying how your needs are being met by existing services, and letting CSWB planners know where there are gaps or opportunities for improvement;

- Sharing your awareness of available services, supports and resources with family, friends and neighbours to make sure people know where they can turn if they need help; and
- Thinking about the results you want to see in your community in the longer-term and sharing them with CSWB planners, so they understand community priorities and expectations.

As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, municipalities may experience challenges undertaking planned or on-going consultation and engagement efforts. Where possible, municipalities may want to explore alternative options to continue with their planning efforts. This may include conducting virtual engagement and consultations with community members through webinars, teleconferences and online surveys.

21) What happens if some sectors or agencies/organizations don't want to get involved?

Given that the advisory committee is comprised of multi-sectoral partners, as a first step, you may want to leverage their connections to different community agencies/organizations and service providers.

It is also important that local government and other senior public officials champion the cause and create awareness of the importance of undertaking the planning process to identify and address local priority risks.

Lastly, if after multiple unsuccessful attempts, it may be of value to reach out to ministry staff for suggestions or assistance at: <u>SafetyPlanning@ontario.ca</u>.

22) Are there requirements for municipalities to publish their CSWB plan?

The PSA includes regulatory requirements for municipalities related to the publication of their CSWB plans. These requirements include:

- Publishing a CSWB plan on the Internet within 30 days after adopting it.
- Making a printed copy of the CSWB plan available for review by anyone who requests it.
- Publishing the plan in any other manner or form the municipality desires.

23) How often do municipalities need to review and update their CSWB plan?

A municipal council should review and, if necessary, update their plan to ensure that the plan continues to be reflective of the needs of the community. This will allow municipalities to assess the long-term outcomes and impacts of their strategies as well as effectiveness of the plan as a whole. Municipalities are encouraged to align their review of the plan with relevant local planning cycles and any other local plans (e.g., municipal strategic plans, police services' Strategic Plan, etc.). Requirements related to the reviewing and updating of CSWB plans may be outlined in regulation in the future.

24) How will municipalities know if their CSWB plan is effective?

As part of the CSWB planning process, municipalities must identify measurable outcomes that can be tracked throughout the duration of the plan. Short, intermediate and longer-term performance measures need to be identified and collected in order to evaluate how effective the plan has been in addressing the priority risks and creating positive changes in the community.

Page 8 of 14

In the planning stage, it is important to identify the intended outcomes of activities in order to measure progress towards addressing those pre-determined priority risks. This can be done through the development of a logic model and performance measurement framework. Some outcomes will be evident immediately after activities are implemented and some will take more time to achieve. The *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet provides a resource on performance measurement, including how to develop a logic model.

Municipalities are required to regularly monitor and update their plan, as needed, in order to ensure it continues to be reflective of local needs and it is meeting the intended outcomes.

25) How will the ministry monitor the progress of a local CSWB plan?

The legislation identifies that a municipality is required to provide the Solicitor General (formerly known as the Minister of Community Safety and Correctional Services) with any prescribed information related to (upon request):

- The municipality's CSWB plan, including preparation, adoption or implementation of the plan;
- Any outcomes from the municipality's CSWB plan; and
- Any other prescribed matter related to the CSWB plan.

Additional requirements related to monitoring CSWB plans may be outlined in regulation in the future.

26) How does a municipality get started?

To get the CSWB planning process started, it is suggested that communities begin by following the steps outlined below:

a) Demonstrate Commitment at the Highest Level

- Demonstrate commitment from local government, senior public officials, and, leadership within multi-sectoral agencies/organizations to help champion the process (i.e., through council resolution, assigning a CSWB planning coordinator, realigning resources, etc.).
- Establish a multi-sector advisory committee with, but not limited to, representation from the sectors prescribed by the legislation.
- Leverage existing partnerships, bodies and strategies within the community.

b) Establish Buy-In from Multi-sector Partners

- Develop targeted communication materials (e.g., email distribution, flyers, memos, etc.) to inform agencies/organizations and the broader public about the legislative requirement to develop a CSWB plan and the planning process, and to keep community partners engaged.
- Engage with partnering agencies/organizations to ensure that all partners understand their role in making the community a safe and healthy place to live.
- Distribute the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet and other relevant resources to all those involved and interested in the planning process.

Once the advisory committee has been established and there is local buy-in, municipalities should begin engaging in community consultations and collecting multi-sectoral data to identify local priority risks. For more information on the CSWB planning process, please refer to the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet.

27) What happens if a municipality does not develop a CSWB plan?

Where a municipality intentionally and repeatedly fails to comply with its CSWB obligations under the legislation, the Solicitor General (formerly known as the Minister of Community Safety and Correctional Services) may appoint a CSWB planner at the expense of the municipality. The appointed planner has the right to exercise any powers of the municipal council that are required to prepare a CSWB plan that the municipality must adopt.

This measure will help ensure that local priorities are identified so that municipalities can begin addressing risks and create long-term positive changes in the community.

28) What if municipalities don't have the resources to undertake this exercise?

Where capacity and resources are limited, municipalities have the discretion and flexibility to create joint plans with other municipalities and First Nation band councils. By leveraging the assets and strengths across neighbouring municipalities/First Nations communities, municipalities can ensure the most effective CSWB plan is developed to meet the needs of the area.

CSWB planning is not about reinventing the wheel – but rather recognizing the work already being made within individual agencies and organizations and build from their progress. Specifically, CSWB planning is about utilizing existing resources in a more innovative, effective and efficient way. Municipalities are encouraged to use collaboration to do more with existing resources, experience and expertise. The *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet provides a resource on asset mapping to help communities identify existing strengths and resources that could be leverage during the planning process.

The ministry also offers several different resources to support the CSWB planning process, including the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet and other resources (please refer to question #29 for more information).

In addition, there are funding opportunities available that could be leveraged to support the development and implementation of local CSWB plans (refer to question #31 for more information). For example, the ministry offers a number of different grant programs that are mostly available to police services to support crime prevention and CSWB initiatives. Please visit the ministry's website for additional information on available grant programs:

http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/english/Policing/ProgramDevelopment/PSDGrantsandInitiatives.html

Funding programs are also offered by the federal government's Public Safety department. For more information on their programs and eligibility, please visit <u>https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/cnt/cntrng-crm/crm-prvntn/fndng-prgrms/index-en.aspx</u>.

29) How is the ministry supporting municipalities and First Nation band councils with CSWB planning?

The ministry offers several different resources to support the CSWB planning process including booklets, resource documents, webinars and presentations, and the Risk-driven Tracking Database.

Booklets:

First, as part of the work to develop Ontario's modernized approach to CSWB, the ministry has developed a series of booklets to share information and better support municipalities, First Nations communities and their partners with their local CSWB efforts. Specifically, the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet consists of the CSWB Planning Framework as well as a toolkit of practical guidance documents to support communities and their partners in developing and implementing local plans. The booklet also includes resources that can guide municipalities on their engagement with vulnerable groups such as seniors, youth and Indigenous partners. This booklet can be accessed online at:

https://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/english/Publications/MCSCSSSOPlanningFramework.html.

For reference, the other two booklets developed as part of the series includes:

- Crime Prevention in Ontario: A Framework for Action this booklet sets the stage for effective crime prevention and CSWB efforts through evidence and research –
 <u>http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/sites/default/files/content/mcscs/docs/ec157730.pdf</u>.
- Community Safety and Well-Being in Ontario: A Snapshot of Local Voices this booklet shares learnings about CSWB challenges and promising practices from several communities across Ontario –

http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/sites/default/files/content/mcscs/docs/ec167634.pdf.

Resource Documents:

Communities can also utilize the *Guidance on Information Sharing in Multi-sectoral Risk Intervention Models* document (available on the ministry website -

http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/english/Publications/PSDGuidanceInformationSharingMultisectoralRisk InterventionModels.html). This document was developed by the ministry and supports the CSWB Planning Framework by outlining best practices for professionals sharing information in multi-sectoral risk intervention models (e.g., Situation Tables).

In addition, the ministry recently developed two resource documents, in collaboration with the ministry's Inter-Ministerial CSWB Working Group, which consists of representatives from nine Ontario ministries and the Federal government.

- 1. The first resource document outlines examples of data sources available to support the planning process. Specifically, the document highlights examples of sector-specific data that is available at the provincial, regional or local level, which can be leveraged to assist in the identification of local priority risks in the community.
- 2. The second resource document outlines funding opportunities that can be leveraged to support the development and implementation of local CSWB plans.

For a copy of these resource documents, please contact: <u>SafetyPlanning@ontario.ca</u>.

Risk-driven Tracking Database:

Further, the ministry also offers the Risk-driven Tracking Database which provides a standardized means of gathering de-identified information on situations of elevated risk for communities implementing multi-sectoral risk intervention models, such as Situation Tables. It is one tool that can help

Page **11** of **14**

communities collect data about local priorities and evolving trends to assist with the CSWB planning process.

Webinars and Presentations:

Additionally, the ministry hosted webinars in spring 2019 to support municipal, policing, and community partners as they engage in the CSWB planning process. These webinars provided an overview of the new legislative requirements and the CSWB Planning Framework as well as guidance on how to develop and implement effective plans. A recording of the webinar is available at the following link: <u>http://mcscs-erb.adobeconnect.com/p3e0qppm8g30/</u>.

Lastly, ministry staff are also available to provide direct support to communities in navigating the new legislation related to CSWB planning through interactive presentations and webinars. For more information on arranging CSWB planning presentations and webinars, please contact <u>SafetyPlanning@ontario.ca</u>.

For information on funding supports, please see Question #31.

30) What is the ministry doing to support Indigenous communities with CSWB planning?

Recognizing the unique perspectives and needs of Indigenous communities, the ministry has been working to better support Indigenous partners with the CSWB planning process. Specifically, the ministry has worked with its Indigenous and community partners to develop an additional resource to assist municipalities in engaging with local Indigenous partners as part of their municipally-led CSWB planning process (refer to Appendix D of the *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario* booklet).

In addition, the ministry is also continuing to work with First Nation community partners to identify opportunities to better support these communities in developing and implementing their own CSWB plans. Specifically, the ministry has identified a partnership opportunity with Public Safety Canada and established a joint approach that aligns the ministry's CSWB Planning Framework with Public Safety Canada's Aboriginal Community Safety Planning Initiative to support CSWB planning in First Nations communities within Ontario. The joint approach is currently being piloted in the Mushkegowuk region.

31) Is any provincial funding available to support local CSWB planning?

The ministry recently developed a resource document which outlines funding opportunities that can be leveraged to support the development and implementation of local CSWB plans. This resource document was developed in collaboration with the ministry's Inter-Ministerial CSWB Working Group, which consists of representatives from nine Ontario ministries and the Federal government. The timing for Calls-for-Applications and the eligibility criteria for funding differ for each program. For a copy of this resource document, please contact <u>SafetyPlanning@ontario.ca</u>.

For example, the ministry currently offers different grant programs that are mostly available to police services, in collaboration with community partners, which could be leveraged for implementing programs and strategies identified in a local CSWB plan. Additional information on the ministry's grant programs can also be found on the ministry's website:

http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/english/Policing/ProgramDevelopment/PSDGrantsandInitiatives.html

32) What is Ontario's modernized approach to CSWB?

The ministry has been working with its inter-ministerial, community and policing partners to develop a modernized approach to CSWB that addresses crime and complex social issues on a more sustainable basis. This process involved the following phases:

- Phase 1 raising awareness, creating dialogue and promoting the benefits of CSWB to Ontario communities through the development of the *Crime Prevention in Ontario: A Framework for Action* booklet, which was released broadly in 2012. The booklet is available on the ministry's website: http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/sites/default/files/content/mcscs/docs/ec157730.pdf
- Phase 2 the strategic engagement of various stakeholders across the province, including the public. This phase concluded in November 2014, with the release of the *Community Safety and Well-Being in Ontario: A Snapshot of Local Voices* booklet. This booklet highlights feedback from the engagement sessions regarding locally-identified CSWB challenges and promising practices. The Snapshot of Local Voices is also available on the ministry's website: http://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/sites/default/files/content/mcscs/docs/ec167634.pdf
- Phase 3 the development of the third booklet entitled *Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario,* which was released in November 2017. The booklet consists of the Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework (Framework) and toolkit of practical guidance documents to assist communities in developing and implementing local CSWB plans. The Framework encourages communities to work collaboratively across sectors to identify local priority risks to safety and well-being and implement evidence-based strategies to address these risks, with a focus on social development, prevention and risk intervention. The Framework also encourages communities to move towards preventative planning and making investments into social development, prevention and risk intervention in order to reduce the need for and investment in and sole reliance on emergency/incident response. This booklet is available on the ministry's website: <u>https://www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca/english/Publications/MCSCSSSOPlanningFramework.html</u>.

33) Was the CSWB planning process tested in advance of provincial release?

The Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario booklet was developed using evidence-based research, as well as practical feedback from the eight pilot communities that tested components of the Framework and toolkit prior to public release. Further, learnings from on-going community engagement sessions with various urban, rural, remote and Indigenous communities have also been incorporated. The booklet was also reviewed by the ministry's Inter-ministerial CSWB Working Group, which consists of nine Ontario ministries and Public Safety Canada, to further incorporate multi-sectoral input and perspectives. As a result, this process helped to ensure that the booklet is a useful tool that can support communities as they move through the CSWB planning process.

34) What is a risk factor?

Risk factors are negative characteristics and/or conditions present in individuals, families, communities, or society that may increase social disorder, crime or fear of crime, or the likelihood of harm or victimization to persons or property in a community.

A few examples of risk factors include:

• <u>Risk Factor:</u> Missing School – truancy

- <u>Definition</u>: has unexcused absences from school without parental knowledge
- <u>Risk Factor</u>: Poverty person living in less than adequate financial situation
 - <u>Definition:</u> current financial situation makes meeting the day-to-day housing, clothing or nutritional needs, significantly difficult
- <u>Risk Factor:</u> Sexual Violence person victim of sexual violence
 - <u>Definition</u>: has been the victim of sexual harassment, humiliation, exploitation, touching or forced sexual acts

Municipalities and First Nations communities have local discretion to address the risks that are most prevalent in their communities as part of their CSWB plans, which should be identified through consultation with the community and by utilizing/leveraging multiple sources of data.

The Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Framework: A Shared Commitment in Ontario booklet includes a list of risk factors and their associated definitions to assist communities in identifying and prioritizing their local priority risks.



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	FL2021-001
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	Fleet Services Review
Description:	Independent third party review of the Full City Fleet Management program
Author and Title:	Todd Bryant, Manager of Fleet and Transit

Recommendation(s):

That Report FL2021-001, Fleet Services Review, be received; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Department Head: ______ Financial/Legal/HR/Other:_____

Chief Administrative Officer:_____

Background:

The City applied for and received money from the Municipal Modernization Program. The intent of the Ontario program is to find smarter, more efficient ways to operate our business. The scope of this Fleet Services Review included both the general and emergency service fleet inventories; specifically, Fire, Paramedic and Kawartha Lakes Police Services were included in the review.

Currently Fleet Services manages 377 pieces of equipment plus numerous attachments for all non emergency services. Paramedics 22 vehicles, Fire Services 76 vehicles and Police Services 17 vehicles each manage their Fleets separately. Each of these business units operates and maintains their respective Fleet inventory independently using industry standard as guidelines for service delivery.

This report addresses the Municipal Modernization Program outcomes.

Rationale:

The City of Kawartha Lakes sought an independent third-party review of its Fleet Management Programs, inclusive of expenses and best practices for lifecycle optimization, service/maintenance best practices, fuel management, vehicle use and deployment. This comprehensive review included analysis of both general and emergency service fleet inventories. The intent was to develop recommendations regarding program savings, efficiencies, service enhancements, staffing levels, maintenance locations and structures, and greenhouse gas emission reductions all fleet services inventories.

On March 17 2020, the City issued its Request for Proposals (RFP) 2020-008-OP for a Review of Services: Fleet Management Program. Richmond Sustainability Initiatives (RSI) was selected to complete the review. RSI is a not-for-profit Canadian consulting firm. Fleet Challenge is their fleet management consulting arm, with offices in Canada and the United States.

RSI observations included quick facts about the City of Kawartha Lakes combined fleet inventory:

- 492 units including vehicles and equipment
- Original purchase price: \$61,735,888
- Current-day book (depreciated) value: \$28,240,340
- Replacement value: \$78,030,965
- Kilometers-travelled: 3,787,692

- Annual fuel used: 1,517,469 liters
- Repair and maintenance costs: \$3,884,827
- CO2 emissions: 3,855 metric tonnes
- Average age of the fleet: 8.3 years

Upon review of the City of Kawartha Lakes Public Works, Transit, Fire Rescue, Paramedic and Police fleets; each fleet with its own unique operating environments and challenges, RSI observed all departments are generally performing at a high level. As in every fleet, there are enhancements that can take operations to the next levels of success. Their report goes beyond the typical parameters of a fleet review – it can also be a blueprint for the future in that it includes not just observations and recommendations but also guidance around the adoption of contemporary and proven best-in-class fleet management practices.

Of the 21 key recommendations in this report, (78 recommendations in total) many are currently in place with several more being adopted through policy change. Others are being contemplated for long term decision making and require a detailed business plan, costing and interdepartmental discussions with recommendations to department heads for consideration.

Recommendation	In Place	Considered
Regular follow up surveys to gauge user group customer satisfaction	No	To be independently considered by all 4 operating units.
Life Cycle Analysis	Yes. This has taken place since 2014 and adapted to CKL requirements	
Long-Term Capital Budget Planning Prepare annual and long-term capital budgets based on: (1) the optimal economic lifecycles determined by lifecycle analysis for each vehicle	Yes. 10-year replacement in place.	
Asset Management Consider implementation of a fleet asset management information system (FMIS).		To be independently considered by all 4 operating units.

Recommendation	In Place	Considered
Vehicle	Yes, specifications	
Specifications	are written annually	
Continue to practice vehicle	based on	
standardization wherever possible	department needs.	
Fleet Finance	Yes. Already use	To be independently
Consider fully-bundled, total cost	this process in Fleet	considered by 3 operating
recovery monthly "lease" charge	Services	units.
approach as we've described which		
includes all direct and indirect		
vehicle costs and overheads.		
Information	No	To be independently
Technology		considered by all 4
Consider full-function fleet		operating units.
management information system		
(FMIS)		
Human Resources	Yes. Working with	
 Fleet Technicians. 	HR on several	
Consider Fleet Technician wage	solutions to fit CKL	
review	needs.	
Human Resources	Yes. Regularly use	
– Driver Training Consider engaging	contracted services	
a driver trainer	for this purpose	
	Fire Service has a	
	Driver Training	
	Program approved	
	by the MTO as well	
	as a contracted	
	service provider.	
Fleet Operations	Yes. Monitor Plow	
Consider routinely track, monitor,	Truck usage and	
and report the utilization of all units	report quarterly.	
to user	Police Services	
department	monitor for fuel	
	consumption,	
	mileage and	
	maintenance costs	
Preventive	No	To be independently
Maintenance		considered by all 4
Consider monitoring downtime and		operating units through a
associated costs for all vehicles		FMIS

Recommendation	In Place	Considered
Minimizina Fuel	Yes. Have a MD	To be independently
Consumption	detailing idling	considered by all 4
Consider using telematics to	practice	operating units through a
identify high engine idling		FMIS
Fleet Safety	No	Yes, considered by Fleet
(Legislative)		Services.
Consider having a third party		
conduct a CVOR mock audit to		
identify		
any gaps.		
Environment	Yes	To be independently
(Vehicles & Fuels)		considered by all 4
Consider purchase of battery-		operating units.
electric EVs and plug-in hybrids that		
are available now in the light duty		
categories	-	
Environment	Yes. This is a	
(Operations)	regular practice of	
Explore and use eco-friendly shop	management and	
practices and new ways of being	requirement asked	
green in the fleet	of contractors.	
workplace.		
Policies and	No. Not considered	Could be a costly
Procedures	at this time.	duplication of efforts.
Consider development of a Driver's		
Fuel Procurement &	res. In place.	
Distribution.		
Review Tuelling System(S) for		
Standarde Authority (TSSA)		
sompliance		
Dorformanco	No	To be independently
Management	INO	considered by all 4
Consider performance measures for		operating units
the Elect & Transit Services team		operating units.
that would be beneficial in terms		
of personal motivation		
Communications	Yes Done at	
	monthly and	

Recommendation	In Place	Considered
Consider communications that highlight stories about employee awards and other types of recognition	quarterly employee tailgate talks.	
Parts and Inventory Consider computerization of the parts and inventory with a modern fleet management information system (FMIS).	No	Yes. This could be accomplished through a Fleet Management Information System

Each business unit has reviewed the final modernization report and where deemed necessary by the respective leadership, will return to Council with detailed business plans and seek endorsement to implement recommendations.

Other Alternatives Considered:

There are no alternatives considered for this report. The grant program requires the fleet services review report to be presented and received by Council in order to qualify for the funding.

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

Goal 1 - Fiscally Responsible- The Fleet review is focused on being fiscally responsible in our core service delivery. Fleet Services continues to make informed decisions to ensure a sound financial future.

Goal 2 – Open and Transparent-Through the review of equipment, process and service delivery, we are committed to operating in an open, accessible and transparent manner. Annual performance measures ensure that operations stay on track and achieve strong performance results.

Goal 3 – Partner and Collaborate- From this review, we strengthen our relationships with external organizations to collaborate on projects and services. We support innovation and look for opportunities to partner to advance our common goals. We work with all levels of government to maximize investments.

Goal 4 – Service Excellence- We serve our community with pride. We seek to understand and meet the needs of those we serve within our available resources. Fleet Services is committed to accessible, timely, knowledgeable, courteous and fair service.

Financial/Operation Impacts:

There are no financial implications from receiving this report.

Servicing Implications:

N/A

Consultations:

Director Corporate Services Deputy Fire Chief Deputy Chief Operations, EMS Kawartha Lakes Police Services Manager of Corporate Assets Executive Assistant Fire Services

Attachments:



Department Head E-Mail: brobinson@kawarthalakes.ca

Department Head: Bryan Robinson

Department File: FL 2021-001



City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services Review

PREPARED BY RICHMOND SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES - FLEET CHALLENGE, TORONTO, ON

FINAL REPORT

© COPYRIGHT RICHMOND SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES - 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDFINAL REPPR

Table of Contents

Terms and Abbreviations Terms and Abbreviations (cont'd.)	8 - 9 -
Foreword	- 10 -
Executive Summary	- 11 -
Section 1: Introduction, Background and Scope Introduction Background	- 15 - - 15 - - 15 -
Section 2: Approach and Methodology Approach Methodology Research Next Steps	- 18 - - 18 - - 18 - - 18 - - 20 -
Section 3: Fleet Baseline and Profile	- 22 - - 22 - - 25 - - 26 - - 27 - - 27 -
Section 4: Baseline Analysis	- 29 - - 29 - - 29 - - 31 - - 31 - - 31 - - 32 - - 33 - - 33 - - 33 - - 38 - - 38 - - 38 - - 39 - - 42 - - 42 - - 43 - - 43 -

Synopsis – User Group Customer Satisfaction	45 -
Recommendations – User Group Customer Satisfaction	45 -
Section 5: Life Cycle Analysis	47 -
Lifecycle Methodology and Approach	47 -
Data Challenges	49 -
The Life Cycle Cost Curve	- 50 -
Environmental Considerations	- 51 -
Kev Parameters and Assumptions	
Life Cycle Analysis Results	54 -
Vehicle Condition Assessments	54 -
Recommendations – Lifecycle Analysis	54 -
Section 6: Long-Term Capital Budget Planning	59 -
Baseline Analysis	59 -
Scenario One: Business-as-Usual Lifecycles	59 -
Scenario Two: LCA Optimized Vehicle Replacements	61 -
Scenario Three: Return on Investment	62 -
Synopsis – Long-Term Capital Planning	65 -
Recommendations – Long-Term Capital Planning	65 -
Section 7: Best Management Practices Review	67 -
About Best Management Practices Review™ (BMPR)	67 -
7.1 Asset Management	68 -
City of Kawartha Lake's Objectives	68 -
On Fleet Baseline and Data Management	68 -
Downsizing the Fleet	70 -
Exception Management	70 -
Continuous Improvement	
Fleet Modernization	
Vehicle Replacement at the Rate of Depreciation	
Managing Fleet Growth	
Challenges	- 72 -
Becommendations – Asset Management	- 72 -
7.2 Vehicle Specifications	
Vehicle Standardization	
Pooveling Mounted Equipment	
Right-Sizing Vehicles	/ / - _ 77
l ight-Weighting Vehicles	- 78 -

	Low-Emissions Vehicles	78	-
	Fuel-Saving Technologies	78	-
	Diesel-Powered Vehicles	78	-
	Exception Units	79	-
	Waste Stream	79	_
	Paints	79	_
	Synopsis – Vehicle Specifications	79	_
	Recommendations - Vehicle Specifications	80	-
7	3 Fleet Finance	81	-
	Fleet Business Structure	81	-
	Cost-Neutral Fleet Department	81	-
	Fully-Bundled Lease Charges versus Reserve Funds	84	-
	Synopsis – Fleet Finance	86	-
	Recommendations - Fleet Finance	87	-
7	A laformation Tachnology	00	
1	4 Information Technology	88	-
	Fleet Management Information Systems	88	-
	Data Systems	88	-
	Preventive Maintenance Scheduling	89	-
	FMIS Data Integrity and Accountability	89	-
	- HIS Key Attributes	90	-
	Data Management	91	-
	Odometer and Engine Hour Readings	91	-
	Synopsis – Information Technology	91	-
	Recommendations – Information Technology	92	-
7	5 Human Resources	93	-
	The Fleet & Transit Services Management Team	93	-
	Management Staff - Personal Development	93	-
	Fleet Maintenance Technicians	94	-
	Staff Requirements	95	-
	Calculating Labour Demand	95	-
	Calculating Labour Capacity	96	-
	Calculating Fleet Technician Requirements	96	-
	Recruiting Motor Vehicle Technicians	96	-
	Retaining Motor Vehicle Technicians	99	-
	Pay Scale	99	-
	Stability and Predictability	99	-
	Work Environment 1	100	-
	Fleet Technicians Survey	100	-
	Job Satisfaction	100	-
	Compensation and Benefits 1	102	-

Techni	cian Comments	102 -	
Apprei	nticeship Program	105 -	
Challe	nges	106 -	
Oppor	tunities	106 -	
Synop	sis – Fleet Technicians	107 -	
Recon	nmendations – Fleet Technicians	108 -	
Fleet D	Priver Training	109 -	
Synop	sis - Fleet Driver Training	110 -	
Recon	nmendations – Driver Training	110 -	
7.6 Fleet	Operations	111 -	
Utilizat	ion	111 -	
Measu	ring Utilization	111 -	
Availat	jility	112 -	
Synop	sis – Eleet Operations	114 -	
Becon	nmendations - Fleet Operations	- 114 -	
7.7 Preve	entive Maintenance	115 -	
Fleet F	Preventive Maintenance Programs - Overview	115 -	
Reacti	ve Repairs vs. Preventive Maintenance	116 -	
PM Sc	heduling	117 -	
Mainte	nance Ratio	118 -	
Engine	Oil Sampling & Lab Analysis	118 -	
PM W	orksheets	119 -	
Predic	tive Maintenance	119 -	
Downt	ime	119 -	
Synop	sis - Preventive Maintenance	120 -	
Recon	mendations - Preventive Maintenance	120 -	
7.8 Minir	nizing Fuel Consumption	121 -	
Corpo	rate Average Fuel Efficiency	121 -	
Excep	tion Units – High Fuel Consumption	121 -	
Driver	Behaviors – Excess Idling	122 -	
Synop	sis – Minimizing Fuel Consumption	122 -	
Recon	mendations - Minimizing Fuel Consumption	123 -	
7.9 Fleet	Safety	124 -	
Vehicle	Safety Overview - the Canadian Fleet Perspective	124 -	
Comm	ercial Vehicle Operators Registration	124 -	
Wheel	Separation	125 -	
Dailv Ir	spection Requirements for Drivers and Operators	125 -	
Electro	nic Logaina Devices	131 -	
Loa Ba	pok Exemption	132 -	
Comm	ercial Vehicle Driver Training	135 -	
	0		

Synopsis – Fleet Safety Recommendations – Fleet Safety (Drivers) OSHA 10-Step Program Acts of Terrorism The Coronavirus Synopsis – Fleet Safety Recommendations – Fleet Safety (Legislative & Security)	- 136 - - 136 - - 136 - - 137 - - 137 - - 137 - - 138 - - 138 -
 7.10 Environment About Green Fleet Plans – An Overview Situation Synopsis - Electric Vehicles, Green Technologies, Alternate & Renewable Fuels Recommendations - Vehicles, Green Technologies, Fuels Eco-Friendly Fleet Maintenance Operations Recommendations – Environment (Maintenance) 	- 139 - - 139 - - 139 - - 139 - - 147 - - 147 - - 148 - - 148 - - 149 -
 7.11 Policies and Procedures Policies and Procedures Manual Synopsis - Policies and Procedures Key Recommendations - Policies and Procedures 	150 - 150 - 150 - 150 -
 7.12 Fuel Procurement and Distribution Fuel Distribution Volume Discounts Direct to Vehicle Fuelling Fuelling Sites Spill Control & Secondary Containment Synopsis - Fuel Procurement & Distribution Recommendations - Fuel Procurement & Distribution 	151 - 151 - 151 - 151 - 151 - 151 - 152 - 152 - 152 -
7.13 Performance Management Key Performance Indicators Performance Targets Employee Performance Contracts Rewarding Good Performance Synopsis - Performance Management Recommendations - Performance Management	- 153 - - 154 - - 154 -
7.14 Communications Fleet Advisory Committee Awards and Other Forms of Recognition Internal and External Communications Synopsis – Communications Recommendations - Communications	155 - 155 - 155 - 155 - 155 - 156 - 156 -

Section 8. Maintenance Consolidation	- 158 -
Situation	- 158 -
Outsourcing versus Insourcing	- 159 -
Fleet Garage Service Bay Capacity and Demand	- 160 -
Options	- 163 -
Maintenance Consolidation - Cost versus Benefit	- 164 -
Section 9. Parts and Inventory Review	- 166 -
Alternative Stock Room Options	- 168 -
Synopsis – Parts and Inventory	- 169 -
Recommendations – Parts and Inventory	- 169 -
Section 10. Summary of Key Recommendations	- 171 -
Appendix "A" - Average Performance Metrics by Sub-Types/Categories	- 178 -
Appendix "B" – Lifecycle Analysis Charts	- 183 -
Appendix "C" - About Fleet Analytics Review	- 189 -
Appendix "D" – About Best Management Practice Review	- 192 -
Appendix "E" – About Life Cycle Analysis	- 194 -
LCA and Long-Term Capital Planning	- 195 -
Municipal Fleet Database	- 197 -
Appendix "F" – Fleet Surveys	- 200 -
Appendix "G" - Case Study of Fully Bundled Lease Charges	- 208 -
Disclaimer	- 211 -



Terms and Abbreviations

BEV - Battery electric vehicle

BMPR – Best management practices review

CAFE – Corporate average fuel economy

Capex – Capital expense

Capital Replacement Ratio - Capital (for vehicle replacements) as a percentage of NPV

CMV - Commercial motor vehicle

Concession – Discount on new vehicle(s), pre-arranged and negotiated with auto manufacturers

CO₂ or CO₂e – Carbon dioxide, carbon dioxide equivalent. A gas that contributes to the greenhouse effect by absorbing infrared radiation

CVOR – Commercial Vehicle Operating Registry

Downtime - Period when a vehicle is unavailable for use during prime business hours

ECM – The electronic control module that manages a vehicle's computerized engine function

EDL – Electronic data logger

ELD – Electronic logging device

EVKT – Estimated vehicle kilometres traveled

FAR™ – Fleet Analytics Review (FC Excel software tool)

FC – Fleet Challenge

FMC - Fleet management company

FMIS - Fleet management information system

FTE - Full time equivalent (employee)

GHG – Greenhouse gas (carbon dioxide, as expressed in CO_2 equivalent tonnes)

GHG Intensity - a measure of GHG's produced relative to VKT

GL – General ledger

GVW – Gross vehicle weight

GVWR - Gross vehicle weight rating

HD or HDV – Heavy-duty vehicle (a class 7-8 truck)

HEV – Hybrid electric vehicle

HOS – Hours of Service

KPI – Key Performance Indicator

LCA – Life Cycle Analysis

LD or LDV - Light-duty vehicle

LTCP – Long Term Capital Planning

Maintenance Ratio - Ratio of dollars spent on reactive repairs to preventive maintenance

MD or MDV – Medium-duty Vehicle

MT – Metric tonne



Terms and Abbreviations (cont'd.)

- NPV Net present value
- OEM Original equipment manufacturer
- **Opex** Operating expense
- Outlier Vehicle with operating statistics outside of averages for similar fleet units
- PHEV Plug-in hybrid electric vehicle
- PMCVI Periodic Mandatory Commercial Vehicle Inspection
- Retention Cycle The period that a vehicle remains in active service
- RNG Renewable natural gas
- ROI Return on investment
- SLA Service level agreement, an agreement used to define client expectations
- SOP Standard operating practice
- TCO Total cost of ownership
- Uptime The opposite of downtime
- Vehicle availability See "Uptime"
- VKT Vehicle kilometers traveled
- WACC Weighted average cost of capital
- ZEV Zero-emission vehicle





Foreword

The report has been prepared in a manner intended for readers of all levels of fleet management and business experience. It describes, in detail, many best management practices employed by North America's leading commercial fleets.

Experienced fleet managers and senior-level staff may feel that some of the comments and information presented in the report are obvious, fundamental, over-stated – even superfluous ("we already do that").

While the information contained herein may seem basic to more advanced managers, we believe it's a good practice for even the most seasoned fleet managers to occasionally review, re-visit and rethink old fleet management paradigms, beliefs, practices, and procedures in the interest of continuous improvement. We hope readers of this report find our insights informative, inspiring, valuable, and thought-provoking.

• • •





Executive Summary

The City of Kawartha Lakes¹ is home to more than 75,000 permanent and 30,000 seasonal residents. Nearly 1.4 million people visit the City each year seeking the cottage lifestyle made possible by its 250 lakes and rivers.

Typical of communities everywhere, the City of Kawartha Lakes (the City, CKL) operates a diverse fleet of cars, pickups, vans, SUVs, medium- and heavy-duty trucks, and equipment. The City's fleet contains the types of vehicles and work equipment essential to serve its residents, their homes, and businesses. On March 17 2020, the City issued its Request for Proposals (RFP) 2020-008-OP for a Review of Services: Fleet Management Program.

Richmond Sustainability Initiatives (RSI) of Toronto, Ontario, was selected to complete the review. Richmond Sustainability Initiatives is a not-for-profit Canadian consulting firm based in Toronto, Ontario. Fleet Challenge (FC or RSI-FC) is our fleet management consulting arm, with offices in Canada and the United States. This report provides the details of our review and analysis of the City's fleet program, and our recommendations.

Objectives

The City sought an independent third-party review of its fleet management program inclusive of expenses and best practices for lifecycle optimization, service/maintenance best practices, use of contracted versus internal resource cost benefit, fuel management, vehicle use, procurement practices, and alternative fuel equipment potential and deployment.

Scope

The review is to examine both general and emergency service fleet inventories, and is to develop recommendations regarding program savings, efficiencies, service enhancements, staffing levels, maintenance locations and structures, and greenhouse gas emission reductions.

Approach

In completing the type of fleet projects and services sought by the City of Kawartha Lakes, RSI-FC employed our highly developed and comprehensive approach which we have developed and refined over the past 15+ years of fleet management consulting.



¹ Source: <u>https://www.kawarthalakes.ca/en/living-here/about-kawartha-lakes.aspx</u>



Our standard fleet review processes begin with current-day baseline determination, including costs and service levels, to determine the fleet's current state and to clearly establish the starting point. We then complete a detailed review of historical operating data with analysis and comparisons to other municipal fleets and their key performance indicators.

Our processes include a comprehensive review of fleet management practices; we complete vehicle lifecycle analysis (to determine optimal economic lifecycles for all vehicle types), long-term capital budget planning, and then we data-model go-forward scenarios and develop well-informed recommendations and green fleet strategies.

RSI-FC knows that stakeholder engagement is critical to the success of any go-forward fleet plans or any changes under consideration. For this reason, it is our standard practice to ensure that user group managers and supervisors, vehicle drivers and the union are consulted.

The City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet

Some quick facts² about the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet:

- 492 units including vehicles and equipment
- Original purchase price: \$61,735,888
- Current-day book (depreciated) value: \$28,240,340
- Replacement value: \$78,030,965
- Kilometers-travelled: 3,787,692
- Fuel used: 1,517,469 liters
- Repair and maintenance costs: \$3,884,827
- CO₂ emissions: 3,855 metric tonnes CO₂e
- Average age of the fleet: 8.3 years

Recommendations

Since 2006, Richmond Sustainability Initiatives – and our Fleet Challenge team – have completed more than 150 municipal fleet reviews across Canada and the United States. We reviewed the City of Kawartha Lakes Public Works, Transit, Fire Rescue, Paramedic and Police fleets, each fleet with its own unique operating environments. We observed all are performing at a high level; but in every fleet, there are enhancements that can take operations to the next levels of success.

² Data was compiled during a one-year fleet review period



This report goes well beyond the typical parameters of a fleet review – it can be a blueprint for the future in that it includes not just our observations and recommendations but also highly detailed guidance around the adoption of contemporary and proven best-in-class fleet management practices.

The recommendations set out in this Fleet Review are designed to help Fleet Services reach for and attain:

- Balancing of Fleet's capital budgets over the next 15 years
- Optimization of vehicle and equipment assets extracting maximum value from each unit
- Mitigation of fleet size increases
- Alignment of labour and garage service bay requirements to maintenance demand
- Reducing vehicle collisions and protecting CKL's safety rating
- Optimization of fleet maintenance and spare parts inventory
- Ensuring legal compliance
- A pathway to viable, cost-effective 'green fleet' low-carbon solutions including electric vehicles and best management practices

Detailed recommendations follow each section of this report and a summary of twenty-one (21) key recommendations is found in Section 11.

Richmond Sustainability Initiatives - Fleet Challenge Team

Lead author: Roger Smith Contributors: Jana Cervinka, Hons. BA, Matthew Pittana, BSc, MCC, Philip Breault, MSc, John Lyon, BA, Chris Hill, MBA, CMC, Melissa Felder, MSc Data Analyst: Hugh Roberts, MBA

. . .



Section One

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Introduction, Background & Scope



Section 1: Introduction, Background and Scope

The City of Kawartha Lakes³ is home to more than 75,000 permanent and 30,000 seasonal residents. Nearly 1.4 million people visit the City each year seeking the cottage lifestyle made possible by its 250 lakes and rivers.

Introduction

Typical of communities everywhere, the City of Kawartha Lakes (the City, CKL) operates a diverse fleet of cars, pickups, vans, SUVs, medium- and heavy-duty trucks, and equipment. The City's fleet contains the types of vehicles and work equipment essential to serve its residents, their homes, and businesses. On March 17 2020, the City issued its Request for Proposals (RFP) 2020-008-OP for a Review of Services: Fleet Management Program (the Review, the Fleet Review).

Richmond Sustainability Initiatives (RSI) of Toronto, Ontario, was selected to complete the Review. Richmond Sustainability Initiatives is a not-for-profit Canadian consulting firm based in Toronto, Ontario. Fleet Challenge (FC or RSI-FC) is our fleet management consulting arm, with offices in Canada and the United States.

This report provides the details of our review and analysis of the City's fleet program, and our recommendations.

Background

As stated in its RFP, the City sought an independent third-party review of its Fleet Management Program, inclusive of expenses and best practices for lifecycle optimization, service/maintenance best practices, fuel management, vehicle use and deployment.

The Review is to examine both general and emergency service fleet inventories, and is to develop recommendations regarding program savings, efficiencies, service enhancements, staffing levels, maintenance locations and structures, and greenhouse gas emission reductions.

The Review is to conduct a comprehensive examination of the program with the aim of optimizing and modernizing the program through input resource efficiencies and service configuration improvements. More specifically, the review is expected to include but not necessarily be limited to the following items:



³ Source: <u>https://www.kawarthalakes.ca/en/living-here/about-kawartha-lakes.aspx</u>



- a) Review of comparable municipalities' fleet management programs at an executive summary level in terms of costs and funding, models and levels of service, staffing, facilities, equipment and policies;
- b) Review and optimization of the fleet management program of the Fleet and Transit Services Division, an internal service provider to other City divisions, as well as corresponding programs of the following departments that provide for their own fleet needs: Fire Service Department, Paramedic Service Department and Kawartha Lakes Police Service;
- c) Review and optimization of approaches to asset management (e.g. replacement, upgrade, expansion, standardization, etc.) and maintenance (e.g. preventive and unscheduled maintenance, licensing and CVOR, insurance, etc.) with the aim of minimizing long-run lifecycle costs of fleet assets;
- d) Review and optimization of approaches to parts inventory, fuel, lease-purchase mix, asset tracking and reporting (e.g. GPS) and asset utilization with the aim of improving inventory, fuel and maintenance management, optimizing asset performance monitoring, maximizing fuel economy and minimizing asset idleness and greenhouse gas emissions;
- e) Review and optimization of the mix and deployment of contracted and in-house resources, administrative structures, staffing levels and processes and inter- divisional synergies, and;
- f) Review and optimization of approaches to cost accounting, cost recovery (charge-out rates paid by other City divisions), funding (e.g. fleet reserves) and growth and upgrade of the fleet inventory with the aim of improving cost management and stabilizing funding and budget impacts.



Section Two

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Approach and Methodology

Section 2: Approach and Methodology

Approach

R SI-FC's approach began with information gathering. Our team's objective during this stage of the review process was to gain a thorough understanding of the fleet's current operational realities, financials, business processes and practices.

We conducted virtual meetings⁴, engaged in discussions, and designed customized online surveys that were distributed to fleet staff, internal stakeholders and vehicle drivers inviting their feedback. We also initiated the process of collecting fleet statistical data to be used by our team for detailed analysis.

Methodology

For our review of the CKL Fleet and Transit Services, we used several proprietary fleet review software tools we have developed to aid in completing our assignments. The following business tools were instrumental to successfully completing the deliverables for the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet review:

- (1) Fleet Analytics Review[™] (our proprietary data-modeling software tool)
- (2) Best Management Practices Review[™] (a software-based review process)
- (3) Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) (software-based)
- (4) Long-Term Capital Planning tool (a module within FAR software)

Research

Research to gain familiarity with CKL's fleet operations, surrounding issues, and objectives was the first essential step toward fleet strategies and recommendations for the City of Kawartha Lakes. This process included six preliminary and exploratory steps:

(1) Data Collection. CKL's fleet data, including a list of vehicles and equipment to be reviewed, makes/models/years of each unit, including kilometers-travelled, fuel used, repair and preventive maintenance costs, and additional data points as available, were loaded into our Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) software.

71



⁴ During the coronavirus pandemic in-person meetings and site visits were not possible. For this reason, GoTo Meeting, a leading virtual meeting service, was used extensively.





(2) Baseline Analysis. In Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR)⁵ we produced a baseline that identified the current-day status of the fleet and many Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and positioning of the CKL fleet statistics relative to municipal peers.

(3) Exception Management and Internal Benchmarking. The calculation of category average performance for every vehicle and equipment type in the CKL fleet facilitated the assessment of each unit's performance relative to the average statistics for similar vehicles in the fleet. As a result, exception units were clearly identified – those with better or worse performance relative to similar vehicles in the fleet.

(4) Peer Fleet Comparisons: After establishing the FAR baseline, we plotted CKL's key operational statistics (KPIs) alongside the same data points for comparable municipal fleets from our fleet database. The objective of this step was to direct our review into areas having potential gaps and identify possible sub-standard performance. These results highlighted where opportunities for improvement may be feasible and underscored areas for further investigation.

(5) Fleet Stakeholder Discussions and Surveys: Our consultants held virtual meetings and distributed online surveys to ensure engagement with fleet stakeholders and staff. During our BMPR review process (see next bullet point), and by obtaining user-group and Fleet staff feedback via <u>www.ConstantContact.com</u> online surveys, we familiarized ourselves with all practices and procedures relative to our assignment.

We reviewed shop work practices, PM worksheets, driver reports, driver's daily vehicle inspections, fuel dispensing, vendor invoices/work orders, transactional data and other documentation as necessary for the review.

(6) Best Management Practices Review: We completed a 'best management practices review' by means of our proprietary BMPR[™] business tool⁶. The BMPR consisted of four separate meetings with the fleet management personnel from Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services as well as the City's sub-fleets which included Paramedics, Fire Rescue and Police to learn the fleet's operational practices and procedures.

⁵ Fleet Analytics Review™ (FAR) is a proprietary software tool developed by RSI for complex fleet analysis and data-modeling (see appendices for full description).

⁶ Best Management Practices Review[™] (BMPR) is a proprietary business tool developed by RSI (see appendices for full description)


For maximum efficiency and in consideration of staff time off-the-job to attend our research meetings, we used our BMPR software-based template thereby ensuring an effective and productive sharing of information. The BMPR discussions included 15 topics and ~200 questions. For thoroughness, we assigned three of our senior consultants to these sessions to ensure all information was accurately captured.

Next Steps

After successfully completing the above six preparatory steps, our team gained a well-informed working knowledge of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services and the City's sub-fleets which included Paramedics, Fire Rescue and Police. This foundation supported the ability to develop strategies and recommendations.

In the next section of this report we will address each of many fleet management focal points. We will describe our approach and methodology, our findings; we will identify potential gaps, opportunities and challenges. At the end of each section of our detailed review, we will provide recommendations for the City of Kawartha Lakes.

In Section 11, 'Summary of Key Recommendations', key recommendations are listed in table format for easier reference.

. . .



Section Three

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Fleet Profile



Section 3: Fleet Baseline and Profile

Background - Vehicle Categories and Counts

M unicipal fleets everywhere include a diverse mix of vehicle categories and types, makes and models, and fulfil a wide range of services to their communities. Municipal fleets typically include many types of units, ranging from light-duty cars, pickups, SUVs, and vans to Class 8, heavy-duty tandem axle trucks as well as mobile work equipment.

To begin analysis and inform our recommendations around fleet vehicles and equipment and all other deliverables in this project, RSI-FC began by developing a baseline profile of the CKL fleet in our Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) data-modeling software. The analysis included the full City of Kawartha Lakes fleet including its sub-fleets: Transit, Paramedics, Fire and Police, as well as all work and mobile equipment. The total number of active units for our Review was 492.

In Figure 1 - City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet - High Level Composition (below), we see the high-level makeup of the City's fleet.





THE CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES REVIEW OF SERVICES – FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM





Within each of the ten high level categories shown in *Figure 1* are many sub-categories. For our analysis, we then identified and sorted all vehicle units using industry-standard vehicle categorization protocol.

The vehicle categorization is a numeric system; Classes 1 to 3 encapsulate light-duty vehicles such as cars, vans, SUVs, and pickups. Classes 4 to 8 are medium- to heavy-duty trucks, in that order.

Within Classes 1 to 3 are additional alphabetic identifiers (the letters 'a' to 'g') which indicate vehicle capacities, with 'a' being the lowest capacity and 'g' the highest.

Truck Classes 4 to 8 are divided by gross vehicle weight ratings (GVWRs). These groupings are shown in *Figure 2 - Standard Truck Classifications and GVWRs* (below).

Light Duty	Class 1 Class 2 Class 3	0–6000 lb. (0–2722 kg). 6001–10000 lb. (2722–4536 kg). 10001–14000 lb. (4536–6350 kg).
Medium Duty Trucks	Class 4 Class 5	14001–16000 lb. (6351–7257 kg). 16001–19500 lb. (7258–8845 kg).
Heavy Duty Trucks	Class 6 Class 7 Class 8	19501–26000 lb. (8846–11793 kg). 26001–33000 lb. (11794–14969 kg). 33000 lb. and up (14969 kg).

Figure 2 - Standard Vehicle Classifications and GVWRs

This international classification method is used by all auto/truck makers, governments agencies, ministries of transportation and many fleets as a standardized way of identifying vehicle types.

For our research purposes, and by means of VIN (Vehicle Identification Number) decoding, we categorized all units in the CKL fleet in this manner in order to enable "apple-to-apples" benchmarking of cost, performance and service-levels for CKL and its peer municipal fleets.

In *Figure 3 - CKL Fleet High-Level Classes and Sub-Categories/Classes* (below), the diversity of the CKL fleet is evident, in that there are more 60 unique vehicle and equipment types.

It is important to know that each of the 60 sub-categories comes with its own set of costs (capital and operating), service level parameters (up/downtime and utilization), functionalities/purposes and operation, maintenance and safety procedures.



Figure 3 - CKL Fleet High-Level Classes and Sub-Categories/Classes

Bus	Car	Equipment	Mobile Equipment	Pickup	SUV	Sweeper	Trailer	Truck	Van
Class 4	Mid-size	Power Washer	ATV	Class 2E	Compact	Class 7	Asphalt	Class 3 Dump 1 Ton	Class 2E Full Size Cargo
Class 4 Limo style	Small	Steamer	Backhoe	Class 2E 4x4	Full size		Boat	Class 3 Rescue Fire	Class 2E Mini
		Tank, water	Chipper	Class 2F			Float, large	Class 4 Dump 1 Ton	Class 2F Full Size
			Compactor, landfill	Class 2G			Float, medium	Class 4 Mechanical Fire	Class 2F Full Size Cargo
			Double Roller	Class 2H			Small	Class 4 Rescue Fire	Class 2G Full Size
			Grader	Class 2H 4x4			Trailer	Class 5 Aerial	Class 2G Full Size Cargo
			Ice Resurfacer	Class 3				Class 5 Dump 1 Ton	Class 3 Cutaway
			Loader	Class 3 4x4				Class 5 Rescue Fire	Class 3 Full Size Cargo
			Mower					Class 7 Aerial	Class 4 Cube
			Sweeper					Class 7 Air/Light Fire	
			Tractor					Class 7 Rescue Fire	
			Tractor, large					Class 8 Aerial Fire	
			Tractor, medium					Class 8 Pumper Fire	
			Tractor, small					Class 8 Roll Off	
								Class 8 Single Axle Plow	
								Class 8 Tanker Fire	
								Class 8 Tandem Axle Plow	
								Class 8 Vac	



The 492 active units of the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet are grouped into, and operated by, four functional business units. These include Public Works and Transit, Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services.

Public Works and Transit

The Public Works and Transit sub-section of the full City of Kawartha Lakes fleet is large; it is diverse and specialized as typical for all municipal fleets, owing to the variety and range of municipal services which the vehicles support.

The Public Works and Transit fleet sections include 377 units shown in *Figure 4 - Public Works and Transit Fleet Units* (below).

Figure 4 - Public Works and Transit Fleet Units

Category or Type	Count
Aerial trucks	2
Backhoes	13
Chippers	6
Buses	10
Trailers (of all types, some with specialized mounted equipment)	40
Graders	13
Tractors and mowers, cutters	36
One-ton trucks with dump boxes	19
Steamers, culvert	9
Loaders	16
Cars, small	17
Pickup trucks and SUVS	68
Water tanks, dust control	11
Ice resurfacers	11
Single-axle plow trucks	11
Tandem-axle plow trucks	53
Vans, various configurations	25
Sweepers	3
Tractors, sidewalk	10
Truck, Class 8, vacuum and Wachs unit	2
ATVs	2
Total:	377





Fire Rescue Services

The Fire Rescue Services (Fire) section of the City's fleet includes 76 units. The Fire fleet is diverse and highly specialized in that it includes critically important units ranging from fire and rescue equipment, boats, trailers, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), pickup trucks, SUVs, a van, and medium- to heavy-duty trucks from Class 3 up to 8, configured as rescue, pumper and tanker units.

Operating statistics for Fire vehicles differ greatly from data for Public Works, Police and EMS (Paramedics) vehicles because their capital acquisition cost is higher while their annual kilometers-travelled are lower, due to the highly specialized nature of their work.

To make our analysis and comparisons more relevant, CKL's Fire Rescue Services were treated separately.

The types and numbers of Fire Rescue Services vehicles are shown in *Figure 5 - Fire Rescue Services Units (below).*

Туре	Category	Application	Count
Mobile equipment	ATV		3
Trailer	Boat		4
Pickup	Class 2E		4
Pickup	Class 2F		4
Van	Class 2G	Full Size Cargo	1
Truck	Class 3	Rescue Fire	1
Truck	Class 4	Mechanical Fire	1
Truck	Class 4	Rescue Fire	1
Truck	Class 5	Rescue Fire	1
Truck	Class 7	Air/Light Fire	1
Truck	Class 7	Rescue Fire	1
Truck	Class 8	Aerial Fire	1
Truck	Class 8	Pumper Fire	20
Truck	Class 8	Tanker Fire	22
SUV	Compact		4
Trailer	Trailer		7
Total:			76

Figure 5 - Fire Rescue Services Units





Paramedics

The Paramedics (EMS) section of the City's fleet includes 22 units, including 14 EMS ambulances. Paramedics units are shown in *Figure 6 - Paramedics Fleet Units* (below).

Figure 6 - Paramedics Fleet Units

Туре	Category	Application	Count
Van	Class 2G Full Size Cargo	Logistics Vehicle (raised)	1
Pickup	Class 2H	Emergency Support Unit	1
Van	Class 3 Cutaway	Ambulance	14
Van	Class 3 Cutaway	Community Paramedic	1
SUV	Compact	Administrative Vehicle	1
SUV	Full size	Emergency Response Unit	3
SUV	Full size	Administrative Vehicle	1
Total:			22

Police Services

The Police Services section includes 17 specialized units which comprise another sub-set of the City's entire fleet. Police units are shown in *Figure 7 – Police Services Fleet Units* (below).

Figure 7 – Police Services Fleet Units

Туре	Category	Application	Count
Pickup	Class 2E	Cruiser	1
Pickup	Class 2E	Drug Unit	1
Van	Class 2E Mini	CIB	1
Van	Class 2F Full Size	Court Security	1
Van	Class 2G Full Size	IDENT VAN	1
SUV	Compact	CIB	1
SUV	Compact	Admin Vehicle	1
SUV	Full size	Community Services	1
SUV	Full size	CIB (CECC)	1
SUV	Full size	CIB	1
SUV	Full size	Cruiser	5
Car	Mid-size	CIB	1
Car	Mid-size	Admin Vehicle	1
Total:			17



Section Four

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Fleet Baseline Analysis



Section 4: Baseline Analysis

or our analysis, CKL Public Works and Transit fleet management provided records around the utilization, fuel consumed, and operating costs of all fleet vehicles, as did the other functional units including the Police, Fire Rescue and Paramedics sections. With this RSI-FC prepared baseline analysis of all fleet units.

VKT and EKVT

Annual vehicle kilometres-travelled (VKT) is a standard measurement of fleet performance employed by most fleets. Municipal fleets, whether urban or rural-operated do not typically travel high levels of annual kms due to the limited size of their service areas. For this reason, some fleet managers opt to track engine hours ("run-time") as this measurement enables more precise scheduling of preventive maintenance (PM) intervals and relevant cost comparisons.

CKL Public Works and Transit section monitors VKT for most of its fleet, but for Class 8 trucks – specifically snow plow and mobile equipment units – engine hours, being the fleet's preference for the reasons we have described, have been tracked for the past several years.

RSI-FC agrees that tracking engine hours for PM scheduling is more precise (versus VKT) and this practice can translate to improved cost-effectiveness. However, the majority of municipalities do not employ this method, which makes benchmarking challenging – engine-hour data is non-existent for other municipal fleets in our database. As a workaround, RSI-FC extrapolated CKL's engine hours by converting engine hours-operated to 'equivalent vehicle kms-travelled' (EVKT). We applied a business assumption that each one (1) engine hour equals forty (40) kms-travelled.

Baseline Performance Metrics for CKL

With CKL's fleet vehicles loaded into our FAR database, we prepared average cost and performance data for each category and sub-category of the CKL fleet during the one-year baseline period. The average cost and performance statistics for all City of Kawartha Lake's active-service vehicles and equipment are shown at a macro level in *Figure 8 – Fleet and Equipment Average Performance Metrics by High-Level Categories/Classes (Includes Fire)* (below).

Average performance data for sub-types/categories (micro level) of fleet units are shown in a series of charts in *Appendix "A" – Baseline Year Fleet and Equipment Average Performance Metrics by Sub-Types/Categories.*

THE CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES REVIEW OF SERVICES – FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM



Category	KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Qty. of Fuel Used (litres)	Downtime (Days)	Repair Cost	GHGs (tonnes, CO2e)	GHG Intensity (CO2/km)	L/100 km	Downtime Cost	PM as % of Parts & Labour	Fuel Cost	Cost of Capital	Total Controllable Cost	Cost per KM	Availab ility (%)	Unit Age (Years)
Total Fleet	7,699	3,993	19.2	\$8,427	7.8	13.7	524.4	\$3,491	n/a	\$3,059	\$2,267	\$16,713	\$2.17	92.6	8.3
Bus	31,515	13,754	42.2	\$17,365	32.7	1.1	44.3	\$16,885	n/a	\$13,63 0	\$3,823	\$51,703	\$1.64	83.8	4.1
Car	11,557	1,163	4.2	\$1,834	2.6	0.3	10.5	\$420	n/a	\$1,085	\$366	\$3,597	\$ 0.31	98.4	6.3
Equipment	100	67	2.4	\$1,119	0.1	1.1	63.3	\$245	n/a	\$34	\$263	\$1,549	\$15.49	99.1	9.5
Mobile Equipment	307	2,860	26.1	\$11,890	5.2	21.3	808.7	\$2,609	n/a	\$1,961	\$1,914	\$17,216	\$56.03	90.0	9.6
Pickup	18,522	3,642	9.2	\$ 3,804	8.6	0.5	19.6	\$925	n/a	\$3,562	\$578	\$8,869	\$0.48	96.4	6.6
SUV	20,771	2,679	7.4	\$3,061	4.9	0.3	10.6	\$744	n/a	\$2,023	\$864	\$6,693	\$0.32	97.1	4.5
Sweeper	147	1,768	21.5	\$8,825	4.6	29.8	1,132.6	\$4,291	n/a	\$1,755	\$7,145	\$22,016	-	91.7	5.1
Trailer	0	209	1.4	\$771	0.0	7.6	290.0	\$281	n/a	\$16	\$266	\$1,142	-	99.5	12.7
Truck	3,647	5,860	31.7	\$13,335	14.9	26.4	1,003.8	\$6,339	n/a	\$5,646	\$5,070	\$30,094	\$8.25	87.8	8.6
Van	19,652	1,617	15.3	\$6,447	2.4	0.7	30.4	\$6,130	n/a	\$997	\$1,652	\$15,082	\$0.77	94.1	5.3

Figure 8 – Baseline Year Fleet and Equipment Average Performance Metrics by High-Level Categories/Classes (Includes Fire)

THE CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES REVIEW OF SERVICES – FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM





Public Works and Transit

With CKL's fleet baseline performance metrics established, RSI-FC compared the fleet's operating statistics to Ontario peer municipal fleets. We began by compiling data for a number of past fleet reviews completed for Ontario municipalities.

Making Benchmark Comparisons

Municipal fleets can have wide variances in their operating statistics, which makes

benchmarking challenging. Some are urban-based, operating in smaller operating areas while others function in large rural areas. Those in rural areas, serving larger geographical footprints, accumulate higher numbers of VKT each year and operating costs reflect that reality.

Some municipal fleets include EMS, refuse/recycling and fire trucks, and mobile equipment (fleet groupings with operating costs that are typically higher), while others do not. To ensure a "level playing field" and make our comparisons "apples to apples", we began by selecting fleets from our database which were as closely aligned with CKL's operations as possible, in terms of geography and fleet vehicle mix.

In every fleet, units with the highest operating cost are Class 4 to 8 trucks. Therefore, total operating expenses for fleets with a higher percentage of medium- and heavy-duty (MHD) trucks are higher than those with fewer MHD trucks. From baseline analysis, we determined that sixteen percent (16%) of CKL's fleet is made up of MHD trucks. For the fleets we selected from our database for comparison, we calculated the percentage of MHD trucks in each, seeking other fleets with vehicle mixes as similar to CKL's as possible.

Peer Fleet Match Factor

In addition to MHD trucks, other types of vehicles and equipment, such as mobile equipment, EMS, Police, Transit, Refuse Collection, Parks and Fire units characteristically have higher operating costs. Not all municipal fleets include these categories of units. Therefore, we further normalized the comparison data for each of the peer municipal fleets by applying a "fleet mix rating". To do this, we first tallied the percentage of MHD trucks in each of the peer fleets. To this tally, we added a points-value rating (one point for each of Public Works, mobile equipment, EMS, Police, Transit, Refuse Collection, Parks and Fire units managed by the fleets) to establish a "peer fleet match factor".











Fleet-Wide Comparative Analysis

The results of the analysis are shown in *Figure 9 – Municipal Peer Fleet Cost Cost Comparison* (below). One fleet (highlighted) of the 12 had a peer fleet match factor of 22 – identical to CKL – based on the approach we described earlier in this section of our report.

While comparing municipal fleets is admittedly an imperfect process for the reasons we have described, we have made every effort to do so logically. The closest peer match was an urban fleet, which serviced an area of just 148 KM². For this reason, this urban fleet's vehicles travelled, on average, just less than one-half the kms-travelled by CKL (~5k for the urban fleet versus >10k for CKL). CKL's fleet serviced a geographical area more than 20 times larger.

Key Performance Indicators

A number of key performance indicators (KPIs) were prepared for the CKL fleet with data from the one-year baseline period. The most relevant KPIs are circled in *Figure 9*; RSI-FC interprets the KPI data in a positive way. *Figure 9* is a macro-level view of the entire City fleet that includes Public Works, Transit, mobile equipment, Paramedics, Police, and Fire units.

Not surprisingly, due to the higher (double) annual kms-travelled by the CKL fleet during the one-year baseline period, total operating costs were almost exactly double. Despite this, when measured on a cost-per-kilometre basis, which is a more pertinent measure, operating costs were almost identical for the two peer fleets. Average operating costs were \$1.75 per km for the peer (urban) fleet; for CKL, average cost/km was \$1.71 during the baseline fleet review period.

The results from this study suggests to us that, despite CKL's fleet being, on average, one-year older – and although servicing an area 20 times larger – CKL's fleet management has been successful in maintaining total controllable operating costs in alignment with the less-demanding conditions of the urban peer fleet.

Of further note is that CKL's fleet average fuel consumption was ~ 3% better (lower) than the peer (36.9 I/100km versus the peer fleet's 38.3). Fleet average fuel consumption is an all-encompassing measure that is reflective of vehicle type (make/model) selection choices, vehicle ages (older units burn more fuel), maintenance, terrain, climate, driver behaviors and many other factors. Three percent is a relatively significant improvement when measuring fleet average fuel consumption, and translates to fuel cost reductions in the tens-of-thousands of dollars annually.



In *Figure 10 - EMS (Paramedics) Fleet Comparison* (below) we show comparisons between three other Ontario EMS (Paramedic) fleets from RSI-FC's database. Two of the three peer fleets for our comparison are county/rural operations and one is urban.

RSI-FC reviewed the areas served by CKL Paramedics and confirmed that Haliburton manages their own service/fleet/equipment. There are times that CKL Paramedics Service may have to cross borders to respond to calls, but only when Haliburton call volumes exceed available resources. Kawartha Lakes Paramedic Service has just entered into a shared service agreement with Peterborough County, but as it stands not sharing vehicles at this time.

In *Figure 10*, we have circled three KPIs which we determined to be the most indicative of overall performance for the Paramedics section of the City's fleet.

Of the four peer EMS fleets, and owing to the much larger geographical area served by CKL's Paramedics fleet, average utilization for CKL Paramedics section is the highest of the fleets in our comparison – double that of the urban-based fleet.

We note that CKL's fleet average operating costs-per-km are the lowest of the peer EMS/Paramedics fleets⁷.

Police Fleet Comparison

In Figure 11 - Police Fleet Comparison (below) we show comparisons between two other Police fleets from RSI-FC's database. One of the two peer fleets are county/rural operations and one is urban.

For the Police Services section of the CKL fleet, the KPIs which we felt were most indicative of the fleet's overall performance are circled in *Figure 11*.

CKL Police Services provides policing for Lindsay and Ops Township. We estimate⁸ its service area to be 256.41 km².

Of the three peer Police fleets, the CKL Police fleet's average annual cost of repairs are the lowest. We further note that CKL's Police Services fleet average operating costs-per-km are at the mid-point between the Ontario peer fleets⁹ in this study.







RICHMOND

 ⁷ Data was unavailable for the urban EMS fleet
⁸ Source: https://www.canadiangenealogy.net/ontario/victoriacounty/township_ops.htm

⁹ Data was unavailable for the urban EMS fleet

Figure 9 - Municipal Peer Fleet Cost Comparison

Municipality	PAN BER	se.	Part Parts Free	Fleet Mix Tally	Fleet Mix - M and HD Trucks (%)	Peer Fleet Match Factor	Urban or CR	Total Fleet Size	Population	Municipal Area (KM2)	Average Utilization (kms)	Population Ratio (population: vehicle)	Area Ratio (units:km²)	Fleet Average Age (years)	Average Availability (%)	Average Downtime (days)	Average Fuel Consumption	GHG Intensity (CO2/km)	Average Repair Cost (fleet wide) (may include PM if data not provided)	Total Fleet Controllable Cost for Period (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Average Controllable Costs per Unit	Maintenance Ratio (preventive: reactive) (%)	Average operating costs (¢/km)
Halton Region	1 1	1 1	1	5	6.7	12	CR	170	439,526	967	13,609	2,585	5.7	80.1	4.8			24.8	0.63	\$5,079	\$1,169,597	\$6,880	\$0.73
Niagara Region	1 1		1	з	10	13	CR	173	427,421	1,896	22,039	2,471	11.0	6.1	97.5	6.5	17.3	0.52	\$8,172	\$1,881,760	\$10,877	6	\$1.29
Simcoe County	1 1	1	1	4	11	15	CR	110	422,204	4,841	33,948	3,838	44.0	5.6	98.9	4	22	0.65	\$5,270	\$1,661,511	\$15,105	64	\$0.47
Town of Aurora	1 1		1	3	13	16	CR	120	55,545	50	8,421	463	0.4	6	99.4	1.6	40.9	1.00	\$1,507	\$462,711	\$3,856	41	\$0.46
City of Hamilton	1 1	1	1	4	12	16	U	1307	579,200	1,138	8,455	443	0.9	7.5	94.6	14.1	36.1	0.90	\$6,865	\$19,911,820	\$15,235	31	\$1.80
Grey County	1 1			2	14	16	CR	56	83,378	4,426	31,962	1,489	79.0	5.8	94.5	8.5	30.4	1.12	\$10,443	\$1,531,495	\$27,348	29	\$0.86
Halton Hills	1 1			2	15	17	CR	45	55,289	276	15,497	1,229	6.1	5.2	98.2	5.2	48.8	1.14	\$4,656	\$693,840	\$15,419	47	\$0.99
Lanark County	1 1			2	19	21	CR	23	63,785	2,979	46,860	2,773	129.5	5.2	91.5	13.7	16.7	0.44	\$8,930	\$503,032	\$21,871	63	\$0.54
Town of Whitby	11	1	11	5	17	22	U	308	135,000	146	5,005	438	0.5	7.3	96.3	9.6	38.3	1.00	\$3,937	\$2,703,196	\$8,777		\$1.75
City of Kawartha Lakes	311	1 1	11	6	16	22	CR	492	75,000	3,059	10,068	152	6.2	8.3	92.6	19.2	36.9	0.50	\$8,426	\$8,453,827	\$17,183		\$1.71
Durham Region	1 1	1 1 1	1	6	18	24	CR	1247	645,862	2,523	25,560	518	2.0	5.5	93.8	16	30.2	0.80	\$6,087	\$27,721,089	\$22,230	10	\$0.87
Frontenac	1 1	1	1	4	²⁰ Peer f	²⁴ leet m	atch	19	143,865	3,673	33,815	7,572	193.3	2.7	95.4	16	CKL fuel	0.55	\$10,681	\$495,726	\$26,091	32	\$0.65
					fac	tor = 2	22		CKL s is 2 than flo utiliza	service 0 x lar peer u eet an ition de	e area ger Irban d ouble			CKL flee is one- year olde than pee	er er	C	onsumptio 3% lower	n				e e	Closely aligned average perating xpenses

Figure 10 - EMS (Paramedics) Fleet Cost Comparison

EMS Fleet	Urban or CR	Fleet Size	Populatio n	Area (KM2)	Population ratio (pop.: vehicle)	Area Ratio (km²:unit)	Fleet Avg. Age (years)	Avg. Utilization (kms)	Avg, Availabilit y (%)	Avg. Downtim e (days)	GHG Intensity (CO ₂ /km)	Avg. Annual cost of repairs	Maintenanc e Ratio (PM: reactive)	Average operating costs (¢/km)
CKL	CR	14	75,000	3,059.0	3,409	218.5	2.8	38,836	88	31.3	n/a	\$12,870	n/a	\$0.75
Halton Region EMS	CR	40	439,526	967.2	10,988	24.2	4.1	34,445	n/a	n/a	0.58	\$20,196	17.6	\$0.86
Durham Region	CR	88	645,862	2,523.0	7,339	28.7	2.6	35,035	87.6	32.2	0.8	\$10,552	n/a	\$1.19
Thunder Bay EMS	U	27	109,140	328.0	4,042	12.1	4.6	19,857	99	3.6	0.88	\$940	27	n/a

Figure 11 - Police Fleet Cost Comparison

Police Fleet	Urban or CR	Total Fleet Size	Population	Area (km²)	Population ratio (pop.: vehicle)	Area Ratio (km²:unit)	Avg. Age (yrs.)	Avg. Utilization (kms)	Avg. Availability (%)	GHG Intensity (CO₂/km)	Avg. Cost of Repairs	Maintenance Ratio (PM: reactive)	Total of Fleet Due for Replacement (%)	Average Op. Cost (¢/km)
CKL	CR	16	75,000	256.4	4,411	191	3.4	19,834	n/a	0.35 <mark>(</mark>	\$2,091	n/a	19	\$0.59
Halton Region Police	CR	338	439,526	967.2	1,300	3	2.9	20,037	n/a	0.42	\$3,945	14	24	\$0.77
Thunder Bay Police	U	64	109,140	328.0	1,705	5	4.1	28,439	99.5	0.54	\$3,148	43	28	\$ 0.39



Fleet Vehicle Mix

Determining the right mix of vehicle types in a fleet as well as maintaining the right numbers and the right sizes/capacities of units are three challenges faced daily by fleet managers everywhere. It is a universal issue – line user-group managers want to ensure they have enough vehicles for their staff to complete their work with some spare vehicles for peak periods and "just in case". Some user-group managers may press fleet management for larger-than-necessary vehicles; others may insist on vehicle attributes or options of questionable practicality. Fleet managers must employ a combination of sage reasoning, statistical data, and diplomacy to successfully manage these requests and in doing so, prevent runaway, unrestrained fleet size – and operating cost increases.

RSI-FC does not profess to have a full working knowledge of the operations of City's Public Works, Transit, EMS, Police, Fire, nor any sub-sets of the overall fleet. As so, it would be foolish for us to attempt to rationalize or make any sort of determinations around the value of any of the City's fleet vehicles toward attainment of departmental objectives. RSI-FC's analysts are, however, highly proficient at fleet data analysis. We know that the outliers in any fleet – units with particularly low (or high) statistical data (such as kms-travelled or operating costs) – may be "red flags" for further investigation. For example, if some vehicles are chronically under-utilized they may be stranded assets incurring costs to the municipality for their maintenance without serving a corporate purpose.

The types of fleet vehicles and equipment that staff are assigned to help carry out their duties are (usually) aligned with vocational requirements of the work they are required to complete. For example, compared to a pickup truck, a passenger sedan would be unsuitable for carrying loads of much anything other than people – fleet vehicles types are matched specifically to the tasks at hand. If vehicles are unsuitable for the jobs-at-hand, they may be under-utilized.

In *Figure 12 - Vehicle Mix by Category* (below), are the percentages of each of the primary categories/classes of vehicles in CKL's fleet relative to Ontario municipal rural fleets.

As shown in *Figure 12*, CKL's fleet is made up of the typical mix of vehicles in all Ontario municipalities. However, there are differences in the total numbers of units within each of the categories, relative to vocational differences between the applications of the vehicles in the fleets in the study group.

CKL's fleet mix includes 49 Fire Rescue Services units. None of the other eight rural municipal fleets in the study group included Fire units. For this reason, we excluded Fire from the analysis shown in *Figure 12.* Despite normalizing the data in this way, CKL's fleet has a higher percentage of Class 4 to 8 trucks.





Figure 12 - Vehicle Mix by Category

Category	CKL Fleet (%)	Ontario Rural Municipal Fleet Average (%)
Cars	5.8	24.9
Pickups	26.1	24.1
Vans	15.3	23.0
SUVs	7.1	5.0
Trucks* (Classes 4 to 8)	29.2	22.9

* Does not include Fire Rescue Services trucks

Fleet Size Relative to Population

In general, there is a correlation between municipal population and the number of vehicles required to serve the municipality: more residents to serve = larger number of municipal fleet vehicles. However, in municipalities with smaller populations, such as CKL with 75k permanent residents, the number of vehicles required to serve the public is more directly tied to the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff members required to complete specific job functions. For this reason we present the population ratios shown in *Figure 9* for information purposes only; it is not intended to be a relevant performance indicator for CKL.

Fleet Service Area by Vehicle Type

We calculated the number of square kilometers that are served by primary vehicle types of the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet. We compared the statistics to data for Ontario rural municipal fleets.

As shown in *Figure 13 - Km² Served per Fleet Vehicle* (below), on an overall basis, with the exception of the category of cars, the City's vehicles serve less area, in square kilometres, than the average of the eight rural municipal fleets in our study group.





Figure 13 - Km² Served per Fleet Vehicle

Category	CKL	Ontario Rural Municipal Fleets
Cars	180	98
LD & MD Pickups	40	101
Vans	68	106
SUVs	146	483
Class 4 to 8 Trucks*	36	106

* Does not include Fire Rescue Services trucks

Fleet Utilization

Making informed assessments of the metrics to define the levels of utilization for a municipal fleet is a daunting task. There are few, if any published statistics, nor are there clear definitions or guiding protocols regarding utilization levels for municipal fleet vehicles. Given this reality, most often it is left up to the best judgment of municipal departmental managers to make their own assessments as to whether their assigned fleet vehicles are being utilized fully, based on their personal definitions of acceptable usage.

Obviously, kms-travelled would be a meaningful statistic for a fleet of commercial over-the-road transport trucks which derives its revenue by charging their customers on a ton/kilometer or some other distance-based rate formula. Kms-travelled each year is far less meaningful, or possibly even non-applicable, to municipal fleet vehicles. For example, vehicles may be used to move a crew of workers, their gear and job materials to a worksite just a few kilometers from their base of operations, where the unit may remain parked for the remainder of the day. Vehicles used in this way may only travel a few kms per day and applications like this are abundant in all municipal fleets. Despite low kms-travelled, these units are every bit as valuable as vehicles that are used in high kms-travelled applications such as the commercial transport fleet vehicle example we've described.

With this conundrum in mind, we cautiously present the data with the caveat that making assessments of municipal utilization, measured by kms-travelled, must be kept in context. We believe that reports and statistical information highlighting vehicles with chronically low kms-travelled should serve as alerts to management of low-usage fleet vehicles. Such information should initiate further management review around the value of low usage units to fulfillment of the corporate mission.



- 40 -



We analyzed each of the primary categories of the CKL fleet. The results of our fleet utilization study by kms-travelled are shown in *Figure 14 - Fleet Utilization by Kilometres-Travelled* (below).

In this study we totaled the average annual utilization by kms-travelled for CKL's primary categories of vehicles. We plotted this data alongside our study group of eight Ontario rural municipalities. We then calculated the number of CKL units with 50% or less utilization (by kms-travelled) than similar vehicles in the CKL fleet.

Category	CKL Average Annual Utilization (KM)	Municipal Rural Average Annual Utilization (KM)	No. of CKL Units in Category	No. of CKL Units 50% or less than Average Utilization	Percentage of CKL Fleet with Utilization < 50%
Bus	31,515	4,596	10	6	60
Car	11,557	27,471	17	14	82
Pickup	18,552	25,484	77	58	75
SUV	20,771	28,964	21	16	76
Truck (Class 4 to 8)	12,281	22,601	135	111	82
Van	19,652	22,177	44	28	64

Figure 14 - Fleet Utilization by Kilometres-Travelled

Utilization by KMs-Travelled – CKL Fleet Summary

As shown in *Figure 15 - CKL Fleet Category Average Statistics* (overleaf), during the one-year fleet review period, CKL's total fleet utilization was 10,068 km/yr. By comparison, the average utilization for the eight rural municipalities in our *Utilization by KMs-Travelled* study was 21,882 km/yr.

Again, we emphasize that kms-travelled is not a good indicator of fleet utilization for municipal fleets. However, it may be a red flag for further investigation, one that alerts management to exceptions, in this case lower than average usage rates for CKL's fleet.



Figure 15 - CKL Fleet Category Average Statistics

Fleet Analytics Review CATEGORY with SUB-CATEGORY BASELINE AVERAGES FAR® Version 2.10 Copyright RSI - Fleet Challenge 2020. All rights reserved. Select Report: Total Fleet Unit Age (inclusive): 0 to 99 (Fractions are dropped, so age 6.9 is included at age 6.)																		
Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period - Downtime Days	Review Period - Preventive Maintenance (PM) costs for review period (PM includes oil changes and lubes, inspections)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period - L/100 km	Review Period - Downtime Cost per Day	Review Period - Downtime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Review Period - Total Cost for Period (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Review Period - Cost per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Total Fleet	10,068	3,993	19.2	\$-	\$ 8,426.96	5.4	5.3	233.4	\$ 203.86	\$ 4,118	0%	\$ 2,901.42	\$ 2,267.26	\$ 17,182.58	\$ 1.71	92.6	99.8	8.3
Bus	31,515	13,754	42.2	\$-	\$ 17,364.60	4.9	0.2	44.3	\$ 100.00	\$ 4,221	0%	\$ 11,415.82	\$ 3,822.65	\$ 36,824.33	\$ 1.17	83.8	49.0	4.1
Car	11,557	1,163	4.2	\$-	\$ 1,834.25	0.6	0.1	10.5	\$ 100.00	\$ 420	0%	\$ 922.41	\$ 366.44	\$ 3,434.87	\$ 0.30	98.4	75.4	6.3
Equipment	100	67	2.4	\$ -	\$ 1,118.83	0.1	1.1	63.3	\$ 100.00	\$ 245	0%	\$ 33.86	\$ 262.89	\$ 1,548.48	\$ 15.48	99.1	113.8	9.5
Mobile equipment	307	2,860	26.1	\$-	\$ 11,890.24	4.6	19.1	808.7	\$ 100.00	\$ 2,609	0%	\$ 1,954.00	\$ 1,913.56	\$ 17,209.45	\$ 56.00	90.0	115.3	9.6
Pickup	18,522	3,642	9.2	\$-	\$ 3,804.35	1.9	0.1	19.6	\$ 100.00	\$ 925	0%	\$ 3,027.15	\$ 577.60	\$ 8,333.93	\$ 0.45	96.4	78.7	6.6
SUV	20,771	2,679	7.4	\$-	\$ 3,061.23	4.5	0.2	10.6	\$ 100.00	\$ 744	0%	\$ 1,939.69	\$ 864.43	\$ 6,609.52	\$ 0.32	97.1	54.6	4.5
Sweeper	147	1,768	21.5	\$-	\$ 8,825.00	3.9	24.9	1,132.6	\$ 200.00	\$ 4,291	0%	\$ 1,749.83	\$ 7,144.81	\$ 22,010.28	\$ 150.24	91.7	61.0	5.1
Trailer	0	209	1.4	\$ -	\$ 771.47	0.0	7.6	290.0	\$ 300.00	\$ 422	0%	\$ 15.92	\$ 266.32	\$ 1,282.81	\$6,670.60	99.5	152.4	12.7
Truck	12,281	5,860	31.7	\$ -	\$ 13,335.37	13.4	1.9	80.0	\$ 300.00	\$ 9,509	0%	\$ 5,624.09	\$ 5,069.89	\$ 33,242.23	\$ 2.71	87.8	102.9	8.6
Van	19,652	1,617	15.3	\$-	\$ 6,446.87	0.7	0.2	30.4	\$ 400.00	\$ 6,130	0%	\$ 861.75	\$ 1,652.12	\$ 14,947.00	\$ 0.76	94.1	64.2	5.3

THE CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES REVIEW OF SERVICES – FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM



Synopsis - Fleet Utilization

Assessing utilization by kms-travelled is not an ideal method of tracking utilization for a municipal fleet as we have described. It is, however, a way of flagging, or alerting management to potentially under-utilized fleet assets.

Given the conditions we have described, and the limitations of measuring utilization by kms-travelled, CKL's fleet utilization, for some categories of vehicles appears to be lower than peer fleets, giving rise to the need for an internal review.

Recommendations – Fleet Utilization

- Departmental Managers with low-utilization units should be required to review their assigned units case-by-case to confirm the vehicles serve valid purposes.
- A corporate level of minimum utilization standard should be established.
- For maximum effectiveness and enforceability, the corporate level of minimum utilization standard should be a top-down driven corporate policy or directive that is initiated and supported by the highest levels of the City's management (CAO, CFO, or Mayor/Council).
- For chronically under-utilized units in the City's fleet, consider ownership alternatives such as short-term rentals and/or the use of employee-owned vehicles.
- Fleet Services Department should regularly monitor the fleet for chronically under-utilized units, and request department managers to take action(s) to remedy the situation, as per a corporate minimum utilization policy/directive.





Customer Satisfaction Survey - Fleet and Transit Services

Stakeholder Survey Process

RSI-FC understands the importance of hearing the opinions of all stakeholders including both management and unionized staff. With that necessity in mind, we prepared and distributed usergroup online surveys. One survey was targeted at the management group, a second survey was for all drivers of vehicles and operators of equipment. It was clearly communicated to all survey recipients that their responses were confidential and anonymous; as so, they were encouraged to express their opinions freely.

Online surveys typically yield an industry-average 10 to 15% response rate. We sent the survey out twice to ensure successful contact with the group, assuming managers and supervisors were at that time preoccupied with the changing realities, competing priorities and uncertainties due to Covid-19.

For our management survey we received a total of sixteen (16) responses. Four our user group survey of management and unionized personal we received a large response rate of forty-nine (49).

Stakeholder Survey Results

In our surveys we asked both of the groups (unionized and management) specific and targeted questions relating to the matters of right-sizing and selection of vehicles and equipment.

When asked whether they were consulted during the processes around selection and specifications for new vehicles, a total of fifteen (15) respondents, who indicated they were in the management group, responded that they were satisfied with the process (score was 3.0 out of 5).

Qualitative Survey Questions

We asked the user group (unionized and management) a number of qualitative questions regarding fleet vehicles provided by the City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet Services. The 43 respondents replied very positively as shown below in *Illustration 1 - User Group Survey Responses*.

Responses were from 3.2 to 3.5 (out of a possible 5), which is very high qualitative index showing a high degree of satisfaction with Fleet and Transit Services department.





Illustration 1 - User Group Survey Responses

Question or Topic	Number of Responses	Score/Rating (out of 5)
Customer service	43	3.5
Professionalism	43	3.4
Dependability (promises-kept)	43	3.5
Understanding fleet customer's needs	43	3.4
Sensitivity to urgent needs	43	3.6
Attention to detail (doing it right)	43	3.4
Quality of preventive maintenance	43	3.4
Timeliness of repairs and maintenance	43	3.3
Quality of modifications or upgrades to fleet units	43	3.2
Quality of repairs to fleet units	43	3.5

We asked management group representatives for their feedback regarding the City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services. As shown in *Illustration 2 - Management Group Fleet Survey* (below), 15 respondents indicated very positive satisfaction levels with responses well above the median point (3.7 to 4.3 out of 5).

Illustration 2 - Management Group Fleet Survey

Question or Topic	Number of Respondents	Score/Rating (out of 5)
Customer service	15	4.3
Professionalism	15	4.4
Dependability (promises-kept)	15	4.1
Understanding fleet customer's needs	15	4.0
Sensitivity to urgent needs	15	4.0
Attention to detail (doing it right)	15	4.0
Quality of preventive maintenance	15	4.3
Timeliness of repairs and maintenance	15	3.7





Question or Topic	Number of Respondents	Score/Rating (out of 5)
Quality of modifications or upgrades to fleet units	15	3.8
Quality of repairs to fleet units	15	4.2

Synopsis – User Group Customer Satisfaction

A high level of satisfaction with CKL Fleet and Transit Services department is evident from our user group surveys.

Recommendations – User Group Customer Satisfaction

- Consider regular follow up surveys to gauge user group customer satisfaction.
- Take prompt corrective action(s) to address areas if dissatisfaction is evident.

. . . .



Section Five

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Life Cycle Analysis



Section 5: Life Cycle Analysis

Lifecycle Methodology and Approach

M ost automobile drivers know from personal experience that older vehicles are often less reliable, break down more frequently, cost more to repair, and burn more fuel. Multiply that reality many times over as in a commercial fleet, and the impacts can be monumental. In general, as commercial vehicle fleets age, higher operating expenses are incurred due to increasing levels of reactive repairs (unplanned, breakdowns). As well, due to decreased reliability, downtime costs for spare/loaner vehicles also increases as does the cost of loss of productivity for the drivers who are dependent on fleet vehicles to perform their daily work routines.

The City of Kawartha Lakes strives to maintain its fleet in a safe and reliable condition and, in doing so, reduces its downtime costs. Nevertheless, even when minimized, downtime costs are unavoidable; for a municipality, they can be substantial. Ongoing, uninterrupted capital re-investment in modernizing the fleet is critical to any organization that depends on a reliable fleet of vehicles to achieve its objectives and mission, as is the case for all municipalities, including the City of Kawartha Lakes.

As shown in Illustration 3 - Fleet Management Juggling Act (below), fleet management is a complex



juggling act. Capital investment, operating expenses, depreciation, preventive maintenance levels, fuel consumption, aging of the fleet, availability, utilization, emissions, and inflation are interconnected issues. Making a change to any one of these critical considerations impacts all of them.

Deferred capital spending will age the fleet. A fleet that is excessively aged will result in higher reactive repair rates,

more downtime, higher fuel consumption, increased operating costs, and, ultimately, a larger overall fleet size to allow for more spare vehicles to compensate for the reduced reliability of primary vehicles. Counter to this, if vehicles are replaced too soon, the value may be lost.

RSI-FC believes that the key to success is knowing the optimal economic lifecycle for each type of vehicle in the fleet. With that information, fleet managers can then balance their go-forward capital spending to align with service level (uptime) and operating expenses and other essential success measures.





Life cycle analysis (LCA) is a structured approach to determine the best time to replace vehicles and equipment in terms of age, mileage, or other pertinent factors. LCA provides the empirical justification for replacement policies and facilitates the analysis and communication of future replacement costs.

Figure 15 - Life Cycle Analysis Example (below) illustrates the concept of LCA. As a vehicle's age at retirement increases, ownership costs decrease and operating costs increase. The ideal time to replace vehicles is when the rise in operating expenses begins to outweigh the decline in ownership costs.



Figure 15 - Life Cycle Analysis Example

LCA is based on average costs and utilization rates for each category of vehicles and as so provides a credible guideline to optimal vehicle replacement cycles.

LCA does have limitations since its outcomes are based on average cost data for each category of vehicles. Some vehicles that are in poor or unsafe condition may require replacement before the LCA-calculated age criteria are met. Conversely, some vehicles that exceed the criteria may still be in good condition and not warrant replacement due to low usage, or recent refurbishment. Therefore, the LCA-recommended replacement criteria should be used as a guideline and not an absolute rule.





By following the LCA guidelines, the physical condition of each unit should be assessed by trained and knowledgeable staff, familiar with the unit's usage and maintenance history before replacement decisions are finalized.

Data Challenges

The discipline of completing fleet lifecycle analysis is dependent on historical cost data. LCA modeling software was designed and intended to be populated with the fleet's actual historical cost data. Without having cost data and LCA, vehicle replacements decisions may be based solely on intuition and personal observations – essentially the sentiments of someone who has a high degree of familiarity with the fleet. Often, we have observed that "guesstimates" made by seasoned fleet managers can have a high degree of accuracy. Unfortunately, today's business world 'gut' feelings do not stand up to scrutiny and must be backed up by analytical data.

The City of Kawartha Lakes maintains records and operational cost data for its fleet. Despite good record-keeping, for some categories of vehicles in the City's fleet, data was insufficient for analysis. More data means larger sample sizes that are essential for completing lifecycle analysis. As a workaround, RSI-FC filled gaps in the City's data with that of the same vehicle categories from our municipal fleet database. This data has been collected by our team over more than 15 years and represents the results of fleet reviews and analyses we have completed for dozens of Canadian cities, Citys, and regions. Being the amalgam of data from almost 50,000 municipal vehicles, our database was determined to be a suitable proxy for the City's actual information. Unfortunately, for some categories of vehicles, specifically Fire Rescue Services, insufficient data was available to complete LCA, and not enough peer fleet data was available.

Modern Vehicles

Today's vehicles are built better and last longer than ever before. With the right levels of preventive maintenance, operating conditions, and driver behaviors, vehicle service lives can often be extended longer than in the past. The lifecycle analysis completed in this report optimizes vehicle lifecycle costs based on vehicle age. Vehicle age is the best replacement criteria, as opposed to kilometers-driven, for CKL, given its relatively low average utilization rates.

For higher annual mileage vehicles in the fleet, it is recommended that CKL fleet management should review the condition of high mileage vehicles at thresholds of 20,000 km/yr for light-duty vehicles and 25,000 km/yr for medium and heavy-duty vehicles for potential early replacement. This should take place on a case-by-case basis as vehicles approach maximum age and km thresholds.





The recommended vehicle replacement age was multiplied by these values for mileage thresholds. For example, if the recommended life cycle is ten years for a vehicle type, the recommended replacement mileage is $10 \times 20,000 = 140,000$ km. It is noteworthy that most CKL fleet vehicles do not travel these annual distances, but that reality could change if, for example, the fleet began to be utilized more fully.

The Life Cycle Cost Curve

The "Life Cycle Cost Curve" and the ideal replacement cycle will be different for various types of vehicles and possibly even individual vehicles of the same kind. Differences in the vehicle make can cause this variability, including model year, equipment design, operating environment, or even by how the operator uses the vehicle. Recommended replacement cycles for a class of vehicles is thus an approximation of the optimal time to replace most units within that class.

Replacement cycles should be considered as a guideline only, as some vehicles that are in poor or unsafe condition may require replacement before the criteria are met. Conversely, some vehicles that exceed the criteria may be in good condition and may not warrant replacement. Fleet managers need to exercise judgment and fleet management principles in either advancing replacement or delaying replacement for individual vehicles case by case.

Lifecycles for vehicles are determined by modeling the expected cash flows for owning and operating the vehicle. The approach involves forecasting a stream of costs over a study horizon (future period) for each type of vehicle and determining the replacement cycle that results in the lowest total cost of ownership.

For the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet, discounted cash flow analysis was completed for each vehicle class to complete the LCA. Net Present Value (NPV) was calculated for outgoing cash flows (vehicle purchase cost, maintenance cost, the impact of downtime on driver productivity cost, improved fuel efficiency of a new vehicle compared to the old vehicle) and incoming cash flows (vehicle residual value) to calculate the total life cycle cost for various vehicle retention periods.

The NPV amounts for cash flows were converted to Annual Equivalent Cost (AEC) to provide a dollar amount, which is easy to relate to and compare alternative life cycle costs. AEC is the fixed annual payment that that would be required to pay back the total of capital and operating costs over the study period. The AEC can be viewed as an average annual cost that considers the time value of money for future cash flows.





Environmental Considerations

LCA is used to evaluate whether the increased costs of capital for newer, more modern and fuelefficient vehicles will be offset by lower fuel, repair, and downtime costs for newer vehicles. In a low kms-traveled environment such as CKL, like all municipalities, the amount of fuel saved may be minimal, often resulting in protracted lifecycles being the better option financially. Aging the fleet to extract full value from each fleet asset may impede the fleets progress toward modernization and reduced GHG emissions. The net effects of fleet aging and fuel used versus GHG emissions should be evaluated, as is possible using our FAR software.

Key Parameters and Assumptions

The key LCA parameters used for all vehicle classes are listed in *Table 1 - Key LCA Parameters and Assumptions* (below).





Table 1 - Key LCA Parameters and Assumptions

Parameter	Value	Description					
Net Acquisition Cost	Varies by	Average vehicle acquisition cost provided					
	vehicle	by CKL management					
	class						
Cost of Capital/Lease Rate	2.45%	Cost of funds for vehicle acquisition (the					
		prime interest rate at the time the LCA)					
Discount Rate for NPV	1.75%	Rate used to discount cash flows					
Sales Tax Rate %	0%	HST assumed to be zero as a pass-through					
Tech Prod Loss Hrs./Touch	2.5	The average loss in driver productivity each					
		time a fleet technician services a vehicle.					
		Work orders were deemed to be equivalent					
		"of touches."					
Tech. Labour Rate \$/Hr.	\$35.31	Burdened hourly labour rate provided by					
		CKL					
CIF ¹⁰ on Maintenance	2.27%	Cost increase factor or inflation on parts					
		and mechanic labor					
CIF on Driver Rate	0%	Cost increase factor or inflation on driver					
		loaded labor rate					
CIF on Vehicle	2.27%	Cost increase factor or inflation on vehicle					
		replacement prices.					
CIF on Fuel	2.27%	An assumption based on market trends					
Annual Vehicle Efficiency	2%	Fuel efficiency improvement factor for new					
Improvement		vehicles compared to the vehicles being					
		replaced (estimated by Fleet Challenge).					
Average Km/Yr.	Varies by	Annual distance traveled. Assumption that					
	vehicle	the new vehicle will travel the same					
	class	distance as the old vehicle.					
Cash Flow Horizon (yrs.)	Varies by	The discounted cash flow study period.					
	vehicle	The period was adjusted based on vehicle					
	class	class (up to 20 years) and years of data that					
		was available.					

¹⁰ CIF = Cost Inflation Factor





Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) illustrates the total lifecycle cost of fleet vehicle types/categories. LCA can help determine:

- The age at which units should be considered for replacement
- When replacement should occur (ideally before costs rise and reliability/safety reduced, and before significant capital expenditure or refurbishment is necessary)

As LCA identifies capital strategies that will optimize vehicle life cycles and return on investment, it should be the first step in long-term capital budget planning.

Approach: Using Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) baseline data, an LCA model was completed that included all of the City's primary vehicle and equipment categories. From data provided to RSI-FC by CKL, LCA was compiled for vehicles up to 20 model years of age if data was available. Unfortunately, insufficient sample size (not enough units) prevented LCA being completed for Fire Rescue Service units.

LCAs were successfully completed by our team for these vehicle categories:

- Cars
- Pickups
- Vans
- SUVs
- SUVs (Police)
- Medium-Duty Trucks (Classes 3, 4 and 5)
- Heavy-Duty Trucks (Classes 7 and 8)
- HD Plow Trucks (Class 8)
- Bus, Transit (Class 4)
- Ambulances





Life Cycle Analysis Results

Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) was calculated for each category of vehicles in the fleet where data was available. The LCA findings and recommended tactics presented are based on actual historical data compiled by units and by ages for the review period.

The LCA took into consideration the cost of downtime (as caused by reduced reliability). LCA also considered the year-to-year "rollup" of WACC, inflation, worker cost/hour, salvage and market values, inflation, and average kilometers-driven data. The results are summarized in *Table 2 - Life Cycle Analysis Results Summary* (below). LCA charts for each category are in Appendix "B".

Where recommendations are made to consider extending lifecycles, we suggest a cautious approach. In reviewing these lifecycles, one should bear in mind that in many cases, LCA was based on small sample sizes. In many cases, data for only a single vehicle was available. For this reason, if extending lifecycles is being considered, it should be approached cautiously. The operating expense impacts of LCA-optimized lifecycle is discussed on page 61 of this report.

Vehicle Condition Assessments

We recommend the practice of completing vehicle condition evaluations during every preventive maintenance inspection. In this way, decisions around extending vehicle lifecycles can be founded on data and with a solid understanding of each vehicle's actual condition.

Vehicles approaching their end of the lifecycle should be assessed case by case. A thorough groundup and top-down physical assessment of each vehicle's condition, possibly in conjunction with routine shop visits for PM inspections, will serve to inform decisions around extending vehicle life cycles.

CKL Fleet and Transit Services management now makes it standard practice to complete these assessments when vehicles approach the end of their lifecycles.

Recommendations – Lifecycle Analysis

- Adopt the lifecycle recommendations determined through lifecycle analysis in this report.
- Regularly (annually would be ideal) review the lifecycles of units as more data becomes available.







Table 2 - Lifecycle Analysis Results Summary

Category	Optimal Replacement Lifecycles (years)	Current Lifecycles (years)	Recommended Change (+ or -) (years)	Notes
Cars	8 to 9	10	-1 to -2	The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Pickups	13 to 14	10	+ 3 to 4	Based on rolling average lifecycle costs optimal replacement is 13 to 14 years (no data was available past this age) The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Vans	13 to 14	10	+3 to +4	Optimal replacement in year 13 to 14. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
SUVs	8	10	- 2	Optimal replacement in year 8. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.




SUV - Police	6	3	+ 3	Optimal replacement in year 6. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units
Class 3 Trucks	11 to 13*	12	-1 to +1	Optimal replacement in year 11 to 13 * This LCA was based largely on peer fleet data. Should be reviewed as more CKL data becomes available. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Class 4 Trucks	12	12	No change	Optimal replacement in year 12. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Class 4 – Transit Buses	8	10	-2	Optimal replacement in year 8. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.





Class 5 Trucks	9 to 10	12	-2 to -3	Optimal replacement in year 9 to 10. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Class 8 Trucks	11	12	-1	Optimal replacement in year 11. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Class 8 Trucks – Plow Units	11	12	-1	Optimal replacement in year 11. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.
Ambulances	6 to 7*	6	No change to +1	Optimal replacement in year 6. * Year 7 was based on peer fleet data, not CKL. The decision to extend lifecycles should be based on condition assessment of units.



Section Six

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Long-Term Capital Budget Planning



Section 6: Long-Term Capital Budget Planning

In every commercial fleet, fleet managers must make tough decisions around which vehicles can be replaced in a given fiscal year within the annual capital budget, and which must wait until another point in time for replacement. Oftentimes, replacement of "past-prime" vehicles in sub-optimal condition must be pushed back because of insufficient capital. Doing so can lead to an aging fleet with less reliability, higher operating costs, and other negative consequences.

RSI-FC is of the belief that annual long-term capital budget planning should be approached methodically and strategically, based on data-driven decisions to replace vehicles at the optimum time in their lifecycles – and based on positive return on investment (ROI) – unit by unit. Using our recommended approach, long-term budgets can be balanced over budget horizons from five to fifteen years, and in consideration of the impact of inflation. The process begins with completion of lifecycle analysis (LCA) as we have done for CKL (see previous section of this report.)

With optimal lifecycles calculated for CKL, RSI-FC employed our Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) software to prepare baseline analysis. We then data-modeled three Capex planning scenarios to demonstrate the impacts of long-term capital planning.

Baseline Analysis

The FAR software tool was used to plot CKL's current-day baseline relative to the fleet's age and operating statistics in a one-year review period. This baseline included data on service levels (uptime and utilization), operating costs, fuel consumption, and GHG emissions.

Scenario One: Business-as-Usual Lifecycles

FAR modeling was used to forecast go-forward outcomes based on CKL's current-day vehicle and equipment replacement thresholds (see *Table 2* in the previous section of this report.) We refer to this scenario as "business-as-usual" (BAU) because it is based on CKL's current-day vehicle replacement cycles. In the FAR BAU data-model we calculated the vehicle/equipment replacement capital requirements over a fifteen-year horizon (2020 to 2035), the operating expense impacts, GHG reduction, and service levels that would result.

Based on present-day (BAU), current replacement cycle practices, 120 units or 25% of all vehicles and work equipment are either *due or past-due* for replacement, in that they exceed the age thresholds for replacement.

To replace all 120 of these units would require capital funding of more than \$18m in 2020.





Most significant in this group, and radically driving up the total capital amount required, are costly Fire Rescue Services units. Many other high-value units are due for replacement at this time based on current BAU retention practices.

In *Figure 16 – Scenario One - Business-as-Usual Lifecycles - Long-Term Capital* (below), the amount of capital required for fleet vehicle and equipment replacements is shown for Scenario One, Business-as-Usual. If all 120 vehicles and equipment units that meet the current replacement age threshold were to be replaced in 2020, the total cost would be more than \$18m. In the unlikely event that all 120 units were indeed replaced, we forecast an annualized operating cost reduction of \$687,457 would result once all units were in service.

Take note that the blue bar shown in each year is the amount of capital required to replace all units due/past-due for replacement. The red bar shows any deferred capital (in this case, zero), and the green bar is the net amount required, after any deferrals. As shown, the "sawtooth" effect illustrates that a balanced approach to vehicle and equipment capital budgeting is required.



Figure 16 – Scenario One - Business-as-Usual Lifecycles - Long-Term Capital





Scenario Two: LCA Optimized Vehicle Replacements

RSI-FC completed a second FAR scenario for all CKL fleet vehicles and equipment. This time we substituted CKL's current-day (BAU) replacement thresholds with the LCA-optimized economic lifecycles which we had calculated (see previous section of this report). The multi-year impacts of optimized lifecycles determined through LCA modeling are shown in *Figure 17 – Scenario Two - Optimized Lifecycles* (below).

Using optimized LCAs, 99 units were due/past-due for replacement. In this scenario, in year one of the 15-year plan, Capex would increase by \$766k over the business-as-usual (BAU) scenario, to \$18.8m. In the unlikely event that all 99 units in Scenario Two were replaced, we forecast an annualized operating cost reduction of \$797,557 would result once all units were in service.

As in the BAU scenario (Scenario One), there is no deferred spending to later budget years in this scenario. Also, as in BAU, there is a very uneven long-term budget plan due to the numerous units now meeting or exceeding replacement thresholds.



Figure 17 – Scenario Two - LCA Optimized Lifecycles





Scenario Three: Return on Investment

Because of the large number of fleet units due/past-due for replacement at the time of our review, and regardless of whether CKL applies current-day replacement cycles or our optimized cycles calculated using LCA, we set out to demonstrate how go-forward annual capital budgets could be better-balanced year-to-year and made more financially attainable given budget restraints. We sought to determine how the massive first-year capital spend for due/past-due unit replacements could be reduced to a more reasonable, and potentially achievable, amount.

FAR was used to calculate the potential return on investment (ROI) for each fleet vehicle due for replacement. This determination was made by comparing the cost of similar one-year older vehicles (using model-year and vehicle type data from RSI-FC's peer fleet database) to the projected operating costs of new, replacement vehicles.

For Scenario Three, our objective was to demonstrate the process of balancing year-over-year longterm budgets based on ROI. The objective was to reduce the overall capital required in fiscal year one (2020), by deferring any units that did not show a reasonable amount of positive ROI over their baseline to following year(s). The same process was repeated for each fiscal year from 2020 to 2035.

Readers are advised that, to undertake this step, staff with the responsibility of making final determinations as to which vehicles ultimately should be replaced, and which should be deferred to another year, must know the condition of each unit. With this knowledge, units in good condition can be deferred to subsequent years to balance long-term budgets.

As third-party consultants, RSI-FC does not have access to vehicle condition information and as so, to reduce and apportion the required capital over a more extended period, we opted to defer:

- Units with low/no ROI
- Units that recently became due for replacement (ensures past-due units are prioritized)
- Lower-mileage units (to ensure higher-mileage units are prioritized)

By our team selectively and strategically deferring the purchase of units to later years using the prioritization protocol (above), the capital budget requirement was reduced to \$6.8m in year one of the fifteen-year (2020 to 2035) capital plan. All ensuing years were balanced in the same way.

In Scenario Three we forecast an annualized operating cost reduction of \$818,188 would result once all units were in service.





As shown in Figure 18 – Scenario Three - Example of Balanced Capital Budgets 2020 to 2035 (for illustration purposes only) (below), a more balanced long-term budget is shown to be possible, in

Reality-check... A simple "back of the envelope calculation" shows that, given the current replacement cost of the CKL fleet, which is \$78m, and with an average lifecycle of ten years/unit, then \$7.8m would be required in each of the next ten years for vehicle replacements.

Assuming that, based on LCA-optimized economic lifecycles and positive unit condition assessments resulting from proper vehicle maintenance practices over the units' duty cycles, CKL fleet management may opt to extend lifecycles beyond 10 years in many cases. In doing so, the total annual capital required would be reduced. consideration of ROI, vehicle condition, and total kmstraveled. We reiterate that this is only a hypothetical example prepared by our team to demonstrate longterm capital budgeting using a business-case approach.

To put this approach into practice requires the skilled assessment of vehicle condition for all units due for replacement by CKL Fleet & Transit Services personnel who are knowledgeable about the units for which they are responsible.

The blue bar in *Figure 18* represents the amount of capital required for fleet replacements each year based on lifecycle age thresholds. Each time a unit's replacement is deferred to an ensuing year, the value of these deferrals is tallied in the red bar.

The final budget requirement for each year is shown

in the green bars (at right). As demonstrated, by making deferrals based on historical data, LCA, ROI and vehicle condition information, capital budgets for each year from 2020 to 2035 can be better-balanced.







Figure 18 – Scenario Three - Example of Balanced Capital Budgets 2020 to 2035 (for illustration purposes only)

Important Note Regarding Scenario Three

Scenario Three was prepared to demonstrate the concept of long-term capital planning based on ROI. RSI-FC prepared this scenario without any degree of knowledge regarding the mechanical condition of Kawartha Lakes vehicles.

In preparing Scenario Three in FAR, our analysts deferred replacement of vehicles where the business case for replacement was low or non-existent. We deferred (a) units that most recently became due for replacement and (b) units with lower mileage. Therefore, the amount of capital required for vehicle replacement in Scenario Three is reflective of vehicles due/past-due for replacement for which the investment in replacement vehicles would potentially provide optimal ROI.

It is important to be aware that LCA is not a guarantee of performance. It is only an averaging of operational costs by model year for groups of like vehicles within a fleet, to enable fleet managers to assess average annual economic costs by vehicle age. Within a fleet, some vehicles may have had lighter usage than average; other units may have recently been refurbished – either of these situations may enable extending life cycles beyond the optimal life calculated by LCA.





For this reason, we recommend that long-term vehicle replacement planning should be a two-step process. It should begin with (1) determining an initial list of units due/past-due for replacement via LCA-optimized life cycles. Then, (2) the actual condition of each vehicle due for replacement should be assessed case-by-case by fleet personnel who are knowledgeable and familiar with the condition of each unit. This process may allow safely extending vehicle lifecycles by deferring replacement of some units to ensuing years, thereby enabling the balancing of long-term capital plans.

Synopsis – Long-Term Capital Planning

Long-term capital budget planning can be balanced year over year using the approach we have described.

Recommendations – Long-Term Capital Planning

- Assess the condition of each vehicle approaching its end-of-lifecycle (as determined through LCA) by undertaking a thorough ground-up and top-down physical assessment.
- Prepare annual and long-term capital budgets based on: (1) the optimal economic lifecycles determined by lifecycle analysis for each vehicle category; and (2) condition assessment of each unit approaching its end-of-lifecycle.
- Balance long-term capital budgets by replacing only units that demonstrate the potential for providing return on investment (via FAR[™] software). If there is no/low ROI, defer to a later budget year with a goal of evenly balancing multiple budget years.

. . .



Section Seven

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Best Management Practices Review



RICHMOND

Section 7: Best Management Practices Review

About Best Management Practices Review™ (BMPR)

ver the past 15 years, RSI's Fleet Challenge management consulting team has completed dozens of fleet reviews for Canadian and U.S. corporate and government entities. In doing so, we repeatedly observed many successful and effective Best Management Practices (BMPs) and Standard Operating Practices (SOPs) that are applicable and potentially beneficial to fleets in all business sectors. These practices range from business structure, human resources, safety, and maintenance practices through to operational policies. Our team concluded that proactive fleet managers would value an impartial, third-party, ground-up, and holistic review of their operations to identify gaps and opportunities for improvement. In response to this defined need, that is how BMPR™ (pronounced: bump er ['bemper]) evolved. Beginning in 2014, and since that time, numerous fleets have participated in, and benefitted from, the BMPR program.

BMPR™ is RSI-FC's way of becoming 'up to speed' regarding our client's fleet operations in advance of completing a comprehensive fleet review. The comprehensive BMPR process is comprised of approximately 200 fleet management focal points grouped within the following specific areas of interest:

- 1. Asset Management
- 2. Vehicle Specifications
- 3. Finance
- 4. Operating and Capital Budgeting
- 5. Information Technology
- 6. Human Resources
- 7. Fleet Operations

- 8. Preventive Maintenance
- 9. Fuel (minimizing the use of)
- 10. Accidents, Safety & Risk Management
- 11. Environment
- 12. Policies & Procedures
- 13. Fuel Procurement and Distribution
- 14. Performance Management
- 15. Communications





7.1 Asset Management

A sset management has been described as "a systematic process of deploying, operating, maintaining, upgrading, and disposing of assets cost-effectively." Doing so effectively depends on having ready access to operating data, then making wise asset-management decisions based on and informed by that data. In the BMPR section of this report, the Fleet Challenge team reviewed specific topics regarding the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet management team's access to unit-by-unit data regarding the current state of its vehicle asset base and their "big picture" future vision, all the way through to the end-of-lifecycle for each of those assets.

City of Kawartha Lake's Objectives

A review and optimization of approaches to asset management (e.g. replacement, upgrade, expansion, standardization, etc.) and maintenance (e.g. preventive and unscheduled maintenance, licensing and CVOR, insurance, etc.) with the aim of minimizing long-run lifecycle costs of fleet assets.

On Fleet Baseline and Data Management

In its *Guide for Communities of All Sizes*, Cartegraph^{11 12}, a software/GIS provider, the purpose of asset management strategies—and the technologies that support them—is to "preserve the service life of assets and proactively streamline day-to-day asset management operations." This goal is achieved by intervening at strategic points in an asset's typical lifecycle to improve its current performance and extend its expected service life.

While Cartegraph's focus is on municipal fixed assets such as bridges, facilities, guardrails, lighting, pavement markings, parks, roads, sanitary sewers, signs, storm sewers, traffic signals, trees, and water distribution systems, RSI-FC believes similar asset management philosophies and rigour should apply to fleet management. As so, there are seven key steps¹³:

1) COLLECT DATA



¹¹ RSI has no business relationship with, nor do we promote or endorse Cartegraph. This material is provided for information purposes only.

¹² Source: <u>https://www.cartegraph.com/operations-management-software-for-government</u>

¹³ Source: Cartegraph Asset Management Basics to an asset management strategy.



Smart asset management is powered by data—current, accurate data that tells management exactly what assets it has, where they're located, and how much they're worth. Collecting accurate data is crucial to making good decisions and implementing a productive asset management strategy.

2) ASSESS CONDITION

One thorough inspection can tell how an asset is performing, what life it has left, and whether it's worth the money spent on it. This condition data should help to inform the organization's current and future infrastructure maintenance needs.

3) DETERMINE VALUE

Consider the asset's purpose and place in the city's infrastructure and what happens if it fails. Valuation is essential to the asset management strategy because it requires the prioritization of assets and the resources needed to sustain them.

4) GAUGE PERFORMANCE

Identify the factors that measure each asset's performance. At what point is it considered faulty or unsafe? Does the public expect it to look good? Answering these questions reveals the baseline for maintaining an asset.

5) PROACTIVELY STRATEGIZE

There is a time to repair and a time to replace. Create an asset management strategy that is proactive in its scope and realistic for the city and its workforce. Use data and cost-benefit analysis to help decide what to do and when to do it.

6) PUT INTO PRACTICE

Install, maintain, inspect, and—if need be—replace. Then do it all again for every network and asset your city has. With a well-planned strategy in play, infrastructure and the system supporting it will steadily improve.

7) FOLLOW THROUGH

Smart asset management all about patience, planning, and execution. Regular, proactive monitoring is the key to it working efficiently and effectively to make sure a city's assets are maintained satisfactorily.

RSI-FC believes that critical to fleet asset management success is the ability to confidently know, at any point in time, each unit's original acquisition cost, current value, utilization rate, age, and condition. With that information, fleet management would have processes in place to quickly and easily gauge the cost-effectiveness – and value to the organization – of each vehicle asset. With





good access to such information, fleet management can then make confident, informed assessments about the investment in each asset (vehicle/equipment) and whether each unit/asset is delivering value to the municipality. This baseline information should also be used for forecasting purposes.

To facilitate optimal asset management, fleet managers require access to current, real-time, and reliable operating data (including total cost of ownership, consumptions, usage rates, unit performance, downtime, and more.) Mechanisms to analyze this data must be in place to assess each unit's performance regarding utilization, availability (uptime) rates, and operating costs. With this information, each vehicle can be evaluated as to whether it aligns with and supports the organization's corporate objectives (i.e., fleet management's responsibility to provide safe, reliable, and suitable transportation for employees to carry out their daily work routines).

For example, if historical data shows that a particular unit has been utilized at a rate less than an acceptable threshold for minimum usage, it is costing the organization money without serving a purpose and, hence, the vehicle is a liability (unless it has some redeeming value, i.e., a special-purpose or backup vehicle for emergencies, or a unit reserved for peak periods).

Ownership of such a unit should be re-evaluated to determine if there are more cost-effective ways of accomplishing the corporate end-goal. If a specific vehicle is used infrequently, management should consider creative solutions as to whether a less costly mode of travel could be employed. For instance, an inter-departmental vehicle sharing arrangement, a third party service-provider, video-conferencing, or the use of employee-owned vehicles may be better options.

Downsizing the Fleet

Downsizing the fleet by reducing the total number of low-utilization vehicles is a common first step taken by fleet managers seeking to achieve cost reduction. While downsizing a fleet by eliminating vehicles can yield savings, it must be undertaken cautiously to minimize the possibility of loss or disruption of service during peak periods.

Exception Management

Exception management is a crucial tool to achieve peak performance. Every fleet has top-performing vehicles and poor performers – these are the fleet's exception units (or outliers). A robust fleet management system (Asset Works FleetFocus[™] or Dossier[™] are two examples of many) is essential for providing reports that allow fleet managers to compare individual vehicles to the average performance of units in the same categories within the fleet.





Systematically correcting the issues associated with poor performers in the fleet, whether caused by mechanical problems or operational issues, and leveraging the economic advantages of the top performers, will assure success. Business sector benchmarking also provides fleet managers with useful comparisons to peer fleets in their business sector – comparisons that highlight areas requiring attention.

Once the exception vehicles have been identified, fleet management's next task is to take appropriate action(s). For example, if an individual vehicle is under-utilized, it can potentially be redeployed, or if a unit's costs are higher than average, fleet management should review its history to determine the root cause(s) and then take corrective action(s).

Continuous Improvement

The utilization of exception management practices will, in time, move up and improve the fleet's baseline performance. How far the baseline moves up depends on fleet management's effectiveness and its choices of corrective actions.

The reality is that every fleet will always have outliers, regardless of how finely tuned the fleet becomes. Therefore, exception management is a valuable tool for continuous improvement of fleet operations.

Fleet Modernization

Older fleets will almost certainly have lower reliability and higher levels of costly downtime, higher repair costs, decreased safety, poorer fuel economy, and an increased cost of fuel due to operating old-technology vehicles in frontline service. Ongoing capital investment in new vehicles will continually refresh the fleet and help the organization reap the benefits while heading off the negative issues associated with fleet aging.

There are additional benefits to a newer, more fuel-efficient fleet, which include increased vehicle uptime, a lower risk level, and, quite possibly, improved employee morale. Through consistent, ongoing capital investment in the fleet, the City's fuel usage, operating expenses, and emissions will also be reduced.

Vehicle Replacement at the Rate of Depreciation

A guideline for fleet replacement is to invest capital at the rate of depreciation. For example, if new vehicles are amortized over five years, then 1/5th (20%) of the fleet's current NPV would be required each year to fund its replacement to maintain the average age of the fleet at the desirable level. The same guideline can be applied to planned vehicle lifecycles. If a vehicle is to be retained for 10 years,





then 1/10 of its expected replacement cost, plus inflation, should be applied each year to the reserve fund.

Note: This guideline is only valid if performance indicators such as uptime and fuel-efficiency are satisfactory. If not, then a one-time increased capital expenditure would help to bring the fleet's average age and performance up to an acceptable level.

Managing Fleet Growth

A significant challenge for every fleet manager is restraining unbounded growth of the fleet. Efforts to do so can be seen as an impediment to departmental managers striving to have sufficient fleet vehicles to ensure mobility for their staff who provide municipal services.

Challenges

Unless protocols or guidelines are in place to validate the addition of more vehicles to the fleet, the total number of fleet vehicles can grow unchecked. This will lead to underutilized vehicles and increased operating expenses. Therefore, RSI-FC is of the opinion that requests for additional vehicles for line departments needs should be accompanied by valid, defensible business cases and concurrence from senior-most levels of the municipality.

Such an approval process for adding vehicles to the fleet, as we have described, should be set in municipal policy. A hierarchal approval process should ensure approvals up to the senior-most levels of management or Council. It should not be left up to fleet management to make the final determination around requests for additional vehicles as this may cause an adversarial relationship with departmental managers. Please see *Figure 19 - Managing Fleet Growth - Process Flow* Chart (overleaf) which shows our step-by-step recommended business processes for additional vehicles to the fleet from the beginning through to budget approval.

Synopsis – Asset Management

Without a dedicated fleet management information system (FMIS), as described later in this report (See Section 7.4: Information Technology), City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit is without access to the layers of information essential to fleet asset management. With an FMIS, fleet management could make informed data-driven decisions based on around vehicle and equipment utilization rates and costs, and strive to optimize fleet assets.

Recommendations – Asset Management

• Consider implementation of a fleet asset management information system (FMIS).





.....

- Implement a policy requiring business cases for all requests for additional fleet vehicles.
- Implement a policy requiring multi-level approvals with senior-most level concurrence (and/or up to City Council) for proposed additional vehicles to be added to the fleet.



Figure 19 - Managing Fleet Growth - Process Flow Chart





7.2 Vehicle Specifications

F leet managers should always prepare detailed specifications for new vehicles with consideration for past performance of similar vehicles (i.e., the past predicts the future). When planning the go-forward procurement of vehicles and vehicle components (such as engines and

drivetrains), fleet managers should give preference to units that have demonstrated the lowest historical total cost of ownership and highest reliability. Management should avoid the pitfall of buying vehicles that simply cost the least to acquire and meet only basic requirements.

Historical cost information about makes, models, and components should be frequently reviewed. This step enables informed procurement



Technical Drawing - Getty Images

decisions based on Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) concepts, instead of purchasing vehicles based on lowest price.

Vehicle Standardization

Standardizing vehicle specifications wherever possible delivers numerous benefits. Standardization minimizes spares inventory, increases driver and mechanic familiarity, and increases the fleet's buying power with OEM vendors. Standardization may also reduce vehicle acquisition costs through volume buying.

Most, and possibly all fleets have budgetary and procurement guidelines that must be followed. Sometimes those guidelines dictate the choice of the vendor or the product that will be procured for a specific application. While purchase price is a key component, it should not be the only consideration.

Fleet managers should expect to get a realized return on investment (ROI). As so, management must have an understanding of what the total cost of ownership (TCO) will be for the vehicle(s) being selected through the competitive bidding processes (i.e., RFQ, RFP, tenders).





If an organization bases its procurement decisions purely on up-front acquisition costs, it can result in significant, often costly, challenges throughout the vehicle's lifecycle.

Vehicles that have been selected for lowest purchase price may be under spec'ed for their intended job function leading to safety risks, increased maintenance costs, unforeseen downtime, shorter lifecycles, and reduced end of lifecycle resale value. While a fleet may be able to reduce costs at the time of the acquisition, it will likely experience significantly higher costs and reduced productivity throughout the vehicle's time in service.

Government fleets deal with a wide variety of vehicles and equipment, between passenger cars and medium-duty trucks, heavy-duty trucks, and off-road equipment. Add in different makes and models for each type of asset, and keeping track of assets and their parts can seem impossible.

One way fleets are combatting this problem is through standardization¹⁴. By narrowing their fleet operations to a few standard vehicles or critical components, fleets can increase efficiency and save money on inventory, training, and repairs.

Before he was fleet manager for Osceola County, Fla., Hector Sierra Morales became familiar with standardization while in the U.S. Army, where all vehicles were standardized. According to Morales, "If you maintain the same equipment, your parts inventory will be smaller, and you will be able to have an idea of how many maintenance parts and specialty tools you need for your fleet. The maintenance of your equipment will be similar, and you will not need to have 20 different codes in your software for preventive maintenance." "The readiness of your equipment is important; you need to have your trucks in service, and having your technicians well-trained with the right parts in stock will reduce downtime."

Osceola County is standardizing its medium- and heavy-duty vehicles so they use the same engine, transmission, and tires. Morales began the process this year and expects to reduce his parts inventory by 25%, saving about \$75,000 USD the first year.

Changing the way a fleet purchases its vehicles will require support from management, technicians, and end users. According to Sean Joyce, fleet manager for Bonneville Power Administration in Oregon, USA: "the more non-standardization is entrenched in your organization, the harder it is to break it," Joyce said. "You've got to have executive-level buy-in or senior management buy-in to drive and enforce standardization. Changing the way a fleet purchases its vehicles will require support from management, technicians, and end users."

The benefits of standardization are many and the payback can be substantial.

¹⁴ Source: Government Fleet February 2017





Total Cost of Ownership Approach

When competitively bidding (such as RFP, RFQ, or tender) for new vehicles and equipment for the fleet, it is a best practice to require bidders to state the total lifecycle cost of ownership of their vehicles which have been offered. The Fleet Challenge team has observed that several fleet managers purchased the most fuel-efficient vehicles offered by vendors, rather than vehicles with the lowest purchase price. In other situations, units with the lowest total cost of ownership were selected despite a higher purchase price.

Lowest TCO is better than the lowest purchase price, and this would naturally deliver the lowest possible cost to the City, making TCO the better method of vehicle selection, albeit more complex and difficult to prepare for RFQs/tenders and assess vendor bids.

Recycling Mounted Equipment

Used truck service bodies and mounted equipment (such as cranes, dump bodies, salter/sanders, power tailgates) can potentially last for two (or more) truck chassis lifecycles after being rebuilt and remounted on new chassis. By "recycling" truck bodies and mounted equipment in this way, we estimate up to \$20,000 or more (depending on the complexity and value of the equipment) could be saved on each new truck purchase. Although there is a potential for cost-savings, the practice of rebuilding and remounting add-on equipment should be approached cautiously – it can lead to reliability and, potentially, safety problems.

We acknowledge that some truck bodies and mounted equipment are subject to severe-duty usage (road salt exposure, for example). Despite that, we suggest that the concept of remounting ancillary equipment should not be overlooked. We recommend that unit condition assessment should be undertaken for mounted equipment on units due for replacement. If the condition assessment for the installed equipment is still "good," the option of remounting should be considered.

We suggest obtaining vendor quote(s) for rebuilding and remounting ancillary equipment. Then use this information to decide whether there is a business case for re-using truck bodies and other mounted equipment on new truck chassis – or if the more practical option is to replace the unit(s) in their entirety.

Right-Sizing Vehicles

In the past, some fleet managers subscribed to the adage "*identify the size of truck you need for the job* -*then buy one bigger.*" This anachronistic thinking resulted in fleets with oversized vehicles, poor fuel economy, and higher operating costs.





Today's savvy fleet managers know that the old approach is wrong. The correct approach is to rightsize the fleet vehicles – that is, correctly specify the right-sized vehicles for the job at hand, which will lead to optimal fuel efficiency and lower overall operating costs.

Light-Weighting Vehicles

According to the U.S. EPA, every 10 percent reduction in truck weight¹⁵ reduces fuel use between five and ten percent. Generally, an empty truck makes up about one-third of the total weight of the truck. Using aluminum, metal alloys, metal matrix composites, plastics, and other lightweight components can reduce empty truck weight (tare weight), improve fuel efficiency, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Low-Emissions Vehicles

There is no question that the world is moving away from the internal-combustion engine (ICE) vehicles. Some jurisdictions have already legislated the end of the ICE. Many organizations and governments have committed to 100% zero-emission (battery-electric or hydrogen fuel cell) fleet vehicles within very short timelines. Acquisition of high-efficiency, low-emissions vehicles that meet operational needs (e.g., hybrids, plug-in hybrids, battery-electric vehicles, or compact cars) should be prioritized now.

Fuel-Saving Technologies

Green vehicle technologies such as idle shutdown devices, battery backup systems for DC loads, auxiliary heaters, auxiliary power units (APU) and others, will increase fuel-efficiency. Fuel cost savings most often offset their extra cost.

New vehicles should have these green technologies installed by the vendor and the cost included in the purchase price. This would mean that the cost would become a capital budget expense amortized over the entire lifecycle of the vehicle(s) instead of becoming an operating expense in a single budget year.

Diesel-Powered Vehicles

If fleet management's primary end-goal is saving fuel costs (as opposed to reducing GHG emissions), they may opt for the diesel option – not just for medium and heavy-duty trucks but also for light-duty vehicles (cars and pickups). Although the upfront cost is considerably more for diesel engines, they are inherently more fuel-efficient than gasoline-powered equivalents.



¹⁵ Source: US EPA SmartWay <u>https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-06/documents/420f16028.pdf</u>



Diesel engines are 20% or more fuel-efficient than gasoline engines and today's diesel engines produce radically lower smog-causing emissions than earlier models. On the flipside, diesels produce more (23% more) carbon emissions than gasoline engines (gasoline produces 2.2 kg/l and diesel 2.7 kg/l CO_2).

Unfortunately, in a GHG reduction scenario, the additional fuel economy for diesel engines does not (in most cases) offset their increased CO₂ emissions. That said, for those diesel vehicles now in the fleet, the use of cleaner-burning renewable biodiesel is an excellent solution for carbon reduction. Otherwise, gasoline engines may be the better option today for light-duty units, pickups and Classes 3, 4, and 5 trucks because of their lower fuel and acquisition costs and potentially less GHG emissions.

Recently, manufacturers have announced the launch of new medium-duty trucks models equipped with gasoline-powered engines; some are equipped with air compressors to provide air for brake systems and air accessories. Gasoline powered trucks in low-mileage applications will cost less to purchase and will reduce both GHG emissions and fuel costs. Today, gasoline engines may have an advantage over diesel in the municipal fleet operating environment.

Exception Units

Leading fleets routinely conduct reviews of fleet "exception" vehicles that drive up their costs. They take remedial actions on a case-by-case basis. Reports from the fleet management information system (FMIS) should identify the problem units and determine their root cause(s), thereby enabling appropriate action(s).

Waste Stream

When creating specifications for new fleet vehicles a review of the vehicle manufacturer's waste stream should be considered. The percentage of recyclable materials used in the manufacturing of vehicles should be part of the new vehicle selection process. Most manufacturers today place a degree of emphasis on this issue and should be able to provide this information for the asking.

Paints

When creating specifications for new vehicles, ensure that environmentally friendly and compliant waterborne paints will be used. The government has stringent regulations regarding Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC), and it's essential to know about the OEMs handling of this matter. The same applies to the repainting of in-service vehicles.

Synopsis – Vehicle Specifications

Selecting units with the lowest total cost of ownership (TCO) is better than the lowest purchase price and would naturally deliver the lowest possible cost to the City, making TCO the better method of





vehicle selection, albeit more complex and difficult to prepare for RFQs/tenders and assess vendor bids.

The CKL Paramedics section has opted to remount their used ambulance bodies on new chassis. We understand from our discussions with fleet management that their preference is to replace units in their entirety (chassis, body, and ancillary equipment), and we agree that this approach has its benefits. Doing so may head off potential problems with aging equipment that has had a surface-level (cosmetic) refresh. However, we feel it should not be an all-encompassing rule. There may be situations where a lower total cost of ownership may be possible by re-building and re-mounting ancillary equipment.

Right-sizing the fleet vehicles by correctly specifying the size of vehicles for the jobs at hand will lead to optimal fuel efficiency and lower overall operating costs.

Standardizing vehicle specifications wherever possible minimizes spares inventory, increasing driver and mechanic familiarity, and increasing their buying power with OEM vendors. Standardization may also reduce vehicle acquisition costs through volume buying.

Recommendations - Vehicle Specifications

- Consider employing a "total cost of ownership" approach when tendering for new vehicles (as opposed to buying the vehicle with the lowest purchase price).
- Continue to practice vehicle standardization wherever possible.
- Consider adapting zero-emission battery-electric vehicles if/when available.
- Optimal return on investment (ROI) for EVs will be for units with higher annual kms-travelled and/or fuel usage these should be prioritized
- Begin planning for electric vehicle charging equipment. This link is for a charging station installation incentive program: <u>https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy-efficiency/energy-efficiency-transportation/zero-emission-vehicle-infrastructure-program/21876</u>
- Right-size fleet vehicles for the tasks they are intended to perform.
- On a case-by-case basis, consider the cost-benefit of re-building and re-mounting truck bodies and ancillary equipment that are in good condition at the time when truck chassis are due for replacement.





7.3 Fleet Finance

Fleet Business Structure

O ne of the biggest concerns facing fleet managers is fiscal sustainability – ensuring that the fleet operating budget is sufficient to cover annual operational expenses (Opex), and the annual capital (Capex) budget is adequate for actual vehicle replacement costs. A primary goal for fleet manager's is reducing vehicle capital and operating expenses, without negatively affecting service levels (uptime).

Cost-Neutral Fleet Department

Several public sector fleets have successfully separated fleet management from their organization's core activities by establishing a semi-autonomous fleet department or division. In this business model, the Fleet Department is structured as an internal 'business support service' with strategic goals and objectives aligned with, and in support of, the overarching corporate vision/mission. By employing this business model, the Fleet Department can become cost-neutral to the organization it serves.

Total Cost Recovery Business Model

In Canada, there are several successful examples of fleet departments/divisions that have structured their business models in a way that mimics external fleet service providers. The key feature of this business model is an internal Fleet Services Department structure that functions like a third-party commercial fleet management provider, but without the profit motivation that a retail service provider would require. The advantages of this business model include:

- Separation of the fleet from the municipality's core functions, thereby enabling higher focus on primary corporate goals
- Fleet department can become a cost-neutral, internal service provider
- Reduced vehicle costs
- Support for the organization's vehicle needs to the fullest
- Provision of the highest possible levels of service to internal clients

There are several examples in which this business concept has been shown to earn the buy-in of line department managers, empowering them to reduce their vehicle, fuel, and accident costs for vehicles assigned to their areas of responsibility. One example of a successful implementation of this business model is the Winnipeg Fleet Management Agency, which was an early adaptor. Others are the City of Hamilton, Ontario, and the Toronto Hydro-Electric System, Fleet Management Services.

In Toronto Hydro's case, a concept described as a fully-bundled, total cost recovery vehicle lease program was implemented. The concept was put into place in 2004 and features full-service vehicle





'lease' charges to all of Fleet's internal user groups. The utility's fleet department was restructured in a way that resembled a retail full-service fleet management (leasing) company, including monthly full-maintenance vehicle lease charges issued to its user groups.

At Toronto Hydro, the change had strikingly positive results. Key features of Toronto Hydro's monthly vehicle charges to its user departments include:

- Vehicle 'lease' charges, based on the cost of capital for each unit and acquisition cost apportioned over the planned life cycle
- Preventive maintenance fees based on average annual PM costs for each type of vehicle
- Routine repair costs based on the average annual cost of reactive repairs for each type of vehicle
- Management and unionized Fleet staff salaries and wages are embedded within the monthly lease charges to user departments and as so, fully recovered

Toronto Hydro Fleet developed Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for all its user groups; these SLAs set out Fleet's commitments and charges to each user department.

Fully-bundled lease charges for all directly-assigned vehicles at Toronto Hydro were (and still are today) transferred monthly by journal entries for all vehicles assigned to each user department/division. In this business model, the fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle charges became the full responsibility of the assigned user departments.

When this plan was implemented, most of Toronto Hydro's line managers were quick to surrender under-utilized and redundant vehicles. They also became supporters of acquiring new vehicles that were of higher efficiency that would cost their departments less to acquire and maintain. Their motivation was to reduce their departmental costs.

For Toronto Hydro, this new practice was a visible reminder to managers of vehicle user departments regarding their actual vehicle costs. As a result of this change, Toronto Hydro's fleet rapidly downsized from over 1,000 units to a lean 750. Fleet's operating costs decreased by several million dollars annually. The company, then operating in a newly deregulated business environment, continues this successful business structure today and has continued to benefit from even further reductions in fleet size and cost.





Fuel Costs

In addition to their vehicle lease charges, Toronto Hydro vehicle user departments/divisions are invoiced for the fuel consumed by their assigned vehicles. Fuel usage reports that are issued monthly to each user department/division help inform managers about the fuel efficiency of their assigned vehicle(s), and this highlights the exception units that are under their control. These reports create awareness which ensures buy-in for reducing fuel costs at the end-user levels of the organization.

For example, if a user department does not buy into fuel-use reduction practices or if it fails to guide its drivers to act responsibly around fuel conservation, only their department suffers the costs, instead of all user groups. Departments that encourage fuel conservation benefit from lower operating costs for their assigned fleet vehicles.

Toronto Hydro's department/division managers became acutely aware of the fuel-efficiency of their vehicle assignment and fuel costs and became keenly interested in and empowered to help reduce their vehicles' fuel usage. This reduced their department's costs and, as so, the entire organization became the beneficiary.

At-Fault Accidents and Negligent Damages

In the example of Toronto Hydro, the full cost of any *at-fault* accidents and *negligent* damages to vehicles are charged directly to the user department/division whose driver caused the damages. Costs for these preventable damages are not included in their vehicle lease charges.

This best management practice encourages line managers to take responsibility for their drivers who display bad driving behaviors or those who may be habitually abusive toward vehicles and equipment. The practice places responsibility for driver behaviors where it belongs – in the hands of managers who are best-positioned to deal with the issue of their drivers' poor driving habits.

Service Level Agreements

Service Level Agreements (SLAs) manage user group expectations by defining exactly what they should expect to receive from the Fleet Department. For example, an SLA might include language stating that vehicles will be replaced every "x" years, or that vehicle charges include maintenance, repairs, insurance, licensing, driver training at specific intervals, and more.

SLAs that exactly define what will be provided by the Fleet Department to the vehicle userdepartments will help level the playing field between user departments. SLAs are a recommended best management practice.





Fully-Bundled Lease Charges versus Reserve Funds

As described, Toronto Hydro's fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle lease charges, including all fixed and variable costs, are passed on to each user department/division each month for their assigned vehicles. In turn, user departments post hourly vehicle charges to their capital projects or customer service initiatives, just as they do for their employees' time on jobs, plus material and any third-party costs. In that sense, fully-bundled, total cost recovery vehicle charges, as described, resemble a traditional reserve fund in that assigned vehicle operating costs are calculated which fully offset the fleet department's costs for all vehicles and provide capital for replacements at the end of their useful life cycles. That's where the resemblance stops. Reserve funds may create a sense of entitlement in line managers. User group managers may feel entitled to receive a new replacement vehicle despite their assigned unit still having remaining useful life. They may feel this way because their user department/division has been contributing to their assigned vehicle's capital replacement fund from the beginning.

Reserve funds are typically topped up through hourly vehicle charge-out rates captured on work orders/time tickets. However, department(s) are known to hold the keys to a vehicle(s) for full days, yet post only their hourly charges for a fraction of each day. This practice prevents usage of the vehicle(s) by any other departments. Consequently, if this occurs repeatedly, there will be a shortfall in the reserve fund when the time comes for replacement of the vehicle(s).

In the fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle charges concept we've described, the Fleet Department continues to 'own' all units but transfers bundled vehicle lease costs to user departments/divisions each month, just as a third-party vehicle full-service lease provider would. There are numerous advantages to this business structure. Key features of the fully-bundled, total cost recovery business model concept are:

- Creates awareness of fleet which usually instills a desire to surrender under-utilized vehicles
- User-department managers feel less entitled to receive new, replacement vehicles when their units have remaining usable service life
- User-department managers will share in the goal of keeping capital costs down for new, replacement units because vehicle acquisition costs will ultimately translate into higher costs for their own departments/divisions
- Encourages fuel conservation by placing responsibility for fuel costs within the userdepartment/division to which the vehicle's drivers report
- Encourages accident and damage reduction by placing responsibility for costs within the user-department/division to which the vehicle's drivers report
- User-department/division managers who more carefully manage their assigned fleet vehicles can decrease their department/divisions' operating budgets
- The Fleet Services Department can become cost-neutral to the organization





Vehicle Leasing

Vehicle leasing can be an attractive option as a way of reducing a fleet's average age without investing capital. The aging of a fleet results in high costs, poor reliability and, potentially, decreased safety. Leasing is a way to quickly modernize a fleet that has been allowed to age excessively.

The decision to lease vehicles must be approached cautiously. A full accounting review of the leasing/renting option should be undertaken and it should be based on discounted cash-flow analysis using standard accounting principles.

A full and detailed review and discounted cashflow analysis of buying-versus-leasing vehicles is not part of the current scope of work for RSI-FC. Still, we note this issue can have a significant impact on the overall business, bottom line, and financial performance. In general terms, based on our past research into this matter, we have determined that leasing or renting vehicles will be costlier for municipalities than buying units outright.

In a cash flow analysis study completed by RSI-FC for an Ontario municipality's Parks and Recreation Dept., renting/leasing their 68 seasonal-use pickups would cost over \$200k more each year than buying them. With the right combination of elements and reasonable fleet management control, a municipality can generally fund vehicle replacement Capex and maintain the fleet more economically than a third-party fleet management service provider.

We suggest that, if the City of Kawartha Lakes should ever be considering the leasing option, it should be analyzed thoroughly. First, detailed specifications should be prepared for each specific service requested from potential lessors and then, formal bids/quotes from potential fleet leasing vendors be obtained. These steps will help ensure that vendor prices and proposals are based on "apples-to-apples" comparisons.

For example, competing vehicle lessors should be required to state their total 'cradle-to-grave' lifecycle costs including interest rates (i.e., lease interest rates based on prime interest rates and floating/fixed), plus mark-up, carrying costs, acquisition costs, registration fees, end-of-cycle disposal fees, reconditioning fees, and environmental fees. With this information, fleet management can accurately assess which lease vendor is really offering the overall best prices. This approach will avoid "surprise" costs and extra fees that may emerge after the contract is signed. Often, the savings offered by a vehicle leasing vendor with a lower interest rate can be negated by its numerous extra fees and surcharges.

Total Cost of Ownership Approach

Preference should be given to acquiring new vehicles with the lowest total cost of ownership (TCO).





When new vehicles are being selected through the competitive bidding process (e.g., tenders, requests for quotations) units with the lowest TCO should be selected from vendor offerings. Although some units offered by vendors may have a higher purchase price, they may have a lower TCO. Lower TCO will result when vehicles have one or more of the following:

- 1. Lower, or less costly maintenance requirements
- 2. Better fuel economy
- 3. Historically higher levels of reliability (less downtime)
- 4. Historically higher end of lifecycle resale value

Historical cost information from the fleet management system should be reviewed to identify vehicle makes and models with lowest TCO. This information should include the salvage value and/or auction proceeds recovered from end-of-lifecycle vehicles.

When bidding for new vehicles, prospective vendors should be required to state the manufacturer's fuel consumption ratings and, also, the estimated cost of scheduled maintenance requirements of their offered new vehicles.

Proceeds from Surplus Vehicles

It is a best management practice that proceeds realized from the disposal of end-of-lifecycle surplus units flow back into Fleet's reserve fund. In this way, the fleet management team becomes vested with the responsibility and empowered to recover the maximum amount from surplus fleet units. This is the current practice at the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Synopsis – Fleet Finance

As we have described earlier in this report, we feel strongly that a cost-neutral Fleet Department will deliver many advantages to an organization. In this business model, the Fleet Department prepares its annual operating and capital budgets as usual. Full cost recovery vehicle lease charges are applied to user departments throughout the fiscal year to fully offset the fleet's Opex through vehicle user charges, thus making Fleet Services cost-neutral.

We believe that user departments should carry the full costs of vehicle operation, and this practice ensures their buy-in. That said, we do not suggest abdicating responsibilities for fleet management to the user-departments. The Fleet Services Department, with vehicle subject matter expertise, must maintain control over critical decisions relating to fleet vehicles, including replacement cycles and maintenance. The Fleet Department should be the organization's 'go-to' resource as an internal service provider and in-house subject vehicle and equipment matter expert.





Recommendations - Fleet Finance

- Consider fully-bundled, total cost recovery monthly 'lease' charge approach as we've described which includes all direct and indirect vehicle costs and overheads.
- We recommend a business structure in which the Fleet Services Dept. becomes its own fullcost recovery business unit.
- Service Level Agreements should be developed for all vehicle user departments.
- Consider transferring the direct cost of fuel used by each assigned vehicle, plus at-fault accidents and negligent damages costs, as pass-through costs to user departments with directly assigned vehicles.
- Funds recovered from the sale of end-of-lifecycle surplus fleet units should continue to flow back into the Fleet vehicle reserve fund.
- Employ a total cost of ownership (TCO) approach when tendering for new vehicles





7.4 Information Technology

Fleet Management Information Systems

E leet asset-management decision-making and analysis are best achieved by using dedicated and purpose-designed "best-of-breed" fleet management information systems (FMIS). For maximum management effectiveness and control, accurate and reliable fleet data is essential for managers to make well-informed, data-driven decisions for their fleet asset base.

Data is Crucial

To facilitate optimal asset management, fleet managers require access to current, real-time, and reliable operating data (including total cost of ownership, consumptions, usage rates, unit performance, downtime, and more). Mechanisms – such as an FMIS – to analyze this data must be in place to assess each unit's performance regarding utilization, availability (uptime) rates, and operating costs. With this information, each vehicle can be evaluated as to whether it aligns with and supports the community's corporate objectives (i.e., fleet management's responsibility to provide safe, reliable, and suitable transportation for employees to carry out their daily work routines).

For example, if historical data shows that a particular unit has been utilized at a rate less than an acceptable threshold for minimum usage, it is costing the community money without serving a purpose and, hence, the vehicle is a liability, unless it has some redeeming value (i.e., a special-purpose or backup vehicle for emergencies, or a unit reserved for peak periods).

Ownership of under-utilized units should be re-evaluated to determine if there are more cost-effective ways of accomplishing the corporate end-goal. If a specific vehicle is used infrequently, management should consider creative solutions as to whether a less costly mode of travel could be employed. For instance, an inter-departmental vehicle sharing arrangement, a third party service-provider, video-conferencing, or the use of employee-owned vehicles may be better options.

Data Systems

Some organizations have been successful in using their corporate 'enterprise resource planning' (ERP) software solutions with built-in fleet management functionalities. Others will, with a degree of effort, derive satisfactory results through user-designed spreadsheets. A few fleet managers still rely on paper-based records. In our team's experience, ERP systems are not a good fit for the unique requirements of fleet management. Fleet's needs for information are diverse. Purpose-designed, "best-of-breed" fleet management information systems (FMIS) are a better choice for optimal fleet management.

Regardless of the information system(s) chosen, the critical factor is having the ability to capture fleet data, conduct analysis, and prepare reports based on current, accurate information. An FMIS





enables managers to routinely and expeditiously run reports to analyze the performance of each fleet unit in the context of costs and service levels. Empowered with this level of information, managers can make confident and informed go-forward decisions around operating, maintaining, and disposing of fleet assets.

There are numerous advantages and due-diligence reasons for a purpose-designed FMIS, but at minimum, it will greatly facilitate and automate the important process of PM scheduling and manage the spare parts inventory. The system will reduce time, duplication of effort, and costs. FMIS-generated work orders for fleet technicians will capture and store vehicle repair and maintenance histories – essential details for due-diligence or in the event of a government safety audit.

Preventive Maintenance Scheduling

FMIS data systems will automate preventive maintenance (PM) scheduling, reducing the possibility of errors such as missed vehicle inspections. Today's leading fleets seamlessly and efficiently capture their fleet's kilometer or engine hour readings and track the amount of fuel used by each unit by integrating their FMIS with a fuel island transaction system. Drivers are prompted to key in their vehicle's odometer (or engine hour) readings at the time of each re-fuelling. Fuel island transaction data interfaces with the FMIS to update PM schedules. Such systems also enable easy reconciliation of fuel inventories, ensuring that all bulk fuel purchased is properly accounted for and managed.

From fuel island transaction data, the FMIS will auto-schedule PM events well in advance thereby reducing the possibility of errors and missed PM events while also helping to balance the mechanic's workflow.

FMIS fleet maintenance/management software solutions help manage operations specific to maintaining a fleet. Key features include a central database of all units – whether active, retired or planned (data that could be shared between other departments including accounting for their purposes), a dashboard, preventive/predictive maintenance scheduling, maintenance costs and performance analysis.

FMIS Data Integrity and Accountability

Managers of 'best-in-class' fleets assign responsibility and accountability for ensuring regular, accurate data input, updates, and database quality control to a single key staff member. This mitigates the possibility of experiencing the classic problem of "garbage in, garbage out", and ensures data integrity and consistency.

Each unit's original acquisition cost and date-in-service should be entered into the unit's profile. The FMIS should be capable of calculating depreciation for reporting purposes. In doing so, the system should also be able to calculate each vehicle's current book value in real-time.





Fleet management systems should include interfaces with any/all in-house fuel supply systems and any retail fuel vendors. These interfaces would be used to upload, for example, all fuel data and post fuel costs and usage quantities to each vehicle. Interface(s) should also be developed to enterprise systems/ERPs to facilitate internal financial transactions at the general ledger (GL) level (e.g., transferring vehicle, fuel, and accident costs to user department/divisions).

Fleet management software should be sufficiently robust to track costs at the vehicle level and be capable of benchmarking individual units to similar category vehicles within the fleet for exception management purposes. The system should also support the tracking of relevant Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

FMIS Key Attributes

When considering a fleet management information system, considerations should include:

- Preventive maintenance (PM) scheduling: What are the systems options and capabilities?
- Does the software support multiple triggers for scheduling PM and other events?
- Management reports: Does the software provide exception reporting?
- Maintenance histories: What is included in each unit's maintenance history?
- Fuel tracking: Does the system report fuel usage and statistics per unit, categories of units and entire fleet?
- Does the software support fuel system reconciliation i.e., litres of fuel purchased vs. litres dispensed?
- Parts inventories: What are the capabilities of the system for managing spare parts?
- Cost reporting: Does the system provide detailed cost reporting on a unit by unit basis and does it provide exception reporting?
- How does the system track fixed overhead or indirect costs? It is important to include fixed costs such as salaries and wages, insurances, and other overhead costs to determine total cost recovery and pass-through costs for end user department/divisions.
- Does the system calculate vehicle book value in real-time? (This is an asset-management best practice, essential for vehicle cost vs. age analysis.)
- Does the system track vehicle assignments and stored location data?
- Does the system report on utilization rates per vehicle?
- Does the system track vehicle downtime?
- Is the system capable of categorizing maintenance and repair costs using industry standard terms of reference, e.g., industry-standard ATA Vehicle Maintenance Repair Standard (VMRS) codes (for benchmarking purposes)?
- Is the system user-friendly for creating reports "on the fly" such as calculating historical operating costs by vehicle type, brand, year, etc., and by unique vehicle configurations (e.g.,





the ability to calculate historical operating costs of vehicles with a certain engine/drivetrain configuration for comparative analysis)?

- Does the system provide internal and/or external benchmarking functionality?
- Is the system capable of being configured to generate reports on specific KPIs?

Data Management

A well-designed and configured FMIS should be capable of tracking current vehicle assignment information, e.g., departments /divisions/cost centers to which units are assigned.

Vehicle categorization protocols ought to be consistent with industry standards for benchmarking purposes, e.g., Ministry of Transportation, DOT, or APWA/CPWA standard categories. The system should track each unit's full acquisition cost at the time of purchase, data on each unit's current book value, and the entire fleet's current book value and mileage.

Odometer and Engine Hour Readings

The adage "you can't manage what you don't measure" is particularly relevant to fleet management. Mileage or engine and power take-off (PTO) hour readings form the foundation for cost comparisons and benchmarking, which are critical success factors for leading fleets.

It is imperative to capture vehicle odometer readings promptly and accurately. As well, engine & PTO hour readings should be maintained in real-time using uploads from the fuel system interface or shop work order entries posted into the FMIS.

Leading fleets are vigilant about recording every unit's mileage reading regularly – at minimum monthly to ensure 'short interval control' of the fleet. Readings can be recorded manually or captured via other methods, i.e., telematics, fuel dispensing systems, work orders or driver reports.

Synopsis – Information Technology

A fleet management information system (FMIS) would be of tremendous benefit to the City of Kawartha Lakes for the many reasons we have described in this report.

FMIS solutions are designed to help fleet managers and line staff capture, measure, and analyze the dynamics of their fleet maintenance and operating costs. They provide reporting capabilities with decision support tools. Such systems help manage other aspects of fleet maintenance that include cost and inventory management; they will track and manage different types of vehicles and equipment.

A well-designed and configured FMIS, when properly configured, is said to save a fleet up to 20% in operating expenses while ensuring due diligence with asset and inventory cost control.




Recommendations – Information Technology

- A purpose-designed, best of breed, full-function fleet management information system (FMIS) is recommended for CKL Fleet management.
- The FMIS should be configured so that all of the City's fleet vehicles and equipment are included in the system, including those managed by Public Works, Transit, Fire, Police and Paramedics.
- CKL sub-fleets that outsource their repairs and maintenance should input their third-party vendor invoices into the shared FMIS platform
- Preventive maintenance scheduling should be managed in the FMIS for all CKL vehicles and equipment.
- The Phoenix fuel system should be interfaced with the FMIS to capture vehicle and transactional data.





7.5 Human Resources

F or this section of our report, human resources pertains not only to the Fleet & Transit Services department personnel but also to the fleet's drivers. We will address each group in this section of the Review.

The Fleet & Transit Services Management Team

For most mid- to large-size municipalities, the fleet is usually one of the top expenses on the corporate balance sheet. For this reason, mid- to large-size fleets engage the focused attention of a professional Fleet Manager with responsibilities solely focused on fleet management. Being a large and diverse fleet, with 377 vehicles and equipment units, this is the situation for the City of Kawartha Lakes Public Works and Transit sections of the City's fleet. For smaller municipal fleets, or subsections of a large municipal fleet, fleet management may be one aspect of a portfolio for a Supervisor, Manager, Director or Chief (Fire Services). For the CKL Paramedics, Fire Rescue Services and Police Services sections of the overall City fleet, this is the business structure that is in place.

Management Staff - Personal Development

Whether managing a small local fleet as part of his/her overall responsibilities or overseeing a large, diverse fleet, specialized skills and knowledge are required to make well-informed business decisions. Therefore, fleet management personnel should continually seek specialized training and personal development opportunities for themselves and their team, in order to continue to grow their fleet management expertise and knowledge. Options include membership and participation in industry organizations that offer relevant training and education, college and university courses, and a variety of personal skills development classes and networking events.

Attendance at fleet management networking and information/training events can result in an enthused, focused, refreshed, and motivated fleet management team and potentially result in new take-home best management practices. The NAFA Fleet Management Association <u>www.nafa.org</u> is one example of an industry organization that offers a Certified Automotive Fleet Manager (CAFM) program. The American/Canadian Public Works Association (<u>www.apwa.net<http://www.apwa.net</u>) offers a Certified Public Fleet Professional (CPFP) program that is oriented toward public sector municipal fleets.

We believe that regular attendance at fleet management conferences should be part of personal development plans for those involved in managing and maintaining the CKL fleet. Examples of annual events are NAFA sessions and the annual Fleet Technology Expo. The knowledge gained from attending these events more than justifies travel and accommodation expenses, and a side benefit may be morale and confidence-boosting. They are rich in content, offer learning and networking







opportunities, and have the potential to save money and increase fleet efficiencies that may result in a net benefit to the City of Kawartha Lakes.

For these reasons, we recommend participation in personal development and networking opportunities for those engaged in managing the CKL fleet. Additionally, the staff (technicians and support staff) who are carrying out maintenance and other fleet-related tasks would benefit from personal/career development training or peer networking events.

Fleet Maintenance Technicians

Recruiting qualified vehicle technicians in today's market is a perennial problem. Retaining technicians is also often problematic as some skilled, licenced technicians may be lured away by potentially higher earnings elsewhere. Some vehicle technicians may also be attracted to less physically demanding jobs to which they can apply their knowledge and skills. Recruiting and retaining suitable new technicians, with the requisite training, skills and endorsements may be challenging.

Fleet & Transit Services currently employs nine technicians with Automotive Service Technicians (Trade Code 310S), Truck and Coach Technicians (Trade Code 310T) accreditations. In the future, additional skills-training will be required to service emerging technologies, such as electric vehicles. Emergency Vehicle Training (EVT) is also important training for servicing CKL's Fire and Rescue Services vehicles.

An **Automotive Service Technician (310S)** is defined as a person who, on motor vehicles and light trucks, inspects/diagnoses and troubleshoots/repairs/verifies repairs on:

- Engine systems, electrical systems starting and charging
- Engine management systems, electrical systems body
- Fuel delivery systems
- Transmission systems
- Drive shafts, differentials, and drive axle assemblies
- Suspension systems and frames
- Steering systems, braking systems, tires, wheels, rims & hubs, heating, ventilation
- Air-conditioning systems, body and trim, exhaust, and intake & emission control systems





A **Truck and Coach Technician (310T)** inspects, repairs and maintains commercial trucks, emergency vehicles, buses and road transport vehicles, performing work on structural, mechanical, electrical and electronic systems.

A Truck and Coach Technician inspects, repairs and maintains:

- Electrical and electronic systems
- Engines including fuel, exhaust, intake and emission controls
- Transmissions, clutches, drive shafts and axles
- Body and trim, frames and hitching/coupling systems
- Steering, suspension and computer control systems
- Tires, wheels and hubs
- Braking systems including air supply and hydraulic
- Heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and refrigeration systems

An Emergency Vehicle Technician (EVT) has completed the following training:

Maintenance, Inspection & Testing (F-1):

- The maintenance, inspection and testing of Fire Apparatus as described in NFPA 1911, Standard for the Inspection, Maintenance, Testing and Retirement of In-Service Fire Apparatus
- Design & Performance Standards and Preventative Maintenance of Fire Apparatus (F-2)
- The standards for fire apparatus as described in NFPA 1901, Standard for Automotive Fire Apparatus, and in NFPA 1911, Standard for the Inspection, Maintenance, Testing and Retirement of In-Service Automotive Fire Apparatus

Staff Requirements

Calculating Labour Demand

RSI-FC completed a fleet maintenance demand study to evaluate the adequacy of current staffing levels. By calculating the frequency, the estimated labour hours required for PM inspections, and the number of each type of vehicle in the fleet we calculated total preventive maintenance demand (in terms of person/hours). From this value, knowing from experience and past data that a PM Ratio of .50 delivers a high level of uptime, we calculated reactive repair demand (also in terms of person/hours). By adding PM (and PMCVI) demand to reactive repair demand (PM Ratio of .50) we calculated total Fleet Technician labour demand for fleet maintenance.





As in all human endeavours, there is variability between each technician's productivity levels. Also, there may be variability between vehicles, even those of the same categories, which can make maintenance less – or more – demanding. For this reason, we calculated total labour demand using low and high estimates of the time required to perform PM and reactive repairs.

The low estimate of total labour demand to service the 377 units of the Public Works Fleet and Transit section of the City's fleet is 13,528 hours and the high estimate is 20,248.

Calculating Labour Capacity

We calculated the labour capacity for each full-time equivalent (FTE) Fleet Technician. To do this we began with the total annual, on-duty, direct labour hours for each Fleet Technician. From this we subtracted statutory holidays, paid vacations, lunches and breaks, safety (and other) meetings, and an allowance for other indirect time such as delivering vehicles, meeting with drivers, reviewing vehicle issues, road tests, completing work orders, etc. The net annual labour capacity per each FTE Fleet Technician is 1,274 hours.

Calculating Fleet Technician Requirements

With Fleet Technician labour demand and net capacity per FTE calculated, we then compared total fleet maintenance labour capacity to demand. Based on low and high estimates of baseline labour demand for attainment of all PM, PMCVI and reactive repairs, we determined that from 11 to 16 FTE technicians are required today to meet the current demand¹⁶.

The City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services employs 10 FTE Fleet Technicians – nine FTE Truck and Coach Technicians and one Chief Truck and Coach Technician, which is one less than the current minimum (low estimate) of today's labour demand.

Recruiting Motor Vehicle Technicians

Recruiting qualified motor vehicle technicians in today's market has been a perennial problem but this was not the case at the beginning of this century. To better understand the downward trend in licensed technicians, we looked at a 2019 study conducted by the Canadian Apprentice Forum (CAF). From 2004 to 2010, the number of registered apprentices in the top 10 Red Seal trades increased from 99,500 to 145,300. In 2014, the number of registrants began to decline due to downward trends in oil and other commodity prices (decrease of 7,100 registrants between 2014-2017). Ever since, the number of registered apprentices stayed consistent but the demand for qualified candidates has increased steadily. Projections for 2019 and beyond show nearly as much



- 97 -



demand as there is supply of apprentices which will put the industry at an even more dramatic deficit for qualified motor vehicle technicians soon.

Recruiting and retaining technicians with multiple licenses (e.g. 310S, 310T) is even more difficult and oftentimes organizations will settle with those holding, or apprenticing, for one license type. The challenge then becomes encouraging technicians – for example, a technician with a 310S licence – to continue their trades-training by earning their 310T, or their Emergency Vehicle Training (EVT) and other accreditations.

To develop and maintain a strong pool of skilled workers, recruitment and retention incentives must be considered and these can be widely various depending on the candidates. In general, studies have shown millennials are incented by much different rewards that their baby boomer counterparts; therefore, recruitment and retention strategies should also be customized, ensuring equality and inclusiveness.





In *Table 3 - Vehicle Technician Profiles* (below) are two examples showing equal but customized approaches for employees in various generational groups.

Table 3 - Vehicle Technician Profiles

Employee/Situation	Organizational Benefit(s) and Drawback(s) of Employee Type		Examples of Effective Incentives	
Employee Profile - Example 1:				
Fully licensed technician (holding 310S and 310T) who has been working for over 20 years in the industry and within approximately five years of retirement	 Benefits: Highly skilled & experienced Consistent/predictable work quality, capacity & productivity Potential to mentor and transfer skills to other workers Potential to move into head technician position (if not 	•	Technicians in this example/category are generally more incented by financial security and recognition of experience and skill set. Therefore, an effective incentive could be structured on performance-based goals and recognition of accomplishments around peers (if warranted). Depending on the individual, they may be incented by being known as the subject matter expert (or go-	
	 there already) Drawbacks: May be unwilling to expand current skill set Sometimes resistant, or has difficulty using new technology & diagnostics Potentially unwilling to share knowledge with new, inexperienced employees 	•	to person) from other staff. More introverted individuals will be incented by one-on-one interactions with superiors versus sharing their knowledge openly with others. Good candidate for future CKL Chief Technician role	
Employee Profile - Example 2:				





Employee/SituationOrganizational Benefit(s) and Drawback(s) of Employee TypeExamples of Effective IncentivesNew, inexperienced and recently out of high school or college looking for an introduction or hours towards an apprenticeshipBenefits:• Anything related to accelerating learning and training are often the most effective incentives (training, tool allowances, college bursaries or incentives that subsidize hard costs such as textbooks)• They are more economical hires versus experienced, fully licensed technicians• Work schedule flexibility is often highly valued by this group to accommodate school schedules/appointments that the field and can be more easily trained on organizational processes• They adapt to, and even expect, to be exposed to new technologies and diagnostic tools				
Image: New, inexperienced and recently out of high school or college looking for an apprenticeshipBenefits:• Anything related to accelerating learning and training are often the most effective incentives (training, tool allowances, college bursaries or incentives that subsidize hard costs such as textbooks)New, introduction or hours towards an apprenticeship• They are more economical hires versus experienced, fully licensed technicians• Work schedule flexibility is often highly valued by this group to accommodate school schedules/appointments that typically occur during the Monday- Friday office business hours of 9AM organizational processes• They adapt to, and even expect, to be exposed to new technologies and diagnostic tools• They adapt to, and even expect, to be exposed to new technologies and diagnostic tools	Employee/Situation	Organizational Benefit(s) and		Examples of Effective Incentives
New, inexperienced and recently out of high school or college looking for an introduction or hours towards an apprenticeship• Typically, these workers are young (20s or younger) and eager to learn• Anything related to accelerating learning and training are often the most effective incentives (training, tool allowances, college bursaries or incentives that subsidize hard costs such as textbooks)• They are more economical hires versus experienced, fully licensed technicians• Work schedule flexibility is often highly valued by this group to accommodate school schedules/appointments that typically occur during the Monday- Friday office business hours of 9AM – 5PM.• They adapt to, and even expect, to be exposed to new technologies and diagnostic tools• Anything related to accelerating learning and training are often the most effective incentives (training, tool allowances, college bursaries or incentives that subsidize hard costs such as textbooks)		Drawback(s) of Employee Type		
	New, inexperienced and recently out of high school or college looking for an introduction or hours towards an apprenticeship	 Benefits: Typically, these workers are young (20s or younger) and eager to learn They are more economical hires versus experienced, fully licensed technicians They have little experience in the field and can be more easily trained on organizational processes They adapt to, and even expect, to be exposed to new technologies and diagnostic tools 	•	Anything related to accelerating learning and training are often the most effective incentives (training, tool allowances, college bursaries or incentives that subsidize hard costs such as textbooks) Work schedule flexibility is often highly valued by this group to accommodate school schedules/appointments that typically occur during the Monday- Friday office business hours of 9AM – 5PM.

Retaining Motor Vehicle Technicians

Pay Scale

While a competitive pay rate is a benefit for employees, it also benefits employers. Employers offering excellent wages have employees who are more productive and engaged. A major cause of employee turnover is pay rate. If employees feel that they aren't being paid enough and are able to find higher-paid work elsewhere, they'll quit and move on. Employee turnover costs companies huge amounts of money. The cost of replacing and training new employees exceeds the amount of money saved by offering lower pay.

Stability and Predictability

In very general terms, experienced, licensed technicians are often looking for consistent, regular shiftwork (either day, afternoon or weekend shifts). Rotating shifts, although useful to provide coverage for the company, are often difficult to administer, complicated to adjust for short term disruptions (sick leave, vacation, unforeseen circumstances) and can be unappealing to technicians





who require more consistency. This is especially true for young apprentices trying to balance school, work and appointments or those with young families trying to balance a busy home life.

Work Environment

Employee retention is often incumbent on a good working environment. For Fleet Technicians, work environment extends to their working relationship with fleet management and staff, user-groups, and co-workers. No one likes spending their working hours in a toxic, unhappy environment.

Work environment includes the physical workplace, in this case the fleet garage, and the shop equipment technicians are provided to do their jobs. Work environment extends to garage lighting, noise levels, safety equipment, heating and ventilation, and more.

Fleet Technicians Survey

To assess the level of satisfaction of the Fleet Technicians in CKL's Fleet and Transit Services section RSI-FC issued a Fleet Technicians survey. The survey was anonymous and we received a high response rate – seven (out of ten) responded.

Note: The full survey questions and charts for Fleet Technicians are found in Appendix "F".

Job Satisfaction

We asked the Fleet Technicians seven questions related to their jobs and working environment. We received very positive responses as we see in *Illustration 4 - Fleet Technician Survey #1* (below).

Survey Questions for Fleet Technicians (1)	No. of Responses	Rating (out of 5)
Overall, how would you rate your level of job satisfaction?	6	3.7
What is the likelihood you would refer someone to work at the City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit Services?	6	3.5
What do you feel is the likelihood that your personal career goals and aspirations will be met in Fleet & Transit Services?	6	2.8
Do you feel your current job is your only career option in Fleet & Transit Services?	6	4.5
Does another job within Fleet and Transit Services that would get you off the shop floor someday have appeal to you?	6	3.7

Illustration 4 - Fleet Technician Survey #1





We asked the group a second set of questions relating to the garage work environment. Responses were again very high – from 3.8 to 5.0 (out of 5). Clearly, they are satisfied with their work environment as demonstrated in *Illustration 5 - Fleet Technician Survey #2* (below).

Illustration 5 - Fleet Technician Survey #2

Fleet Technicians Survey Questions (2)	No. of Respondents	Rating (out of 5)
Do you feel valued at work?	6	4.5
Do you receive recognition for your work from the person you report to in Fleet & Transit Services?	6	4.5
Do you feel that Fleet & Transit Services management takes your opinions seriously?	6	4.7
Do you feel Fleet & Transit Services management is transparent in their actions?	6	4.3
Are you comfortable giving upwards feedback to your immediate supervisor?	6	4.7
Are you comfortable giving upwards feedback to fleet management?	6	5.0
Do you feel your co-workers give each other's respect in the workplace?	6	4.3
Do you have fun at work?	6	3.8

We asked the group a third set of questions relating to their tools and equipment, work bays, lighting, heating/ventilation and safety. Responses were again very high – from 3.7 to 4.0 (out of 5), showing a high degree of job satisfaction as we see in *Illustration 6 - Fleet Technician Survey #3* (below).

Illustration 6 - Fleet Technician Survey #3

Fleet Technicians Survey Questions (3)	No. of Respondents	Rating (out of 5)
The tools and shop equipment provided by Fleet & Transit Services are suitable for the work I do.	6	4.3
Tools and shop equipment are maintained properly.	6	4.3
The garage bays and workspace are suitable for me to carry out my duties.	6	3.7
The garage and facilities are clean, organized and well-maintained.	6	4.0
Garage lighting is good.	6	4.3
Heating and ventilation are adequate.	6	4.0
Workplace Hazardous Materials Information System (WHMIS) information is available to me readily for the products I am working with.	6	4.2





Fleet Technicians Survey Questions (3)	No. of Respondents	Rating (out of 5)
I have adequate understanding and training in WHMIS.	6	4.0
I am provided suitable safety and personal protective equipment to complete my job.	6	4.5
I believe management places a high emphasis on worker safety.	6	4

Being a fleet maintenance technician can be a physically challenging occupation. It can be strenuous and entail cold working conditions while, for example, repairing frozen vehicles. Even in the most ideal working conditions, the job may exacerbate or aggravate inherent health conditions such as arthritis in some people. With this reality in mind, and despite the high level of job satisfaction we observed in the first survey questions, we asked: *Does another job within Fleet and Transit Services that would get you off the shop floor someday have appeal to you?* Respondents felt equally strongly (3.7 out of 5) that a job that would get them off the shop floor someday have have appeal to you?

Compensation and Benefits

Fleet Technician survey respondents are dissatisfied with their pay rate. As we see in *Illustration 7 - Fleet Technician Survey #4* (below) they felt their benefits packages are fair (3.3/5). However, there is clearly dissatisfaction when it comes to their pay. Responses ranged from 1.3/5 to 2.7/5 for the questions about their pay rate and vacation.

Illustration 7 - Fleet Technician Survey #4

Fleet Technicians Survey Questions (4)	No. of Respondents	Rating (out of 5)
My compensation package, including pay rate and scale, benefits package and paid vacation time is fair.	6	1.7
My pay rate and scale are fair.	6	1.3
My benefits package is fair.	6	3.3
My paid vacation allowance is fair.	6	2.7

Technician Comments

In the survey respondents were asked to provide comments about their employer and their jobs. We received several excellent comments; many were positive in nature and others very constructive. That said, some of the comments raised red flags. A sampling of the comments follows:





Highlights of Fleet Technician Survey Comments

Training

"Although we do receive basic training on certain pieces of equipment, we badly need in-depth training on the more complex vehicles and pieces of equipment. E.g. diagnostic and troubleshooting training specific to plow trucks, transmissions, sidewalk machines etc."

Fleet Garage and Work Equipment

"I have no issues with working conditions, safety equipment, or PPE provided to work safely."

"This municipality needs to increase its fleet maintenance facilities and staff size. We are in no way capable of handling the vehicles and equipment we currently possess and too much crucial work ends up contracted out and that can be costly in the long run. I believe the fleet maintenance facilities are a safe work environment."

"Need more space. Need more techs and equipment"

"If this department were to improve, it must begin by engaging employees in creating a comprehensive and efficient vehicle and equipment preventative maintenance program that will promote consistency in the inspections and repairs conducted. Including employees in this process will help with employee "buy in", and they will feel that they were a part in how their workplace operates."

"An investment in a CMMS (Computerized Maintenance Management System) will greatly assist in tracking maintenance, work order creation, inventory management, and recording vehicle history. Implementing such a system will improve efficiency within the department. However, the easier place to start would be to improve pay rates for technicians, include their input in some decisions made, in depth training from OEM, and expanding the staff and facility size to better accommodate the size of the fleet serviced. Dealing with problem employees to prevent their negativity from spreading needs to happen as well."

"A larger shop in order to bring all of the fleet. I mean all of the fleet repairs in house would be great. This would mean a larger shop and increased fleet Techs as well as apprentices in order bring younger Techs into the City shops in order to grow our Techs to be great mechanics."

"We should maintain all equipment as we do a better job and are cheaper. Need more space and techs"



- 104 -



Personal Development

"I aspire to be a fleet supervisor, however I'm not sure if that opportunity will open up here for me."

"Training is provided on a regular basis"

Pay Scale

"We need more work in house as we do it better, cheaper and more effectively. Better compensation would improve moral and keep good people here."

"I have no problems with anything except our pay rate. We all have worked hard to get and maintain our skilled trade licenses. It's disheartening to see unskilled labour sometimes getting compensated as much or more than us. Workers at local dealerships are in the \$30 plus range mostly with only a 310-S."

"I don't feel I'm compensated fairly for the responsibilities I hold."

"The pay rate is not fair if compared to other equivalent sized municipal fleets. Neighboring municipalities offer higher pay rates."

"Much underpaid compared to neighboring municipalities."

"The rate of pay for the job that is performed is not at the proper rate of pay."

"Our skilled labour pay is much lower than any neighbouring municipality or repair facilities. It would be nice to retain and attract good skilled labour."





Apprenticeship Program

Legally, technicians must be either fully licensed (in good standing) or officially sponsored as an apprentice by the employing organization to work on vehicles and equipment. It is critical employers understand the intricacies of the skilled trades programs administered by the College of Trades (soon to be transitioned to the Ontario Government's Skilled Trades) to navigate all the rules and regulations.

If development of a strong pool of technicians with multiple accreditations (i.e. 310S, 310T) to meet the needs of a diversely mixed fleet of municipal vehicles and equipment is fleet managements preferred outcome, as we believe to be the goal of Kawartha Lakes fleet management, then an apprenticeship support program would be very effective.

As mentioned in the previous section, most apprentices are young and just out of school (either high school or college). They are eager to build their skills, gain work experience and hours towards their apprenticeship and as such can be incented with those considerations in mind.

Typically, new apprentices are incented by resources or training that can build their capacity, including:

- Tool allowances to increase their mix of tools which they otherwise could not afford until more financially secure. This increases the apprentice's capacity at work and therefore is a benefit to the employer as well. Typically, there is an approval process associated with a tool allowance to ensure the investment in the apprentice is beneficial to the company as well.
- Any type of training available. Most technicians will jump on the opportunity to participate in training (even if it's not related to their day-to-day). Apprentices may volunteer for these opportunities even if it means coming into work off-shift (unpaid). This may be impossible in a unionized work environment.
- Having the opportunity to shadow more experienced technicians to learn the tricks of the trade. Theoretical learning is a core component of apprenticeship, but hands-on learning cannot be replaced by any textbook. Often, apprentices will go above and beyond if they can shadow, and learn from, respected technicians on staff.

Consistent with the employee profiles described in *Table 3*, when a young apprentice in time becomes a licensed 310S technician, he/she may have the impetus, enthusiasm and interest in continuing their training so as to augment their personal skillset to include other trade designations. These may include 310T, 310J, EVT or battery-electric vehicle training, which is expected to be





available soon. Potentially, their pursuit of additional training and trade designations takes place when they are younger and eager to learn and, in doing so, increases their earnings potential.

Challenges

As we have described in this section of our report, recruiting qualified vehicle technicians has been a perennial problem and continues to be the case in today's market. Retaining technicians is often problematic as some skilled, licenced technicians may be lured away by potentially higher earnings or perceived better conditions elsewhere. Some vehicle technicians may also be attracted to less physically demanding jobs at a point in their career.

The City's Fleet Technicians top rate of pay is \$28.27 per hour. A full review of pay scales for similar positions in the Kawartha Lakes area is beyond the scope of this project. However, RSI-FC completed online research and a market scan (<u>https://mechanicshub.com</u>). Our research indicates that pay rates at CKL may be anywhere from \$7-12 per hour less than surrounding areas.

Recruiting and retaining suitable new technicians, with the requisite training, skills and endorsements to meet the demand has already become increasingly challenging. Attracting younger technicians from the private sector is difficult as they make up to \$10 per hour more and most have some form of benefit packages.

All current technicians in CKL Fleet & Transit Services have the 310S and 310T designations necessary for servicing a diverse fleet of vehicles from cars up to heavy trucks. CKL management is reviewing this requirement as it struggles to hire competent people with both licenses.

Additional skills-training will be required to service emerging technologies in the future, such as electric vehicles. Emergency vehicle training (EVT) training is also important training for servicing CKL's Fire and Emergency Services vehicles.

From our surveys we learned that CKL's technicians would be interested in advancing their skills. Further, they would be incented to increase their skills training if it meant a pay scale increase.

Opportunities

Fleet Succession Planning

Many technicians have no desire to change career paths at any time in their employment. But for those who do seek career advancement and the possibility of transitioning away from the shop floor someday, making options available to them and prioritizing their recruitment for other positions may be attractive.





RSI-FC is of the opinion that a recruiting-from-within approach for less physically demanding roles in Fleet and Transit Services would retain the knowledge and skills of the most experienced fleet technicians. Here are some examples:

- Chief or Lead Technician (a hands-on shop floor role but less physically demanding)
- Fleet Supervisor
- Stock Room Attendant
- Fleet Analyst (management position)
- Driver Trainer (management position)
- Fleet Manager (management position)
- Fleet management information system administrator (including FMIS, ELD and fuel data systems functionalities)

Synopsis – Fleet Technicians

Recruiting for CKL Fleet Technicians has been an issue for more than five years. The City has been seeking to fill two technician positions for more than a year, only recently filling one; recruiting continues for the second.

From our labour demand calculations, we have determined that the current number of Fleet Technicians is at less than the minimum level required. Should one of the current Fleet Technicians decide to vacate their position for a higher-paying job elsewhere, or for any other reason, it will exacerbate the City's longstanding issue of attracting skilled talent. This would expose the City to a risk in that the Fleet Technician labour shortage would mean seeking alternatives to in-house fleet maintenance – including costly outsourcing.

RSI-FC believes that the issues of recruiting and retaining technicians are intertwining and may be addressed by a four-pronged approach:

- (1) Pay Rate Review: A wage review of surrounding municipalities and the private sector
- (2) Attracting New Technicians: The introduction of an apprenticeship program in Fleet and Transit Services to attract young, ambitious talent into the vehicle technician trade
- (3) **Technician Skills Development:** Incremental pay-scale classification increases for technicians who acquire additional trade designations. This would incent technicians to progressively increase their skills and accreditations, and in doing so, their pay scale





(4) Retaining Technicians: A Fleet Services succession plan in which senior-most Fleet Technicians are given priority status for less physically demanding roles within the Fleet Services department

Recommendations – Fleet Technicians

- A Fleet Technician wage review should be undertaken of surrounding municipalities and the private sector, with the possibility of an increase to market-based pay rates for the area of CKL.
- Consider implementation of the 4-step approach to Fleet Technician recruitment as we have described.
- A Fleet Technician apprenticeship program is recommended to help address the issue of technician recruitment. It would also groom technicians who will gain knowledge and experience with the unique and diverse specialities and requirements of municipal fleet maintenance.
- Within the collective agreement and City of Kawartha Lakes Human Resources job classifications, implement a pay scale aligned with increased levels of technician licences and accreditations.
- Consider offering staff the ability to learn/acquire the skills to perform positions in Fleet which may be less physically demanding, should such positions become vacant.





Fleet Driver Training

In most public sector fleets, the drivers of fleet vehicles are managed by, and the responsibility of, the vehicle user departments. The Fleet Department typically plays a role in providing driver training, and the drivers of fleet vehicles can directly impact the fleet's safety rating.

For reasons of due-diligence, worker and public safety, and skills-enhancement, engaging the services of a fleet driver and equipment trainer is an essential best management practice for municipal fleets. Driver training programs vary between municipal fleets but typically include pre-hire and orientation sessions, on-road training, abstract reviews, remedial one-to-one training for drivers who have had repeat incidents, and refresher training courses.

There are no published standards or guidelines around how frequently driver refresher training should take place. Credible published recommendations or best practices on these matters are not readily available from any known source. In the author's own experience as a former fleet manager responsible for providing driver-training for 1,500 commercial drivers, yearly driver refresher training was determined to be the optimal interval for providing a Professional Driver Improvement Course (PDIC) to all drivers.

Over time, many things can change regarding rules and regulations that affect commercial drivers. As well, physical and mental changes that may impact the performance of individual drivers can occur; onset of disabilities may be gradual and not immediately detected by the affected individuals or their employer.

There is no single answer to the question of how frequently driver training should take place; it is something that should be determined by trend-analysis. Our recommended approach is to begin by ramping up training in increments, starting with the highest-frequency groups as identified by studying past trends (such as light-duty vehicle drivers versus medium/heavy-duty truck drivers). Continue to monitor the impacts of the additional training and then make course-corrections as required until collisions begin trending downwards.

Driver Guidebook

A driver's guidebook (or handbook) is an invaluable aid for new-hires and existing employees alike. Leading fleet managers ensure that such a document is available and up-to-date. This ensures consistency in fleet operations.

At minimum, a driver's guidebook should describe standard operating procedures, practices, and policies around vehicle operations. It should include contact information and inform drivers about fueling, emergency and accident procedures, and provide tips about safe and eco-friendly vehicle operations.





Synopsis - Fleet Driver Training

RSI-FC is of the belief that CKL should ramp up its driver training and safety programs.

Recommendations – Driver Training

- Consider engaging a driver trainer, whether in-house or from an external service provider.
- Consider driver training in increments and study the impacts of the increase. Continue to increase training frequency until a satisfactory level of accident reduction is attained.
- Consider a third-party CVOR "mock audit" to identify gaps in fleet safety program.
- Continue to monitor vehicle and equipment collisions and claims as is the current practice.
- Segment collision data into vehicle categories (light-duty vehicles, medium and heavy trucks)
- Study the collision trends to determine the drivers requiring more focused training.
- Consider posting costs for at-fault vehicle collisions to user departments whose drivers were responsible, thereby potentially incenting departmental managers to take part in and support remedial actions for their drivers.





7.6 Fleet Operations

Utilization

t is a fleet management best practice to act on reducing the number of low utilization units in the fleets on an ongoing basis. If vehicles are redundant, they may be stranded assets and an unnecessary financial drain.

Reducing fleet size by disposing of under-utilized units will free up capital that could be re-applied to newer vehicles, thereby reducing the fleet's average age and operating costs, while increasing fuel efficiency and lowering emissions.

Measuring Utilization

Making informed assessments of the precise metrics to define the levels of utilization for a municipal fleet is a daunting task. There are few known and/or published statistics, clear definitions or guiding protocols regarding utilization levels for municipal fleet vehicles. Most often it is left up to the best judgment of municipal departmental managers to make their own assessments as to whether their assigned fleet vehicles are being utilized fully, based on their personal definitions of acceptable usage.

It is RSI-FCs contention that ideally, municipal vehicle utilization should be assessed based on the number of hours-of-use for each vehicle as posted to work orders within a municipality's enterprise resource planning (ERP), or other such system. ERP systems are becoming more commonly used by municipalities to track progress on, and costs of, capital projects and municipal services provided to constituents.

When fleet vehicle hours-of-use are posted to municipal work projects as we have described, the value of each vehicle asset to the community can be assessed, relative to the services for which the unit is required to perform.

As data of this type accrues, in time, management can then accurately determine the cost of owning municipal vehicles by each category, and the actual cost of using these vehicles to complete the municipality's work. Further, this method enables evaluation of, for example, whether it is more economical for the municipality to own and operate its own vehicles versus the engagement of contractors' units or obtaining some alternate form of service-provision.

In the absence of the business processes and software tools we described in the previous paragraphs, or any other suitable metrics, total annual kilometers-travelled (kms-travelled) is most often used to assess municipal fleet vehicle utilization.





Obviously, kms-travelled would be a meaningful statistic for a fleet of commercial over-the-road transport trucks which derives its revenue by charging their customers on a ton/kilometer or some other distance-based rate formula.

Kms-travelled each year is far less meaningful, or possibly even non-applicable, to municipal fleet vehicles. For example, vehicles may be used to move a crew of workers, their gear and job materials to a worksite just a few kilometers from their base of operations, where the unit may remain parked for the remainder of the day. Vehicles used in this way may only travel a few kms per day and applications like this are abundant in all municipal fleets. Despite low kms-travelled, these units are every bit as valuable as vehicles that are used in high kms-travelled applications such as the commercial transport fleet vehicle example we've described.

With this conundrum in mind, we cautiously present the following data with the caveat that making assessments of municipal utilization, measured by kms-travelled, must be kept in context. We believe that reports and statistical information highlighting vehicles with chronically low kms-travelled should serve as alerts to management of low-usage fleet vehicles. Such information should initiate further management review around the value of low usage units to fulfillment of the corporate mission.

Availability

Availability (also referred to as uptime) is a prime success indicator of fleet management. Availability is the opposite of downtime. It is a key responsibility of fleet managers to ensure that vehicles have maximum availability during business hours.

There are only two ways to increase fleet availability:

- 1) Reduce the fleet's age by investing in newer, more reliable vehicles, or
- 2) Increase the frequency and/or intensity of preventive maintenance

Regardless of which of the two methods are employed, availability is a critical success measure that should be tracked and monitored and managed. Leading fleets monitor their availability performance measure and their managers implement appropriate actions when uptime is low. Downtime is defined as the period when a vehicle is not available for use during prime business hours. Downtime includes unavailability due to reactive repairs (breakdowns) as well as accidents or negligent damages caused by the unit's operator. Downtime and availability should be tracked and managed in the fleet management information system.





The "Just in Case" Fleet

In our experience as career fleet-managers-turned-fleet-consultants, we recognize that a condition often exists in many fleets we refer to as *"the just in case fleet"*. As this moniker suggests, some line managers and supervisors may cling tenaciously to additional vehicles so their departments will be ready if extra vehicles are required during peak times, emergencies or in case of vehicle breakdowns for their primary units.

Oftentimes, the root cause for this phenomenon is that their assigned fleet vehicles have become old and unreliable. User department managers wish to be prepared in case of yet another vehicle breakdown and, thus, the number of low-utilization spare units increases. The result is that the fleet continues to grow and become populated with under-utilized units, all with associated fixed costs. Right-sizing the fleet is critical and the fiscally responsible answer.

We stress the importance and criticality of completing lifecycle analysis to fully understand and confidently know vehicles total cost of ownership and optimal lifecycles, having a younger and more reliable fleet, reducing downtime while saving operating costs, and holding the line on fleet size.

Monitoring Utilization Rates

Leading fleet managers will act on reducing the number of low utilization units in their fleets on an ongoing basis. If vehicles are redundant they may be stranded assets and an unnecessary financial drain on the organization.

Reducing fleet size by disposing of under-utilized units will free up capital that could be re-applied to newer and more fuel-efficient vehicles, thereby reducing the fleet's average age, increasing fuel efficiency, and reducing emissions and operating costs.

We suggest a cautious approach in any plans for downsizing. Plans must be orchestrated carefully and in consultation and agreement with user-group managers to avoid potential service disruptions due to insufficient number of vehicles.

Monitoring Availability Rates

Also referred to as "uptime", availability is a prime success indicator of fleet management. Availability is the antithesis of downtime. It is a fleet manager's key responsibility to ensure that vehicles have maximum availability during business hours.





Synopsis - Fleet Operations

Reducing fleet size by disposing of under-utilized units will free up capital that could be re-applied to newer and more fuel-efficient vehicles, thereby reducing the fleet's average age and operating costs, while increasing fuel efficiency and lowering emissions.

Recommendations - Fleet Operations

- Fleet & Transit Services should routinely track, monitor, and report the utilization of all units to user department managers as a means of managing the overall productivity of the fleet.
- A corporate standard and policy for minimum vehicle utilization should be established.
- A corporate policy or directive from the highest levels of the municipality should require managers of all departments to regularly review their assigned vehicles and surrender any units that are under-utilized, unless a business case exists to retain the units.





7.7 Preventive Maintenance

Fleet Preventive Maintenance Programs - Overview

A prime indicator of fleet management success is a high level of vehicle uptime. As described in the previous section, there are only two ways fleet managers can achieve increased uptime: (1) acquire newer, 'younger' vehicles or, (2) ensure a highly-effective preventive maintenance (PM) program is in place. If sufficient funds are not available for purchasing newer vehicles, then fleet management must ramp up PM activities; otherwise, availability and reliability will suffer while operating costs increase. Safety may also be negatively affected as the fleet's vehicles continue to age.

Through preventive maintenance vehicles are inspected, repaired and maintained to prevent defects and failures which could lead to accidents and violations. If preventive maintenance is not performed regularly, vehicle life spans will be reduced. Some vehicles may be prone to excessive breakdowns requiring expensive repairs causing a vehicle to be out of service when least expected and possibly when needed most. Vehicles may become unsafe due to a lack of PM.

Proper maintenance will help avoid litigation from negligence¹⁷. Preventive maintenance is as necessary as a driver safety program. If a vehicle becomes unsafe due to lack of maintenance or repair, the fleet manager can be liable for negligent entrustment. As defined, liability is premised upon providing an employee with a dangerous tool or instrument, such as a vehicle, while knowing or having reason to know that use of the vehicle creates unreasonable risk or harm to others. Simply stated, the vehicle must be safe to operate. Should, for example, the brakes fail, causing a severe crash or fatality, authorities may impound the vehicle for investigation.

Should the investigation determine defective brakes or other vehicle malfunctions contributed to the accident, authorities can seek a court order to obtain vehicle maintenance records. If the fleet manager fails to produce evidence that they practiced preventive maintenance, under these circumstances, he/she could be prosecuted for negligence.

For these reasons and without exception, all leading fleets employ a system of minor and major PM inspections. PM events are often designated as A, B, C, D, etc. As one moves down the alphabet from A to B and so on, the PM (and completion time required) increases in complexity. The actual maintenance portion of PM is composed of scheduled, standardized inspections and maintenance. An "A" level PM ("A" is usually a minor PM) generally consists of a safety check and lubrication as well as checks of critical components such as brakes, lights, steering, tire condition and inflation,



¹⁷ Source: <u>www.fleetowner.com</u>

- 116 -



fuel filter replacements and fluid level checks. It also includes checking and adjusting high-wear components.

A "B" inspection is more complex and includes all aspects of an "A," but is a deeper level of checks that may include a wheels-off brake inspection, battery, and alternator testing, transmission and differential servicing, filter changes and breather servicing and fuel filter changes among other procedures determined by the vehicle's manufacturer. A "B" level PM may also include a download of the ECM and action on any trouble codes or problems reported by the ECM (if applicable).

Reactive Repairs vs. Preventive Maintenance

When a vehicle is brought into a garage needing something unexpected or unplanned, it is described as a reactive repair. Reactive repairs are based on failures, which result in downtime and costs associated with idle equipment.

A PM program, on the other hand, brings vehicles in for inspection and maintenance on a schedule and repairs any items that meet or are approaching a fixed cut-off point. Being proactive about PMs means making repairs on a pre-determined schedule, preventing violations and accidents, and keeping the vehicles rolling.

In leading fleets, management uses its fleet management software system to determine which, and when, vehicles are due for preventive maintenance. Frequency is determined through legal requirements, manufacturer's recommendations, and observation of past vehicle reliability histories relative to preventive maintenance inspection scheduling (i.e., when inspections are not completed frequently enough, or with insufficient thoroughness, failures and breakdowns can occur).

Another PM scheduling consideration is the matter of truck air brake adjustments. Today, some MD and HD trucks are equipped with air disc brakes or drum brakes with automatic slack adjusters. Both types of brakes still need to be inspected, and for the latter type (drums with auto slack adjusters), the brakes need to be manually adjusted, inspected and serviced from time to time. This is a basic operation in most fleet's "A" and "B" PM routines.

Leading commercial fleets place the highest level of importance on preventive maintenance (PM). Effective PM programs are designed to avoid reactive repairs and resultant downtime. Reactive repairs include vehicle breakdowns and other unexpected failures, which are costly. This is not only because of the costs of unplanned repairs but also due to the cost of spare vehicles or rentals, plus the costs associated with the loss of productivity (such as the driver – or an entire crew – unable to complete his/her/their work that day).



- 117 -



Identifying whether the costs for work performed by mechanics are either PM (planned) or reactive (unplanned) is another easily-adaptable, world-class best management practice that we strongly recommend. By separating reactive repair and PM costs, analysis and decision-making can be informed around the effectiveness of PM programs:

- Are the frequency and intensity of PM inspections adequate to reduce downtime?
- Are reactive repairs increasing as vehicle(s) age, and causing increased downtime costs?

PM Scheduling

Most fleets synchronize their "A" and "B" PMs with routine oil changes to avoid multiple trips to the shop and extra downtime. Typically, a minor "A" inspection should be carried out several times per year. For light-duty vehicles, the usual interval for "A" level PM is between 2,500 to 5,000 kilometers, coupled to a time interval not to exceed a pre-determined threshold (such as 30-120 days depending on utilization levels), and between 8,000 and 16,000 kilometers for medium- and heavy-duty vehicles, also coupled with a time-interval (days/weeks/months) threshold.

In some settings, such as utilities, municipalities, and other low mileage applications, km-based PM intervals may take a very long time to accrue. Therefore, if kms-traveled are the primary (or only) maintenance trigger, insufficient PM events may be scheduled, and failures (reactive repairs) may result. Time-based (days/weeks/months) parameters for PM would be the better choice of trigger points for low-mileage fleets like municipalities.

Conversely, a potential problem is when time-based intervals are the sole maintenance trigger, some high-usage vehicles may be under-maintained, while for low usage units the interval could be extended. A second, or even third, parameter should be employed. For this reason, some low-mileage fleets opt to base their PM scheduling on engine hours operated and on a second time-based parameter (days/weeks/month) since the last PM to prevent units "falling through the cracks."

Maintenance scheduling is an elaborate and exacting science: under-maintaining or over-maintaining vehicles can both be very costly. That is why leading fleets employ fleet management software systems with robust and complex PM scheduling capabilities. For example, if a large fleet of 500 trucks conducts just one premature PM per year per truck at the cost of say \$1,000 each, including downtime, the annual cost would be 1/2 million dollars.

Under-maintaining has its own costs, which could include failed engines, breakdowns, or worse. Either of these scenarios is costly – if a vehicle is under-maintained, it can lead to expensive failures and potential safety issues. If a unit is over-maintained, it means that premature and unnecessary costly inspections may be occurring while wasting resources.





Scheduling PMs based on engine hours can make sense for fleets with widely variable usage patterns, but again should be based on dual parameters (such as a time-interval) to ensure no PM inspections are missed.

We suggest that a solution is to use a minimum of two parameters for PM scheduling. When either of the two parameters are reached, a PM event will be triggered. If the first parameter is missed and the threshold exceeded, the second parameter will become a failsafe. An example is to schedule a vehicle's next PM event when it reaches the first of two parameters. For example, regardless of whether a vehicles travels "x" thousand kilometers or "y" number of months first, a PM event will be triggered in either case. In this way, vehicles will not be over-maintained or under-maintained.

Maintenance Ratio

Maintenance ratio is a performance indicator that informs fleet managers about the ratio between the cost of preventive maintenance (PM) and reactive repairs (i.e., breakdowns). This KPI is used to determine whether PM activities are sufficient to avoid costly and unplanned reactive repairs and breakdowns.

While there is no perfect ratio, RSI-FC has studied this statistic over the past years and concluded that a ratio of .5 (50 cents spent on PM work of every \$1 spent on reactive repairs) results in the highest levels of vehicle uptime.

If reactive repair costs and vehicle downtime are seen to be increasing, this may be an indicator that PMs need to be completed more frequently or more thoroughly (or both) to reduce the reactive repair rate and increase uptime.

Engine Oil Sampling & Lab Analysis

By tracking downtime and maintenance ratio as described in the previous section, fleet managers can assess the frequency with which specific units need PM inspections and oil changes. But we recommend another consideration to help reduce waste and cost – engine oil sample analysis for vehicles and equipment. Laboratory oil sampling is inexpensive and pinpoints precisely when oil and filter replacements should be completed in order to reduce engine wear and extend life.

Laboratory oil analysis could mean extending the intervals between oil changes, which would save considerable resources and money. Once sampling has been completed, maintenance personnel can compare the laboratory's oil change frequency recommendation to the fleet's planned intervals for PM inspections and make well-informed decisions regarding optimal maintenance intervals.





PM Worksheets

Leading fleets, including CKL Fleet & Transit Services, and the Paramedic and Fire sub-fleets employ standardized PM worksheets designed to guide technicians in completing PM inspections to ensure nothing is missed and provide an audit trail.

A well-designed PM worksheet should be a "living document," which evolves over time and, at minimum, includes vehicle manufacturer recommended inspection tasks. Tasks that are set out on the PM worksheets should include inspection of, and making corrections to, items that have been troublesome in the past.

By carefully reviewing repair histories, trends emerge that may require the need to add additional tasks to PM worksheets. This is the essence and science of preventive maintenance – heading off problems before they happen.

Predictive Maintenance

Once adequate historical data exists in a fleet's management system (FMIS), fleet management can perform database searches and run reports to identify repetitive equipment failures and pinpoint when they are likely to occur. In this way, failures can be predicted with some degree of certainty and repairs executed in advance to head off imminent breakdowns (hence the name "predictive" maintenance).

An example of predictive maintenance might be having the ability to forecast an alternator failure before a costly and disruptive breakdown. Another is replacing a heavy truck's brake linings before the very costly brake drums become scored and require replacement.

Downtime

Downtime and its cost impacts should not be ignored. Leading fleets monitor vehicle downtime and their associated cost impacts on a per-unit basis, including direct (e.g., towing, service calls, rental/loaner vehicles), and indirect costs which include the cost of work disruption and loss of productivity for the user department/division, the wages of the driver of the vehicle, and more.

This practice is especially important to measure the effects of PM efforts relative to fleet aging and provides essential information for fleet managers since it directly reflects the effectiveness of fleet management decisions and vehicle age and preventive maintenance activities.

Once a history of downtime and maintenance ratios is available for all vehicles in the fleet over a period, management can then make well-informed decisions about the level of downtime that is acceptable to maintain good service for vehicle user-departments.





By comparing the downtime and maintenance ratio for each vehicle, trends will in time emerge. Historical data will show which types of vehicles are less reliable and costlier. Fleet management is then able to complete causal analysis. In some cases, preventive maintenance may need to be ramped up with more intensive PM inspections or intervals of a higher frequency.

Synopsis - Preventive Maintenance

Through preventive maintenance vehicles are inspected, repaired and maintained to prevent defects and failures which could lead to accidents and violations. If preventive maintenance is not performed regularly, vehicle life spans will be reduced.

Some vehicles may be prone to excessive breakdowns requiring expensive repairs causing a vehicle to be out of service when least expected and possibly when needed most.

Recommendations - Preventive Maintenance

- We recommend monitoring downtime and associated costs for all vehicles.
- A fleet management information system (FMIS) is recommended for precise PM scheduling
- Consider tracking the ratio of PM: reactive repairs as a way of determining the optimum frequency/intensity of PM activities. If reactive repair costs and downtime are seen to be trending upwards, increase the focus on PM.
- We recommend that as "living documents," PM worksheets should continue to be reviewed and updated regularly (as they are now) and suggest revisions should be visibly identified by displaying the date on each PM worksheet each time they are amended.





7.8 Minimizing Fuel Consumption

Corporate Average Fuel Efficiency

The cost of fuel is usually one of the largest controllable costs for most fleets. Proactive fleet managers will make it one of their top priorities to ensure their fleet is as fuel-efficient as possible. Reducing fuel use is critical, both fiscally and environmentally.

A best management practice aimed at reducing fuel usage is to monitor the fleet's corporate average fuel efficiency (CAFE). We feel that CAFE is one of the most important KPIs for cost-conscious fleet managers to monitor and take actions for improvement.

CAFE is directly reflective of a fleet's footprint. In essence, CAFE is a measure that encompasses many facets of fleet operations ranging from driver behaviours (such as unnecessary idling, harsh driving, unnecessary trips) to right-sizing of vehicles for their assigned tasks (getting the job done with more fuel-efficient vehicles) to the use of alternate and renewable low-carbon fuels. CAFE is also impacted by the fleet's average age since older vehicles are less fuel-efficient than modern units, they burn more fuel and, consequently, cost more to operate and produce more emissions.

Similarly, auto/truck manufacturers are required to measure and report their CAFE to the government as this is reflective of the mix of the vehicles in their lineup and their corporate environmental footprint.

CAFE indicates the fleet's overall performance, and therefore we feel it is a key performance indicator (KPI) to watch closely. Improvements to this KPI are evidence that the fleet is on a healthy trend, and strategies undertaken to improve the fleet's performance are working.

Baseline CAFE for the CKL fleet is included in the Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) reports which RSI-FC will provide separately to the City.

Exception Units – High Fuel Consumption

Frequent reviews of fleet exception units that are driving up fuel costs (and emissions) followed by remedial actions on a case-by-case basis are best management practices that result in reduced fuel usage, cost and emissions.

The recommended course of action is to: (1) pinpoint the problem units, (2) find the root cause(s), and (3) take corrective actions.

The following are some considerations when managing high fuel exception consumption units:

• Are there mechanical problems in the vehicle(s) (i.e., scan test or run a five-gas analysis)?





- Are the vehicles matched to their job requirements (i.e., are the vehicles too big or too small)?
- Are the vehicles technologically outdated (i.e., modern electronic engine coupled with a programmable electronic transmission vs. outdated engine technologies and a driver-controlled manual transmission)?
- Can lower cost/emission fuels be employed (i.e., diesel/biodiesel, compressed natural gas, gas/electric hybrids)?
- Can operational practices be improved upon (i.e., route planning, trip optimization)?
- Are units idling unnecessarily or driven harshly (i.e., managing driver behaviors)?
- Are there idling reduction technologies that can be employed (i.e., idling stop/start devices, auxiliary cab heaters or battery systems)?
- Are better transportation options available (i.e., mode shift carpooling, car sharing, or employee-provided vehicles)?
- What are the weather impacts (i.e., was the past winter more severe)?
- Is the fuel posted to units going into the fleet's vehicles? Perhaps it's being used for gaspowered tools, other fleet vehicles – or possibly even being pilfered?

Driver Behaviors – Excess Idling

Engine idling is an unavoidable reality in municipal fleets, however *unnecessary* idling should be managed. Therefore, we recommend vigilance regarding *excessive or unnecessary* idling.

Most drivers wish to "do the right thing" and merely suggesting to them that excessive idling is not acceptable is often enough. For others, old habits are hard to break. All drivers would benefit from driver eco-training around the negative effects (i.e., fuel costs, emissions, health impacts) of idling. Fuel-efficient driving can come in many forms, from hiring an eco-training contractor to setting up an in-house eco-driving trainer or offering online training.

Idling vehicles are bad optics for any organization. The public is keenly aware of this issue, and bad opinions can develop from seeing a fleet's vehicles idling unnecessarily, wasting fuel and money as well as polluting the air. While there are times that idling is unavoidable, socially responsible companies take this matter seriously and do not allow their company drivers to idle unnecessarily.

Synopsis – Minimizing Fuel Consumption

The cost of fuel is one of the largest controllable costs for most fleets. It should be a top priority of CKL's fleet management to ensure the fleet is as fuel-efficient as possible. Reducing fuel use is critical, both fiscally and environmentally.





Recommendations - Minimizing Fuel Consumption

- Consider tracking corporate average fuel efficiency (CAFE) as a KPI and setting an annual target for improvement.
- Routinely (monthly/quarterly) monitor the fuel consumption of all fleet vehicles.
- Identify the outliers those with higher than average fuel consumption and take corrective actions.
- Consider eco-driver training or idling reduction driver training.
- Consider using telematics to identify high engine idling particularly in situations where it is unnecessary, such as when PTO is not engaged, or when heating/air conditioning is not required.
- Consider the use of idling reduction technologies idle shutdown devices or auxiliary cab heaters.
- The CKL idling policy should be a top-down driven initiative supported at the top levels of CKL, enforced by line managers





7.9 Fleet Safety

M otor vehicle collisions are a leading cause of death and injury. Collisions – both on and off the job have far-reaching financial and psychological effects on employees, their co-workers and families, and their employers.

Vehicle Safety Overview - the Canadian Fleet Perspective

Commercial Vehicle Operators Registration

The Commercial Vehicle Operators Registration¹⁸ (CVOR) is the registration system for operators of commercial motor vehicles. It is the part of the Highway Traffic Act under which operators of these vehicles are identified.

The CVOR also allows the Ministry of Transportation (MTO) to suspend or cancel an operator's certificate. Operators have the following responsibilities for all drivers and vehicles in their operation:

- The conduct of the driver
- Employing qualified and licensed drivers
- Monitoring the safety performance of drivers, including hours of service
- Resolving driver safety issues when they are identified
- The mechanical safety condition of the vehicle
- Keeping vehicles in good, safe condition at all times
- Ensuring that daily and annual/semi-annual inspections are completed
- The shipping of goods or passengers in the vehicle
- Ensuring load security
- Keeping records on file (e.g., vehicle repairs, kilometres travelled per year, annual inspection reports, etc.)
- Notifying the Ministry of Transportation of changes to names, addresses, telephone numbers, fleet data, kilometric travel, changes in corporate officers, etc.
- Renewing the CVOR certificate before expiration

In Canada, regulations governing commercial vehicles, drivers, and motor carriers are based on the Canadian National Safety Code (NSC) standards. The NSC is a code of minimum performance standards, applying to all persons responsible for the safe operation of commercial vehicles¹⁹.



¹⁸ Source: http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/trucks/commercial-vehicle-operators-registration

¹⁹ Source: <u>http://www.cvse.ca/index.htm</u>



Based²⁰ on National Safety Code standards, data is collected to determine a carrier's rating, considering history such as violation tickets, out-of-service records, and at-fault crashes. Inspectors are trained in spotting defects on commercial vehicles; the carrier's rating, combined with what the officers see on the road, allow them to separate the good from the not-so-good (or unknown).

A commercial motor vehicle is:

- A truck or highway tractor with a gross weight or registered gross weight of more than 4,500 kilograms (kg)
- A bus with a seating capacity for ten or more passengers

Compliance with commercial vehicle regulations is enforced on-road by Ministry of Transportation enforcement officers and police officers, as well as through facility audits.

Ministry officers and police conduct inspections on commercial vehicles to make sure they are being operated safely by qualified drivers. Where a commercial motor vehicle or trailer is found to be in such an unsafe condition that it endangers other people on the highway, the vehicle may be prohibited from operating until required repairs are made. Commercial vehicle drivers and companies that fail to comply with many of these requirements may be fined up to \$20,000.

Under Ontario's commercial motor vehicle impoundment program, critically defective commercial vehicles are impounded for a minimum of 15 days. If one or more critical defects are found on a bus, truck or trailer, an officer will remove the plates and inspection stickers from the vehicle and impound it.

Wheel Separation

Wheel separation involving commercial motor vehicles is closely monitored and action is taken when operators are involved in these serious offences. The following measures have been introduced to reduce wheel separation or wheel-offs for commercial vehicles:

Daily Inspection Requirements for Drivers and Operators

- An absolute liability law for wheel separations
- Specialized training for technicians involved with wheel installations
- On-road inspections from ministry enforcement officers & specially trained police officers
- Fines for wheel separations ranging from \$2,000-\$50,000



²⁰ <u>http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/trucks/commercial-vehicle-safety-requirements.shtml</u>



Truck Speed Limiters

By law, most large trucks driven in Ontario and Quebec are required to use electronic speed limiters that cap their speed at 105 km/h. This applies to commercial motor vehicles that:

- Were built after December 31, 1994
- Are equipped with an electronic control module
- Have a manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 kg or more

Exemptions apply only to a limited number of vehicle types, such as ambulances or fire trucks.

Safety Inspections

Periodic inspections are required for commercial motor vehicles, trailers and converter dollies. These inspections help reduce collisions caused by mechanical defects and improve highway safety throughout Canada. There are three safety inspections:

- 1. Annual
- 2. Semi-annual
- 3. Safety standard certificates

Annual and semi-annual inspection requirements are the minimum requirement under the law. It may be found that additional inspections and maintenance are required to properly maintain a vehicle's on-road standards.

Inspection Criteria

Ontario, along with most Canadian provinces and territories, has adopted the National Safety Code 11, Part B, Periodic Commercial Motor Vehicle Inspections (NSC 11B) as the inspection criteria for annual, semi-annual and safety standards certificate inspections for commercial vehicles, school-purposes vehicles and accessible vehicles. The Highway Traffic Act Regulation 611 contains the requirements for these inspections, along with modifications to the NSC 11B (schedules 3).

Annual, semi-annual and safety standards certificate inspections must be completed by a licensed motor vehicle inspection mechanic at an MTO-licensed inspection station.

Safety Standards Certificates Inspection

Safety standards certificates are required for:

- Registering a rebuilt motor vehicle
- Transferring a used motor vehicle to a new owner as fit
- Registering a motor vehicle in Ontario that was registered in another province or country





• Changing the status of a vehicle from unfit to fit

If a vehicle meets all of the requirements of a safety standards certificate inspection, the certificate is issued and the vehicle is deemed fit.

Annual and Semi-Annual Inspections

Effective July 1, 2019, pickup trucks and trailers for personal use were exempted from the requirement for an annual inspection (both the inspection and displaying the yellow decal/sticker).

Annual Inspections: Personal-Use Pickup Trucks and Trailers

An annual inspection is valid for 12 months. Trucks, trailers and converter dollies, alone or in combination, with a total gross weight, registered gross weight or manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,500 kg, require an annual inspection.

Total gross weight: the weight transmitted to the highway by the truck and/or trailer – includes the driver, passenger, fuel, equipment, tools, cargo, etc., carried by the truck and/or trailer

Registered gross weight (RGW): the maximum weight based on the fees paid for the truck licence plates, indicated in kilograms on the right (plate) portion of a truck's ownership next to "REG. GROSS WT." (trailers and converter dollies do not have a RGW)

Manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR): the maximum weight a truck is safely capable of weighing as declared by the manufacturer, indicated on the vehicle's vehicle identification number (VIN) plate

Buses, school-purposes vehicles used for transporting six or more persons, and accessible vehicles require inspections semi-annually (i.e. every six months).

A vehicle with a seating capacity for 10 or more passengers (not including the driver) is considered a bus. This can include large passenger vans, limousines, as well as vehicles commonly known as a bus.

A bus with a manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating of 4500 kg or less and used for personal use is exempt from the semi-annual inspection requirement.

If a bus, school-purposes vehicle or accessible vehicle meets all the semi-annual inspection requirements, an orange sticker is applied to the vehicle and a certificate and report are issued by the inspecting station.




What an Inspection Covers

The following components are thoroughly inspected to check that they comply with the National Safety Standard and applicable legislation:

- Power train
- Suspension hydraulic brake system
- Brakes
- Steering
- Instruments and auxiliary equipment
- Lamps
- Electrical system
- Body
- Tires and wheels
- Couplers and hitches

Failed Inspections

If a vehicle doesn't pass an inspection, the owner will be required to repair it and have it re-inspected.

Daily (Pre-Trip) Inspections

The purpose of the daily vehicle inspection is to ensure that problems and defects have been identified before the vehicle is operated on the highway. Inspections prevent the operation of a vehicle with problems that are likely to cause or contribute to the severity of an accident.

HTA Regulation 199/07 contain the requirements for daily (pre-trip or "circle check") inspections that must be completed within 24 hours before driving.

Vehicles That Require Daily Inspections

- Trucks, trailers and converter dollies, on their own or in combination, with a total gross weight or registered gross weight of more than 4,500 kg
- Buses designed to transport 10 or more passengers, and any trailer towed by one of these vehicles
- Accessible buses modified to be used to transport persons with disabilities, if not being used for personal purposes only, and every trailer towed by one of these vehicles
- School-purposes vehicles and buses operating under contract with a school board or other authority in charge of a school being used for the transportation of 6 or more children or adults with a developmental disability

How Daily Inspections Work

• The vehicle is inspected before it is driven



- 129 -



- The inspection is conducted with the use of a schedule listing the vehicle components and systems that require inspection
- An inspection report is completed
- The inspection and report are valid for 24 hours
- The driver carries the inspection schedule and report in the vehicle
- The driver records on the report any defects found while enroute and at the end of the trip or day
- The driver reports defects to the operator at the time they are discovered the operator must repair the defect immediately or before the next dispatch, and keep records of repair.

How to Complete a Daily Inspection

An inspection procedure (circle procedure or walk-around) that best suits the vehicle and its location can be chosen. No matter which order of items one chooses, each item on the applicable inspection schedule must be inspected.

Defects must be recorded on the inspection report, and the operator notified about them. Drivers must carry and produce an inspection schedule based on their vehicle, as well as a corresponding valid inspection report. If no defects are found on the vehicle, as defined in the inspection schedule, then "no defect" is recorded, and the inspection is valid for 24 hours.

If a "minor" defect is found on the vehicle, as defined in the inspection schedule, the defect must be recorded and reported to the operator as soon as possible. The operator is required to repair any defects that do not meet the performance standards. The inspection is valid for 24 hours.

If a major defect is found on the vehicle, as defined in the inspection schedule, the vehicle cannot be operated. Drivers must record the defect, report it to the operator immediately, and the vehicle must be repaired prior to being driven.

If a defect as defined in the inspection schedule is identified after the inspection is completed, the defect must also be recorded and reported to the operator. Should the identified defect be a major defect, drivers must stop operating the vehicle until it is repaired.

The National Safety Code program office monitors all carriers and each is given a safety rating. This rating is determined by their:

- On-road performance, and
- Record-keeping and safety-monitoring performance (if the business has been audited by a Carrier Safety Inspector).





The fleet's safety rating is shown on the front page of its Carrier Profile. A safety rating may be:

- Excellent
- Satisfactory
- Satisfactory Unaudited
- Conditional
- Conditional Unaudited
- Unsatisfactory Unaudited

If a carrier's NSC Safety Certificate has been cancelled, the safety rating will be Unsatisfactory. The NSC program office monitors carriers through their Carrier Profile. A fleet operator will be contacted if its profile shows safety problems. The fleet may also be contacted for a random compliance review or audit.

Contact from the NSC program comes in several ways, including:

- Warning letter
- Safety plan self-assessment
- Compliance review
- Quantifiable audit
- Recommendation that an NSC Safety Certificate be suspended or cancelled





Electronic Logging Devices

Canadian fleets must start transitioning to electronic logging devices (ELDs) as the Canadian transport ministry has announced new regulations. The Transport Canada ELD mandate for commercial drivers is aimed at improving road safety and comes into effect in June 2021.

Currently, drivers of commercial buses and trucks in Canada are required to self-report their on-duty, off-duty and daily driving time, according to the Commercial Vehicle Drivers Hours of Service Regulations. Drivers must keep a daily log of driving records. Use of paper logs or electronic recording devices to record hours of service (HOS) is permitted at this time.

Official Canadian ELD regulations have been in the works for several years. In 2017, Transport Canada announced that it would be making electronic logging mandatory. Like in the U.S., Canada has provided a two-year phase-in period for ELD use. Canada is asking motor carriers to be in full compliance by June 2021.

Canadian ELDs must meet the Technical Standard for Electronic Logging Devices published by the Canadian Council of Motor Transport Administrators (CCMTA) which outlines the minimum requirements.

Canadian ELD regulations mimic U.S. regulations in that the ELD will be required to:

- Synchronize with the engine
- Provide GPS tracking
- Capture drive time automatically
- Use an on-screen display to show inspectors at roadside
- Allow special driving statuses Yard Move (YM) and Personal Conveyance (PC)
- Have a mechanism to verify logs and agree to edits





Log Book Exemption

Under the Ontario regulation²¹, a driver is not required to keep a daily log for the day if:

- On the operator's instructions, a commercial motor vehicle is driven solely within a radius of 160 kilometres of the driver's starting location
- The driver returns at the end of the day to the location from which he or she started

Log book exemption can create confusion when dealing with municipalities within 160 kilometres of the drivers starting location. Many believe this exempts municipalities from tracking hours of service. However, if a driver is not required to keep a daily log, RSI-FC believes the operator (the City of Kawartha Lakes) is obligated to maintain records for the day showing:

- The date, the driver's name and the location at which the driver starts and ends the day
- The cycle that the driver is following
- The hour at which each duty status starts and ends, and the total number of hours spent in each duty status
- The number of hours of on-duty time and off-duty time, within the meaning of this regulation, that the driver accumulated each day during the 14 days immediately before the start of the day, for which the driver was exempt from this regulation and not required to keep a daily log

For the purpose of the hour at which each duty status started and ended, if the driver is on duty within a municipality such that a number of periods of driving time are interrupted by a number of periods of other on-duty time of less than one hour each, the periods of driving time may be combined and the periods of other on-duty time may be combined.

The exemption from having to keep a logbook does not exempt a driver from being in compliance with the remainder of the Hours of Service (HOS) regulations; it applies only to the requirement of maintaining a logbook. If any of the above conditions that exempt the driver from keeping a logbook end, then the driver must maintain a daily log for each day he/she does not qualify for the exemption.

AVL Systems and ELD Systems – Decision-Making

AVL and GPS systems have been a growth industry since they began to emerge about two decades ago. The commercial fleet industry has seen many AVL/GPS telematics providers come and go through corporate mergers and acquisitions.



²¹ Source: <u>http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/trucks/commercial-vehicle-operators-registration.shtml</u>



ELD systems, being an adjunct to AVL/GPS and relatively new, have already seen their share of providers. For both systems, throughout this period, just a few providers have excelled and emerged as the industry leaders; one such company is Geotab. Of the industry leaders, deciding which solution is the best fit can be challenging.

The key to success in selecting a system is identifying specific business needs and goals, then making objective comparisons between the industry leaders. Below is a list of criteria for consideration when selecting a system.

Service Contract, Warranty & Cost

- Monthly cost per vehicle
- Length of the service contract
- Length of warranty on hardware devices
- Additional fees for upgrades or feature improvements

Customer Service

- Is customer service outsourced or kept in-house?
- What will the overall customer service experience be like?
- What is the operational uptime of the solution? If the solution goes down, what are the procedures to communicate outages and time back online?
- Metrics and commitments such as average time to respond to emails, calls or online chat sessions

Training

- Is there an additional cost for training?
- Is training in various formats (i.e., web-based, in-person, video tutorials, etc.)?
- Is there easy access to help center or digital resources for ongoing educational purposes?

Ease of Use

- How easy is the solution to use?
- Is data easy to interpret and understand?
- How convenient is the solution setup for an administrator?
- Does the system offer a mobile app?
- Are there customizable views by users based on their roles and permissions?
- Can administrators easily update information stored in the solution?
- Are there easily customized benchmarks and alert thresholds?

Installation

- How long does installation take?
- How long will vehicles be off the road?





- Can installation take place at a time and convenient location?
- Flexibility around multiple installs if some vehicles are unavailable
- Use of certified installers who are trained in GPS fleet tracking installation processes

Reports and Dashboards

- Easily customizable so users see only the view they require
- Ability to schedule and export reports and dashboards to solution users and non-users
- Summarized data shown in a way that provides actionable results

References

- How many customers?
- Feedback from other users is provided

Challenges

Maintaining historical digital records of daily trip inspections and hours-of-work data are as critical as the current-day practice of retaining paper-based, hard copies of inspections. Paper-based, hard copy records are virtually permanent and require filing, archiving and storing the forms in a safe area in readiness in the event they are ever required for audit, or other purpose. Digital records are vulnerable, in that data can be deleted unintentionally and backup servers can fail. Therefore, historical data storage is a significant concern that must be addressed.





Commercial Vehicle Driver Training

In the fleet management world, it is widely known that there are numerous advantages that come from providing drivers with commercial fleet driver training. Commercial driver training can save lives and reduce the risk of life-altering injuries within the workforce. Driver training will protect an organization's human and financial resources and guard against potential company and personal liabilities associated with crashes involving employees driving on company business. Such a program can keep the driver, and those with whom he/she shares the road, safe.

There are no published standards or guidelines around the correct or appropriate ratio of municipal FTE drivers relative to driver trainers, much less how frequently driver refresher training should take place. Credible published recommendations or best practices on these matters is not readily available from any known source.

Anecdotal information and feedback from discussions with other professionals in the fleet industry tells us that, in general, five years between driver refresher training sessions was insufficient. In the author's own experience as a former fleet manager responsible for providing driver-training for 1,500 commercial drivers, yearly driver refresher training was determined to be the optimal interval for providing a Professional Driver Improvement Course (PDIC) to all drivers.

Many things can change over the years regarding rules and regulations that affect commercial drivers. As well, physical and mental changes that may impact the performance of individual drivers can occur; onset of disabilities may be gradual and not immediately detected by the affected individuals or their employer. For these reasons, RSI-FC suggests that training for commercial drivers should take place frequently – annual refresher training is a good option.

There is no single answer to the question of how frequently driver training should take place; it is something that should be determined by trend-analysis. Our recommended approach is to begin by ramping up training in increments, starting with the highest-frequency groups as identified by studying past trends (such as light-duty vehicle drivers versus medium- and heavy-duty truck drivers). Monitor the impacts of the training and then make course-corrections as required until collisions begin trending downwards.

Our recommended approach is to consider a third-party contractor, and/or a seconded City of Kawartha Lakes employee as interim solutions until accident trends and improvements from the increased training can be established.





Synopsis – Fleet Safety

Motor vehicle collisions are a leading cause of death and injury. Collisions – both on and off the job have far-reaching financial and psychological effects on employees, their co-workers and families, and their employers.

Driver training programs can change driver attitudes, improve behavior, and increase skills to build a "be safe" culture. Workplace driver safety programs not only make good business sense but also are a good employee relations tool, demonstrating that employers care about their employees.

Recommendations – Fleet Safety (Drivers)

- Prepare for Canada's electronic logging device (ELD) mandate June 2021.
- Review and ensure compliance with Hours of Service (HOS) and Daily Trip Inspections legislation.
- Opinions differ around the applicability of ELDs and HOS in the municipal context when commercial motor vehicles are driven solely within a radius of 160 kilometres of the driver's starting location -- RSI-FC recommends CKL should seek expert legal advice on the matter

Driver training programs can change driver attitudes, improve behavior, and increase skills to build a "be safe" culture. Workplace driver safety programs not only make good business sense but also are a good employee relations tool, demonstrating that employers care about their employees. In the U.S., according to OSHA, the average crash costs an employer \$16,500 (USD). When a worker has an on-the-job crash that results in an injury, the cost to their employer is \$74,000. Costs can exceed \$500,000 when a fatality is involved.

The real tragedy is that crashes are largely preventable. A growing number of fleet operators have established traffic safety programs as an opportunity to save lives. No organization should ignore a major problem that has such a serious impact on both its personnel and the company budget.

OSHA 10-Step Program

In the U.S., per OSHA, their 10-Step Program provides an excellent set of guidelines for what an employer can do to improve traffic safety performance and minimize the risk of motor vehicle crashes. The following are 10 key items OSHA recommends to ensure capable drivers:

- 1. Senior Management Commitment & Employee Involvement
- 2. Written Policies and Procedures
- 3. Driver Agreements



- 137 -



- 4. Motor Vehicle Record (driver abstract) checks
- 5. Crash Reporting and Investigation
- 6. Vehicle Selection, Maintenance and Inspection
- 7. Disciplinary Action System
- 8. Reward/Incentive Program
- 9. Driver Training/Communication
- 10. Regulatory Compliance

Acts of Terrorism

In several recent examples around the world, nefarious individuals bent on harming masses of innocent citizens have turned commercial vehicles into "rolling weapons of mass destruction" by driving into crowds of innocent people. In some cases, the vehicles used by these terrorists have been rental trucks, but we ask: what is stopping someone from simply stealing or hijacking a commercial or municipal vehicle to commit an evil act?

Often, due to the nature of their work, municipal and utility vehicles are left running and unattended at job sites in order to run onboard equipment or PTOs – is it feasible to ask drivers to lock the doors?

For another example, at the City's fleet parking areas, we suggest a review of where vehicle keys are kept – are they stored in a secure place? Access to vehicle keys presents a risk that should be managed, and we suggest a review of vehicle key management/control.

While an act of terrorism may be improbable, the possibility does exist. For this reason, we include this matter as a risk that should be managed.

The Coronavirus

The coronavirus (or COVID-19) and its potential impacts should not be ignored. Fleet managers have a major degree of responsibility for the at-work safety of their staff and to provide safe vehicles for fleet drivers. Managers should consider how the virus may affect fleet operations and take proactive measures.

Here are a few suggestions for proactive fleet managers to consider. The following are some basic, common-sense options for fleet managers to start taking action:

- Discuss a COVID-19 strategy with environmental, health, and safety (EHS) or workplace safety representatives and senior management.
- Most vehicles are equipped with cabin air filters ensure they've been replaced recently and that routine replacement is part of your standard preventive maintenance procedures.





- Consider purchasing a stock of personal-sized hand sanitizers for placement in each vehicle and also make them freely available in the workplace.
- Encourage frequent hand-washing by placing signage in conspicuous places, including vehicles and the fleet workspace.
- Place personal-sized tissue packets in all vehicles and make them available in the workplace.
- Place waste bags in all vehicles and ensure that drivers dispose of them promptly.
- Consider providing a supply of antiseptic wipes in each vehicle to wipe all areas of contact such as door handles (inside and outside), steering wheels, gearshifts, dash controls, etc.)
- Encourage staff to stay home if sick and pursue treatment.

Synopsis - Fleet Safety

Canadian fleets must start transitioning to electronic logging devices (ELDs) as the Canadian transport ministry has announced new regulations. The Transport Canada ELD mandate for commercial drivers is aimed at improving road safety and comes into effect in June 2021.

The Commercial Vehicle Operators Registration²² (CVOR) is the registration system for operators of commercial motor vehicles. It is the part of the Highway Traffic Act under which operators of these vehicles are identified. The CVOR also allows the Ministry of Transportation (MTO) to suspend or cancel an operator's certificate.

Recommendations – Fleet Safety (Legislative & Security)

- Fleet and Transit Services should consider having a third party conduct a CVOR mock audit to identify any gaps.
- Investigate and begin the transition to ELD systems including drivers daily pre/post trip inspection defects, mapping and route planning/optimization, and snow plow operation data.
- Ensure backup ELD records of driver pre-trip inspections and hours-of-service information are archived in a secure way that, consistent with statute of limitations legal requirements, ensures access in the event of a government safety or other audit.
- Consider a review with workers around vehicle security practices on job sites.
- Consider a review of where vehicle keys are being stored and the degree of security provided.



²² Source: http://www.mto.gov.on.ca/english/trucks/commercial-vehicle-operators-registration



7.10 Environment

About Green Fleet Plans - An Overview

n Canada and around the world, leading companies and all levels of government have developed Green Fleet Plans to set out their short and long term carbon reduction targets; some may also include strategies for air/land/water pollution reduction.

A Green Fleet Plan may also include the fleet's green initiatives for its maintenance or parking garages. For fleets that outsource maintenance, plans may also define eco-standards for contractors, such as third-party suppliers. In this section, we describe some options for fleet operations.

Situation

We are living in a period of transportation history as the world quickly and steadily transitions away from fossil-fuelled vehicles powered by internal combustion engines (ICEs) and toward electric vehicles (EVs). It has been referred to as the "end of the ICE age".

Globally, the end of ICEs has already been legislated. Germany and California have both passed legislation, the latter now requiring all trucks to be zero-emission vehicles (ZEVs) by 2045.

Unlike ICE fleet vehicles, EVs: do not require costly fuels like gasoline and diesel; have far fewer moving parts; do not require tune-ups, oil changes or filter replacements; and require far less brake friction lining replacements²³, if ever.

All sizes and types of on-road vehicles in the municipal context can benefit from electrification. With that stated, the question for municipalities with a fleet of low kms-travelled vehicles becomes whether payback periods for low utilization units will be protracted and if there will be return on investment (ROI).

EVs currently cost more than ICE vehicles. With higher levels of usage, the potential ROI improves as the increased cost of capital for an EV is offset by the reduced cost of fuel, repairs and maintenance. Vehicles with very low kms-travelled are, therefore, not ideal candidates for replacement with EVs.

Municipally operated Class 8 ICE trucks burn fuel at a staggering rate – anywhere from 50 to 100 litres per 100 km or even more. As a general rule of thumb, the larger a vehicle is, and the higher its utilization rate, the better the business case for replacement with an EV.



²³ Elon Musk of Tesla has stated that his company's electric Class 8 Tesla Semi will never need brake lining replacements.



In preparing this report, we have completed a Fleet Analytics Review (FAR) analysis of the CKL fleet. A key functionality of FAR is its capability for data-modeling green fleet scenarios including the switch to electric vehicles. Should CKL's fleet management ever be considering the switch to electric vehicles, it is easy to quickly assess EVs for any vehicle types in FAR.

Current and Emerging Electric Vehicle Categories

Most vehicle original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) are working rapidly to develop EVs of all categories. Seemingly almost daily, new makes and models of EVs are announced. Battery-electric vehicles (BEVs or EVs) are available now in the light-duty vehicle categories, such as cars and SUVs.

For municipalities everywhere, a mainstay of their fleets is pickup trucks; on average, 46% of all Canadian municipal fleet vehicles are pickups. Seven EV pickup models are slated for availability within the next two model years for purchase.



Figure 20 - Total EV Truck & Bus OEMs by 2023 (Source: Calstart)

In addition to EV pickups that are soon to emerge, in *Figure 20 - Total EV Truck & Bus OEMS by 2023* we see that the OEMs are quickly ramping up with other types of commercial EV trucks (medium- and heavy-duty truck categories) that are suited for municipal work environments.

Moving Towards a Hydrogen Future

The progression towards ZEVs began with EVs that are recharged from the electrical grid. Industry experts are in general agreement that in the next phase ZEV batteries will be recharged with onboard hydrogen fuel cells.





Currently, much work is taking place around the world toward 'green' hydrogen (H2) from renewable sources, since H2 is produced largely by the burning of fossil fuels at this time.

Illustration 8 – H2 Fuel Cell Trucks Bound for Switzerland



The hydrogen fuel cell trucks shown in *Illustration* 8 (*left*) will be refueled with green hydrogen made from hydropower in Switzerland, as opposed to 'grey' hydrogen made from methane with very high CO_2 emissions, which is the case in most countries.

As of June 2020, more than 14 countries and over 20 cities around the world have proposed banning the sale of passenger vehicles powered by fossil

fuels such as gasoline, liquefied petroleum gas and diesel at some time in the future²⁴. China, the largest auto market globally, is researching a timetable. In Japan, the number three global auto market, there has been comprehensive plans to become a hydrogen economy by 2040.

Other countries with proposed bans on fossil-fuel vehicles and/or implementing 100% sales of ZEVs include: the UK, South Korea, Iceland, Denmark, Sweden, Norway, Slovenia, Germany, France, the Netherlands, Spain, Portugal, Canada, 10 U.S. states that adhered to California's Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Program, Sri Lanka, Cabo Verde, and Costa Rica.

The 'Messy Middle'

Green, low-carbon fleet planning began many years ago. Leading fleet managers have been taking action to reduce their fleet's carbon footprint for more than 15 years. But the reality of a day when all vehicles are zero-emissions is well into the future.

The period of time we are now in has been referred to as the "messy middle", a time in which fleet managers seeking to reduce emissions must turn to a gallimaufry of interim solutions, some of which are challenging and potentially costly to implement. Today's interim solutions include, but are not limited to, transportation demand management, alternate and renewable fuels, and technological enhancements.

Alternate and Renewable Fuels

GHG emissions can be reduced by using low-carbon options, such as alternate and renewable fuels. Given the likelihood and emergence of new EV options for fleets and the timing of their availability, low-carbon fuels may be suitable interim solutions for reducing CKL's CO₂ emissions now.



²⁴ Source: <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Phase-out_of_fossil_fuel_vehicles</u>



The following are some of the most common options for low-carbon fuels:

Compressed Natural Gas

Compressed natural gas (CNG) can be used in place of gasoline or diesel fuel. CNG combustion produces fewer undesirable gases than traditional fossil fuels. It is also thought to be safer than traditional fuels since, in the event of a spill, natural gas is lighter than air, and natural gas disperses quickly when released.

Natural gas is found above oil deposits or collected from the decomposition of organic matter, where it is known as biogas (explained next). CNG is used in traditional gasoline internal combustion engine vehicles that have been modified, or in vehicles which were manufactured for CNG use, either alone (dedicated), with a segregated gasoline system to extend range (dual-fuel), or in conjunction with another fuel such as diesel (bi-fuel). CNG is most commonly used in fleet vehicles like buses and heavy-duty trucks because it requires a larger fuel tank than gasoline and diesel fuel²⁵.

The cost and placement of fuel storage tanks is the major barrier to wider and quicker adoption of CNG as a fuel. CNG offers many advantages for fleets, and although there are major upfront capital costs (\$1m or far more), savings may ensue.

Construction of fast-fill CNG fueling stations can be a very expensive consideration, should CKL choose this option. Slow-fill refuelers may be an option, but caution must be exercised to ensure protracted filling time does not create operational challenges.

Investment in a CNG fast-fueling station would be significant; anywhere from one to three million dollars is realistic. While RSI-FC supports CNG as a carbon reduction option for fleets today, such a large investment in infrastructure must be seen as a long-term investment with a payback period that might be decades-long, perhaps as much as 40 years or longer.

Natural gas is plentiful today, but it is important to remember it is still a non-renewable, fossil fuel. With the emergence of EVs of the types and sizes required by the City of Kawartha Lakes being just 'around the corner', natural gas, at this time, may be only a short-term solution. The massive investment in a CNG fueling station may, therefore, be seen as a long-term investment for a short-term solution.

Renewable Natural Gas/Biogas



²⁵ Source: <u>https://consumerenergyalliance.org/2019/04/energy-explorer-cng-vs-</u> <u>Ing/#:~:text=The%20reason%20you%20see%20CNG,requires%20a%20larger%20fuel%20tank.&text=Like%20CNG%20 C%20LNG%20is%20compressed,state%20into%20a%20liquid%20state.</u>



Renewable natural gas (RNG) consists of biogas (methane) from landfill recovery, wastewater treatment plants, anaerobic digesters at dairies, food processing plants, or waste processing facilities that are cleaned to meet natural gas pipeline standards. Like conventional natural gas, RNG can be used as a transportation fuel in the form of CNG.

Renewable Diesel

Renewable diesel is defined as, "a diesel fuel substitute made from renewable materials such as vegetable oil, waste cooking oil, animal fat and fish oil and potentially from cellulosic feedstock consisting of agriculture and forest biomass"²⁶.

There are two main renewable diesels – biodiesel and hydrogenation-derived renewable diesel (HDRD), explained below – and other technologies to convert biomass renewable diesel are being developed (*Figure 21*, below). All diesel fuel sold in Canada contains a percentage of renewable diesel owing to a renewable fuels standard.



²⁶ Source: <u>https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy/alternative-fuels/resources/nrddi/3669</u>







Biodiesel: Biodiesel is produced from a diverse mix of feedstocks including recycled cooking oil, agricultural oils, and animal fats. In technical terms, biodiesel is a vegetable oil- or animal fat-based diesel fuel consisting of long-chain alkyl (methyl, ethyl, or propyl) esters made by chemically reacting lipids (e.g., vegetable oil, soybean oil, animal fat) with alcohol-producing fatty acid esters. Biodiesel is often referred to as fatty acid methyl ester or FAME²⁷.

Blends of biodiesel and conventional hydrocarbon-based diesel fuel are products most commonly distributed for use in the retail diesel fuel marketplace. Much of the world uses a system known as the "B" factor to state the amount of biodiesel in any fuel mix:

- 100% biodiesel is referred to as B100
- 20% biodiesel, 80% fossil diesel is labeled B20
- 5% biodiesel, 95% fossil diesel is labeled B5

Blends of 20% biodiesel and lower can be used in diesel equipment with no, or only minor modifications, although certain manufacturers do not extend warranty coverage if equipment is damaged by poor quality fuel in these blends.



²⁷ Source: <u>https://www.neste.com/what-difference-between-renewable-diesel-and-traditional-biodiesel-if-any</u>



Biodiesel can also be used in its pure form (B100), but may require certain engine modifications to avoid maintenance and performance problems. A new system recently emerged involving the use of a heated fuel storage tank in which the engine starts on standard diesel, and then after warm-up of the fuel tank, switches over to B100. The system is said to allow the use of B100 year-round in cold, winter conditions.

Hydrogenation-derived renewable diesel (HDRD): HDRD is made from animal fats or vegetable oils – alone or blended with petroleum – refined by a process called hydro treating. Unlike biodiesel, HDRD is made primarily from waste and residues and impurities are removed during the hydrotreating process²⁸. HDRD is cleaner and has a lower carbon footprint than petroleum-based diesel, and it can also operate at colder temperatures than standard diesel and biodiesel. Therefore, HDRD can be used in higher concentrations than biodiesel and even as a standalone product in diesel engines.

Ethanol Fuel

Ethanol is a renewable fuel made from various plant materials, primarily corn. In most North American jurisdictions, renewable fuel standards require all gasoline sold to be a 10 percent ethanol blend (E10).

A higher blend of ethanol, known as E85 (85% ethanol, 15% gas), is available in some areas. This fuel must be used in dedicated "flex-fuel" vehicles, which can run on any combination of gasoline and ethanol blends (up to 85%). The City of Kawartha Lakes owns many flex-fuel vehicles that are designed, built and ready for ethanol blends up to E85 without modification. However, it may be challenging to find a local supplier of E85.

Several steps are involved in making ethanol available as a vehicle fuel. First, feedstocks are grown, collected, and transported to an ethanol production facility. Then, ethanol is made from these feedstocks at the production facility along with by-products such as animal feed and corn oil. Next, the fuel is transported to a blender/fuel supplier. Finally, ethanol is mixed with gasoline by the blender/fuel supplier and distributed to fueling stations.

We expect non-edible plant material, rather than corn, will become the dominant source of ethanol in the future. This "cellulosic" material cannot be used as food, so it wouldn't reduce edible resources.



²⁸ Source: <u>https://www.neste.com/what-difference-between-renewable-diesel-and-traditional-biodiesel-if-any</u>



Propane

Propane, otherwise known as liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), is produced as part of natural gas processing and crude oil refining. In natural gas processing, the heavier hydrocarbons that naturally accompany natural gas, such as LPG, butane, ethane, and pentane, are removed prior to the natural gas entering the pipeline distribution system. In crude oil refining, LPG is the first product that results at the start of the refining process.

Propane is a gas that can be turned into a liquid at a moderate pressure (160 pounds per square inch). It is stored in pressure tanks at about 200 psi at 100 degrees Fahrenheit. When propane is drawn from a tank, it changes to a gas before it is burned in an engine.

Propane has been used as a transportation fuel since 1912 and is the third most commonly used fuel in the United States, behind gasoline and diesel. More than four million vehicles fueled by propane are in use around the world in light-, medium- and heavy-duty applications. Propane holds approximately 86 percent of the energy of gasoline and so requires more storage volume to drive a range equivalent to gasoline, but it is usually price-competitive on a cents-per-km-driven basis.

Infrastructure Requirements and Costs

Natural gas fast-fuelling stations may cost anywhere from one to three million dollars. CNG vehicle conversions range from up to ~\$10k for light-duty vehicles and ~\$45k for medium- and heavy-duty trucks. Propane vehicle conversions and fueling systems generally cost much less than natural gas systems.

As for EV charging equipment, Level 2, 240-volt chargers typically range in cost from around \$1.5-5k, depending on electrical system requirements. Each Level 2 charger can serve two vehicles at any time of day; usually, charging is done overnight during the off-peak period.

The costs for installing a Level 3 DC fast charger vary greatly. Costs for a fast-charging station are dependent on the electrical supply available at the chosen charging site, site preparation costs including trenching, cable runs and many other installation considerations. There is little published information as to typical DC fast charging installation costs, but for estimation purposes, the total investment may be from \$80,000 and up.

Regarding renewable diesel, there are no vehicle conversion or fuelling infrastructure costs. Almost all modern diesels are suitable for biodiesel blends up to B20 (20% biodiesel) without modification.

For ethanol fuels, domestic "flex-fuel" cars, pickups and vans are designed to run on E85 (85% ethanol) without modification. As for the fueling infrastructure, for CKL, a secondary tank and pump



- 147 -



would be required to store and distribute E85 since many of the City's gasoline powered vehicles, small engines and equipment are not capable of running on higher blends of ethanol.

Electric Vehicle Training Requirements

Should CKL Fleet and Transit Services decide to move ahead toward vehicle electrification, fleet technician training is recommended. In Ontario, RSI-FC's research has found just two community colleges that currently offer EV technician training; neither is geographically located near the City of Kawartha Lakes.

While there is a paucity of EV technician training in Ontario, due to the rapid onset of electric mobility we suspect that reality will soon change. Before EVs are deployed in CKL's fleet to any great extent, we recommend high voltage training for technicians.

Published high-voltage guidelines specific to vehicle technicians servicing EVs are not readily available through traditional sources. However, we suggest that anyone working with high voltage in any format, including EVs, should be provided guidance on applying Occupational Health & Safety Management System fundamentals. This includes²⁹ a 'plan, do, check, and act' philosophy while working with energized electrical equipment. Such training is available for non-electrical workers from Lineman's Testing Laboratories (LTL) of Weston, Ontario. LTL offers an awareness level course for non-electrical workers which is claimed by the company to provide a basic level understanding of workplace electrical safety.

Aside from awareness training, fleet technicians should also have access to, and be trained on the use of electrical-specific personal protective equipment (PPE). Such PPE would include tested and certified non-conductive gloves as well as non-conductive tools and equipment as a last line of defence, ensuring all such gear is appropriately used and maintained. Protective gloves and other PPE, as well as non-conductive tools, must be re-tested periodically to ensure safety.

Synopsis - Electric Vehicles, Green Technologies, Alternate & Renewable Fuels

Electric vehicles (EVs) are coming in the types the City requires. Planning should begin now for the transition to EVs in the CKL fleet.

While awaiting the expected availability of EVs of the types required by the City, planning, budgeting, and installing EV charging equipment should begin in the near-term. Funding for the EV charging infrastructure may be available from NRCan and other sources including the FCM Green Municipal Fund



²⁹ Source: <u>https://training-ltl.ca/</u>



Recommendations - Vehicles, Green Technologies, Fuels

- Prioritize the purchase of battery-electric EVs and plug-in hybrids that are available now in the light-duty categories (cars, SUVs).
- Seek funding for an EV charging infrastructure from NRCan and other sources including the FCM Green Municipal Fund.
- For an interim solution for reducing fleet's GHG emissions, consider the use of renewable fuels, including biodiesel (B20 in summer and B5 in winter) and higher blends of ethanol (E85) in all factory-designed "flex-fuel" capable vehicles.
- Invest in idling-reduction technologies such as auxiliary cab heaters and power units, extra auxiliary batteries for DC loads, or solar charging options.
- In the medium to long-term future, consider hydrogen fuel cells as this technology evolves and becomes commonly available, and once "green" H2 source(s) are in place.

Eco-Friendly Fleet Maintenance Operations

Whether maintaining vehicles in-house or outsourcing this activity, the following are some ecofriendly procedures to consider:

Aqueous Parts Cleaners: Aqueous parts washers are a new generation of water-based small parts cleaning equipment that are safe and biodegradable yet have the cleaning power of traditional cleaning solvents.

Filter Recycling: Used oil, fuel, coolant and air filters should be recycled. Local service providers may be available for this task.

Waste Oil Recycling: Waste oils are used in the creation of new products from the recycled oils, including the recycling of motor oil and hydraulic oil. Oil recycling benefits the environment and lessens the likelihood of used oil being dumped on lands and in waterways. Service providers will pick up and recycle waste oils.

Vehicle Washing: Vehicle washing processes can contain contaminants that are released into the groundwater, rivers, lakes and streams. Preferences should be for re-using wash water and utilizing eco-friendly products.





Tire Recapping: Quality tire casings can be re-capped, extending their life cycle and saving money. Ensure that all end-of-cycle scrap tires are disposed of in an environmentally friendly way.

Synthetic Oils: Most engines today are compatible with synthetic oils. Synthetic oil is used as a substitute for lubricants refined from petroleum when operating in extremes of temperatures because, in general, it provides superior mechanical and chemical properties versus traditional mineral oils. Synthetics typically cost more but may extend oil drain intervals, thereby potentially reducing expense and wasting fewer natural resources.

Recommendations – Environment (Maintenance)

- Continue to explore and use eco-friendly shop practices and new ways of being green in the fleet workplace.
- Review all products and cleaners used in the fleet garage to eliminate all potentially toxic products and ensure safe disposal of any such items now in use.





7.11 Policies and Procedures

Policies and Procedures Manual

well-organized, information-rich policies and procedures manual (PPM) is a vital foundation document that defines the business practices of contemporary leading businesses.

According to the Bureau of Business Practice, a policy is a consistent guide to be followed under a given set of circumstances. A good policy provides guidance for handling a wide range of organizational and operational issues and establishes a framework for both management and staff decision-making. Per the BBP good policies are broad, current, comprehensive, inviolate, written to specify responsibility for action, and used frequently.

A procedure is a sequence of steps for completing a given activity. While policies change slowly if at all, procedures change often, dictated by changes in staff, equipment, and other factors.

Top-performing fleets have well-documented, readily accessible fleet practices/procedures manuals or guidebooks in place. Such documentation sets out the fleet's standard operating procedures and practices, and therefore comprises a procedural guide for employees and drivers. The PPM requires support from the most senior level of the organization for maximum effectiveness.

A fleet management procedures guidebook should be a living document that can grow with the organization. Content should include all matters relating to the fleet and especially vehicle practices, fueling, driver training, accident procedures, contact information and preventive maintenance practices.

Synopsis - Policies and Procedures

A well-documented, readily accessible fleet practices/procedures manuals or guidebooks is essential. Such documentation sets out the fleet's standard operating procedures and practices, and therefore comprises a procedural guide for employees and drivers.

Key Recommendations - Policies and Procedures

- We recommend development of a Driver's Handbook.
- Updates to the Driver's Handbook should be dated and identified with version numbers.





7.12 Fuel Procurement and Distribution

E uel is usually one of the largest operating expenses for fleet operators, and there are several strategies employed by fleet managers to reduce fuel costs. These include commodity or financial hedging, purchasing in bulk for distribution at their in-house fuelling stations, and negotiating discounts with suppliers for retail procurement in situations where it is not practical/possible to have a corporate fuelling station. Choosing the most effective strategy is often dictated by circumstances resulting from geographical operational conditions and several other situations.

CKL participates in a fuel co-op with Peterborough which mitigates fuel costs.

Fuel Distribution

Most fleet managers find it necessary to employ multiple methods for fuel supply that include onsite bulk tanks, commercial card lock sites, retail purchases, and direct-to-truck fuelling. The key to choosing the best strategy(ies) for maximum discounts is first to determine the volume of fuel that is required in each period.

Volume Discounts

Determining a fleet's fuel volume creates an advantage for the fleet manager to negotiate with fuel suppliers, regardless of bulk or wholesale fuel based on the local rack or retail prices. There are several examples of fleet managers in neighboring partner companies, joining their collective fuel purchase volumes to negotiate a better price with suppliers.

Direct to Vehicle Fuelling

In certain situations, the driver's time spent fuelling his/her vehicle is a factor for consideration. Some fleets may make a positive case for direct-to-truck refueling. This method has drivers arrive each morning to find their trucks supplied with ample fuel for the day instead of spending unproductive time at a fuelling station. Typically, there is a premium price for this service, but in some situations, there may be a business case, and therefore we feel it should not be overlooked when creative solutions are sought.

Fuelling Sites

A fuel spill or leakage into the ground could be catastrophic and mechanisms must be in place – and regularly monitored – to detect fuel leakage. It is essential for bulk fuel tank owners to monitor and reconcile fuel in all storage tanks.

Monitoring and reconciliation of fuel ensures spill detection and typically requires manual daily dips (level reading) of the fuel tanks and daily recording of the dip readings, and/or optionally the use of some form of electronic leak detection that provides an audit trail. Manual dips also enable the





opportunity for staff to complete a visual inspection of the fueling site for potential problems, which gives the manual method an advantage in our opinion, although electronic methods provide continuous monitoring.

Fuel usage reconciliation is a link in a chain of best management practices that ensures all fuel purchased is accurately accounted for and is used appropriately (i.e., the fuel is being used in the fleet's vehicles and the potential for pilferage is mitigated). This requires accurate record-keeping of all deliveries and all fuel transferred to vehicles.

Spill Control & Secondary Containment

Specific legislation applies to fuel storage and distribution, and this matter should not be taken lightly. A full review is out of scope for this report. However, it is critical to ensure that spill control has been taken into consideration and is properly managed.

Synopsis - Fuel Procurement & Distribution

Fuel is usually one of the largest operating expenses for fleet operators, and there are several strategies employed by fleet managers to reduce fuel costs. Choosing the most effective strategy is often dictated by circumstances resulting from geographical operational conditions and several other situations.

Recommendations - Fuel Procurement & Distribution

- Review fuelling system(s) for compliance with Technical Safety Standards Authority (TSSA) compliance.
- Consider electronic calendar reminders/alerts for follow-up reviews of the fuelling site to ensure continued fuel system TSSA compliance.





7.13 Performance Management

Most public and private sector organizations today have some form of a performance management program in place. Leading fleet managers align their own department's performance objectives to support the organization's overarching mission and values.

At its most basic level, performance management typically includes the use of key performance indicators (KPIs) which are designed strategically to monitor progress towards pre-determined performance objectives.

Key Performance Indicators

Fleet managers can support their organization's overarching vision by implementing KPIs to measure their performance toward corporate objectives. KPIs should be achievable, effective, meaningful, and supportive of corporate goals, with a degree of "stretch" (they should be ambitious).

Performance Targets

Performance objectives should receive senior-level corporate support and include both short- and long-term targets for each team member and the Fleet department/division as a whole. Regular (monthly/quarterly) progress reports are recommended; these reviews would include both individual and team targets for performance.

KPI attainment targets designed to achieve pre-set goals should be built into the fleet's strategic plan. Some examples of KPIs for service level include average vehicle utilization, availability, PM attainment, fuel efficiency, Opex, and Capex and its emissions-reduction objectives (i.e., carbon reduction targets).

Employee Performance Contracts

Many/most organizations today implement staff performance contracts that incentivize successful attainment of personal, department/divisional and corporate goals.

Performance incentives are typically tied to individual and team achievement of targets. While employee rewards are usually monetary (i.e., annual pay increases based on the achievement of performance targets), they can also be recognition-based.

Rewarding Good Performance

Almost everyone appreciates positive feedback, recognition, or rewards for personal achievement. Many leading fleets incent all employees – from shop floor staff and up to management; they are recognized in some meaningful way (either financially or otherwise) for successfully completing personal performance objectives linked to and supportive of the overarching corporate mission and





objectives. Rewarding employees can be challenging in a unionized setting and may require some creativity, however it is possible and nonetheless important.

Synopsis - Performance Management

Fleet management can support their organization's overarching vision by implementing KPIs to measure their performance toward corporate objectives. KPIs should be achievable, effective, meaningful, and supportive of corporate goals, with a degree of "stretch" (they should be ambitious).

Recommendations - Performance Management

- Consider performance measures for the Fleet & Transit Services team that would be beneficial in terms of personal motivation and likely to instill a sense of accomplishment.
- To support a fleet performance related goal (as above), consider targets that provide a degree of stretch yet are realistically achievable. Examples of fleet performance targets might be: "x" % vehicle availability, "x" PM attainment, "x" days of downtime, "x" % GHG reduction, or "x" accident-free miles-driven, etc.





7.14 Communications

O pen communications and interaction are critical in every organization. Most employees like to feel engaged, empowered, and of value to their organization. In the private sector, a company's customers and shareholders, or in the case of municipalities, its residents appreciate hearing success stories.

Good news stories about the fleet, whether these communications are around new cost-saving measures, safety, good deeds by its drivers, or eco-successes, are welcomed by most people.

We believe that the fleet should and can easily be a source of pride for an organization and its employees. The following are some steps that can help meet this objective.

Fleet Advisory Committee

Many top fleet managers choose to establish 'fleet advisory committees' (FACs) that are made up of their user group representatives. Employees are often passionate about the company vehicles they drive. Participation in an FAC would provide them a chance to have input about fleet operation processes and also take part in the development of new vehicle specifications – the vehicles they, and their co-workers, will drive on the job. The FAC should include representatives from each of the fleet user departments and the union.

FACs should meet regularly (we suggest monthly or quarterly) with a mandate, i.e., to air and resolve lingering vehicle issues, review proposed specifications for new vehicles, discuss safety and workflow issues, business process improvements, and more.

We've seen examples where regular FAC meetings have gone a long way toward resolving vehiclerelated issues, and they will foster driver buy-in as changes are contemplated or implemented.

Awards and Other Forms of Recognition

Leading fleets communicate their success stories widely. Recognition of accomplishments boost employee morale and public opinion. Achievements such as business excellence, cost savings initiatives, and more, can be communicated internally and externally to build confidence and pride in the fleet.

Internal and External Communications

Fleet greening efforts, safety records and other achievements should be made public through media releases, media interviews, public events, and appearances. Fleet achievements could be a component of speeches delivered by senior management at events and conferences. Corporate





communications or public relations staff could assume a focus on fleet successes and broadcasts. Signage and graphics on vehicles are also an effective way that convey positive messages publicly.

Synopsis – Communications

Fleet greening efforts, safety records and other achievements should be made public through media releases, media interviews, public events, and appearances.

Internal publications such as company newsletters and website postings could highlight positive developments within the fleet department/division. Such broadcasts build fleet staff morale and inform other departments/divisions about the valuable contributions of fleet activities.

Recommendations - Communications

- Consider communications that highlight stories about employee awards and other types of recognition (e.g., safe driving certificates and lapel pins denoting milestones for vehicle safety).
- Communicate success stories internally through employee newsletters as well as publicly via printed media releases and social media.

. . .



Section Eight

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Maintenance Consolidation Options



Section 8. Maintenance Consolidation

Situation

The City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet and Transit section maintains the Public Works and Transit portions of the fleet, while Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services sections are responsible for managing their own sub-fleets.

Paramedics and Police Services outsource maintenance to local vendors. For Fire Rescue Services, the majority of fleet maintenance takes place in-house with an on-staff technician who is a certified Emergency Vehicle Technician (EVT). The technician is an employee of Fire Services. Fire mainly outsources annual certifications, rustproofing and the occasional flat tire emergency; while the Technician/EVT completed approximately 1,000 hours (2019).

In *Table 4 - Labour Cost Comparison* (below) we have prepared a brief cost comparison between the labour rates for fleet maintenance of the four sections that make up the City's fleet. For this analysis, we have treated the CKL Fleet & Transit Services burdened labour rate of \$35.31 as the baseline by which we compare the external service providers that maintain the other CKL fleet sections.

Please note we have used the upper estimates³⁰ of PM and reactive repair labour demand for this assessment.

Fleet Section	Maintenance Provider	Labour Cost per Hour	Increase Over Baseline Labour Cost	Annual Labour Upper Estimate (Hours)	Cost Over Baseline for Outsourced Maintenance	
Paramedics	John's Quality Auto Service	\$83.50	+ \$48.19	1,352	\$65,153	
Fire Rescue	Brasier Truck Service Less in-house labour Total outsourced:	\$93.00	+ \$57.69	2,300 ³⁰ <u>-1,000</u> 1,300	\$74,497	
Police	Local Ford Dealer	\$95.00 ³¹	+ \$59.69	640	\$38,202	
Estimated Cost for Outsourced Suppliers over Baseline: \$177,852.00						

Table 4 - Labour Cost Comparison

³⁰ For Fire, the upper estimate was provided by CKL

³¹ Anecdotal, subject to confirmation





Based on the calculations in *Table 4*, labour costs for outsourcing fleet maintenance is estimated to cost up to \$178k more than if the same work was completed by CKL Transit and Fleet Services. This estimate is based on the upper estimate of the labour required for optimal preventive maintenance practices. We cannot ascertain whether this high level of maintenance is actually being performed within the scope of this report. A review of the actual levels of spending with these outsourced vendors would assist in confirming the business assumptions we have used for our calculations.

In addition to the third party vendor's labour costs, which are estimated to be as much as \$178k, parts and materials from the external vendors would include a markup, which may add substantially to the total extra cost for outsourcing.

Outsourcing versus Insourcing

RSI-FC understands the rationale behind CKL's choice to engage third-party outsourced suppliers for the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets. In our discussions with management personnel from each of the sections, satisfaction was evident in their vendors performance and service.

Our user group surveys confirm user groups have a high level of satisfaction with the external vendors, although the overall rating of service provided in-house by CKL Transit and Fleet Services was somewhat higher than for the external vendors.

Outsourcing some (or all) of a fleet's maintenance and repair demand to a local retail service garage seems to present a tantalizing opportunity for a fleet to have repairs and maintenance completed in a timely manner, thus increasing its uptime and potentially eliminating the need for capital investment in additional fleet maintenance facilities (garages) and the additional costs of more fleet maintenance personnel (mechanics/technicians). However, outsourcing introduces a whole new set of issues that must be managed for due diligence and fiscal restraint reasons.

There is a fundamental difference between fleet mechanics and retail service mechanics. For fleet mechanics, their objective is to complete PM inspections that are sufficiently thorough to prevent breakdowns until the next scheduled PM event. On the opposite side of the spectrum, retail mechanics/technicians, for whom many work on a flat rate basis in which they are compensated and thus are financially rewarded for "selling" additional services, may often focus on selling their customers as many repairs as possible during the repair visit.

This difference can be costly for a fleet – one solution for fleets choosing to outsource is to employ skilled personnel who will be tasked with validating the repairs stated as necessary by the outsourced repair vendor. To do this, it can sometimes take as many staff personnel to "police" the outsourced





repair vendor's repair assessments as it might take to just complete the work in-house. While outsourcing may have benefits, the big picture view must be considered before making a commitment to outsourcing fleet maintenance to external vendors.

Fleet Garage Service Bay Capacity and Demand

RSI-FC assessed the capacity of the CKL fleet garage to determine if it is appropriately sized to maintain the Public Works & Transit fleet, plus the additional demand of the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets.

We conducted a study of the fleet garage bays *demand* versus *capacity*. We based the study on current-day information regarding:

- Types/categories of vehicles in the fleet
- Fleet size (numbers of each category of vehicle)
- Fleet maintenance demand
- Reactive repair demand
- The number of available service bays in the current fleet garages (Lindsay and Coboconk)

Other Considerations

In calculating garage bay demand, it is essential to include a margin to allow time for bays tied up for any reason, including delays waiting for parts and materials, etc. Parts tie-ups and other delays are the reality in fleet maintenance and an unavoidable part of typical garage workflow.

Other considerations which increase the need for additional garage bay demand include vehicle staging (in preparation for repairs/PM, or for thawing frozen vehicles in winter), bays used for small engine or equipment repairs, and bays tied up when management desires the repairs started by one technician to be completed by the same person³². All of these add to garage bay demand and must be taken into consideration.

Architect Larry Jacobsen³³ of Schemmer Associates has considerable expertise in designing fleet maintenance garages. According to Jacobsen³⁴, on a single shift operation, it is common practice to provide two maintenance bays per mechanic. This provides the opportunity to stage one vehicle while the other is being serviced, or if delivery of parts delays one vehicle, the technician can work



³² At times fleet management may determine that a vehicle repair started during one shift (day or afternoon) would be best completed by the same individual due to that individual's specialized skill set, expertise, experience or other such circumstances.

 ³³ William (Larry) Jacobsen AIA, FCSI provides architecture and engineering planning expertise for The Schemmer Associates Inc., where he is a principal. <u>https://www.schemmer.com/portfolio-category/transportation/</u>
³⁴ Source: <u>https://www.petrolplaza.com/knowledge/1698</u>

- 161 -



on the other one. The arrangement also maximizes the mechanic's efficiency and keeps more vehicles awaiting maintenance out of the weather.

Additional Garage Service Bay Demand Study

RSI-FC calculated the City of Kawartha Lakes preventive maintenance (PM) and reactive repair workload demand based on the above-stated business assumptions. Given that each hour of labour necessitates garage bay time commensurately, we calculated the precise number of bays required for full attainment of fleet maintenance activities, without consideration for additional spare bays as recommended by the industry expert.

We based the calculations on the current one-shift per day, five-day work week. We considered the industry's best practice guideline of allowing extra bays for the reasons stated earlier in this section of our report. While a 1:1 ratio (one extra bay per technician) was recommended for a one-shift operation, we more conservatively used an extra bay ratio of .75.

On a five-day per week, one-shift per day schedule, for a full year minus statutory holidays, total available bay time is 2,008 hours. By dividing total fleet maintenance demand by total bay/hours available, the number of bays required could be as few as **12 (lower estimate of labour demand)**, or as many as **18 bays (upper estimate of labour demand)**.

Note: This estimate (12 to 18 bays) is the number required to maintain the current workload of the 377 units in the CKL Fleet and Transit Services fleet. This number of bays does NOT include the additional load of the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets.

Fleet Maintenance Technician Survey

The Lindsay CKL Fleet garage has seven working bays and the Coboconk garage has four bays for a total of 11 bays. Based on our estimates the current garage bay capacity is already less than demand by at least one bay. Our study shows that the current number of bays may be less than needed. To 'acid-test' these calculations, we felt it was prudent to ask the fleet technicians their opinion in a survey.

Fleet Technicians were asked their opinions about the current fleet garage and some options for future growth. The questions and the technicians' responses are shown in *Illustration 9 - Fleet Technician Survey* (below).





Illustration 9 - Fleet Technician Survey

Survey Questions	No. of Respondents	Rating (out of 5)
Do you sometimes find it difficult to find available bays for completing repairs/maintenance?	6	3.8
Do you feel the current fleet maintenance facilities would be adequate to serve an increased fleet size?	6	1.5
Do you feel that the current fleet maintenance facilities are a safe work environment? (please explain which garage/facility)	6	4.0

Additional Fleet Technician Labour Demand Study

As we have explained, we established current-day baseline relative to today's capacity. From the baseline, we then completed analysis to calculate the number of technicians and bays that would be required to insource the additional maintenance demand of the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets.

We completed further analysis to determine:

- (1) The number of technicians that would be required to maintain an increase in fleet size for the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets; and
- (2) The number of fleet maintenance bays that would be required to meet the increased demand.

We estimated that 14 (based on low demand estimate) to as many as 21 (high demand estimate) Fleet Technicians would be required to meet the increased demand.

We calculated the number of additional bays that would be required to maintain the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets, in addition to the Fleet and Transit vehicles now being serviced in-house. At the low estimate of maintenance demand for the additional vehicles, on a one-shift per 5-day operation **17 bays would be required and for the upper estimate, as many as 25 bays.**

The above analysis is a best estimate based on present-day realities combined with cautious business assumptions and extrapolations. To calculate the actual requirements must be based on actual labour and fleet size data – there is no substitute for factual information.





Making go-forward decisions around future staffing and service bay requirements without verification of business assumptions is a risk to be avoided. A fleet management information system (FMIS) would be ideal for tracking this type of data (as we have recommended in this report).

Options

Adding a Second Shift

With the estimated bay capacity now at maximum, adding a second shift is a possible solution, one that would maximize the usage of the available floor space as far as service bays. A two-shift operation would make better use of garage bay space. The caveat is that it is likely to cause dissatisfaction in the ranks of the Fleet Technicians, which could exacerbate issues around retention of fleet maintenance personnel.

Additionally, at this time, the City has been unable to attract new technicians. For this reason, the need for even more technicians to address the additional maintenance demand of the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets would exacerbate an existing problem.

Satellite Garage

A satellite garage is an option; however, it is an option that in our assessment is less than ideal. A satellite garage would require additional, unproductive labour to move vehicles to and from the remote operation. It may also mean additional supervisory personnel would be required to oversee an additional site, since workers should not be expected to work alone or in an unsupervised site.

In this scenario each service visit would require that Fleet personnel pick up each vehicle to be serviced at the satellite garage and return the vehicle after maintenance. This process would entail a considerable amount of unproductive time. Travel to and from a satellite garage would increase risk exposure from traffic collisions. Risk would increase further when slow-moving mobile equipment such as off-road loaders, backhoes and the like would need to travel to a satellite garage in the same traffic lanes intended for on-road motor vehicles.

Challenges

The reduced number of bays required for a two-shift per day operation may seem appealing in terms of optimal utilization of workspace, but whether in practice it is viable is questionable. If the two-shift option is ever being considered, it should be approached cautiously. If, for any number of reasons one (or more) bays became unavailable for an extended period (i.e., major or lengthy repairs, parts delays, etc.), it could impede the fleet maintenance operation, potentially causing setbacks in completing timely preventive maintenance and legally mandated government inspections, as well as disrupting workflow and productivity. In addition, adding a second shift may cause dissatisfaction in the fleet technician workforce, making employee retention and new technician recruitment even more challenging.




Maintenance Consolidation - Cost versus Benefit

As shown in *Table 4*, total annual labour demand for the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets is 5,728 hours (upper estimate). The potential savings by insourcing all fleet maintenance is estimated to potentially save up to \$178k (gross) annually based on current-ay technician pay scale and assuming qualifies additional technicians could be recruited.

While a gross annual savings of \$178k is appealing we recommend CKL management to consider additional supervisory personnel to oversee the second shift or a satellite location. Additional supervisory staff (i.e., one FTE) would significantly diminish the potential savings from insourcing. Further, we suggest it would be prudent to add another parts/inventory person for the second shift or satellite shop. With additional staffing net savings could be reduced to just \$22k (see *Table 5*)

If a satellite garage was the choice (as opposed to a second shift) operating and capital costs may further reduce the potential savings, or negate the savings altogether when combined with the cost of an additional supervisor and a parts/inventory person. The same applies if additional bays were to be constructed onto existing fleet maintenance facilities.

Calculations around the full cost of building an additional fleet maintenance facility or adding bays to an existing facility are beyond the scope of this fleet review. However, we suggest that to do so should begin with site evaluation and expert review of existing properties held by CKL to determine if current land would be suitable for additional fleet maintenance bays, or whether a new property must be purchased. With that matter decided, and if the notion still seems feasible in the context of cost-benefit, to proceed to the next step a design–build contractor or architect-led design–build (ALDB) firm should be consulted to determine the capital cost for changes under consideration.

As we have described, the cost-reduction business case for taking on the additional maintenance demand of the Fire Rescue Services, Paramedics, and Police Services fleets in-house diminishes greatly when all elements are considered. The case for in-sourcing all fleet maintenance appears to be thin when all elements are considered. RSI-FC recommends a careful analysis of all costs. This can begin once total labour demand for all sub-fleets managed by CKL can be confidently tallied via a fleet management information system (FMIS) or some other means of labor-time capture.

Table 5- Insourcing vs. Outsourcing of Labour for Fire, EMS, Police

\$177,852
- \$96,000
- \$60,000
\$21,852.00

THE CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES REVIEW OF SERVICES – FLEET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM



Section Nine

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Parts and Inventory Review



Section 9. Parts and Inventory Review

Proper parts management is critical for fleet operations. When vehicle or equipment parts need to be replaced, spares must be readily available — but keeping too many spare parts increases inventory and costs.

An efficient fleet parts management program requires data, trend-analysis, and knowledge around



Illustration 10 – A Modern Fleet Stock Room

the correct number of parts to keep in inventory. Determining this can be done through classification of inventory, forecasting, preventative maintenance and installing fleet management software. Spare parts and inventory management requires planning.

Maintaining the correct level of inventory while keeping investment to a minimum is a skill. Most off-the-shelf fleet management information systems (FMIS) and enterprise resource management systems have built-in

functionality to aid in parts and supplies management. The downside is that some systems are very complex and can require a high degree of effort to manage, while others are not as complicated.

Regardless of whether a basic, traditional method of stock keeping is used or a high-performance, complex, enterprise-integrated, bar-coded system with SKU's and multiple reports – one that is focused on inventory turns – is implemented, most often, an experienced stock-keeper's intuitive knowledge is one of the most essential pieces in the parts inventory management process flow.

Stock Room Management Systems

For several decades, the American Transportation Association (ATA) has provided a standard repair and maintenance categorization protocol. Many leading fleets have subscribed to and apply these codes for tracking maintenance costs and service parts.

Asset Works[™] is one example (of many) fleet management information systems (FMIS') that are in use in many municipalities. Within Asset Works[™], the ATA Standard Vehicle Maintenance and Repair Standard (VMRS) codes (circled in *Illustration 11*, below) are embedded. RSI-FC strongly supports the use of the ATA VMRS codes as a leading best practice for benchmarking reasons.





Illustration 11 – Example of AssetWorks Parts Report

All Parts											
All Locations											
All Keywords											
All Product Categories											
All Statuses											
Location: SHOP1 - TOWN OF WHIT	BY SHOP	1									
						Reord	ler	Quan	tity	Value	
Part ID-Suffix - Description	Location	Keyword	Category	Min	Max	Point	Quantity	On Hand	On Order	On Hand	On Or
PXD1813H PXD1813H-0 - CARQUEST PLATINUM PROFESSIONAL	SHOP1	BRAKE PAD	013	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
						PARTID T	otals:	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
001881	(100)	001/50			0	0	0		0	435.00	**
CLAMP	SHOP1	COVER	018	Ů	U	U	0	4	U	\$25.00	şu
)		PARTID T	otals:	4	0	\$25.00	\$0
008-219-04 008-219-04-0 - DRUM FOR 7K, WITH 1/2-20 IN. STUDS, CUPS/STUDS	SHOP1	DRUM	013	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
						PARTID T	otals:	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
00900070											
00900070-0 - PIN 0.750 DIA X 1.938 WELD`T(K)	SHOP1	PIN	071	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
						PARTID T	otals:	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.
01-026F28-22B 01-026F28-22B-0 - FREEDOM IV SUB ASSY, FULL	SHOP1	LIGHTING	034	0	0	0	o	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
LINEAR BLUE/BLUE											1.
						PARTID T	otals:	0	0	\$0.00	\$0.
01-026F28-33B 01-026F28-33B-0 - FREEDOM IV SUB ASSY, FULL	SHOP1	LIGHTING	034	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
LINEAR WHITE/WHITE											
01201000						PARTID	otals:	0	0	\$0.00	\$0
01201000-0 - FULL TRIP UPPER ARM ASS`Y - HYD	SHOP1	PLOW	014	0	0	0	0	2	0	\$1,820.15	\$0
1											

Inventory-Taking

The process of inventory count-taking can be facilitated when monthly counts are taken on a section

by section basis, as opposed to the practice of annual counts of the full inventory. In this way, counts can be made for just one or two rows of shelving or one type of part (e.g., a count of all filters or all fluids).

More frequent inventory counts translate to better inventory short-interval control.





Alternative Stock Room Options

Honour System

A so-called "honour system" for parts, whereby fleet technician and staff have full access to spare parts and small hardware/fasteners, while very efficient, invites pilferage in even the best and most trusted employees, and this shrinkage can be costly. The honour system approach is not recommended.

Third-Party Vendor Option

In recent years several mid- to large-sized fleets have experimented with the practice of engaging a local auto parts supplier to provide and manage their inventory of spare parts. In this approach, a local parts supplier provides the inventory at their expense plus the human resources, usually a dedicated contract stock keeper employed by the vendor, is domiciled on the fleet's premises.

Some fleets have reported successful implementation of this business model, but anecdotal information we have received from those having experienced this practice have been less than satisfactory. The City of Toronto Fleet Services department (FSD) opted for an arrangement of this type with NAPA Auto Parts several years ago. A recent Auditor General report (October 2019) provided the following information³⁵ about the NAPA arrangement at the City of Toronto:

"Vehicle downtime is made worse by NAPA's ineffective parts management. FSD mechanics have been frustrated by slow response times when they request parts from NAPA. So far in 2016, NAPA has only maintained an 83% fill rate (the number of times a part is available on demand). It was even worse last year, at only 81%. This is below their (NAPA's) contractually obligated rate."

The City of Ottawa's experience with contracting out is similar to Toronto's. Both cities engaged NAPA for five-year contracts beginning in 2012. The Auditor General in each city pointed to major problems with the contract and both cities engaged third party experts to take an independent look.

On March 23, 2016, Ottawa's City Council agreed to bring parts management back in-house. As the report from Public Works General Manager Kevin Wylie notes: *"The main challenge with the existing model is that no single vendor has the expertise necessary to manage an automotive parts inventory for a fleet as large and diverse as the City of Ottawa's."*



³⁵ Source: <u>http://www.cupelocal79.org/wp-content/uploads/Council-Briefing-Note-GM-14.11-Contracting-out-Fleet-Services-has-been-costly.pdf</u>



Hardware and Sundry Items

When it comes to small hardware (nuts, bolts, washers, etc.), expensing such items is an administrative time-saving best practice employed by many fleets and retail garages. Recovery of this expense is usually by charging a percentage of labour on all work orders to offset sundry hardware costs.

Cost recovery in this manner is not a recommended practice for more expensive fluids such as lubricating oils, diesel exhaust fluid (DEF) and more – costs which should be posted as stock items to the vehicles on which the materials are being used.

Synopsis – Parts and Inventory

Maintaining the correct level of inventory while keeping investment to a minimum is a skill. Most offthe-shelf fleet management information systems and enterprise resource management systems have built-in functionality to aid in parts and supplies management. The downside is that some systems are very complex and can require a high degree of effort to manage, while others are not as complicated.

Recommendations – Parts and Inventory

- Computerize the parts and inventory with a modern fleet management information system (FMIS).
- Implement regular cycle counts of all inventory and parts.
- Consider monthly section-by-section stock counts.
- Include all parts into inventory, including costlier items (such as fluids).



Section Ten

Review of Fleet & Transit Services Summary of Key Recommendations

Section 10. Summary of Key Recommendations

No.	Section	Focal Point	Recommendation
1	4	Internal 'customer' satisfaction	 Consider regular follow up surveys to gauge user group customer satisfaction. Take prompt corrective action(s) to address issues if/when dissatisfaction is evident.
2	5	Life Cycle Analysis	 Adopt the lifecycle recommendations determined through lifecycle analysis in this report.
			• Regularly (annually would be ideal) review the lifecycles of units as more data becomes available.
3	6	Long-Term Capital Budget Planning	• Adopt the lifecycle recommendations determined through lifecycle analysis in this report.
			• Assess the condition of each vehicle approaching its end-of-lifecycle (as determined through LCA) by undertaking a thorough ground-up and top-down physical assessment.
			• Prepare annual and long-term capital budgets based on: (1) the optimal economic lifecycles determined by lifecycle analysis for each vehicle category; and (2) condition assessment of each unit approaching its end-of-lifecycle.
			 Balance long-term capital budgets by replacing only units that demonstrate the potential for providing return on investment (via FAR[™] software or fleet information system). If there is no/low ROI, defer to a later budget year with a goal of evenly balancing multiple budget years.
4	7.1	Asset Management	 Consider implementation of a fleet asset management information system (FMIS). (Please see: Section 7.4, Information Technology)
			 Implement a policy requiring business cases for all requests for additional fleet vehicles.

			 Implement a policy requiring multi-level approvals with senior-most level concurrence (and/or up to City Council) for proposed additional vehicles to be added to the fleet. Take action(s) on vehicles with performance that are beyond pre-defined thresholds of acceptability as far as their operating costs, utilization levels, or availability.
5	7.2	Vehicle Specifications	 Consider employing a "total cost of ownership" approach when tendering for new vehicles (as opposed to buying the vehicle with the lowest purchase price). Continue to practice vehicle standardization wherever possible.
			Consider adapting zero-emission battery-electric vehicles if/when available.
			Begin planning for electric vehicle charging equipment.Right-size fleet vehicles for the tasks they are intended to perform.
			• On a case-by-case basis, consider the cost-benefit of re-building and re-mounting truck bodies and ancillary equipment that are in good condition at the time when truck chassis are due for replacement.
6	7.3	Fleet Finance	• Consider fully-bundled, total cost recovery monthly "lease" charge approach as we've described which includes all direct and indirect vehicle costs and overheads.
			• We recommend a business structure in which the Fleet Services Dept. becomes its own full-cost recovery business unit.
			Service Level Agreements should be developed for all vehicle user departments.
			• Consider transferring the direct cost of fuel used by each assigned vehicle, plus at-fault accidents and negligent damages costs, as pass-through costs to user departments with directly assigned vehicles.

Fleet & Transit Services Review

			•	Funds recovered from the sale of end-of-lifecycle surplus fleet units should continue to flow back into the Fleet vehicle reserve fund.
7	7.4	Information Technology	•	A purpose-designed, best of breed, full-function fleet management information system (FMIS) is recommended for CKL Fleet management
			•	The FMIS should be configured so that all of the City's fleet vehicles and equipment are included in the system, including those managed by Public Works, Transit, Fire, Police and Paramedics
			•	Preventive maintenance scheduling should be managed in the FMIS for all CKL vehicles and equipment
			•	The Phoenix fuel system should be interfaced with the FMIS to capture vehicle and transactional data.
8	7.5	Human Resources – Fleet Technicians	•	A Fleet Technician wage review should be undertaken of surrounding municipalities and the private sector, with the possibility of an increase to market-based pay rates for the area of CKL.
			•	Consider implementation of the 4-step approach to Fleet Technician recruitment as we have described.
			•	A Fleet Technician apprenticeship program is recommended to help address the issue of technician recruitment. It would also groom technicians who will gain knowledge and experience with the unique and diverse specialities and requirements of municipal fleet maintenance.
			•	Within the collective agreement and City of Kawartha Lakes Human Resources job classifications, implement a pay scale aligned with increased levels of technician licences and accreditations.
			•	Consider offering staff the ability to learn/acquire the skills to perform positions in Fleet which may be less physically demanding, should such positions become vacant.
9	7.5	Human Resources – Driver Training	•	Consider engaging a driver trainer, whether in-house or external service providers

			• Consider driver training in increments and study the impacts of the increase. Continue to increase training frequency until a satisfactory level of accident reduction is attained.
			Consider a third-party CVOR "mock audit" to identify gaps in fleet safety program.
			• Continue to monitor vehicle and equipment collisions and claims as is the current practice.
			Segment collision data into vehicle categories (light-duty vehicles, medium and heavy trucks)
			• Study the collision trends to determine the drivers requiring more focused training.
			• Consider posting costs for at-fault vehicle collisions to user departments whose drivers were responsible, thereby potentially incenting departmental managers to take part in and support remedial actions for their drivers.
10	7.6	Fleet Operations	 Fleet & Transit Services should routinely track, monitor, and report the utilization of all units to user department managers as a means of managing the overall productivity of the fleet.
			• A corporate standard and policy for minimum vehicle utilization should be established.
			• A corporate policy or directive from the highest levels of the municipality should require that managers of all departments regularly review their assigned vehicles and surrender any units that are under- utilized, unless a business case exists to retain the units.
11	7.7	Preventive Maintenance	• We recommend monitoring downtime and associated costs for all vehicles.
			• A fleet management information system (FMIS) is recommended for precise PM scheduling.
			 Consider tracking the ratio of PM: reactive repairs as a way of determining the optimum frequency/intensity of PM activities. If reactive repair costs and downtime are seen to be trending upwards, increase the focus on PM.

			•	We recommend that as "living documents," PM worksheets should continue to be reviewed and updated regularly (as they are now) and suggest revisions should be visibly identified by displaying the date on each PM worksheet each time they are amended.
12	7.8	Minimizing Fuel Consumption	•	Consider tracking corporate average fuel efficiency (CAFE) as a KPI and setting an annual target for improvement.
			•	Routinely (monthly/quarterly) monitor the fuel consumption of all fleet vehicles.
			•	Identify the outliers – those with higher than average fuel consumption and take corrective actions.
			•	Consider eco-driver training or idling reduction driver training.
			•	Consider using telematics to identify high engine idling – particularly in situations where it is unnecessary, such as when PTO is not engaged, or when heating/air conditioning is not required.
			•	Consider the use of idling reduction technologies – idle shutdown devices or auxiliary cab heaters.
			•	Consider a top-down driven idling reduction policy supported at the top levels of CKL.
13	7.9	Fleet Safety (Drivers)	•	Prepare for Canada's electronic logging device (ELD) mandate – June 2021.
			•	Review and ensure compliance with Hours of Service and Daily Trip Inspections legislation.
14	7.9	Fleet Safety (Legislative & Security)	•	Fleet and Transit Services should consider having a third party conduct a CVOR mock audit to identify any gaps.
			•	Investigate and begin the transition to ELD systems including drivers daily pre/post trip inspection defects, mapping and route planning/optimization, and snow plow operation data.

			 Ensure backup ELD records of driver pre-trip inspections and hours-of-service information are archived in a secure way that, consistent with statute of limitations legal requirements, ensures access in the event of a government safety or other audit. Consider a review with workers around vehicle security practices on job sites. Consider a review of where vehicle keys are being stored and the degree of security provided.
15	7.10	Environment (Vehicles & Fuels)	 Prioritize the purchase of battery-electric EVs and plug-in hybrids that are available now in the light-duty categories (cars, SUVs). For an interim solution for reducing fleet's GHG emissions, consider the use of renewable fuels,
			including biodiesel (B20 in summer and B5 in winter) and higher blends of ethanol (E85) in all factory- designed "flex-fuel" capable vehicles.
			 In the medium to long-term future, consider hydrogen fuel cells as this technology evolves and
			becomes commonly available, and once "green" H2 source(s) are in place.
16	7.10	Environment (Operations)	 Continue to explore and use eco-friendly shop practices and new ways of being green in the fleet workplace.
			 Review all products and cleaners used in the fleet garage to eliminate all potentially toxic products and ensure safe disposal of any such items now in use.
17	7.11	Policies and Procedures	We recommend development of a Driver's Handbook.Updates to the Driver's Handbook should be dated and identified with version numbers.

Fleet & Transit Services Review

18	7.12	Fuel Procurement & Distribution	•	Review fuelling system(s) for compliance with Technical Safety Standards Authority (TSSA) compliance.
			•	Consider electronic calendar reminders/alerts for follow-up reviews of the fuelling site to ensure continued fuel system TSSA compliance.
19	7.13	Performance Management	•	Consider performance measures for the Fleet & Transit Services team that would be beneficial in terms of personal motivation and likely to instill a sense of accomplishment.
			•	To support a fleet performance related goal (as above), consider targets that provide a degree of stretch yet are realistically achievable. Examples of fleet performance targets might be: "x" % vehicle availability, "x" PM attainment, "x" days of downtime, "x" % GHG reduction, or "x" accident-free miles-driven etc.
20	7.14	Communications	•	Consider communications that highlight stories about employee awards and other types of recognition. (Examples: safe driving certificates and lapel pins denoting milestones for vehicle safety).
			•	Communicate success stories internally through employee newsletters as well as publicly via printed media releases and social media.
21	9	Parts and Inventory	•	Computerize the parts and inventory with a modern fleet management information system (FMIS).
			•	Implement regular cycle counts of all inventory and parts.
			•	Consider monthly section-by-section stock counts.
			•	Include all parts into inventory, including costlier items (such as fluids).

Appendix "A" - Average Performance Metrics by Sub-Types/Categories

Buses

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period - Downtime Days	Revie - Pre Maint (PM) o revie (PM i oil cl and inspe	ew Period eventive tenance costs for w period includes hanges d lubes, ections)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	- Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	Reviev Period - Downtim Cost per D	e lay	Review Period - Downtime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Ri Ti Peri	eview Period - Total Cost for iod (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Review Peric Cost per Kl	d - Review Period I Availability (%	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Bus	31,515	13,754	42.2	\$	-	\$ 17,365	32.7	1.1	44.3	\$ 40	00	\$ 16,885	0%	\$ 13,630	\$ 3,823	\$	51,703	\$ 1.6	83.8	49.0	4.1
Class 4	35,187	14,510	42.7	\$	-	\$ 17,567	34.5	1.0	40.8	\$ 4	00	\$ 17,082	0%	\$ 14,380	\$ 4,150	\$	53,178	\$ 1.5	83.6	43.0	3.6
Class 4 Limo style	22,948	11,990	41.1	\$	-	\$ 16,893	28.5	1.2	52.4	\$ 4	00	\$ 16,426	0%	\$ 11,882	\$ 3,059	\$	48,260	\$ 2.1	84.2	63.0	5.2

Cars

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period Downtime Days	Revi - Pro Mair (PM) revia (PM oil o an insp	iew Period eventive ntenance costs for ew period includes changes d lubes, pections)	Review Perix Repair Cos (reactive, unplanned re costs for per	d - Review Peri a Annual GHC produced air (tonnes, d) combustion	d - ^S Review Period GHG Intensity)	Review Period L/100 km	Revi Perio Downt Cost per	iew d - ime r Day	Review Downt for	w Period - time Cost Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Re T(Peri	eview Period - otal Cost for od (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Review Perioc Cost per KM	- Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Car	11,557	1,163	4.2	\$	-	\$ 1,8	34 2.	5 0.3	10.5	\$	100	\$	420	0%	\$ 1,085	\$ 366	\$	3,597	\$ 0.31	98.4	75.4	6.3
Mid-size	6,782	891	4.1	\$	-	\$ 1,7	2.	L 0.3	13.2	\$	100	\$	413	0%	\$ 883	\$ 269	\$	3,265	\$ 0.48	98.4	100.0	8.3
Small	13,027	1,254	4.2	\$	-	\$ 1,8	79 2.	3 0.2	9.6	\$	100	\$	422	0%	\$ 1,147	\$ 396	\$	3,700	\$ 0.28	98.4	67.9	5.7

SUVs

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period - Downtime Days	Rev - Pr Mai (PM) revi (PM oil an ins	iew Period reventive intenance) costs for iew period I includes changes nd lubes, pections)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	- Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	Revi Perio Down1 Cost pe	iew od - time er Day	Review Period Downtime Cos for Period	- Review Period t PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period Cost of Capit:	I- al F	Review Period - Total Cost for Period (R&M, Fuel Capital & Downtime)	Review Perio Cost per KN	I - Review Period Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
suv	20,771	2,679	7.4	\$	-	\$ 3,061	4.9	0.3	10.6	\$	100	\$ 744	0%	\$ 2,023	\$ 86	4	\$ 6,693	\$ 0.3	97.1	54.6	4.5
Compact	5,154	657	2.5	\$	-	\$ 1,023	1.3	0.3	12.0	\$	100	\$ 249	0%	\$ 558	\$ 62	3	\$ 2,452	\$ 0.4	99.0	63.3	5.3
Full size	30,479	4,265	9.1	\$	-	\$ 3,758	7.0	0.2	9.6	\$	100	\$ 914	0%	\$ 2,926	\$ 1,01	6	\$ 8,615	\$ 0.2	96.5	47.9	4.0

Pickups

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period Downtime Days	Revie - Prev Maint - (PM) c review (PM in oil ch and inspe	ew Period ventive tenance costs for w period includes hanges I lubes, actions)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period - Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	F Pr Do Cost	Review eriod - wntime t per Day	Re Do	view Period - wntime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Revie Ann C	aw Period - nual Fuel Costs	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Re To Perio	view Period - tal Cost for vd (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Jowntime)	Revi Cos	ew Period - It per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Pickup	18,522	3,642	9.2	\$	-	\$ 3,804	8.6	0.5	19.6	\$	100	\$	925	0%	\$	3,562	\$ 578	\$	8,869	\$	0.48	96.4	78.7	6.6
Class 2E	19,366	3,453	7.1	\$	-	\$ 2,936	8.2	0.4	18.4	\$	100	\$	714	0%	\$	3,422	\$ 327	\$	7,399	\$	0.38	97.3	94.4	7.9
Class 2E 4x4	9,192	1,803	5.1	\$	-	\$ 2,084	4.3	0.5	19.5	\$	100	\$	506	0%	\$	1,787	\$ 98	\$	4,474	\$	0.49	98.1	121.0	10.1
Class 2F	11,867	2,290	9.5	\$	-	\$ 3,913	5.4	0.4	18.8	\$	100	\$	951	0%	\$	2,269	\$ 1,421	\$	8,555	\$	0.72	96.3	20.9	1.7
Class 2G	10,987	2,802	7.8	\$	-	\$ 3,228	6.7	0.6	25.5	\$	100	\$	785	0%	\$	2,777	\$ 449	\$	7,239	\$	0.66	97.0	91.0	7.6
Class 2H	15,228	2,454	5.7	\$	-	\$ 2,354	4.9	0.4	15.5	\$	100	\$	572	0%	\$	2,027	\$ 1,264	\$	6,217	\$	0.41	97.8	43.5	3.6
Class 2H 4x4	19,998	6,109	23.3	\$	-	\$ 9,599	14.5	0.7	30.2	\$	100	\$	2,333	0%	\$	6,054	\$ 1,536	\$	19,521	\$	0.98	91.0	28.0	2.3
Class 3	38,414	7,216	25.4	\$	-	\$ 10,437	17.2	0.4	18.8	\$	100	\$	2,537	0%	\$	7,151	\$ 559	\$	20,684	\$	0.54	90.2	67.0	5.6
Class 3 4x4	22,146	5,889	17.8	\$	-	\$ 7,332	14.0	0.6	25.9	\$	100	\$	1,782	0%	\$	5,836	\$ 512	\$	15,462	\$	0.70	93.1	73.8	6.2

Vans

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period Downtime Days	Rev - Pr Mai - (PM) revi (PM oil ar ins)	view Period reventive intenance () costs for iew period f includes changes nd lubes, pections)	Revie Rep (re unplar costs	ew Period - bair Costs eactive, nned repair for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	- Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	P De Cos	Review Period - owntime st per Day	Re	eview Period - owntime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	- Rev Ar	riew Period - nnual Fuel Costs	Rev Cos	iew Period - t of Capital	Re To Perio	view Period - stal Cost for od (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Revie Cos	ew Period - It per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Van	19,652	1,617	15.3	\$	-	\$	6,447	2.4	0.7	30.4	\$	400	\$	6,130	0%	\$	997	\$	1,652	\$	15,082	\$	0.77	94.1	64.2	5.3
Class 2E Full Size Cargo	20,392	2,664	4.8	3 \$	-	\$	1,956	6.3	0.3	13.0	\$	400	\$	1,902	0%	\$	2,640	\$	373	\$	6,871	\$	0.34	98.2	81.4	6.8
Class 2E Mini	3,897	591	7.2	2 \$	-	\$	3,232	1.3	1.9	79.7	\$	400	\$	2,881	0%	\$	537	\$	763	\$	7,145	\$	1.83	97.2	40.0	3.3
Class 2F Full Size	3,617	623	4.5	5 \$	-	\$	1,857	1.5	0.4	17.2	\$	400	\$	1,806	0%	\$	617	\$	135	\$	4,416	\$	1.22	98.3	127.0	10.6
Class 2F Full Size Cargo	27,657	4,760	13.6	5 \$	-	\$	5,598	11.3	0.4	17.2	\$	400	\$	5,443	0%	\$	4,717	\$	450	\$	16,208	\$	0.59	94.8	79.0	6.6
Class 2G Full Size	1,872	234	0.6	5 \$	-	\$	249	0.6	0.3	12.5	\$	400	\$	242	0%	\$	232	\$	1,036	\$	1,759	\$	0.94	99.8	31.0	2.6
Class 2G Full Size Cargo	13,843	2,350	8.8	3 \$	-	\$	3,627	4.8	0.5	21.8	\$	400	\$	3,527	0%	\$	1,996	\$	631	\$	9,781	\$	0.71	96.6	118.4	9.9
Class 3 Cutaway	38,836		31.3	\$	-	\$	12,870	-	-	-	\$	400	\$	12,514	0%	\$	-	\$	3,763	\$	29,147	\$	0.75	88.0	33.0	2.8
Class 3 Full Size Cargo	7,480	1,404	8.3	\$	-	\$	3,422	3.7	0.5	18.8	\$	400	\$	3,327	0%	\$	1,394	\$	273	\$	8,416	\$	1.13	96.8	139.0	11.6
Class 4 Cube	8,056	2,921	13.0) \$	-	\$	5,346	7.7	1.0	36.3	\$	400	\$	5,198	0%	\$	2,901	\$	296	\$	13,741	\$	1.71	95.0	163.0	13.6

Trucks

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period - Downtime Days	Review I - Prever Mainten (PM) cos review p (PM incl oil char and lui inspect	Period ntive ance ts for beriod ludes nges bes, ions)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	Revi Perior Downt Cost per	iew d - time r Day	Revi Dow fo	iew Period - ntime Cost or Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Re To Perio	view Period - tal Cost for vd (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Jowntime)	Revie Cost	w Period - t per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Truck	3,647	5,860	31.7	\$	-	\$ 13,335	14.9	26.4	1,003.8	\$ 3	200	\$	6,339	0%	\$ 5,646	\$ 5,070	\$	30,094	\$	8.25	87.8	102.9	8.6
Class 3 Dump 1 Ton	9,099	2,583	8.0	\$	-	\$ 3,305	6.4	1.8	73.2	\$	200	\$	1,607	0%	\$ 2,561	\$ 1,487	\$	8,959	\$	0.98	96.9	63.0	5.2
Class 3 Rescue Fire	876	59	2.6	\$	-	\$ 1,050	0.1	0.2	6.7	\$	200	\$	510	0%	\$ 58	\$ 166	\$	1,785	\$	2.04	99.0	235.0	19.6
Class 4 Dump 1 Ton	13,426	4,707	15.4	\$	1	\$ 6,345	12.2	1.0	37.2	\$	200	\$	3,085	0%	\$ 4,673	\$ 1,022	\$	15,125	\$	1.13	94.1	92.7	7.7
Class 4 Mechanical Fire	18,699	7,254	15.2	\$	-	\$ 6,234	19.1	1.0	38.8	\$	200	\$	3,031	0%	\$ 7,203	\$ 235	\$	16,703	\$	0.89	94.2	247.0	20.6
Class 4 Rescue Fire	1,023	868	6.3	\$	-	\$ 2,582	2.1	2.0	84.9	\$	200	\$	1,255	0%	\$ 860	\$ 235	\$	4,933	\$	4.82	97.6	235.0	19.6
Class 5 Aerial	22,923	6,689	31.6	\$	-	\$ 12,992	17.6	0.8	29.2	\$	200	\$	6,317	0%	\$ 6,642	\$ 4,050	\$	30,000	\$	1.31	87.9	55.0	4.6
Class 5 Dump 1 Ton	20,089	5,455	18.1	\$	-	\$ 7,426	14.0	1.7	68.6	\$	200	\$	3,611	0%	\$ 5,414	\$ 969	\$	17,420	\$	0.87	93.1	92.3	7.7
Class 5 Rescue Fire	1,425	296	4.4	\$	-	\$ 1,803	0.8	0.5	20.8	\$	200	\$	877	0%	\$ 294	\$ 235	\$	3,209	\$	2.25	98.3	199.0	16.6
Class 7 Aerial	5,930	1,342	8.8	\$	-	\$ 3,637	3.5	0.6	22.6	\$	200	\$	1,768	0%	\$ 1,333	\$ 10,011	\$	16,749	\$	2.82	96.6	7.0	0.6
Class 7 Air/Light Fire	3,044	1,590	9.5	\$	-	\$ 3,899	4.2	1.4	52.2	\$	200	\$	1,896	0%	\$ 1,579	\$ 3,530	\$	10,904	\$	3.58	96.4	136.2	11.3
Class 7 Rescue Fire	940	423	3.2	\$	-	\$ 1,314.00	1.1	1.2	45.0	\$ 200	0.00	\$	639	0%	\$ 419.90	\$ 2,370.00	\$	4,742.76	\$	5.05	98.8	211.0	17.6
Class 8 Aerial Fire	1,191	706	14.4	\$	-	\$ 5,909.16	1.9	1.6	59.3	\$ 200	0.00	\$	2,873	0%	\$ 701.11	\$ 5,708.57	\$	15,191.83	\$	12.76	94.5	127.0	10.6
Class 8 Pumper Fire	3,281	1,423	20.4	\$	-	\$ 8,401.06	3.6	1.1	42.7	\$ 200	0.00	\$	4,085	0%	\$ 1,342.41	\$ 4,699.06	\$	18,527.06	\$	5.65	92.1	140.3	11.7
Class 8 Roll Off	185	2,636	18.4	\$	-	\$ 7,567.00	6.9	37.5	1,424.9	\$ 200	0.00	\$	3,679	0%	\$ 2,617.55	\$ 10,472.56	\$	24,336.13	\$	131.55	92.9	5.0	0.4
Class 8 Single Axle Plow	299	5,971	29.4	\$	-	\$ 12,094.64	14.3	51.0	1,940.8	\$ 200	0.00	\$	5,880	0%	\$ 5,390.55	\$ 5,513.43	\$	28,878.93	\$	96.56	88.7	61.3	5.1
Class 8 Tanker Fire	1,755	934	15.4	\$	-	\$ 6,339.34	2.2	1.3	49.1	\$ 200	0.00	\$	3,082	0%	\$ 843.48	\$ 9,887.12	\$	20,152.07	\$	11.48	94.1	133.2	11.1
Class 8 Tendem Axle Plow	508	10,514	53.4	\$	-	\$ 23,297.63	27.7	55.4	2,108.0	\$ 200	0.00	\$	10,674	0%	\$ 10,440.12	\$ 4,442.57	\$	47,509.86	\$	93.53	79.5	83.7	7.0
Class 8 Vac	96	3,826	24.3	\$	-	\$ 10,002.00	10.1	104.8	3,985.4	\$ 200	0.00	\$	4,863	0%	\$ 3,799.22	\$ 23,927.00	\$	42,591.11	\$ 4	443.66	90.6	7.0	0.6

Mobile Equipment

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period Downtime Days	Rev - P Mai - (PM rev (PM oil an ins	view Period Preventive aintenance A) costs for view period M includes II changes and lubes, spections)	Review Per Repair Co (reactiv unplanned r costs for pe	d - Review s Annua prod pair (ton iod) combu	Period - IGHGs uced nes, istion)	Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	- F D Cos	Review Period - owntime st per Day	Re Do	view Period - wntime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	- Rev Ar	riew Period - nnual Fuel Costs	Revi Cost	ew Period - of Capital	Re To Perio	view Period - tal Cost for od (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Revi Co	iew Period - st per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Mobile equipment	307	2,860	26.1	\$	-	\$ 11,	90	5.2	21.3	808.7	\$	100	\$	2,609	0%	\$	1,961	\$	1,914	\$	17,216	\$	56.03	90.0	115.3	9.6
ATV	100	506	0.7	\$	-	\$ 1,	78	0.2	2.4	101.1	\$	100	\$	72	0%	\$	100	\$	91	\$	559	\$	5.59	99.7	155.8	13.0
Backhoe	393	2,312	27.9	\$	-	\$ 11,	195	6.1	18.6	706.5	\$	100	\$	2,794	0%	\$	2,296	\$	1,666	\$	18,251	\$	46.39	89.3	130.7	10.9
Chipper	37	704	3.4	\$	-	\$ 1,	10	0.6	37.9	1,442.1	\$	100	\$	343	0%	\$	233	\$	830	\$	2,816	\$	77.14	98.7	109.0	9.1
Compactor, landfill	1,250		152.8	\$	-	\$ 62,	144	-	-	-	\$	100	\$	15,277	0%	\$	-	\$	3,307	\$	81,428	\$	65.14	41.2	115.0	9.6
Double Roller	58	214	4.2	\$	-	\$ 1,	36	0.6	8.1	308.6	\$	100	\$	422	0%	\$	212	\$	1,018	\$	3,388	\$	58.41	98.4	49.0	4.1
Grader	481	7,484	54.2	\$	-	\$ 22,	289	19.7	54.6	2,076.6	\$	100	\$	5,418	0%	\$	7,431	\$	6,416	\$	41,555	\$	86.33	79.2	147.0	12.2
Ice Resurfacer	400		10.2	\$	-	\$ 4,	.85	-	-	-	\$	100	\$	1,017	0%	\$	-	\$	1,836	\$	7,039	\$	17.60	96.1	85.5	7.1
Loader	543	4,853	61.7	\$	-	\$ 25,	69	10.0	24.1	915.5	\$	100	\$	6,167	0%	\$	3,786	\$	2,834	\$	38,156	\$	70.32	76.3	124.4	10.4
Mower	30	371	2.1	\$	-	\$	355	0.7	22.3	847.0	\$	100	\$	208	0%	\$	246	\$	537	\$	1,846	\$	60.85	99.2	151.0	12.6
Sweeper	322	2,803	8.3	\$	-	\$3,	196	7.4	22.9	870.5	\$	100	\$	826	0%	\$	2,783	\$	2,552	\$	9,557	\$	29.68	96.8	127.0	10.6
Tractor	293	2,416	38.2	\$	-	\$ 15,72	70	6.4	22.4	851.4	\$	100.00	\$	3,823	0%	\$	2,398.79	\$ 3	,991.04	\$	23,940.87	\$	81.60	85.3	113.8	9.5
Tractor, large	189	3,892	22.2	\$	-	\$ 9,13	.00	5.1	27.2	1,032.4	\$	100.00	\$	2,221	0%	\$	1,932.38	\$ 1	,723.62	\$	15,015.41	\$	79.66	91.5	139.0	11.6
Tractor, medium	164	490	4.5	\$	-	\$ 2,36	.14	1.0	16.8	637.9	\$	100.00	\$	446	0%	\$	378.52	\$	496.99	\$	3,157.42	\$	19.21	98.3	83.3	6.9
Tractor, small	-		1.0	\$	-	\$ 593	50	-			\$	100.00	\$	96	0%	\$	-	\$	38.79	\$	530.64			99.6	183.0	15.2

Equipment

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period - Downtime Days	Revie - Pre Maint (PM) o revie (PM i oil cl and inspe	ew Period ventive tenance costs for w period includes hanges I lubes, actions)	Review Period - Repair Costs (reactive, unplanned repair costs for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	- Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	Reviev Period - Downtim Cost per D	e ay	Review Period - Downtime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period - Annual Fuel Costs	Review Period Cost of Capita		Review Period - Total Cost for Period (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Review Cost p	Period - per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Equipment	100	67	2.4	\$	-	\$ 1,119	0.1	1.1	63.3	\$ 10	00	\$ 245	0%	\$ 34	\$ 26	3	\$ 1,549	\$ 1	5.49	99.1	113.8	9.5
Power Washer	100		0.0	\$	-		-	-	-	\$ 1	00	\$-		ş -	\$ 37	0	\$ 370	\$	3.70	100.0	55.0	4.6
Steamer	100	100	2.2	\$	-	\$ 890	0.2	1.5	100.0	\$ 1	00	\$ 216	0%	\$ 36	\$ 26	1	\$ 1,404	\$	14.04	99.2	117.6	9.8
Tank, water	100	37	2.9	\$	-	\$ 1,347	0.1	0.9	36.5	\$ 1	00	\$ 295	0%	\$ 36	\$ 25	4	\$ 1,798	\$	17.98	98.9	116.2	9.7

Trailers

Category	Review Period - Average Annual KMs or Hrs. Travelled	Review Period - Quantity of Fuel Used (liters of fuel consumed in review period)	Review Period Downtime Days	Rev - P Mai - (PM rev (PM oil an ins	view Period treventive intenance I) costs for riew period M includes I changes nd lubes, spections)	Revi Rep (re unplan costs	iew Period - pair Costs reactive, unned repair s for period)	Review Period Annual GHGs produced (tonnes, combustion)	Review Period GHG Intensity	Review Period L/100 km	P Do Cos	Review leriod - owntime t per Day	Re Do	view Period - wntime Cost for Period	Review Period - PM as % of All Parts/Labour	Review Period Annual Fuel Costs	-	Review Period - Cost of Capital	Re To Perio	eview Period - otal Cost for od (R&M, Fuel, Capital & Downtime)	Review Period - Cost per KM	Review Period - Availability (%)	Review Period - Unit Age (Months)	Review Period - Unit Age (Years)
Trailer	0	209	1.4	\$	-	\$	771	0.0	7.6	290.0	\$	200	\$	281	0%	\$ 10	5	\$ 266	\$	1,142	#####	99.5	152.4	12.7
Asphalt	-	269	0.0	\$	-			0.7			\$	200	\$	-		\$ 26	7 :	\$ 1,366	\$	1,633		100.0	39.0	3.2
Boat	-		0.2	\$	-	\$	150	-			\$	200	\$	36	0%	\$ -	:	\$ 4	\$	115		99.9	289.0	24.1
Float, large	-		2.0	\$	-	\$	837	-			\$	200	\$	407	0%	\$-	:	\$ 96	\$	1,340		99.2	238.0	19.8
Float, medium	-		1.5	\$	-	\$	612	-			\$	200	\$	297	0%	\$ -	-	\$ 57	\$	966		99.4	235.0	19.6
Small	-		1.8	\$	-	\$	981	-			\$	200	\$	352	0%	ş -	-	\$ 172	\$	1,250		99.3	98.3	8.2
Trailer	1	29	1.1	\$	-	\$	609	0.0	7.6	290.0	\$	200	\$	222	0%	\$ 4	1	\$ 602	\$	1,284	\$1,027.30	99.6	136.0	11.3

Appendix "B" – Lifecycle Analysis Charts























Appendix "C" - About Fleet Analytics Review

Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) is a software tool developed by the RSI-FC team in 2016. It was designed to provide a "deep dive" into big data for fleet review projects that require complex fleet analysis.

For the Kawartha Lakes review, FAR was our teams 'tool of choice' as discuss in greater detail in this section of our report. FAR has been used as the foundational analysis and a data modeling platform for our work in helping fleets achieve optimal levels of efficiency and cost-effectiveness.

Fleet Analytics Review[©] we will



The FAR process uses historical cost metrics and vehicle operating data (i.e., miles/km-driven, fuel usage, repair and maintenance costs, unit age, acquisition cost, cost of capital, downtime, residual value, etc.) to establish financial and service levels (i.e., utilization, availability/uptime). FAR highlights exception units – vehicles that are performing in a sub-standard way in terms of cost and performance; it identifies the reason(s) why, thereby enabling management action(s).

Data Modeling in FAR

In fleet management, costly errors can multiply quickly. For example, if a fleet acquires a vehicle type that turns out to be a poor performer – such as a brand/make/model that turns out to have poor reliability or high failure rates, the impact can be negative and costly. But multiply that impact many times – such as in a fleet which has chosen to standardize on purchasing many hundreds of these poor-performing units, the cost increases exponentially -- it can become insurmountable for some enterprises. Similarly, management processes under consideration should be evaluated through data modeling as well to assess their cost/ benefit to the fleet. Hence, the criticality of completing full analytical reviews and pilot testing before large scale commitments are made.

With FAR baselines established, via exception management, our software is then used by our analysts to model, analyze and evaluate go-forward plans and identify potential issues – ahead of their actual implementation, thereby avoiding potentially costly mistakes. FAR takes into consideration the operating expense (Opex) implications and determines whether any capital expense (Capex), investment will be offset by Opex reductions. FAR is also used to model and evaluate/assess all manner of fleet best practices ahead of implementation.

Using FAR to Assess Preventive Maintenance Programs

FAR is used by our team to assess the effectiveness of a fleet's preventive maintenance practices. FAR calculates the ratio of a fleets spending (parts and labour) on preventive maintenance (PM) versus the cost of completing "reactive" repairs (reactive repairs are unplanned vehicle or component failures and/or breakdowns). We refer to this statistic as "PM Ratio".

By calculating PM Ratio for over 150 municipal fleets and plotting the data against vehicle availability (uptime) rates for each fleet in this manner, we now use this data to evaluate the effectiveness of a fleet's PM activities and how effective its PM programs are in reducing reactive repairs (breakdowns/failures).

Under-spending on PM is risky and will result in increased downtime, breakdowns and work plan disruption for vehicle users due to unreliable vehicles. Over-maintaining a fleet's vehicles is also costly, and as well, wasteful of resources while being disruptive for user groups. The science of modern fleet management is confidently knowing, via reviews of historical data, the correct amount and frequency of PM required to maintain an acceptable level of uptime. FAR is used by our team to make this assessment.

By analyzing the fleet's PM Ratio as we've described, followed by a thorough review of the actual PM tasks and practices being completed by vehicle technicians/mechanics during their PM inspections, we identify if there are gaps and/or shortcomings that can be addressed. This approach will be employed in our fleet review recommendations to Kawartha Lakes management.

Business Case Approach

FAR is used by our team to determine balanced go-forward, long-term vehicle replacement capital requirements and as well, any business process changes being contemplated for the fleet. The FAR tool makes this analysis based on business case modeling, return on investment, and cost/benefit analysis.

FAR Tool Will Be Licensed to Kawartha Lakes

FAR is user-friendly and simple to use; it is based on MS Excel and it will be licenced in perpetuity, free-ofcharge to the City of Kawartha Lakes for its own use post-project, if the City chooses to do so.

Recent Enhancement and Upgrades to FAR. Beginning with FAR V30.5 (beta), the tool features upgrades and enhancements to its functionalities. These include:

FAR's Fuel-Efficient Green Fleet Planning Tools. FAR now includes several new powerful "green fleet planning" tools. These tools will be used to evaluate the financial and greenhouse gas (GHG) impacts of switching the City's vehicle fuels from fossil-based (gas or diesel) to (for example) alternate and/or renewable fuels or electric. In the FAR Input Form, users may now make choices as to fuel-switching (for example, changing all gas or diesel-powered vehicles in specific categories to E85, B5-B100 biodiesel, hybrid, plug-in hybrid, battery-electric, compressed natural gas – even hydrogen fuel cells.

FAR calculates the net cost and GHG reduction of the fuel-switch being considered, taking into consideration not just the fuel/electricity costs, but the change in fuel efficiency, and as well any costs of infrastructure such as installing a CNG fueling station, or electric vehicle chargers, etc.

Enhanced Vehicle Replacement Cost/Benefit Analysis. Comparisons and analysis regarding: a) aging a vehicle (or vehicles) that are now due for replacement to an ensuing year or, b) replacing the vehicle(s) in the

present budget year, is now based on the actual, average historical peer fleet cost data from our proprietary municipal fleet database.

In FAR, when a vehicle(s) is due for replacement, the tool calculates the annual cost for a new replacement vehicle(s) (including capital, fuel, repairs, PM and downtime) and compares that amount to the actual average cost for a similar vehicle that is one-year older (using data from our peer fleet database). In doing so, it predicts the impacts of aging vehicles with relative certainty based on real-world historical cost data from our municipal fleet database.

FAR displays the cost/benefit of replacing each unit that is due for replacement in the 5-yr. Capex plan tab - in blue font each vehicle that will save Opex if it is replaced, and red font if it will incur more Opex. This is a significant change - it eliminates all guesswork or sketchy assumptions and supplants it with real peer fleet operating cost data by model year and vehicle categories we've collected since 2006.

Fuel Usage and GHG Reduction for New Vehicles. For each vehicle that is due for replacement over the next five years, FAR calculates the fuel usage increase/reduction (liters and cost) that will result from the vehicle replacement. This is an excellent way of forecasting whether a contemplated switch to a different

Data Collection

RSI-FC began with data collection for review and analysis. CKL's fleet data included: a list of vehicles and equipment; makes/models/years of each unit, kilometers-travelled, fuel used, repair and preventive maintenance costs; and other data points as available. This raw dataset was entered into our Fleet Analytics Review[™] (FAR) software tool to establish CKL fleet's baseline.

Establishing the fleet's baseline was the foundation from which to begin analysis and formulate a plan. The baseline identified the fleet's current-day status by calculating several Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), and positioned CKL fleet's statistics relative to municipal peers.

By calculating individual vehicle and equipment type by average performance it was possible to assess each unit's performance relative to the average statistics for similar vehicles in the fleet. As a result, exception units were identified – those with better or worse performance relative to similar vehicles in the fleet.

Operational Statistics

With the baseline established we next plotted CKL's key operational statistics (KPIs) alongside data averages for comparable municipal fleets, derived from RSI's municipal fleet database. The objective of this step was to direct our review into areas having potential gaps and identify possible sub-standard performance. These results highlighted where opportunities for improvement may be feasible, and underscored areas for further investigation by our team.

Appendix "D" – About Best Management Practice Review

Best Management Practices Review[™] (BMPR) is a critical first step in the fleet review process. The BMPR process was designed to provide our project team an inside look at the City's fleet operations. BMPR enabled our team to become familiar with Fleet's business processes and practices in a methodical manner. In turn, this knowledge is used to inform and guide our work on, and our recommendations for the City of Kawartha Lake's Fleet Review.

Best Management Practices Review, or BMPR[™] - [bump-er] - is an RSI-FC process that methodically and efficiently explores and audits a fleet's management business practices, processes, policies and legislative compliance to identify gaps or areas of risk exposure. BMPR[™] highlights areas where there may be gaps and/or opportunities for improvement relative to North America's 'best in class' fleets.

The Evolution of BMPR

Over the past decade our team observed that specific best management practices (BMPs) are applicable to fleets of all business sectors. These BMPs range from business structure, human resources and maintenance practices through to operational policies. We determined that proactive fleet managers would value an impartial, third party, ground-up BMP review of their operations to identify opportunities for improvement.

By means of our BMPR[™] software we systematically perform gap analysis to identify specific areas where peer fleets have successfully implemented viable BMPs. The BMPR[™] software template includes up to 200 topics of fleet management in 16 specific areas of interest (see table below).

By completing the BMPR[™] process at the outset of our Kawartha Lakes project our team was able to become quickly familiar with the City's operations and fleet practices, to aid in planning a roadmap to fleet improvement. BMPR explores what's working in the fleet (and what isn't), areas of potential risk exposure and new best management practices that will enhance financial, environmental and service level performance to "best-in-class" standards of excellence.

Our BMPR interviews examines up to 16 areas of focus:

- 1. Fuel Procurement and Distribution
- 2. Accidental Damages
- 3. Vehicle Safety
- 4. Environment
- 5. Policies and Procedures
- 6. Procurement
- 7. Performance Management
- 8. Communications

- 9. Asset Management
- 10. Vehicle Specifications
- 11. Finance
- 12. Operating and Capital Budgeting
- 13. Information Technology
- 14. Human Resources
- 15. Fleet Operations
- 16. Preventive Maintenance

RSI-FC completed a series of 'best management practices reviews' by means of our proprietary BMPR[™] business tool. The BMPR consisted of separate meetings with personnel knowledgeable from each sub-set of the fleet to learn about the operational practices and procedures of each. In total, four BMPR meetings were conducted virtually via GoTo Meeting[™] (www.gotomeeting.com) and by telephone or e-mail. The BMPR meetings included:

- Fleet and Transit
- Paramedics
- Fire
- Police

For maximum efficiency and in consideration of staff time off-the-job to attend our research meeting, we used our BMPR software-based template thereby ensuring an effective and productive sharing of information. The BMPR discussions included 16 topics and ~200 questions. For thoroughness, we assigned three of our senior consultants to these sessions to ensure all information was accurately captured.

After successfully completing the above preparatory steps, our team gained a well-informed working knowledge of Fleet and Transit Services and CKL's sub-set fleets.

Appendix "E" – About Life Cycle Analysis

RSI-FC specializes in, and has completed lifecycle analysis for dozens of fleets in Canada and the U.S. Our highly evolved and proprietary RSI-FC Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) process and software tool³⁶ will be used by our team to illustrate the total life cycle cost of owning and operating each fleet vehicle type and/or category for Kawartha Lakes. LCA uses historical cost data for each vehicle category to determine at what age units should be considered for replacement.

Through our LCA processes, RSI-FC generated the following data fields: average capital cost, value, maintenance and repair cost as the vehicle ages (parts and labour), downtime -- as assessed by (if available) total work order numbers (i.e. shop visits for reactive repairs) as the vehicle ages, km/yr., and fuel consumption as well as engine hours, and/or power take off hours, among other fields where additional data is available.

Replacement cycle recommendations will be determined by age and kilometers-driven. In addition, RSI-FC will evaluate additional criteria including engine hours and where applicable, power takeoff (PTO) hours. These additional operating metrics will become part of the overall mix of LCA determining factors.

RSI-FC developed vehicle retention recommendations for Kawartha Lakes based on LCA results and determine an overarching retention strategy that describes the optimal replacement cycles for all types of vehicles in the fleet.

As shown in the *LCA Example* (below), ideally, optimal replacement occurs before the rollup of costs rise and reliability/safety is reduced, and before major capital expenditure or refurbishment is necessary.

³⁶ RSI-FC will licence our proprietary LCA tool in perpetuity to Kawartha Lakes for its own use post-project. The LCA tool that will be employed for Kawartha Lakes was last refreshed in 2017 and calibrated for maximum accuracy.

LCA Example



In most cases, the increased cost of capital for newer vehicles will be offset by the reduced cost of fuel, repairs and downtime. However, the flipside of this is that, if vehicles are replaced prematurely, value may be lost and total cost of ownership will increase.

The skill of balancing this is a specialty for RSI-FC team – we have completed lifecycle analysis (LCA) for dozens of municipal and corporate fleets and we have developed our specialized LCA software tool for this purpose.

LCA and Long-Term Capital Planning

A fleet long-term capital planning (LTCP) software tool was developed by our Fleet Challenge team in 2016. The LTCP tool is component of FAR which complements Life Cycle Analysis. LTCP calculates five-year (or longer) fleet capital replacement plans with the objective of balancing go-forward budgets and in doing so, avoiding year to year cost spikes.

The RSI-FC LTCP tool calculates and displays whether replacing vehicles due for replacement would save the organization money or cost additional money, on a unit by unit basis. LTCP also forecasts the GHG reduction impacts of vehicle replacements.

The Capital Budget Balancing Act

RSI-FC believes that municipal fleet management's prime responsibility is vehicle availability – "uptime". This means ensuring that safe and reliable fleet vehicles, of the right type, size and capacity are ready each day

when needed, whether that is for the municipality's employees to conduct their daily routines or, for example when the municipality experiences a severe storm or another extreme weather event.

For the municipal fleet manager, this can be a delicate balancing act – preventing budget overruns despite inflation, rising costs for vehicles, parts and fuel and unseen factors while ensuring that the fleet is modern, safe and reliable, and that vehicles are suited to internal user needs.

LCA assists fleet managers in analyzing their operations and prioritizing those strategies that optimize vehicle life and return on investment. Some vehicles in poor or unsafe condition may require replacement before the criteria is met. Conversely, some vehicles may be in good condition and exceed the criteria and not warrant replacement, therefore recommended replacement criteria should be used as a guide.

Optimizing vehicle retention rates is a data intensive practice and a proper vehicle LCA will return significantly higher end-of-life return on investment. This can then be cycled back into fleet purchasing budgets, or utilized to offset other capital expenses.

The Long-Term Capital Planning tool is a semi-automated system that calculates the financial impacts then empowers fleet managers to make the ultimate, logic-based, well-informed business decisions to either: "replace", "defer to next year" or "dispose" of units due for replacement. The tool calculates and displays the impacts of those choices, thusly enabling balanced multi-year capital budget planning that helps avoids the undesirable "saw tooth" budget effect.

Using LCA data and our Long-Term Capital Planning tool, a capital budget will be prepared for five years in advance. This then enables the smoothing of annual cost spikes, keeping the average age of the fleet to an acceptable level that providing the lowest cost and highest uptime.

Vehicle data is input into the Long-Term Capital Planning tool from the fleet's FAR baseline data. The tool (sample screen shown) then calculates capital budgets, which are displayed, based on the fleet managers LCA determinations and accounting for inflationary increases. A capital budget is then automatically calculated for each year of the ensuing five-year³⁷ period.

In a recent software enhancement, V30.5 now includes calculations around GHG impacts (+ or -) stemming from vehicle replacements and capital budgeting. *(please see LTCP Screen Capture) (below)*

³⁷ The tool has been configured for five years, however it can be adapted to calculate longer-term budget plans.

LTCP Screen Capture

	A	В	С	D	Е	F	G	н	I	J	K	L	M	0	Р	Q
1	57,641,280	57,641,280 51,835,616 51,835,616 50 51,835,616	010/050/15 100/196.12 00 	\$2592,302 \$0 \$2,592,302 \$3,314,296 \$0 \$0			Fle	Fisca	alytics Revie	W [©] (©		Fi	scal Year 2019			Fisc
2	FY 201 FY 201 Unit miles at End of Review Period	Beferred Spend 5-Yr. Ca Operation Expense Increase (Savings (FY 2020 FY 2020 Second Second Secon	FY 2021 FY 2022 Total Capital Budget Dashboard	Planned Year for Replacement	FAR© USA Imperial Me Planned Capital Budget 2018 (includes all previous deferrals)	asurements Versi Enter "1" to defer unit to next year or "2" to nix unit entirely	Deferred Capital Spending for 2018	right Fleet Challenge Ar 2018 Total Capital Budget	Opex Increase or -Reduction from Capex Investment in New Replacement Vehicle	rights reserved. Net CO ₂ Reduction (kg) from Vehicle Replacement & Greening Plan	Manned Enter Capital Budget un 2019 mat (includes of 2018) the 2018 enter 2018 enter 2018 enter 2018 enter 2018 enter 2019 enter 2010 enter 201	r "1" lefer t to Deferred year Spending 2" to for 2019 unit irely	2019 Total Capital Budget 2019	Planned Capital Budget 2020 (includes deferrals from 2019)	Enter to de unit next or "2 nix (enti
3	108,305	\$680	3147	LDTRUCKS	2011	\$44,535		\$0	\$44,535	\$680	-127.3	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
337	98,716	-\$307	3341	LDTRUCKS	2013	\$43,267		\$0	\$43,267	-\$307	-466.8	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
338	144,551	\$598	3457	LDTRUCKS	2014	\$43,372		\$0	\$43,372	\$598	-544.8	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
339	86,535	-\$693	3441	LDTRUCKS	2014	\$43,363		\$0	\$43,363	-\$693	-2,281.4	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
340	106,845	\$612	3432	LDTRUCKS	2014	\$43,363		\$0	\$43,363	\$612	-7.2	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
341	137,744	-\$521	3433	LDTRUCKS	2014	\$43,356		\$0	\$43,356	-\$521	-441.6	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
	Guide t	to FAR A	ssumptions	Benchmark Co	st FAR Input	Form On-Road Flee	t Baseline	& 2018	5 Yr. Capex Status	Quo On-Road	FAR Base Cat	Ava 2017 User Type	FAR Base Cat A	va 2017 DOT Type	FAR B +	

Previously Deferred Vehicle Purchases. Typically, for first-time users of the LTCP tool, a cost spike will result in year one due to pent-up (previously deferred) vehicle procurements. Therefore, the next step in the process for the fleet manager or their delegate, is to review his/her five-year capital plan and make "replace" or "defer" decisions based on their own knowledge of their fleet vehicles and their condition, as well as organizational plans and objectives.

If, for example, management's decision is to defer a vehicle replacement until the following year, the cost of its replacement is then - by a simple keystroke - automatically added to that year's budget plus an allowance for inflationary increase. This step ensures that the fleet manager is empowered with rationalizing his/her capital budgets based on data-driven analysis, and their own knowledge of their fleet and municipal realties.

Municipal Fleet Database

With data from our past work in completing fleet reviews since 2006 and until the present-day, we have compiled a 50,000-vehicle peer fleet statistical database. It is unique – we know of no other organization with this type of statistical information. Our database is used by our team for comparative purposes and to inform our recommendations, and our clients, as to what is reasonably possible and achievable in the context of cost-efficient fleet management.

Our database contains real-world operational data for municipal (and many corporate) fleets. From this data, we know -- with relative certainty -- the average total cost of ownership and many other service level statistics for all vehicle types, from passenger sedans all the way up to Class 8, tandem-axle trucks; this data can be grouped/sorted/segmented by vehicle age and vocation and other attributes.

Our database contains powerful information used by our team during our work in evaluating recommended options for our municipal fleet clients. Based on this real-world fleet data, we know with relative certainty what the financial, service level and GHG emissions reduction impacts will be if (for example) the fleet is allowed to age, versus what would happen if the fleet is refreshed with newer vehicles, or what the outcomes

would be if the fleet vehicles receive less (or more) preventive maintenance inspections, or (again this is just an example) if larger (or smaller, lighter-duty) vehicles are specified in the future.

Screen Capture of RSI-FC Municipal Peer Fleet Statistical Database (below) shows a section of our municipal peer fleet database.

Please note that we have compiled ~ 100 KPI's for our municipal fleet partners.

Note: Our municipal fleet database is important data for positioning the City of Kawartha Lakes fleet baseline performance relative to its peers and for data modeling that will be completed by our team. It is extremely valuable for benchmarking and identifying initiatives and practices that have helped other municipalities achieve improvements. RSI-FC has compiled this data over the past 15 years and to our knowledge, no comparable data is owned by or available from any other organization.

Municipality	Halton Hills	TRCA	Niagara Region	Frontenac	Grey County	Haliburton	Simcoe	Richmond	Brampton	Lakeshore	Mississauga	Ottawa	Owen Sound	Sault Ste. Marie	Uxbridge	Woodstock	Toronto	Hamilton	Thunder Bay	Kingsville	Sudbury	Windsor	Timmins	Guelpł
Population (2006)	55,289		427,421	143,865	83,378	16,147	422,204	162,704	433,806	33,245	668,649	812,129	21,753	74,948	19,169	35,480	2,503,281	504,559	109,140	20,908	157,857	216,473	42,997	114,94
Square KMs	276	2,492	1,896	3,673	4,426	4,025	4,841	101	267	530	289	2,778	24	222	421	44	630	1,117	328	247	3,201	147	2,962	87
Total Fleet Median Fuel Efficiency (L/100km)	48.8	16.7	17.3	21.7	30.4	66.8	22	22	22.7	20.9	21.1	24.2	29.6	37.7	57.9	45.1	28.8	25.6	25.9	36.7	36.9	23	24.2	
No. Units - High Fuel Use	5	8	23	3	9	0	33	24	62	4	36	340	3	22	2	11	455	134	76	6	25	37	22	
No. Units-High GHGs	5	9	25	4	9	0	33	25	50	5	38	336	3	21	2	10	413	134	78	6	26	33	21	
Tonnes)	1,089	787	2,786	595	2,546	451	3,479	1,289	3,088	685	2,328	25,785	556	2,310	576	1,602	33,752	7,449	11,425	397	4,457	3,382	1,555	4
GHG Intensity - Lifecycle	1.56	0.55	0.73	0.73	1.49	2.34	0.88	0.94	0.79	0.77	0.74	1.06	1.36	1.58	1.49	1.60	1.19	0.71	1.23	0.79	1.54	0.92	1.00	
GHG Emissions (Talipipe																								
Tonnes)	794	639	1,996	441	1,914	346	2,593	936	2,199	492	1,638	18,873	405	1,675	435	1,207	24,857		8,432	286	3,177	2,445	1,118	1
GHG Intensey - Taipipe	1.14	0.38	0.52	0.55	1.12	1.79	0.65	0.68	0.56	0.56	0.52	0.77	0.99	1.15	1.12	1.21	88.0		0.90	0.57	1.10	0.66	0.72	
Fleet Total Annual Distance Travelled (km)																								
Average Utilization (km)	697,386	1,436,522	3,812,775	811,558	1,711,384	193,139	3,971,875	1,372,601	3,909,047	25 286	3,164,177	24,392,258	409,363	1,453,274	386,605	1,002,097	28,329,414	10,482,324	9,323,243	12 959	2,897,634	3,690,424	1,553,815	2,12
C	52 787	22,100	22,035	21 272	31,862	27,001	16.055	4 020	18,189	17 110	21 875	14 466	10,102	6 780	24,103	10,000	9.581	19,315	30 155	25,000	11 122	16,915	9.676	1
P	16,138	21,010	22,045		39,511		33,758	9,148	12,865	30,158	12,303	16,217	19,576	12,537	39,241	13,828	12,195	18,374	13,744	14,900	16,248	12,525	15,974	12
V	9,434	26,611	19,364	13,173			45,601	9,466	12,637	39,341	12,250	15,839	13,319	3,589		10,596	11,244	14,088	13,815	615	18,261	12,600	11,265	12
S		21,263		36,201			46,072	14,954	15,991	15,656	16,643						19,866	13,105	24,065	26,839	13,252	10,727		
U Te		0.740	05 504	00.750			7,708		10.000			00.547	0.047	10 770		33,867	7 000	3.005	66,918		15 000	2,208		
T2	21,785	8,743	20,081	39,706	28.065		13,040	12 000	13,922	34,420 16,442	10,690	22,017	8,947	10.246	23,773	0.645	12 034	7,965	10,069	7 520	10,062	13,032	10.692	10
T3	11.546	19,112	26.030		34,429	27.591	19.375	5.738	4,993	1,708	10.822	10,000	14.720	27.929	10,111	8.212	5.470	5,020	12,537	6.006	29.861	13.226	14.015	12
T4								11,661	10,586				23,082						29,608	1,909	15,030	11,487	336	
T5								7,514																
No. Units Low Utilization	11	6	27	5	8	1	28	31	84	2	50	364	2	26	2	16	567	146	102		36	51	18	
Average Availability (%)	98.2	99.7	97.5	90.4	94.5	72.8	88.8	88.3	99.0		98.2	87.4			93.4		99.4		99.4	98.8	89.9	81		
interage semiana (auto)	5.2	8.0	6.5	16	8.5	79.4	4	2.5	2.6		5	38.7			19.6		2.2		2.1	4.2	3	33		
(\$)	\$1,742.00	\$209.00	\$48,101.00	\$2,233.00	\$568.00	\$43,686.00	\$1,056.00		\$600		\$1,130.00	\$1,845.00			\$47,521.00				\$194.00	\$923.00		\$5,135.00		\$28,49
Annual Total Cost of																								
Downtime (\$)	\$78,408.00	\$13,585.00	\$8,321,457.00	\$53,583.00	\$31,796.00	\$305,800.00	\$123,569.00		\$184,892.00		\$276,862.00	\$2,715,948.00			\$760,338.00				\$79,401.00	\$36,923.00		\$1,448,189.00		\$4,900,26
Annual Cost of Poering	\$314,177.00	\$252,220.00	\$710,080.00	\$165,242.00	\$642,017.00	\$100,988.00	\$945,567.00	\$444,403.00	\$801,087.00	\$151,505.00	\$666,147.00	\$1,803,653.00	\$164,489.00	\$617,541.00	\$168,160.00	\$490,366.00	\$9,060,846.00	\$2,606,780.00	\$2,745,220.00	\$114,780.00	\$1,192,063.00	\$936,264.00 \$	394,485.00	\$668,70
(may include PM if data not																								
provided)	\$142,665.00	\$83,419.00	\$1,337,267.00	\$153,269.00	\$454,511.00	\$49,376.00	\$226,815.00	\$242,602.00	\$1,102,656.00	\$95,435.00	\$1,060,066.00	\$11,880,918.00	\$132,570.00	\$0.00	\$216,654.00	\$480,764.00	\$6,736,628.00	\$4,598,400.00	\$1,140,101.00	\$161,250.00	\$620,040.00	\$1,632,356.00	\$0.00	\$1,182,01
Annual Cost of PM	\$66,850.00	\$20.067.00	\$76,560.00	\$49.665.00	\$130,308.00	\$9.376.00	\$352,845.00	\$120.093.00	\$193.126.00	\$2,659.00	\$0.00	\$6,235,086.00		\$0.00	\$14,183.00	_	\$10,707,761.00	\$0.00	\$1,469,334.00	\$17,700.00	\$169,820.00	\$343,738.00	749,347.00	\$164,62
Annual Cost of R&M Fuel																								_
Data	R	lichmon	dHill	Bramp	ton	Halton	Hills	Lakes	hore	Missis	sauga	Ottawa	Ov	ven Sou	nd	Sault S	te. Marie	TRO	CA	Jxbridge	Woo	odstock	Toro	nto

Screen Capture of Municipal Fleet Statistical Database

Shown in *Example of Municipal Fleet KPIs (below)* is an example of how our database can be used for making fleet to fleet comparisons. In this example is shown a sampling of several Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) from the ~100 KPIs in our municipal database. These KPIs are particularly valuable in completing the type of fleet review services sought by the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Example of Municipal Fleet KPIs

Key Performance Indicator (averages)	Urban	Rural
leet Age (total fleet)	5.7	5
Jtilization (kilometres, per unit)	15,532	26,707
Median Fuel Efficiency (total fleet)	29.9	32
Operating cost (cost per km/unit)	\$2.13	\$1.53
Maintenance Ratio (PM: Reactive)	.50	.45
Availability (uptime)	96.6%	93.9%
Area covered per vehicle (km ²)	788	3,090
Constituents served per vehicle	881	1,123
GHG Intensity (kg/km)	.83	.88
Appendix "F" – Fleet Surveys

Survey Name: Fleet Technicians - City of Kawartha Lakes Survey Response Status: Partial & Completed Filter: None Oct 11, 2020 2:13:54 PM

1. Please rate the following questions about job satisfaction.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Very poor/very strongly no	Poor/no	No opinion	Good/yes	Very good/very strongly yes
Overall, how would you rate your level of	0	2	0	2	2
job satisfaction?	0%	33%	0%	33%	33%
What is the likelihood you would refer	0	0	3	3	0
someone to work at the City of Kawartha	0%	0%	50%	50%	0%
Lakes Fleet and Transit Services?					
What do you feel is the likelihood that your	0	3	1	2	0
personal career goals and aspirations will	0%	50%	17%	33%	0%
be met in Fleet & Transit Services?					
Do you feel your current job is your only	0	0	0	3	3
career option in Fleet & Transit Services?	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%
Does another job within Fleet and Transit	0	1	1	3	1
Services that would get you off the shop	0%	17%	17%	50%	17%
floor some day have appeal to you?					
2 Comment(s)				_	

2. Please provide your candid feedback on the following questions. As always, we invite your comments in the text box below.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Almost never	Not often	No opinion	Sometimes	Most of the Time
Do you feel valued at work?	0	0	0	3	3
	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%
Do you receive recognition for your work	0	0	0	3	3
from the person you report to in Fleet &	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%
Transit Services?					
Do you feel that Fleet & Transit Services	0	0	0	2	4
management takes your opinions	0%	0%	0%	33%	67%
seriously?					
Do you feel Fleet & Transit Services	0	0	1	2	3
management is transparent in their	0%	0%	17%	33%	50%
actions?					
Are you comfortable giving upwards	0	0	0	2	4
feedback to your immediate supervisor?	0%	0%	0%	33%	67%
Are you comfortable giving upwards	0	0	0	0	6
feedback to fleet management?	0%	0%	0%	0%	100%
Do you feel your co-workers give each	0	0	0	4	2
others respect in the workplace?	0%	0%	0%	67%	33%
Do you have fun at work?	0	1	1	2	2
	0%	17%	17%	33%	33%
3 Comment(s)					

3. Thinking of the tools and shop equipment you work with and the fleet garage work environment, please rate the following statements.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Very Poor	Poor	No opinion	Good	Very Good
The tools and shop equipment provided	0	0	0	4	2
by Fleet & Transit Services are suitable for the work I do.	0%	0%	0%	67%	33%
Tools and shop equipment are maintained	0	0	0	4	2
properly.	0%	0%	0%	67%	33%
The garage bays and workspace are	0	1	1	3	1
suitable for me to carry out my duties.	0%	17%	17%	50%	17%
The garage and facilities are clean,	0	0	1	4	1
organized and well-maintained.	0%	0%	17%	67%	17%
Garage lighting is good.	0	0	1	2	3
	0%	0%	17%	33%	50%
Heating and ventilation are adequate.	0	1	1	1	3
	0%	17%	17%	17%	50%
Workplace Hazardous Materials	0	0	2	1	3
Information System (WHMIS) information	0%	0%	33%	17%	50%
is available to me readily for the products					
I am working with.					
I have adequate understanding and	0	0	2	2	2
training in WHMIS.	0%	0%	33%	33%	33%
I am provided suitable safety and personal	0	0	0	3	3
protective equipment to complete my job.	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%
	0	0	0	2	4

I believe management places a high 0%	0%	0%	33%	67%
emphasis on worker safety.				
5 Comment(s)				

4. Regarding safety training, please rate the following statements.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Rarely	Not enough	No opinion	Yes	Very often
Safety training is provided to me regarding	0	0	0	6	0
safe work procedures and practices.	0%	0%	0%	100%	0%
I receive training for new fleet equipment	0	2	0	3	1
and vehicles.	0%	33%	0%	50%	17%
I receive safety training on new	2	0	3	1	0
technologies such as electric vehicles.	33%	0%	50%	17%	0%
I receive safe driver training for the types	0	1	2	3	0
of fleet vehicles I maintain.	0%	17%	33%	50%	0%
I receive training on new shop equipment	0	1	1	4	0
and tools before I am expected to use	0%	17%	17%	67%	0%
them.					
1 Comment(s)					

5. Thinking of skills training, please rate your responses to the following statements.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	No	No opinion	Yes
I would be interested in completing more	0	0	6
skills-training if it meant moving to a higher	0%	0%	100%
pay scale/rate.			
I would be interested in completing more	1	1	4
skills-training without moving to a higher	17%	17%	67%
pay scale/rate.			
Management encourages me to complete	1	1	4
more skills-training.	17%	17%	67%
Management will provide skills training on	0	1	5
new technologies when added to the fleet	0%	17%	83%
(such as Hot Box training).			
2 Comment(s)			

6. Fleet and Transit Services operates on a Monday to Friday day shift basis with summer hours starting each June. In this section please provide your feedback about work schedules. Feel free to add your comments in the text box at the end of the questions.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Very dissatisfied	Somewhat dissatisfied	No opinion	Somewhat satisfied	Very satisfied
How satisfied are you with your shift	0	0	0	3	3
arrangement?	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%
How satisfied are you with the current	0	0	0	4	2
practice of summer hours?	0%	0%	0%	67%	33%
1 Comment(s)					

7. This section of our survey is about garage workspace/bays. Feel free to add your comments and ideas in the text box at the end of the questions.

Top number is the count of respondents selecting the option. Bottom % is percent of the total respondents selecting the option.	Strongly no	No	No opinion	Yes	Strongly yes
Do you sometimes find it difficult to find	1	0	0	3	2
available bays for completing	17%	0%	0%	50%	33%
repairs/maintenance?					
Do you feel the current fleet maintenance	3	3	0	0	0
facilities would be adequate to serve an	50%	50%	0%	0%	0%
increased fleet size?					
Do you feel that the current fleet	0	0	0	6	0
maintenance facilities are a safe work	0%	0%	0%	100%	0%
environment? (please explain which					
garage/facility)					
4 Comment(s)					

8. This section is about your compensation package, including your pay rate, benefits package and paid vacation time. Please indicate your opinion abut the following statements.

Top number is the count of respondents	Strongly disagree	Disagree	No opinion	Agree	Strongly agree
selecting the option. Bottom % is percent					
of the total respondents selecting the					
option.					

My compensation package, including pay rate and scale, benefits package and paid vacation time is fair.	4 67%	1 17%	0 0%	1 17%	0 0%
My pay rate and scale are fair.	4	2	0	0	0
	67%	33%	0%	0%	0%
My benefits package is fair.	1	0	1	4	0
	17%	0%	17%	67%	0%
My paid vacation allowance is fair.	2	1	0	3	0
	33%	17%	0%	50%	0%
5 Comment(s)					

9. Finally, this is the "freestyle" section! Say your mind.... do you have additional comments or suggestions we've not covered in this survey? Whether it's about work/life balance, training, safety, hours of work... here's a chance to speak your mind. How can your department improve? There are no right or wrong answers here... all comments are appreciated and anonymous. Let's get creative!

6 Response(s)

10. How long have you been in your current position? Please note: this is an optional question - answer only if you choose to do so.

	Number of Response(s)	Response Ratio
Less that 1 year	0	0.0%
More than 1 and up to 3 years	1	14.2%
More than 3 and up to 5 years	0	0.0%
More than 5 and up to 7 years	4	57.1%
More than 7 and up to 10 years	2	28.5%

More than 10 years	0	0.0%	
No Responses	0	0.0%	
Total	7	100%	
0 Comment(s)			

11. What best describes your role in the Fleet and Transit Services department ?Please note: this is an optional question - answer only if you choose to do so.

	Number of Response(s)	Response Ratio
Lead Technician	2	28.5%
Licensed Technician	2	28.5%
Fleet Supervisor	0	0.0%
Fleet Manager	0	0.0%
No Responses	3	42.8%
Total	7	100%
1 Comment(s)		

Appendix "G" - Case Study of Fully Bundled Lease Charges

Case Study – Toronto Hydro

At Toronto Hydro, a concept the utility described as a 'fully-bundled, total cost recovery vehicle lease system' was implemented, with inter-departmental full-service vehicle 'lease' charges starting in 2004. The utility's fleet department was restructured in a way that resembled a retail full-service fleet management (leasing) company, including monthly full-maintenance vehicle lease payment invoices issued to internal user-groups.

At Toronto Hydro, the change had strikingly positive results. Key features of Toronto Hydro's monthly vehicle charges to its user departments include:

- Vehicle "lease" payments based on the cost of capital for each unit and acquisition cost apportioned over the planned life cycle
- Service Level Agreements for all user-groups that set out Fleet's commitments and charges
- Preventive maintenance fees based on average annual PM costs for each type of vehicle
- Routine repair costs based on the average annual cost of reactive repairs for each type of vehicle

The fully-bundled lease charges for all directly-assigned vehicles at Toronto Hydro were (and still are today) transferred monthly by journal entries for all vehicles assigned to user departments/divisions. In this business model, the fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle charges are the full responsibility of the assigned user departments.

When this plan was implemented, most of Toronto Hydro's line managers were quick to surrender underutilized and redundant vehicles. They also became supporters of acquiring new vehicles that would cost their departments less to acquire and maintain. Their motivation was to reduce their departmental costs.

For Toronto Hydro, this new practice was a visible reminder of actual vehicle costs to managers of vehicle user departments. As a result of this change, Toronto Hydro's fleet rapidly downsized from over 1,000 units to a lean 750. The fleet's operating costs decreased by several million dollars annually. The company, then operating in a newly deregulated business environment, continues this successful business structure today and has continued to benefit from even further reductions in fleet size and cost.

In addition to their vehicle lease charges, Toronto Hydro vehicle user departments/divisions are invoiced for the fuel consumed by their assigned vehicles. Fuel usage reports that are issued monthly to each user department/division help inform managers about the fuel efficiency of their assigned vehicle(s), and this highlights the exception units that are under their control. These reports create awareness which ensures buy-in for reducing fuel costs at the end-user levels of the organization.

For example, if a user department does not buy into fuel-use reduction practices or if it fails to guide its drivers to act responsibly around fuel conservation, only their department suffers the costs, instead of all user-groups. Departments that encourage fuel conservation benefit from lower operating costs for their assigned fleet vehicles.

Toronto Hydro's department/division managers became acutely aware of the fuel-efficiency of their vehicle assignment and fuel costs and became keenly interested in and empowered to help reduce their vehicles' fuel usage. This reduced their department's costs and as so, the entire organization became the beneficiary.

At-Fault Collisions and Negligent Damages

In the example of Toronto Hydro, the full cost of any *at-fault* collisions and *negligent* damages to vehicles are charged directly to the user department/division whose driver caused the damages. Costs for these preventable damages are not included in their vehicle lease charges.

This best management practice encourages line managers to take responsibility for their drivers who display bad driving behaviors or those who may be habitually abusive toward vehicles and equipment. The practice places responsibility for driver behaviors where it belongs – in the hands of managers who are best-positioned to deal with the issue of their drivers' poor driving habits.

Fully-Bundled Charges versus Reserve Funds

As described, Toronto Hydro's fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle lease costs, including all fixed and variable costs, are passed on to each user department/division each month for their assigned vehicles. In that sense, fully-bundled, total cost recovery vehicle charges, as described, resemble a traditional 'reserve fund' in that assigned vehicle operating costs are calculated which fully offset the fleet department's costs for all vehicles and provide capital for replacements at the end of their useful life cycles. That's where the resemblance stops. For many municipal fleets, reserve funds tend to create a sense of entitlement in line managers. User-group managers may feel entitled to receive a new replacement vehicle despite their assigned unit still having remaining useful life. They may feel this way because their user department/division has been contributing to their assigned vehicle's capital replacement fund from the beginning (Note: City of Kawartha Lakes departments do not contribute to the asset maintenance reserve fund).

Reserve funds are typically topped up through hourly vehicle charge-out rates captured on work orders/time tickets. However, department(s) are known to hold the keys to a vehicle(s) for full days yet post only their hourly charges for a fraction of the day. This practice prevents usage of the vehicle(s) by any other departments. Consequently, if this occurs repeatedly, there will be a shortfall in the reserve fund when the time comes for replacement of the vehicle(s).

In the fully-bundled total cost recovery vehicle charges concept we've described, the Fleet Department continues to 'own' all units but transfers bundled vehicle lease costs to user departments/divisions each month, just as a third-party vehicle full-service lease provider would.

There are many advantages to this business structure. Key features of the 'fully-bundled, total cost recovery' business model concept are:

- Creates awareness of fleet which usually instills a desire to surrender under-utilized vehicles
- User-department managers and Fleet Services will share in the goal of keeping capital costs down for new, replacement units.
- Encourages fuel conservation by placing responsibility for fuel costs within the userdepartment/division to which the vehicle's driver reports
- Encourages accident and damage reduction by placing responsibility for costs within the userdepartment/division to which the vehicle's driver reports
- User-department/division managers who more carefully manage their assigned fleet vehicles can decrease their department/divisions' operating budgets

Disclaimer

This report (including any enclosures and attachments) has been prepared for the exclusive use and benefit of the City of Kawartha Lakes and solely for the purpose for which it is provided. Unless RSI provides express prior written consent, no part of this report should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to any third party. We do not accept any liability if this report is used for an alternative purpose from which it is intended, nor to any third party in respect of this report.

Analysis in the attached report is based on 2019 fleet data prepared by the City of Kawartha Lakes Fleet & Transit Services. In the dataset provided were a number of gaps and inconsistencies which were corrected by RSI-FC based on the best available information. RSI-FC is not responsible for errors or omissions, or for the results obtained from the use of this information. All information in this site is provided "as is", with no guarantee of completeness, accuracy, or timeliness of the results obtained from the use of this information.

The information in the report is not an alternative to legal, financial, taxation or accountancy advice from appropriately qualified professionals. For specific questions about any legal, financial, taxation, accountancy or other specialized matters the City of Kawartha Lakes should consult appropriately qualified professionals. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing paragraph, we do not represent, warrant, undertake or guarantee that the use of guidance in the report will lead to any particular outcomes or results.



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	RS2021-004
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001
Description:	Proposed Amendments to Create a Proactive Approach to Licensing Docks and Boathouses Within the City of Kawartha Lakes
Author and Title:	Sharri Dyer, Manager – Realty Services

Recommendations:

That Report RS2021-004, Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001, be received;

That staff be directed to obtain public input on the proposed policy and report back to Council by the end of Q3;

That By-law 2018-017, "City Lands Encroachment By-Law", as amended to date, be further amended to update the fees associated with dock and boathouse encroachments;

That By-law 2016-009, "Signing Authority By-law", as amended to date, be further amended to delegate signing authority to the City Solicitor for dock licenses with 10-year terms;

That an amending by-law be advanced to Council for adoption, accordingly; and

That these recommendations be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Department Head:	
Financial/Legal/HR/Other:	
Chief Administrative Officer:	

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 2 of 9

Background:

At the Council Meeting of February 13, 2018, Council adopted the following resolution:

CR2018-074 Moved By Councillor Dunn Seconded By Councillor James

That Report 2018-006, Proposed By-law to Regulate Encroachments onto City Property, be received;

That the City Lands Encroachment By-law attached as Appendix A be approved;

That the policy entitled, Dock Encroachments, attached as Appendix B to Report 2018-006, be adopted and numbered for inclusion in the City's Policy Manual;

That the Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law 2016-206 be amended accordingly; and

That the necessary by-laws be brought forward for adoption.

Carried

The framework of CP2018-001 – Dock Encroachments allows the City to deal with dock encroachments in a reactive manner, by offering License Agreements if an application is received directly from a dock owner, or if a complaint is received by Municipal Law Enforcement regarding an encroaching dock.

Currently the only areas that are regulated by License Agreements are Thurstonia and Kenstone Beach. In both cases, the dock encroachments were historically permitted by the former Townships, and continued to be allowed upon amalgamation through a permit system run through Community Services. When the permits for those areas expired in 2018, both areas became regulated under CP2018-001 and dock owners were offered License Agreements for a 5-year term in accordance with that policy.

One of the major complaints received from Thurstonia and Kenstone Beach residents was that they felt that it was unfair that they were required to pay annual License fees and maintain insurance on their docks, when there are other areas within the City where docks exist on City property without any formal agreements in place.

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 3 of 9

The purpose of this Report is to provide Council with proposed amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001, which will allow the City to regulate areas on a proactive basis and therefore create a fair process City-wide.

Rationale:

The proposed amendments to Dock Encroachments Policy CP2018-001 (attached as Appendix A) adds details to clarify certain aspects that were found to be too vague within the existing policy, and allows the City to take a proactive approach to regulating dock encroachments.

Conditions for Approval

The proposed amendments to CP2018-001 will add in several conditions for approval, including requirements regarding spacing between structures and spacing from the travelled road.

Specifically, the proposed amendments set out a requirement for 10 metres (33 feet) spacing between each structure. This is in keeping with Trent Severn Waterway's desire to allow enough space to draw a vessel between structures. Further, the required spacing will prevent overcrowding, which in turn creates a more pleasing aesthetic of the waterfront area.

A further spacing requirement sets out that structures must be set back a minimum of three metres from the edge of the travelled road. This will protect the motoring public that leaves the roadway. This, in turn, will result in reduced exposure to costs to the municipality.¹ This setback also lessens the strike hazard during snowplow operations and allows sufficient space for snow storage.

Clarity is added to the requirement that the dock/boathouse owner maintain an active insurance policy on the licensed structure, with the City of Kawartha Lakes added as an additional insured to the policy.

The fees associated with a License Agreement for a dock or boathouse have been updated to reflect separate amounts for each type of structure. This was another common complaint from Licensees in Thurstonia and Kenstone, that it was unfair to charge the same fee for a small dock as a large boathouse structure.

¹ The City is currently paying \$224,000.00 per year in increased insurance costs relating to one incident where a driver left the travelled roadway and struck a stump within the road allowance.

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 4 of 9

The fee for a dock is proposed to be updated to \$400.00 annually, and the fee for a boathouse is proposed to be set at \$250.00 per wall (an increase from the current fee of \$150.00). A structure with a roof but no solid walls will be considered equivalent to a four-walled structure for the purposes of the annual fee, given the increased risk of injury if the structure is moved or dislodged by wind. The increased fees are to reflect the fact that dock/boathouse space on municipal property is a privilege that not all residents are afforded, accordingly it should result in covering the costs of City staff administering the License Agreements, as well as a profit to the City.

Categories

A further proposed change is to distinguish licensed areas into two categories. Currently, CP2018-001 only allows for the City to enter into License Agreements for five year terms. The proposed amendments will create two categories:

Category 1 – docks and boathouses are located directly across from the property owner. Approved structures in these areas would qualify for a 10-year term.

Category 2 – docks and boathouses are not located directly across from the property owner. Approved structures in these areas would qualify for a five-year term.

As areas come into compliance with all the requirements set out in the amended Dock Encroachment Policy, categorization would be re-evaluated at the time the License Agreements are to be renewed and could potentially move from five-year terms to 10year terms.

Process

Realty Services will determine which area is to be licensed each year. A site visit will be completed by Realty Services staff to review the area and take photos to assist in determining the most likely owner of each structure.

Realty Services staff will reach out to the area residents to advise them that the area is to be licensed and to provide an application and instructions for completing the licensing process.

Residents will be required to submit a completed application form, recent photos of their structure (inclusive of full extent of encroachment, e.g. dock, boathouse, stairs, handrails, etc.), measurements of the dock/boathouse and associated structures, a recent tax bill (as confirmation of ownership in the licensed area), and the application fee of \$125.00.

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 5 of 9

If Realty Services staff is unable to determine a likely owner for a structure, the Municipal Law Enforcement Office will post notice on the structure requesting that the owner contact Realty Services within thirty days, or to remove their structure within thirty days, or face removal under the Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.

Applicants will have thirty days to submit all the required documents. If a completed application is not received within thirty days, the structure will be removed pursuant to Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.

The timeline will be strictly adhered to in order to lessen the burden of administration and to keep the timeline for the completion of the License Agreement process consistent for each area.

Once the thirty-day deadline has passed, the Realty Services division will determine which structures should be approved and which structures should be denied, based on the criteria in the amended Dock Encroachment Policy. This is a change from the current policy wherein the Land Management Committee is to approve or deny each structure. In order to streamline the process, this has been delegated to the Realty Services division.

The proposed amendments clarify that backlot owners will not be approved for a License Agreement. This is to assist with the requirement that there be a minimum of 10 metres spacing between each structure and to prevent overcrowding in each area. Further, this will allow for dock spaces to be provided to property owners directly across the street from the waterfront, giving them a similar benefit afforded to those who live on a shoreline road allowance where a travelled road does not exist.

For all those residents whose structures are not approved for a License Agreement, they will be informed by letter (with a copy to the Ward Councillor) and advised that they have thirty days to remove their structure or to appeal the decision by making a deputation to Council. Should the structure not be removed, or request for a deputation made, within thirty days, the structure shall be removed by the City, with the costs payable by the dock/boathouse owner.

For those residents whose structures have been approved, they will be advised by letter sent by Realty Services staff. Once provided with a License Agreement, the Licensee will have 60 days to return a signed License Agreement, payment of the applicable License Fee, and proof of acceptable insurance. If any of the required items are not received within 60 days, Realty Services will send a final letter advising that any

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 6 of 9

outstanding items must be provided within 30 days or the dock/boathouse shall be removed in accordance with City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.

This timeline is necessary in order to lessen the time associated with the administration of the License Agreements and to provide a fair and consistent timeline for all Licensees to complete the process.

A further proposed amendment clarifies that new boathouse structures will not be approved, given the increased risk of injury, spills, costs of removal, and – in the case of Category 2 areas – overcrowding.

Also, while existing boathouses and non-compliant structures (e.g. oversized docks, docks owned by backlot owners, etc.) may be approved for License Agreements initially, they will be approved on the basis that they are to be maintained and repaired only. Expansion or replacement of these structures will not be permitted.

Licensees will be required to inform Realty Services if they are selling their property and intend to transfer their existing License Agreement to the new property owner. The new owner will be required to pay a fee of \$125.00 to cover the costs associated with effecting the transfer. The intended Licensee will be required to return a signed License Agreement and approved insurance upon closing of the property sale.

If a Licensee does not notify Realty Services of an intended transfer, the original Licensee will remain responsible for all fees and insurance requirements until such time as Realty Services is notified that a transfer of the License Agreement is required.

The proposed amendments further specify that any applicant or Licensee who acts in a manner that is contrary to the City of Kawartha Lakes Management Directive MD2016-013 "Workplace Violence and Harassment" will not be approved for a License Agreement, or will have their License Agreement revoked and their structure removed at the applicant/Licensee's sole expense.

Funds from License Agreements

The current CP2018-001 directs that the funds received from the Dock License Agreements are to be deposited into the Property Reserve to assist with future land acquisitions and capital improvements. The proposed amendments will place the funds into a general reserve to help offset the cost of administering the Dock License program.

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 7 of 9

Proposed Amendments to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017

By-Law 2018-017 sets out the minimum annual fees for various types of encroachments, including docks and boathouses. Given the proposed amendments to CP2018-001, amendments will be required to By-Law 2018-017 to update the minimum fees related to docks and boathouses.

Public Input

As this policy will affect residents throughout the entire City of Kawartha Lakes, Realty Services feels that it would be appropriate to seek out the opinions of the residents with regards to the general idea of a proactive licensing policy, as well as specific aspects, such as cost and standards for dock and boathouse structures.

Other Alternatives Considered:

Option 1

Council could decide to consider the implementation of the proposed policy without seeking public input. This is not recommended, as a major complaint following the approval of By-Law 2018-017, being the City Lands Encroachment By-Law, was that the public was unaware that these changes were coming into effect. As this policy will affect many residents throughout the City of Kawartha Lakes, including those who have had docks on City lands for many years, Staff feel that obtaining public input will provide more transparency in advance of the implementation of the proposed policy. Further, obtaining public input will allow all residents, not just those with docks on City lands, to provide their opinions on the proposed policy.

Option 2

Council could decide not to implement the proposed Dock License Policy and continue to deal with dock encroachments through CP2018-001 – Dock Encroachments. This is not recommended, as CP2018-001 allows only for a reactive approach to dock encroachments. Unless a dock owner submits an application to the Land Management Committee or a complaint regarding the dock encroachment is received by Municipal Law Enforcement, the City is unable to regulate dock encroachments in a designated area. This creates an unfair circumstance where some areas may be subject to License Agreements and the associated fees and insurance requirements for many years while other areas remain exempt because a complaint has not been received and the residents have not sought out License Agreements on their own.

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 8 of 9

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

The recommendations set out in this Report align with the following strategic priority:

- Good Government
 - Asset Management

Financial/Operation Impacts:

Proactive enforcement of the Encroachment By-law in relation to docks will assist capital works on the roads in the identified neighbourhoods. In other words, it will allow for upgrades to roads in the areas identified.

Proactive enforcement of the Encroachment By-law in relation to docks is anticipated to have a staffing pressure on Municipal Law Enforcement Office and Realty Services Division for the time period set out in Appendix C, attached. The addition of 1 FTE – perhaps through annual contract – to each of these Divisions for the time period set out in Appendix C will allow these Divisions to continue to process existing workloads without a slowdown in service delivery.

It is anticipated that Municipal Law Enforcement Office will require an additional \$25,000.00 per year to remove non-complying structures, for the time period set out in Appendix C, attached.

Additional budget and staffing may be requested in the 2022 budget for program implementation.

Consultations:

Senior Management Team Trent Severn Waterway

Attachments:

Appendix A – Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 (track changes)



Appendix A -Proposed Amendme

Report RS2021-004 Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 Page 9 of 9

Appendix B – Proposed Amendments to Dock Encroachment Policy CP2018-001 (clean copy)



Appendix B -Proposed Amendme

Appendix C – Proposed Plan for Pro-active Enforcement of By-law 2018-017 relating to Docking Encroachments



Appendix C -Long-Term Docking

Department Head E-mail: rcarlson@kawarthalakes.ca

Department Head: Robyn Carlson



Council Policy No.:	CP2018-001
Council Policy Name:	Dock Encroachments
Date Approved by Council:	Echruphy 12 2019
Date Approved by Council.	rebluary 15, 2016
Date revision approved by	
Council:	
Related SOP, Management	
Directive Council Policy Form	
Directive, Obunch i Olicy, i Olifi	

Policy Statement and Rationale:

The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes requires policies and procedures to regulate dock <u>and boathouse</u> encroachments onto City-owned land. This policy statements sets out the philosophy, principles and procedures for the management of privately-owned docks on land owned by the Corporation. This policy is to be used in conjunction with the City Lands Encroachment By-law.

Section 207 of the Municipal Act, 2001 requires municipalities to adopt policies regarding the sale and other disposition of municipally owned land. To promote consistent, transparent and equitable processes in disposal in a manner consistent with the best interest of the City.

Scope:

This policy covers all real property owned or to be acquired by The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Definitions:

Dock:	a structure extending along the shore or out from the shore into a
	body of water, to which boats may be moored or by which people
	can access the water.
Boathouse:	a structure at the edge of a body of water used for housing boats or
	gear for water enjoyment, including a structure that consists of no
	solid walls.
Backlot Owner:	any property owner who does not live directly on the shoreline road
	allowance



All definitions herein are as set out in the City Lands Encroachment By-law and the Land Management Policy.

Background:

The City <u>does notis</u> currently <u>licensing</u>regulate dock <u>and boathouse</u> encroachments on<u>in</u> <u>municipally-owned</u> shoreline road allowances or <u>municipally-owned</u> waterfront property, with the exception of Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach (both of which are shoreline road allowances), which are currently managed by the Community Services Department.

Accordingly, many dock <u>and boathouse</u> encroachments currently exist <u>in other areas</u> that have never been expressly permitted by the City, nor have been required to relocate, <u>despite passage of the City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017</u>.

The Community Services Department issues a 2-year license for the docks at Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach. The Realty Services Division of the CAO's Department currently issues 5-year License Agreements for the approved docks and boathouses located in Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach.

There is a need for uniformity in dock and boathouse License administration throughout the City of Kawartha Lakes. In 2010, the City passed the following resolution:

Moved by Councillor Luff, seconded by Councillor Strangway,

RESOLVED THAT Report LMC2010-048, *"Unauthorized Dock Placement on Municipally Owned Land within the City of Kawartha Lakes"*, be received; and **THAT** staff be directed to develop an Encroachment Policy for docks on municipal property based upon the following principles:

- 1. THAT such a policy be structured to deal with matters on the basis only where access to waterfront is being adversely affected;
- 2. THAT such a policy be structured to protect the general public's interest in access to the waterfront;
- 3. THAT such a policy be structured to ensure the municipality's rights as landowner, along with protecting the municipality from liability;
- 4. THAT such a policy contemplate a license, permit or encroachment agreement process for those residents wishing to ensure longer term use of municipal property and where previously referenced principles are not impacted; and

THAT staff be directed to bring forward a report to Council in 2011 with a DRAFT policy as outlined above.

CARRIED CR2010-1206

That policy was never brought forward in 2011 as required by the resolution, and is now being brought forward otherwise in accordance with the direction.



The average dock length licensed under the Community Services program is 15 feet. Pursuant to the Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law 2016-206 Schedule D, a dock license costs \$11.25 per foot as of January 1, 2018 and is subject to increase annually (by cost of living index) pursuant to that by-law. The result is \$168.75 for a two year period.

Philosophy:

Approval for 5 <u>or 10</u> year <u>license agreements</u> terms will <u>be</u> issued where the <u>following</u> conditions to approval have been met:

- Use <u>of the dock or boathouse</u> does not adversely affect the use by others of the property (shoreline use will not be exclusive; dock<u>or boathouse</u> use <u>will</u> <u>be</u> exclusive) __
- minimum 10 metre spacing between structures
- Use does not adversely affect the ability of the City to use, access and maintain its property
 - All docks, decks, stairs, and handrails must be set back a minimum of 3 metres from the edge of the travelled road, to allow for snow plowing and snow storage
- Use does not adversely affect the ability of the general public to use the area adjacent to the dock, and to access the water
- Use does not result in overcrowding of the waterfront
- Use does not adversely affect the aesthetics of the area
- Use does not result in erosion or degradation of fish habitat
- Federal and provincial permits are the obligation of the dock owner
- Existing crib docks to be replaced with post/ floating docks upon repair
- Continued obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to maintain and insure dockan active insurance policy on the dock and/or boathouse with The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes added as an additional insured
- Continued obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to maintain the dock and/or boathouse in good repair
- Obligation to post permit number on dock and notice of private property
- Obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to make the following payments:
 - \$125.00 application <u>fee</u> to the Land Management Committee
 - o Additional \$150400.00 per year (docks)
 - Additional \$250.00 \$1,000.00 per year (boathouses)

Licenses will only be issued for private docks or boathouses on shoreline road allowances. Licenses will not be issued for private docks or boathouses on roads or road allowances leading to water, or water access parcels.

Upon default of any condition, <u>the license agreement</u> can be revoked on 30 days' notice. Structures left following deadline for removal will be <u>considered</u> abandoned and



City may remove and charge the applicant for the costs of demolition and removal (pursuant to the City Lands Encroachment By-law).

Policy:

The Realty Services Division of the CAO's Department will reach out to residents with docks on City-owned land in one or more area(s) each year where docks and boathouses are currently encroaching in order to provide uniformity in how the different areas are treated. Realty Services will decide in which areas to begin this process each year.

Existing docks and boathouses will fall into one of two categories:

- Category 1 The docks and boathouses are located directly across the property owned by the dock/boathouse owner (e.g. Jessie Avenue). Approved docks and boathouses in these areas will qualify for a 10-year License Agreement.
 - In in the event that the road is untraveled and unassumed, and in the event of no public or City use, the Realty Services division or the Land Management Committee, will recommend that the shoreline road allowance be stopped up, closed, and sold to the adjacent landowners, pursuant to the CP2018-013 Disposal of Real Property Policy and By-Law 2018-020 Disposition of Municipal Real Property, as amended.
- Category 2 The docks and boathouses are not all located directly across from the property owned by the dock/bothouse owner (e.g. Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach). Approved docks and boathouses in these areas will qualify for a 5-year License Agreement. Where persons approach the City to locate a dock on City property, or to obtain approval for an existing dock on City property, the following procedure is followed:

Once Realty Services has determined which area(s) to license in a given year, the following process will be followed:

- An application is made to the Land Management Committee via the Clerks in the Realty Services Division. The Realty Services division determines which area(s) will commence dock licensing for a given year. Upon determination, Realty Services staff will visit the area and take pictures of the existing structures and determine the likely owner(s).
- 2. The Realty Services Clerk takes the matter to the next regularly scheduled Land Management Committee – which meets monthly – for review.Realty Services presents the proposed area for consideration at a Land Management Committee meeting. If a member of the Committee is aware of a reason why the area



should not be licensed at this time (e.g. planned works in the area which might significantly disrupt the area's use of docks/boathouses) or indicates that specific sections of an area would not be appropriate for licensing (e.g. shoreline is narrow and may be required for stabilization work to uphold the integrity of a travelled road, or shoreline is narrow and docks/boathouses would be too close to a travelled road to the extendt that they would impede road maintenance operations), Realty Services will take the information into account and potentially revise the timeline for that area.

- 3. <u>Realty Services then reaches out to the residents in the area and advises them</u> <u>that their area will begin the licensing process. Prior to contacting the property</u> <u>owners, the Ward Councillor will be notified.</u>
- 4. The initial correspondence from Realty Services will advise the residents that they must submit an application to the Land Management Committee (via the Law Clerks in the Realty Services division) to begin this process. An application will only be considered complete when the following documents are provided:
 - Application form (with all required information and signatures)
 - A recent photo of all structures requested for licensing (must show full extent of encroachments, including all stairs, decks, installed docks, boathouses, etc.)
 - Measurements of the dock/boathouse and all associated structures
 - A recent tax bill
 - Application fee (currently \$125.00)
- 5. If there are any structures in an area for which Realty Services staff are unable to determine the likely owner, a Municipal Law Enforcement Officer will post a notice on the structure to notify all potential dock/boathouse owners in the area of the requirement to submit an application for license within 30 days' from the posting of the notice, or to remove the dock/boathouse within that timeframe, or face removal pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.
- 6. <u>After notification, the dock/boathouse owner will have 30 days to complete the application process.</u>
- 7. If an application fails to be received for any of the items noted in the site visit conducted by Realty Services staff, that item will be removed pursuant to the City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.
- 8. Once the 30 day deadline has passed, The Land Management Committee analyzes the offer, considering the philosophy set out in this Policy the Realty Services division will determine which applications should be approved and which applications should be denied, based on the criteria set out in this policy.



- 9. If the dock/boathouse is in a Category 1 area, the structure will be eligible for a 10-year License Agreement, if approved. If the dock is in a Category 2 area, the structure will be eligible for a 5-year License Agreement, if approved.
- 10. When an application comes in for a new or existing dock in an area where other encroachments exist, whether pursuant to encroachment license or not, the Municipal Law Enforcement Office will notify all dock owners in the area of the requirement to make application for license within 30 days' of the notice, or to remove the dock within that time, or face removal pursuant to the Encroachment By-law. Once every dock in the area has either removed their dock, made application to the Realty Services Division for a license, or has had their dock removed by the Municipal Law Enforcement Office, the Land Management Committee will consider the applications for all docks in the area at the same meeting of the Land Management Committee, in order to provide fair and consistent treatment to all dock owners. Prior to contacting the owners for enforcement, the Ward Councillor will be notified. The Realty Services division, or the Land Management Committee (which will review individual requests for a dock/boathouse License Agreement in an area that has not been previously reviewed by the Committee) will not approve dock/boathouse License Agreements for back lot owners.

If the Land Management Committee reviews an individual request for a dock/boathouse License Agreement, the Committee will make a determination concerning the entire area, but this will not affect the timing of practive licensing of the area.

If the Land Management Committee does not agree on treatment of the matter, then the Realty Services Manager shall determine the direction to be taken

- 11. <u>New boathouses will not be approved for a License Agreement due to increased</u> risk of injury, spills, costs of removal, and – in the case of Category 2 areas – overcrowding.
- 12. Existing boathouses and non-compliant structures constructed prior to the implementation of this policy may be repaired and maintained only. Expansion or replacement will not be permitted.
- 13. Where a decision has been rendered not in favour of the applicant, the <u>Realty</u> <u>Services division will notify the Ward Councillorapplicant will be notified</u> of the decision, and the fact that the applicant can make a deputation to Council if they <u>disagree with the decision</u>.



- 14. Where a decision has been rendered in favour of the applicant, the Realty Services Division will notify the applicant of the decision, and the costs of proceeding with the application License Agreement:
 - (\$150400.00 per annum for a 5 year termthe applicable term for a dock (increased annually by the Cost of Living Index)
 - Boathouse costs will be based on a charge per wall of the boathouse -\$250.00 per wall per annum (increased annually by the Cost of Living Index)
 - If a boathouse has a roof, but no solid walls, the annual fee will be the same as a four walled structure (\$1,000.00), given the increased risk of injury if the structure is moved or dislodged by wind.
 - If a survey is required by the Land Management Committee, then a deposit sufficient from the applicant to cover the costs will be required along with the costs of the license prior to proceeding.
- 15. Once all costs are collected the applicant has confirmed that they are agreeable to all the associated costs, the Realty Services Division will provide a license for execution to the applicant. The applicant will have 60 days to obtain acceptable insurance and provide a copy of the Certificate of Insurance to the Realty Services division.
- 16. Once an executed License Agreement, eCertificate of iInsurance, and applicable payment (first annual payment or amount for full term) is are received by the Realty Services Division, the City Solicitor will execute the ILicense Agreement in accordance with the Signing Authority By-law 2016-009.
- 17. Once the License Agreementa has been fully executed, Realty Services will send the fully executed License Agreement and Dock Sign to the Licensee. Covering correspondence will note that the Dock Sign must be installed on the licensed structure so as to be visible from the road allowance, and that any replacement signs will be provided at the Licensee's sole expense.
- 18. If any of the required documents (executed License Agreement, Certificate of Insurance, and applicable payment) are not received with in the 60 day timeframe, Realty Services will send a final notice requiring the applicant to provide any outstanding items within 30 days or to remove their structure, or face removal pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017. If the outstanding items are not received within the 30 day timeframe, Realty Services will close the file and arrange for removal of the items at the applicant's expense, pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.
- 19. When a Licensee sells their property and the new owner wishes to have the existing dock/boathouse License Agreement transferred to them, they must pay a



\$125.00 applicant fee (for the administrative costs associated with the transfer of the License Agreement).

- 20. Licensees must notify Realty Services at least 30 days in advance of their closing date to advise that a transfer of the License Agreement is required. If prior notice is not provided, the existing License Agreement will remain valid until such time as the new owner has completed the process and has signed a new License Agreement. The original Licensee will be responsible to maintain insurance coverage until such time as the new dock/boathouse License Agreement takes effect.
- 21. Any applicant or Licensee who acts in a manner that is considered to be any form of workplace violence or harassment against City of Kawartha Lakes employees as per the City of Kawartha Lakes Management Directive MD2016-013 "Workplace Violence and Harassment", will not be approved for a License Agreement or will have their existing License Agreement terminated immediately. Removal of the dock/boathouse will be at the applicant/Licencee's sole expense.

Where a complaint is made about an encroachment on City property, the Municipal Law Enforcement Office will advise the owner that he/she has 30 days to remove the dock <u>or</u> <u>boathouse</u>, or make application to the Land Management Committee for a license, or face removal, in accordance with the Encroachment Policy. If an application is made, the above process is followed.

Financial Considerations: Accounting for Proceeds from Dock Licenses

In all circumstances<u>Unless</u> otherwise directed by Council resolution, the proceeds from the license of municipal property will be deposited in<u>to general reserves to offset the</u> <u>costs of administration of the docking program.</u> a corporate account for future land acquisition and capital improvements to existing property (including demolition of structures).

Council may direct the net proceeds from the license of any municipal property in a manner not provided for in this Policy.

Revision History:

Proposed Date of Review:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By
0.0	February 13, 2018	Initial Release	



1.0	Pre boa wat lice allo Pre boa ava Set enfi End witt boa ava Set enfi End witt boa ava ava Set enfi End witt boa ava ava ava ava ava ava ava ava ava a	event licensing dock and athouses on roads leading to ter and water access parcels; ensing of shoreline road owances only event licensing docks and athouses in urban areas – ailable in rural areas only tout process for proactive orcement of the City Lands croachment By-Law 2018-017 h respect to dock and athouse encroachments ovide that the Land nagement Committee will set overall docking plan for an ea (e.g. determine if it is a tegory 1 or Category 2 area), ow Realty Services to make the erminations on whether ividual docks/boathouses mply with the policy. In the ent of an application for an area t hasn't been reviewed by the hod Management Committee, the mmittee will review the blication and make a termination of the entire area rease the annual fee for dock d boathouse encroachments d required setback of 3 metres m the edge of a travelled road d required spacing of 10 metres ween structures	Realty Services





Council Policy No.:	CP2018-001
Council Policy Name:	Dock Encroachments
Date Approved by Council:	February 13, 2018
Date revision approved by	
Council:	
Related SOP, Management	
Directive, Council Policy, Form	

Policy Statement and Rationale:

The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes requires policies and procedures to regulate dock and boathouse encroachments onto City-owned land. This policy statements sets out the philosophy, principles and procedures for the management of privately-owned docks on land owned by the Corporation. This policy is to be used in conjunction with the City Lands Encroachment By-law.

Section 207 of the Municipal Act, 2001 requires municipalities to adopt policies regarding the sale and other disposition of municipally owned land. To promote consistent, transparent and equitable processes in disposal in a manner consistent with the best interest of the City.

Scope:

This policy covers all real property owned or to be acquired by The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Definitions:

Dock:	a structure extending along the shore or out from the shore into a body of water, to which boats may be moored or by which people can access the water.
Boathouse:	a structure at the edge of a body of water used for housing boats or gear for water enjoyment, including a structure that consists of no solid walls.
Backlot Owner:	any property owner who does not live directly on the shoreline road allowance



All definitions herein are as set out in the City Lands Encroachment By-law and the Land Management Policy.

Background:

The City is currently licensing dock and boathouse encroachments in Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach.

Accordingly, many dock and boathouse encroachments currently exist in other areas that have never been expressly permitted by the City, nor have been required to relocate, despite passage of the City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.

The Realty Services Division of the CAO's Department currently issues 5-year License Agreements for the approved docks and boathouses located in Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach.

There is a need for uniformity in dock and boathouse License administration throughout the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Philosophy:

Approval for 5 or 10 year license agreements will be issued where the following conditions to approval have been met:

- Use of the dock or boathouse does not adversely affect the use by others of the property (shoreline use will not be exclusive; dock or boathouse use will be exclusive)
- minimum 10 metre spacing between structures
- Use does not adversely affect the ability of the City to use, access and maintain its property
 - All docks, decks, stairs, and handrails must be set back a minimum of 3 metres from the edge of the travelled road, to allow for snow plowing and snow storage
- Use does not result in erosion or degradation of fish habitat
- Federal and provincial permits are the obligation of the dock owner
- Existing crib docks to be replaced with post/ floating docks upon repair
- Continued obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to maintain an active insurance policy on the dock and/or boathouse with The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes added as an additional insured
- Continued obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to maintain the dock and/or boathouse in good repair
- Obligation to post permit number on dock and notice of private property
- Obligation on the dock/boathouse owner to make the following payments:
 - \$125.00 application fee to the Land Management Committee
 - Additional \$400.00 per year (docks)





• Additional \$250.00 - \$1,000.00 per year (boathouses)

Licenses will only be issued for private docks or boathouses on shoreline road allowances. Licenses will not be issued for private docks or boathouses on roads or road allowances leading to water, or water access parcels.

Upon default of any condition, the license agreement can be revoked on 30 days' notice. Structures left following deadline for removal will be considered abandoned and City may remove and charge the applicant for the costs of demolition and removal (pursuant to the City Lands Encroachment By-law).

Policy:

The Realty Services Division of the CAO's Department will reach out to residents with docks on City-owned land in one or more area(s) each year where docks and boathouses are currently encroaching in order to provide uniformity in how the different areas are treated. Realty Services will decide in which areas to begin this process each year.

Existing docks and boathouses will fall into one of two categories:

Category 1 The docks and boathouses are located directly across the property owned by the dock/boathouse owner (e.g. Jessie Avenue). Approved docks and boathouses in these areas will qualify for a 10-year License Agreement.

In the event that the road is untraveled and unassumed, and in the event of no public or City use, the Realty Services division or the Land Management Committee, will recommend that the shoreline road allowance be stopped up, closed, and sold to the adjacent landowners, pursuant to the CP2018-013 Disposal of Real Property Policy and By-Law 2018-020 Disposition of Municipal Real Property, as amended.

Category 2 The docks and boathouses are not all located directly across from the property owned by the dock/bothouse owner (e.g. Thurstonia Park and Kenstone Beach). Approved docks and boathouses in these areas will qualify for a 5-year License Agreement.

Once Realty Services has determined which area(s) to license in a given year, the following process will be followed:

 The Realty Services division determines which area(s) will commence dock licensing for a given year. Upon determination, Realty Services staff will visit the area and take pictures of the existing structures and determine the likely owner(s).





- 2. Realty Services presents the proposed area for consideration at a Land Management Committee meeting. If a member of the Committee is aware of a reason why the area should not be licensed at this time (e.g. planned works in the area which might significantly disrupt the area's use of docks/boathouses) or indicates that specific sections of an area would not be appropriate for licensing (e.g. shoreline is narrow and may be required for stabilization work to uphold the integrity of a travelled road, or shoreline is narrow and docks/boathouses would be too close to a travelled road to the extent that they would impede road maintenance operations), Realty Services will take the information into account and potentially revise the timeline for that area.
- 3. Realty Services then reaches out to the residents in the area and advises them that their area will begin the licensing process. Prior to contacting the property owners, the Ward Councillor will be notified.
- 4. The initial correspondence from Realty Services will advise the residents that they must submit an application to the Land Management Committee (via the Law Clerks in the Realty Services division) to begin this process. An application will only be considered complete when the following documents are provided:
 - Application form (with all required information and signatures)
 - A recent photo of all structures requested for licensing (must show full extent of encroachments, including all stairs, decks, installed docks, boathouses, etc.)
 - Measurements of the dock/boathouse and all associated structures
 - A recent tax bill
 - Application fee (currently \$125.00)
- 5. If there are any structures in an area for which Realty Services staff are unable to determine the likely owner, a Municipal Law Enforcement Officer will post a notice on the structure to notify all potential dock/boathouse owners in the area of the requirement to submit an application for license within 30 days' from the posting of the notice, or to remove the dock/boathouse within that timeframe, or face removal pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.
- 6. After notification, the dock/boathouse owner will have 30 days to complete the application process.
- 7. If an application fails to be received for any of the items noted in the site visit conducted by Realty Services staff, that item will be removed pursuant to the City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.



- 8. Once the 30 day deadline has passed, the Realty Services division will determine which applications should be approved and which applications should be denied, based on the criteria set out in this policy.
- 9. If the dock/boathouse is in a Category 1 area, the structure will be eligible for a 10-year License Agreement, if approved. If the dock is in a Category 2 area, the structure will be eligible for a 5-year License Agreement, if approved.
- 10. The Realty Services division, or the Land Management Committee (which will review individual requests for a dock/boathouse License Agreement in an area that has not been previously reviewed by the Committee) will not approve dock/boathouse License Agreements for back lot owners.

If the Land Management Committee reviews an individual request for a dock/boathouse License Agreement, the Committee will make a determination concerning the entire area, but this will not affect the timing of practive licensing of the area.

- 11. New boathouses will not be approved for a License Agreement due to increased risk of injury, spills, costs of removal, and in the case of Category 2 areas overcrowdng.
- 12. Existing boathouses and non-compliant structures constructed prior to the implementation of this policy may be repaired and maintained only. Expansion or replacement will not be permitted.
- 13. Where a decision has been rendered not in favour of the applicant, the Realty Services division will notify the applicant of the decision, and the fact that the applicant can make a deputation to Council if they disagree with the decision.
- 14. Where a decision has been rendered in favour of the applicant, the Realty Services Division will notify the applicant of the decision, and the costs of proceeding with the License Agreement:
 - \$400.00 per annum for the applicable term for a dock (increased annually by the Cost of Living Index)
 - Boathouse costs will be based on a charge per wall of the boathouse \$250.00 per wall per annum (increased annually by the Cost of Living Index)
 - If a boathouse has a roof, but no solid walls, the annual fee will be the same as a four walled structure (\$1,000.00), given the increased risk of injury if the structure is moved or dislodged by wind.
 - If a survey is required by the Land Management Committee, then a deposit sufficient from the applicant to cover the costs will be required prior to proceeding.


- 15. Once the applicant has confirmed that they are agreeable to all the associated costs, the Realty Services Division will provide a license for execution to the applicant. The applicant will have 60 days to obtain acceptable insurance and provide a copy of the Certificate of Insurance to the Realty Services division.
- 16. Once an executed License Agreement, Certificate of Insurance, and applicable payment (first annual payment or amount for full term) are received by the Realty Services Division, the City Solicitor will execute the License Agreement in accordance with the Signing Authority By-law 2016-009.
- 17. Once the License Agreement has been fully executed, Realty Services will send the fully executed License Agreement and Dock Sign to the Licensee. Covering correspondence will note that the Dock Sign must be installed on the licensed structure so as to be visible from the road allowance, and that any replacement signs will be provided at the Licensee's sole expense.
- 18. If any of the required documents (executed License Agreement, Certificate of Insurance, and applicable payment) are not received with in the 60 day timeframe, Realty Services will send a final notice requiring the applicant to provide any outstanding items within 30 days or to remove their structure, or face removal pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017. If the outstanding items are not received within the 30 day timeframe, Realty Services will close the file and arrange for removal of the items at the applicant's expense, pursuant to City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017.
- 19. When a Licensee sells their property and the new owner wishes to have the existing dock/boathouse License Agreement transferred to them, they must pay a \$125.00 applicant fee (for the administrative costs associated with the transfer of the License Agreement).
- 20. Licensees must notify Realty Services at least 30 days in advance of their closing date to advise that a transfer of the License Agreement is required. If prior notice is not provided, the existing License Agreement will remain valid until such time as the new owner has completed the process and has signed a new License Agreement. The original Licensee will be responsible to maintain insurance coverage until such time as the new dock/boathouse License Agreement takes effect.
- 21. Any applicant or Licensee who acts in a manner that is considered to be any form of workplace violence or harassment against City of Kawartha Lakes employees as per the City of Kawartha Lakes Management Directive MD2016-013 "Workplace Violence and Harassment", will not be approved for a License



Agreement or will have their existing License Agreement terminated immediately. Removal of the dock/boathouse will be at the applicant/Licencee's sole expense.

Where a complaint is made about an encroachment on City property, the Municipal Law Enforcement Office will advise the owner that he/she has 30 days to remove the dock or boathouse, or make application to the Land Management Committee for a license, or face removal, in accordance with the Encroachment Policy. If an application is made, the above process is followed.

Financial Considerations: Accounting for Proceeds from Dock Licenses

Unless otherwise directed by Council resolution, the proceeds from the license of municipal property will be deposited into general reserves to offset the costs of administration of the docking program.

Revision History:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By
0.0	February 13, 2018	Initial Release	
1.0		Prevent licensing dock and boathouses on roads leading to water and water access parcels; licensing of shoreline road allowances only Prevent licensing docks and boathouses only Prevent licensing docks and boathouses in urban areas – available in rural areas only Set out process for proactive enforcement of the City Lands Encroachment By-Law 2018-017 with respect to dock and boathouse encroachments Provide that the Land Management Committee will set the overall docking plan for an area (e.g. determine if it is a	Realty Services

Proposed Date of Review:





	Category 1 or Category 2 area), allow Realty Services to make the determinations on whether individual docks/boathouses comply with the policy. In the event of an application for an area that hasn't been reviewed by the Land Management Committee, the Committee will review the application and make a determination of the entire area Increase the annual fee for dock and boathouse encroachments Add required setback of 3 metres	
	Add required spacing of 10 metres	

l ong-Term	Docking	Plan to	be im	plemented	in Phases
Long-ronn	Docking			picification	III I Hases

Area Number	Area Name	Category	Plan	License Conditions	Target License
1	Hazel Street, Thurstonia	X:1 ratio dock: house Assumed travelled road	Completed: Approximately 200 docks and a few boathouses licensed with 5 year term ending Dec 31 2023. Many of the existing licensed docks do not adhere to new policy and will need to be removed on renewal. Subject to Engineering review per	Conditions	2024- 2029
			Hazel Street Reconstruction in 2023, estimated that 140 docks will not be renewed in 2023		
2	Kenstone	X:1 ratio dock: house Assumed travelled road	Completed: 16 docks licensed on 5 year term ending 2023. Water lot owned privately. Recommend not renew any of the docks		N/A
3	Cedar Glen, Dunsford	X:1 ratio dock: house	City to acquire title.		2022- 2027

		Assumed travelled road Title issue	All of the docks owned by backlot owners will not be licensed and will have to be removed.		
4	Stanley Road	Water access block	Acquire title to waterfront portion. One public boardwalk permitted to remain. No private docking.	Existing boardwalk and stairs (in good shape) to be licensed, maintained and insured by one person for public use. No overnight docking allowed. Signed as "public access to water"	2023- 2028
5	Stanley Road	Road leading to water adjacent to water access block	Surplus and sell RA to adjacent owners (129, 130 Stanley Road, etc.) once title to waterfront portion obtained and docking encroachments removed from open space block adjacent to 147 Stanley Road		2023- 2028
6	Grove Road, Fenelon Falls	1:1 ratio dock: house Adjacent to	If maintenance to continue on this	No hydro and no plumbing allowed	2024- 2029
		Travelled	unassumed	(standard, but	

		Road w/ insufficient width maintained per LSA (unassumed)	road allowance, Engineering to determine necessary takings to improve road width and permit 3 m setback from existing licensed boathouse	may be an issue in this area). 3 m setback will prevent some existing dock owners from Road is unassumed although being maintained, so road improvement may come forwards as a local improvement with sufficient community interest	
7	Avery Point Road	1:1 ratio dock: house Adjacent to Travelled Road w/ sufficient width	Sell Westerly SLRA License docks 10 y on travelled/ improved RA	Winter storage on RA permitted if owner of dock can demonstrate sufficient storage space to allow 3 m clear zone from travelled road	2025- 2030
8	Long Beach Road (1-139 Long Beach Road; some portions of untravelled road allowance purchased)	1:1 ratio dock: house Adjacent to Travelled assumed Road w/ potentially insufficient width		Winter storage on RA permitted if owner of dock can demonstrate sufficient storage space to	2026- 2031

				allow 3 m clear zone from travelled road. Southernmost portion not owned by the City, so will not require license with City.	
9	Lake Dalrymple Road	1:1 ratio dock: house Adjacent to travelled assumed road			2026- 2031
10	Jessie Avenue, Rose Street	1:1 ratio dock: house Adjacent to unmaintained walking path. City does not own reserve at Easterly portion, so cannot license this portion.	10 year license	Property owners to East end of trail may be interested in vesting title in the reserve into City ownership, provided done at their own cost and once they have obtained a survey to confirm that the trail is located entirely within the reserve (land not owned by City)	As requested

Legend

LSA = Limited Service Agreement

RA = Road Allowance

SLRA = Shoreline Road Allowance

X = greater than 1. Indicates back lot owners on waterfront and crowding issues. Reflected in arguments between adjacent owners, insufficient snow storage locations, and poor aesthetics.

Assumed = maintained

This does not constitute a comprehensive list of docking on City property, but identifies the areas of highest concern, which will be addressed first. This is: areas where neighbourhood conflicts exist due to docking, docking is resulting in encroachment into the roadway with resultant hazards.

This list is in order of importance, with highest problem areas first and least problematic areas last. This indicates the order in which the areas will be addressed.



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	CAO2021-001
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	Update on Modernization Reviews
Description:	An update to Council on active and ongoing municipal modernization reviews
Author and Title:	Ron Taylor, Chief Administrative Officer

Recommendation(s):

That Report CAO2021-001, Update on Modernization Review, be received;

That staff make application(s) for funding through the provincial Municipal Modernization Program – Intake 2, to complete digital modernization projects for a Comprehensive Roads Inventory & Database and Water Smart Meter Reading Technologies, where eligible; and,

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Department Head: _____

Financial/Legal/HR/Other:_____

Chief Administrative Officer:_____

Background:

At the Committee of the Whole Meeting of February 4, 2020, the CAO provided a presentation entitled 2020 Service Modernization Reviews. That presentation outlined various active Provincial and/or City-driven service modernization consultations and reviews. A copy of this presentation is attached as Appendix A.

In addition, Confidential Report CAO2020-002, entitled Shared Service Reviews – Update, was considered and received by Council on February 18, 2020.

This report is provided to update Council of active and ongoing municipal modernization reviews.

Rationale:

Provincial Modernization Reviews

The Province continues to encourage municipalities and local service providers to review their core service delivery and mandates, and review program and partner structure and funding. These modernization reviews are intended to realize efficiencies, expanded resource capacity, overall budget savings, and/or service enhancements.

Public Health Services

The Province initiated Public Health Modernization consultations in 2019. This process remains suspended during the pandemic. It is anticipated that this review will reactivate later in 2021-22. The City will continue to track and inform this review when reactivated, and work with the HKPR District Health Unit on service review and recommendations. The City remains concerned with possible downloading to municipalities to make up for reduced provincial funding.

Emergency Health Services (Paramedics)

The Province initiated Emergency Health Services Modernization consultations in 2019. This process remains suspended during the pandemic.

The City partnered through the Eastern Ontario Wardens Caucus (EOWC) to complete a "situational overview" of paramedic services in Eastern Ontario. This Study was completed in 2019 and supported recommendations submitted to the Province to inform their review.

City staff are reviewing our service structure and deployment through an updated Paramedic Master Plan. Staff are targeting March 2021 for an update to Council on this Plan.

The City, in the fall of 2020, executed a service agreement with the County of Peterborough for a shared Chief service arrangement. Shared Service agreements and arrangements are one option to potentially reduce duplication, centralize and consolidate all or portions of program and service delivery, capitalize on partner best practices, and/or realize monetary savings. This arrangement will encourage ongoing discussions respecting shared resources and opportunities.

Long Term Care

At the February 9 2021 Committee of the Whole meeting, an update will be provided to Council respecting Victoria Manor redevelopment, and the recently completed review and study of Eastern Ontario municipal long term care homes completed by the Eastern Ontario Wardens Caucus (EOWC). Although not a formal provincial modernization review, lessons learned through the pandemic have triggered the province, the LTC industry and the public to scrutinize and consider changes to long term care provision.

Conservation Authorities (CA's)

The Province announced in 2019 potential changes to the Conservation Authorities Act. As a result of significant feedback and concern, the Province delayed legislation passage and initiated consultations early in 2020 with CA's and other stakeholders.

Later in 2020, the province brought forward Bill 229 that proposed changes to the Conservation Authorities Act. Details of how these changes will be implemented, and impact and roles of conservation authorities, municipalities and the province is pending.

Both staff and council members on respective Authority Boards will continue to track progress and impacts of these proposed changes in 2021, and update Council as required.

Kawartha Lakes City Reviews

Public Transit Services

The City currently provides public transit service within Lindsay. Discussion occurred in 2020 between city staff and the Fleming College student association respecting possible shared service and expansion of student shuttle services to Peterborough. At this time, those discussions are completed, and the student shuttle service they offer continues to

meet their needs. It was a pleasure working with them to explore options for service enhancements for student travel. The College continues to advocate for improvements to regional transit connections from Lindsay to Peterborough and the Greater Toronto Area (GTA). Staff will continue to advocate for this through regional transit planning and provincial advocacy efforts.

City Budgets

In March 2019, the Province provided one-time funding to municipalities to support efficiency reviews, strategic investments and expenditure containment strategies. The City was provided \$725,000. Council directed through budgets certain technology investments, and authorized funding various reviews. Approximately \$300,000 of this funding remains uncommitted. Staff will be recommending that these remaining funds be allocated to eligible reviews and investments proposed in the 2021 budgets to reduce tax-support funding.

CR2019-697

This resolution of Council reduced the 2020 operating budget by \$300,000 in the citywide materials, supplies and services budget. This reduction was achieved, but within the context of significant changed operations during the pandemic. This intended target has been included in the 2021 proposed operating budget to continue to target savings and efficiencies in this area of the budget.

CR2019-699

This resolution of Council directed a review and consideration of service level reductions to certain operating programs, being insurance, waste collection programs, and land fill operations. Council requested staff to report back on program costs and possible savings. These operating programs were reviewed and reported on, resulting in annual net insurance expenditure reductions beginning in 2021 of approximately \$500,000.

Council opted to maintain current landfill and waste collection services in 2021, with the exception of implementing in 2021 an increase to the minimum tipping fee from \$5.00 to \$10.00.

Council will revisit landfill service, costs and possible savings in future years when "producer pay" legislation is implemented and better understood.

Fleet Modernization

The City received provincial modernization funding through a first intake applicationbased Municipal Modernization Program. Staff are providing an update to Council on this fleet modernization review at the February 9 2021 Committee of the Whole meeting.

The province recently announced a second intake of this Program. A copy of the letter with details of this announced funding is provided in Appendix B to this report. The deadline for expressions of interest is March 15 2021. Staff will review eligibility and options for possible applications, and pursue any applications directed by Council.

At the present time, staff are recommending pursuit of digital modernization project applications for a Comprehensive Roads Inventory & Database and a Water Smart Meter Reading Technologies improvement.

CR2021-016

At the January 28 Regular Council meeting, the CAO was directed to review service levels in light of operational changes and changing service demands, and recommend efficiencies and service enhancements. This review will look at service changes resulting from our pandemic response and lessons, with a report back in Q2 of 2021.

Other Alternatives Considered:

This report is being provided for informational purposes only.

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

Good government is a strategic priority of the City. One identified priority action is to increase efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery. This will be accomplished by, among other things, reviewing and establishing levels of service, promoting continuous improvement to Make It Better in all service areas, and to streamline processes.

Financial/Operation Impacts:

There are various service enhancements and savings resulting from the noted modernization reviews. Ongoing recommendations would be brought forward to Council as certain reviews advance and/or when direction from Council is required.

Attachments:

Appendix A – February 4, 2020 Presentation to Council re 2020 Service Modernization Reviews



Appendix B – January 26, 2021 Letter from Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing



Department Head Email: rtaylor@kawarthalakes.ca

Department Head: Ron Taylor

Department File: A17 Service Modernization

2020 Service Modernization Reviews

Update to Council February 4, 2020

This is Attachment <u>A</u>to keport *% <u>cao</u> 2021-001*

KAWARTHA LAI

Municipal Modernization Reviews

In March 2019, the province announced one-time funding for municipalities to:

- support efficiency reviews
- strategic capital investments
- expenditure containment strategies

CKL was provided payment of \$725,000

Slide 2

kawarthalakes.ca

286÷ 4

Municipal Modernization Funds

To-date, Council allotted:

- \$50,000 to CAO for internal or partner reviews (\$10K for EOWC)
- \$376,905 to service reviews and technology enhancements (through the 2020 budget)

Remainder to be applied to future reviews, audits and capital/technological investments.

kawarthalakes.ca

6 3455

Municipal Modernization Funds

2020 Budget Item	Modernization Funds Applied
Locate Software	\$30,000
Municipal 511 Software	\$10,000
Password Reset Software	\$15,000
Process Mapping Software	\$90,500
Paramedic Deployment Review/Master Plan	\$100,000
Asset Management Plan	\$69,200
Airport Capital Plan	\$32,205
Community Benefits Charge Strategy	\$30,000
Total	\$376,905

Slide 4

kawarthalakes.ca

Council Directed Reviews

At the conclusion of the 2020 budget deliberations, Council directed staff to initiate additional efficiency reviews of certain services and budget areas.



That the 2020 operating budget be reduced by \$300,000 in the city-wide materials, supplies and services budget.

At the conclusion of the 2020 budget deliberations, Guorical directed staff to initiate additional efficiency reviews or certain services and budget areas.

CONSENTALSELSE MGASSIS

kawarthalakes.ca

- Total Materials, Supplies and Services budgets for 2020 are approximately \$16.4M (reduced by \$300K)
- Staff to complete a line by line audit of this area of the budget to meet this target and inform possible future additional budget savings

kawarthalakes.ca

That Staff report back to Council in Q1 of 2020 on possible service level reductions to certain operating programs, being a review of insurance premiums and costs, waste collection programs and landfill operations, and including the corresponding costs and possible savings.

kawarthalakes.ca

Insurance Premiums & Costs

- Current insurance program expires in 2021
- Staff to review the program in 2020, including risk assessments, coverage options and possible savings
- Recommendations to Council by end of Q2 2020 to inform future budgets and program

kawarthalakes.ca

Landfill Operations Costs & Possible Savings

- CKL Landfill capacity EA work occurring in 2020
- Provincial "producer pay" legislation changes under review in 2020

kawarthalakes.ca

Waste Collection Program Costs & Possible Savings

- Review specific program costs and possible adjustments
- Possible 3rd party review of local digester opportunity and organics program (would utilize unconditional funding source for City share)
- Targeting end of Q2 2020 for information to Council, including program cost analysis, service levels and recommended possible savings

kawarthalakes.ca

Sur L

Application-Based Review Funding

- Province launched application-based Municipal Modernization Program (MMP) funding in 2019
- First intake late 2019
- CKL applied for funds to conduct 3rd party audits/program reviews of fleet and winter control

kawarthalakes.ca

25,526 31

Application-Based Review Funding

- Applications currently under review
- If approved, 3rd party to complete audit/program review reports by end of June 2020
- Future application-based funding intakes planned up to 2022-23 fiscal year

Slide 13

kawarthalakes.ca

Spice 13

Other Provincial Reviews

There are other provincial legislation and funding reviews occurring in 2020 to modernize and transform services with local impacts:

- Ontario Works modernization
- Employment Services transformation
- Childcare Services funding
- Ontario Health Team development
- Public Health & Emergency Health Services modernization
- Conservation Authorities core service review
- Drainage Act changes
- Community Safety and Policing Act changes

Staff and Council will continue to respond to, monitor and inform these reviews in 2020.

Slide 14

kawarthalakes.ca

Conclusions

- Staff and Council remain committed to ongoing service reviews and audits, and finding operational efficiencies
- Committed to ongoing process improvements and capacity building through our "Make it Better" program

kawarthalakes.ca

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing

Office of the Minister 777 Bay Street, 17th Floor Toronto ON M7A 2J3 Tel.: 416 585-7000 Ministère des Affaires municipales et du Logement



Bureau du ministre 777, rue Bay, 17^e étage Toronto ON M7A 2J3 Tél. : 416 585-7000

234-2021-344

January 26, 2021

Dear Head of Council:

Our government is committed to improving local service delivery and better respecting taxpayers' dollars. That is why we launched the Municipal Modernization Program in 2019. Through this program, the Ontario government is providing funding to help small and rural municipalities modernize service delivery and identify new ways to be more efficient and effective.

Today at the Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA) conference, I announced the launch of the second intake under the Municipal Modernization Program. Modern, efficient municipal services that are financially sustainable are more important than ever in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. Even as municipalities continue to face challenges, there are also opportunities to transform services and stimulate new ways of doing business.

The second intake will allow municipalities to benefit from provincial funding to conduct third party reviews as well as to implement projects to increase efficiency and effectiveness and lower costs in the longer term. I also want to encourage you to work with your neighbouring municipalities to find innovative joint projects that can benefit each of you. The government is excited to learn about your project applications that support the following priorities:

- Digital modernization
- Service integration
- Streamlined development approvals
- Shared services/alternative delivery models

To apply, you must submit a completed Expression of Interest form with attached supporting documents via the Transfer Payment Ontario (TPON) system by **March 15**, **2021.** To get started, visit <u>www.Ontario.ca/getfunding</u>.

If you have questions on the program, or would like to discuss a proposal, I encourage you to contact your <u>Municipal Services Office</u> or e-mail <u>municipal programs@ontario.ca</u>.

I look forward to continuing to work together to support your municipality in delivering efficient, effective and modern services for your residents and businesses.

Sincerely,

Steve Black

Steve Clark Minister

c. Chief Administrative Officers and Treasurers



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	WM2021-001
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	2020 Lindsay Ops Landfill Gas Generator Summary
Description:	A review of the operations of the Lindsay Ops Landfill Gas Generator for 2020
Author and Title:	David Kerr, Manager of Environmental Services

Recommendation(s):

That Report WM2021-001, **2020 Lindsay Ops Landfill Gas Generator Summary**, be received;

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Department Head: ______

Financial/Legal/HR/Other:_____

Chief Administrative Officer:_____

Background:

At the Council Meeting of October 20, 2020, Council adopted the following resolution:

CR2020-333

That Report ENG2020-018, Lindsay-Ops Landfill Electricity Generation System Optimization Study, be received;

That staff proceed with continued operation of the generator and implement recommendations in the study to optimize the operation where feasible; and

That staff present an annual report to Council on the Lindsay-Ops Landfill Electricity Generation System.

This report follows that direction.

To put this report into context we have provided a summary overview of the generator, the recommendations from the recent optimization study and its operational performance over the last year.

Overview

It is a provincial requirement to have a methane collection system on a landfill the size of Lindsay Ops to manage the gas. To dispense of the gas collected, historically, the City of Kawartha Lakes flared the gas.

Since 2015, the City also owns and operates a landfill generator, which uses methane gas from the Lindsay Ops landfill as fuel to create electrical power. The power is in turn used to supply electricity to the Lindsay Ops landfill and adjacent Lindsay Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP).

In order for the gas collection system to work effectively, a vacuum blower system draws methane from a network of pipes within the landfill. If for any reason the generator is down for maintenance or other, the blower routes the methane to flare where it is burned.

The gas facility (including collection system, blower, generator, and flare) are located on the landfill property adjacent to and west of the waste fill. The operation of this facility, including maintenance and monitoring, is currently contracted to Comcor Environmental Limited (Comcor) and is administered by Waste Management Operations. Comcor is in the sixth year of their contract, with the option to renew for one additional term, up to December 31^{st} of 2022.

As per Council's direction, the User Rate (Water and Wastewater) covers 96% of the costs associated with the operation of the landfill gas generator, while the Solid Waste Division assumes the remainder of the costs, and those of the flare and collection system.

Recent System Optimization Study

The Engineering and Corporate Assets department led and presented an optimization study conducted by Greer Galloway to Council on October 20th, 2020.

The optimization study covered multiple possibilities for optimizing the operation and value of the generation facility. Aspects reviewed included the Hydro One contract, the service call strategy, downtime events, energy use and efficiency, and the landfill gas collection wellfield.

Staff have reviewed the recommendations and the following updates are being provided:

1. Hydro One Contract

Investigate the possibility of converting the 'billing and generation contracts' with Hydro One to a Distributed Generation (DGEN) classification, as this could potentially produce cost savings.

Staff have reviewed this option with Hydro One and unfortunately this facility does not qualify for the DGEN classification as it is a behind-the-meter generator and a load facility.

2. Service Call Strategy

Train landfill staff to perform restarts on weekends, to reduce downtimes. There are times the generator stops running and the current policy prohibits service calls outside of regular operating hours to limit costs. In some cases, the generator requires a straightforward restart that could be accomplished by appropriately trained staff with limited teleconference support from the contractor. This has an immediate effect of returning the generator to activity and increasing the amount of generated electricity. This has been completed and has resulted in a decrease of downtimes and an increase in electricity generated.

3. Downtime Events

Implement recommendations made by Wintek Engineering to reduce the amount of times the generator is shut down, as a result of recent changes Hydro One implemented.

Comcor reviewed the recommendations, and in the fall of 2020 made corrections to the system that minimized the amount of time the system is down particularly due to low gas pressures. The alterations made have reduced the amount of times the generator had been out of service, which will ultimately increase electricity generated.

4. Landfill Gas Collection Wellfield

Consider expansion of the wellfield (gas collection) system. Greer Galloway's updated modelling of methane generation suggested that the current methane generation rates on the old landfill area may be higher than originally modelled and that the methane collection efficiency in the old landfill area is lower than previously assumed. The construction of additional vertical collector wells within the old landfill area is predicted to improve the overall quantity and quality of the landfill gas delivered to the generator.

At this time, there is no scheduled expansion to the current wellfield. However, it is under consideration for future capital project and budget planning as the landfill continues to be built-out.

It is important to note that new wells were installed in 2019 and additional cover placed around the wells in 2020 to reduce air intrusion. It is expected that the gas levels from these wells will enrichen in the next several years providing better quality methane to the system. This will continue to be monitored by Comcor.

Performance in 2020

In 2020, the generator was out of service for approximately 170 days. Most of those days were for scheduled maintenance, including the required 30,000-hour minor overhaul that occurred this past December, as per the contract. The remaining out of service days were sourced from grid power interruptions, high temperature alarms and other issues that arose from regular operation of the equipment.
One major source of trips and generator downtimes, as per Comcor, is the low pressure and landfill gas quality. Positive efforts were made in the later part of 2020 as a result of the Greer Galloway recommendations to improve the generator downtime. In previous years, the generator has operated effectively but unable to operate at optimal rates due to unexpected lower volumes of methane. As the landfill continues to be built-up, more methane will be generated and this will have a positive impact on generator operation.

Rationale:

When waste is first deposited in a landfill, it undergoes aerobic (oxygen) decomposition and during this stage little methane is produced. Typically, within one-year anaerobic (lack of oxygen) conditions are met and methane-producing bacteria begin to decompose the waste and generate methane. The expectation is that with time, as the Lindsay Ops landfill increases in age and size, there will be many future years of optimal methane production. Any future expansion of the wellfield will also work in bettering the operation of the generation facility.

The landfill gas generator provides a sustainable green alternative energy source that is greatly utilized onsite, due to the considerable energy demands of the WPCP and landfill buildings. The generator also provides redundancy onsite, so if either the flare or generator are unable to run, the other can be utilized. This is very important in ensuring the site remains in compliance with the landfill site's Environmental Compliance Approval (ECA), which requires methane to either be flared or converted to energy through the generator. In 2020, approximately 1.2 million kWh of electricity was produced from the methane gas to service the on-site needs of City operations.

As further discussed in the financial operation impact section of this report, there is a strong business case to continue operating the generator based on regulatory needs, reduction of greenhouse gases, operational redundancy and offsetting electrical costs. It is expected that through additional operation in 2021 and beyond, that the cost savings will be able to be more accurately predicted. For these reasons, we continue to recommend operation of the generator over the course of 2021 to better evaluate its long-term performance and benefit to the City.

Other Alternatives Considered:

There are no other alternatives being considered at this time.

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

The Lindsay Ops landfill gas generator is a component of the Healthy Environment Plan and overall Strategic Priority of a Healthy Environment. This is because it produces renewable energy and reduces the corporate carbon footprint and the City's greenhouse gases. It also contributes to environmentally efficient municipal infrastructure as it offsets a large portion of the electricity required by Lindsay's Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP), therefore reducing the energy consumption required for municipal operations.

Financial/Operation Impacts:

The City budgeted \$250,000 in 2020 for the operation and maintenance of the landfill gas generator, flare and wellfield. The entirety of this budget was utilized in 2020.

Electricity demands for the Lindsay WPCP and Lindsay Ops landfill are significant and for the period of December 5th, 2019 to December 7th, 2020, Hydro One costs came to a total of \$349,000. The total amount of kilowatt hours (kWh) consumed during this time was approximately 2.9 million kWh. Of this 2.9 million kWh, 1.2 million kWh were delivered from the generator, while the remainder was sourced from the Hydro One grid.

The kWhs contributed by the generator, has an approximate cost savings to the City of \$240,000. This is an estimation using the approximate \$/kWh for each billing period. Supporting information for this statement is outlined in the chart below:

Billing Period	Hydro One Bill Total (A)	Hydro One Bill Total kWh (B)	Total kWh Generator Produced (C)	Total Amount of kWh Consumed (B+C)	Estimated \$/kWh (D)	Estimated Cost Savings* (C x D)
Dec 5 - Jan 9	\$27,285.92	164962	123628	288590	\$0.17	\$20,449
Jan 9 - Feb 7	\$25,790.85	135171	108102	243273	\$0.19	\$20,626
Feb 7 - Mar 10	\$31,625.74	155185	93129	248314	\$0.20	\$18,979
Mar 11 – Apr 7	\$19,362.84	79733	123907	203640	\$0.24	\$30,090
Apr 7 – May 7	\$23,391.91	95632	147257	242889	\$0.24	\$36,020
May 8 – Jun 9	\$21,093.96	103879	152072	255951	\$0.20	\$30,880
Jun 10 – Jul 9	\$25,979.07	120999	114180	235179	\$0.21	\$24,515
Jul 10 – Aug 10	\$34,018.92	188623	72352	260975	\$0.18	\$13,049
Aug 10 – Sept 10	\$34,867.46	186413	63422	249835	\$0.19	\$11,863
Sept 10 – Oct 7	\$35,865.65	186612	16713	203325	\$0.19	\$3,212

Oct 8 – Nov 9	\$40,197.82	192515	54209	246724	\$0.21	\$11,319
Nov 10 – Dec 7	\$29,583.67	146278	84722	231000	\$0.20	\$17,134

*It is important to note that these costs are estimated based on variable billing costs.

Based on this data, there would be a significant increase in annual Hydro One billing costs of approximately \$240,000 without the generator.

The annual budgeted costs for operation and maintenance of the generator is approximately \$200,000. Operation of the generator currently delivers a net benefit to the City of \$40,000 per year. If the generator performance can be improved as we expect it can be, the benefit to the City will be even greater.

Consultations:

Manager, Water and Wastewater Waste Technician 2 Executive Assistant, Engineering and Corporate Assets

Department Head email: brobinson@kawarthalakes.ca

Department Head: Bryan Robinson, Director of Public Works



Committee of the Whole Report

Report Number:	FL2021-002
Meeting Date:	February 9, 2021
Title:	Fleet Standardization
Description:	Review and clarification of Fleet Standardization as an important cost saving measure for the City
Author and Title:	Todd Bryant, Manager of Fleet and Transit

Recommendation(s):

That Report FL2021-002, Fleet Standardization, be received.

Department Head: _____

Financial/Legal/HR/Other:_____

Chief Administrative Officer:_____

Background:

At the Council Meeting of February 18, 2020, Council adopted the following resolution:

CR 2020-056

Moved by: Doug Elmslie

Seconded by: Pat Dunn

That staff be directed to present a cost benefit analysis report to Council prior to the next budget cycle detailing the impacts of standardization and specifications for fleet acquisitions.

This report addresses that direction.

Rationale:

Purchase price is just one of many factors to consider when procuring fleet for the City. Need, use, lifecycle, maintenance and disposal are also some of the many considerations that are addressed by Staff. Once the need and usage are established, maintenance of equipment needs to be determined to achieve an acceptable lifecycle. Standardization of equipment allows the City to reduce the overall cost of operating, maintaining, parts and inventory, safety, training and ultimately purchasing the goods and service required while addressing departmental need, use, maintenance and disposal of equipment. For this report, plow trucks will be considered in example, but the rationale can be applied to other equipment types.

Standardization

The Cambridge dictionary defines standardization as "the process of making things of the same type all have the same basic features". This definition can be further expanded to standardization being the process of developing, promoting and mandating standards-based and compatible technologies and processes within a given industry. The City has detailed standards for plow trucks for many years. This mandates the quality and consistency of onboard technologies and ensure their compatibility, operation, maintenance and safety with the goals and objectives of each operating department. Vehicles and equipment are assigned to the various departments to be used to achieve their operational obligations. Operating departments manage the use of their assigned equipment in a manner that maximizes the benefit of having the asset within the fleet. Each department participates in the standardization process through detailing the need and use of each piece of equipment. Additions to the fleet are accompanied with a detailed business case approved by the department's director prior to being brought before Council for budget approval.

In 2016 Council implemented Policy CP2016-012, which is the Non Emergency Fleet Policy which directs the creation of standard specifications wherever possible. A Management Directive (MD2016-016) supporting Council's Policy was also implemented and is reviewed annually by Staff. The Fleet Management Directive (Appendix A) states "The Fleet Services Division will develop standardized specifications for all vehicles and equipment where possible. The goal of having standardized specifications will be to acquire assets with similar needs in respect of parts inventory. This standardizing of equipment will be directed at saving costs on training, inventory and repair time to equipment. To ensure compatibility with an existing products or equipment, a minimum set of specifications will be developed for all common fleet assets. Additional standard specifications for common fleet assets will be developed in conjunction with user groups. It is recognized that specific operational and unique requirements exist for some fleet assets and the Fleet Services Division will work with the operating departments and the Purchasing Department to meet those specific needs."

Operation

With standardized equipment, Operations staff are familiar with any unit that they are assigned, know how and where the controls are and are familiar with the basic maintenance of this equipment.

As an example, the controls for Plows are complex and require periodic maintenance and training. These controls are placed in the same locations on all trucks with the same functionality. Through detailed specifications of Plow Trucks, Operators are capable of moving between depots and equipment as needed as each Plow is similar. Staff are regularly called out at 4am to service routes. The similarity of equipment allows for circle checks to be completed in a timely manner to get to their routes to clear snow and meet maintenance standards. Another example is that all our plow trucks specify that brake stroke indicators to be placed on all axles. These brake stroke indicators allow operators to visually inspect if brakes are in or out of adjustment. During winter operations these indicators save the operator from going under the truck to mark and measure brake stroke, which can be time consuming and difficult depending on weather conditions. Such operation can cause safety concerns. Operators are all trained on where these indicators are, what their function is and how to read them. This assists the Operator in recognizing maintenance requirements, minimizes time examination and assists lifecycle goals. The consistency offered through standardization breeds stability and familiarity for Operations staff.

Fleet Staff consult the departmental Staff involved in the equipment usage and maintenance during the specification process. This involvement is an integral part of creating safe, cooperative and customer focused work environment. Frontline input is desired as they are the ones "doing the work" and need to input into what type of equipment is used and what it is used for. Staff also has input and working knowledge of proper maintenance practices for repair. This involvement creates understanding between all employees and promotes a safe a consistent work space for all employees.

Maintenance

Fleet Services maintains ten (10) Single axle and fifty-two (52) Tandem axle plows. 90-95% of this maintenance is performed between the two Fleet locations in Lindsay and Coboconk as it has been determined to be more cost effective than contracted services. For example, to contract out a standard WET service is \$704.31 +HST. To do the same work in house is \$292.06. A key part of maintenance activities is familiarity with repairs and diagnosing defects. Standardization reduces the time to diagnose, repair and get equipment roadworthy to perform its assigned operating tasks.

Fleet staff are regularly consulted for input in maintenance activities and approaches for improvement. This involvement incorporates proven methods to best perform tasks such as cleaning, lubrication, repairs, components' replacement, data collection, maintenance, design and more.

The Fleet Manager role is to support staff in the scheduling of maintenance, procurement and operations, ensuring seamless, efficient and professional delivery of all services. This is achieved though standardization of equipment and best maintenance practices. For City plow trucks, Fleet staff understand the maintenance timelines and activities required for our current stock, have built in efficiencies to repair techniques as staff are knowledgeable of maintenance requirements. Staff can also easily transition between maintenance activities based on repair requirements as the repairs, locations and technology required for the repairs are similar.

Diagnosis of Plow trucks is an ongoing issue that gets more complex every day. New technology, sensors, systems and techniques for repair are a constant challenge for Staff. As new technology becomes available, manufacturers use this to update equipment. In 2019, Fleet amassed over \$8,000 in computer program expenses to manage the diagnostics of just two brands of plows. To add additional brands would increase that cost and require additional laptop resources be availability to Staff.

Parts and Inventory

Both the Coboconk and Lindsay Fleet depots have very limited space for parts and inventory. There is approximately \$550,000 in combined inventory for all equipment with about \$250,000 dedicated to Plow Trucks for our existing fleet. Equipment repairs quickly rotate through this stock several times a year depending on what the maintenance activity is. As an example, to change just filters for a "WET" service requires up to 12 filter changes. Adding additional non-standard equipment to the City's fleet would require carrying additional parts inventory. This would trigger the need for additional warehouse space and add a significant cost to Fleet overhead. This additional stock could be valued up to \$100,000 and have lower turn-over.

The Fleet Services division implements division budgets, provides analysis of budget development including the utilization and maximizing the parts asset portfolio. Standardization of Plow trucks allows a minimum amount of stock on hand to meet repair expectations and limit equipment out of service time.

Safety

The City's plows are single operator Plow Trucks. There is no "wing-man" or second set of eyes and hands to operate the controls. The Operators have a significant responsibility to perform their duties in a safe, efficient and timely manner. Standardization of brand, controls and functionality increase the level of safety and security of our Operators. This level of safety is detailed in our CVOR (Appendix B) rating that continues to be Satisfactory, Un-Audited by the Ministry of Transportation at 34.17%. When compared to other municipalities, this is quite good. By having a standard brand and controls, Operators can focus on the rules of the road, the operation of their plow and provide a service to our residents in a safe and appropriate manner.

Leaders initiate daily, weekly and monthly tailgate talks around safety. Usually starting in the late fall, Supervisors focus is on safe winter operations, particularly revolving around snow removal. Safety, at all times, needs to be front of mind for all staff, operators, maintenance and support staff. Standardization of equipment, controls, and features allows Operators to concentrate on the road and winter maintenance activities.

Staff maintaining similar equipment allows technicians to properly repair equipment in a timely manner keeping our safety maintenance record and CVOR in good standing. These maintenance activities and Operation work in tandem to create a safe and functional working environment.

Training

Public Works Roads department provides testing and training regularly to staff. This driver training is provided over several days in the fall and throughout the year as required. Through standardization of equipment, training can then be standardized based on brand, location of safety equipment and controls.

This allows staff to develop Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's). SOP's are developed to offer consistency, safety and processes for equipment and staff to follow. Cleaning of Equipment and Vehicles SOP (Appendix C), Plow and Wing Blade Utilization SOP (Appendix D) and Tire Chain Installation and Removal SOP's (Appendix E) are just three of several examples of how standardization of equipment are of value. These SOP's detail the "how to" for these activities. They also have a secondary benefit of adding cost control. SOP's like Tire Chain installation and removal details safe practices for staff and the "how to's" of this practice. Tire chains that are purchased for equipment can then be utilized by all depots as they are the same, purchased at a volume discount, and training is then standardized on how to install and remove.

Purchasing

The City will endevour to standardize goods and services through a competitive process whenever possible and must be in compliance with legislation. The Procurement Division will work with the Department/Division, to determine the best procurement process for standardization. This Purchasing Policy (Appendix G) will take precendence over any other Policy or Management Directive with regards to standardization.

Cost Savings

Equipment standardization reduce costs. A Black Belt project in 2013 was completed on the utilization of Plow Trucks (Appendix H) that resulted in the maintenance savings of \$224,222.98 and the cost avoidance of \$1.8 million. Brenda Stonehouse made a presentation to Council on May 22, 2013 that outlined cost savings and cost avoidance that was a launching pad for standardization. Fleet staff met with Operators, Supervisors, Managers, Technicians and the Director to initialize this process and how stronger cost savings could be achieved.

During the budget process of 2016, and with 3+ years of standardization of Plows and the supporting data, Fleet Services was able to extend the lifecycle of plows from 8 years to 12 years. This resulted in the immediate capital savings of \$1.4 million and the capital cost avoidance over the next 12 years of and additional \$8.06 million. Fleet staff continue to meet with all stakeholders regularly to refine the standardization of all processes.

In 2018, the lifecycle of Graders and the Vacuum Truck were extended as the standards of new equipment had been previously implemented. The Graders lifecycle extended from 20 to 25 years. The immediate deferral in 2018 was \$650,000. Over the next 20 years the cost avoidance will be an additional \$975,000.

Policy

The Non-Emergency Fleet Policy (Appendix F) was approved by Council in 2016. The Fleet Management Directive details "*The City of Kawartha Lakes is committed to a consistent, clear and uniform process to purchase, operate and maintain its Fleet. The overall goal is to maintain City services, provide equipment for City staff activities where required and have procedures that facilitate is these activities. This policy, and the accompanying Management Directive and Standard Operating Procedures, outline the process to be followed and service standards for all employees that operate City equipment ".*

The Fleet Management Directive (FMD) is a result of the Fleet Policy. The FMD is a comprehensive document that describes how the Fleet will be achieve desired outcomes of life cycling, cost containment and overall operation. The scope of the FMD is to:

1. Be a service provider for fleet services, in a professional, independent, fair and equitable manner.

2. Supply all operating departments with vehicles and equipment that are safe, reliable, meet MTO safety standards and meet the needs specific to the department function.

3. Provide timely maintenance and repair services at cost effective rates competitive or better than those in the private sector. This concept is also based on the recovery of capital costs amortized over the useful and economic life of the equipment thereby permitting timely replacements when required.

4. Work closely with each department to ensure specifications for new vehicles and equipment meet all the needs for that department's area of responsibility, while ensuring cost effectiveness and responsible management of City financial resources.

5. Strive to continually meet and exceed the expectations of all City departments in the provision of Fleet Services.

6. Benchmark repair and maintenance costs regularly to determine the most economical method of providing the services needed. Outsourcing will be utilized when priorities cannot be met with internal service staff, when the service required is a specialty and beyond the ability of staff and when the outsourced service is determined to be the most cost effective alternative.

The process of standardization, writing specifications and ensuring cost effectiveness meets Council goals.

Other Alternatives Considered:

No other alternatives are considered at this time. Staff will continually review operations and make improvements to processes in order to balance operational need with fiscal responsibility.

Alignment to Strategic Priorities

Goal 1 Fiscally Responsible- Standardization is focused on being fiscally responsible in our core service delivery. Fleet Services continues to make informed decisions to ensure a sound financial future.

Goal 2 – Open and Transparent-Through standardization of equipment, we are committed to operating in an open, accessible and transparent manner. Annual performance measures ensure that operations stay on track and achieve strong performance results.

Goal 3 – Partner and Collaborate- Through standardization, we strengthen our relationships with external and internal organizations to collaborate on projects and services. We support innovation and look for opportunities to partner to advance our common goals. We work with all levels of government to maximize investments.

Goal 4 – Service Excellence- We serve our community with pride. We seek to understand and meet the needs of those we serve within our available resources. Through standardization, Fleet Services is committed to accessible, timely, knowledgeable, courteous and fair service

Financial/Operation Impacts:

Any change to Fleet policy will require analysis to cost and operational impacts. For example, adding non-standard equipment will require the addition of 900-1200 square feet of space for additional parts/inventory at \$250-\$350 per square foot, minimum of two weeks training for Truck and Coach Technicians on additional systems plus training for Operators. This may also require modifying shop space, safety protocols and added time for repairs.

Servicing Implications:

N/A

Consultations:

Fleet Supervisor

Purchasing Supervisor

Richmond Sustainability Initiatives





MD2016-015 Appendix A^{Non-Emergency Flee}



CVOR Rating.pdf

Appendix B



SOP2018-006 Appendix C ^{Cleaning of Municip}



SOP2018-003 Plow and Wing Blade Util



SOP2018-005 Tire Appendix E



Appendix F

Report FL2021-002 Fleet Standardization Page 11 of 11





Department Head email: Bryan Robinson

Department Head: brobinson@kawarthalakes.ca

Department File: FL2021-002



Management Directive #:	MD 2016 - 015
Management Directive	Non-Emergency Fleet Services Directive
Name:	11
Date Approved by CAO or	Dec 10/18
Designated Person:	L' / 7 Chill fit
Date revision approved by	
CAO or Designated Person:	· 영화 · 이상 · 이상 · 이상 · 이상 · 이상 · 이상
Related SOP, Management	Non- Emergency Fleet Policy
Directive, Council Policy	Non-Emergency Fleet Standard Operating
·	Procedures

Directive Statement and Rationale

To aliegn with the 2016-19 Strategic Plan, Asset Mangement Plan, support the Council adopted Policy and to provide a consistent and uniform process to respond to Fleet issues as it relates to Fleet Policy. This Management Directive does not include the assets of Fire Services, EMS or Kawartha Lakes Police Services.

As City employees, we are proud to perform our work with: Transparency, Impartiality, Respect and Accountability.

Scope

The City of Kawartha Lakes recognizes the importance of managing all municipally owned and leased rolling stock and motorized equipment in a responsible and cost effective manner.

The Fleet Services Division will maintain the central registry and oversee the management of all municipally owned and leased rolling stock and motorized equipment. Fleet Services shall operate under the umbrella of the Public Works Department and will function as a service provider for City departments. It is the commitment, goals and objectives of the Fleet Services Division to:

1. Be a service provider for fleet services, in a professional, independent, fair and equitable manner.

2. Supply all operating departments with vehicles and equipment that are safe, reliable, meet MTO safety standards and meet the needs specific to the department function.

3. Provide timely maintenance and repair services at cost effective rates competitive or better than those in the private sector. This concept is also based on the recovery of capital costs amortized over the useful and economic life of the equipment thereby permitting timely replacements when required.



4. Work closely with each department to ensure specifications for new vehicles and equipment meet all the needs for that department's area of responsibility, while ensuring cost effectiveness and responsible management of City financial resources.

5. Strive to continually meet and exceed the expectations of all City departments in the provision of Fleet Services.

6. Benchmark repair and maintenance costs regularly to determine the most economical method of providing the services needed. Outsourcing will be utilized when priorities cannot be met with internal service staff, when the service required is a specialty and beyond the ability of staff and when the outsourced service is determined to be the most cost effective alternative.

Management Directive

Vehicles and equipment are assigned to the various departments to be used to achieve their operational mandates. It is the responsibility of the department to ensure that the vehicles are operated by qualified and properly trained individuals in accordance with City policies.

Operating departments are expected to manage the use of their assigned equipment in a manner which maximizes the benefit of having the asset within the fleet. It is anticipated that the operating departments, in concert with recommendations from Fleet Services Division, will reassign from high use activities to lower use activities over the life of the asset so as to ensure that their operational requirements are met and that the vehicle reaches the end of its useful life. This approach ensures the most reliable vehicles are employed in the most critical activities and that the maximum benefit is achieved from having the vehicle in the fleet.

Life Cycles

A Vehicle and Equipment Class Lifespan Schedule has been developed as a guideline and is attached (See Schedule A). The objective of establishing life spans is to manage the replacement of fleet assets in a timely way. By doing so, the objective of reliability will be met and lifecycle costs will be minimized by avoiding major expenses associated with replacement of major components. This schedule is based on historical experience and data relating to the life spans associated with each class of equipment and average annual usage. These life spans and annual usage costs will be used for the purposes of determining rates and predicting the need for replacement.

The estimates relating to costs and life spans will be updated on a regular basis as additional historical records are established and evaluated.



Condition Assessments

When a vehicle or piece of equipment has reached consideration for replacement, a condition assessment will be undertaken by Fleet Services. This condition assessment will assist in determining replacement cycle timelines. The condition assessment form (Fleet Inspection Form) addresses all major components related to specific vehicles and equipment attributes.

Cost Recovery

The cost of vehicles and equipment use will be recovered through the use of charge out rates. The charge out rates are intended to cover operating expenses as well as the capital replacement costs. These rates are dependent on the nature of the use of the equipment and the activity for which it is employed. (See 2019 Charge out Rate Summary).

Operating departments will be responsible for budgeting for the use of their assigned vehicles and equipment throughout the year based on the charge out rates. Operating departments should not budget separately for fuel, servicing, repairs or replacement. All departments will transfer monthly or weekly rates to the Fleet Internal Recovery capital and operating account to cover operating and capital expenses in the Fleet department.

Operating

This component is intended to cover the cost of operating the asset including fuel, maintenance and repairs (including labour, parts, and shop supplies, etc.)

This rate is based on a detailed accounting of the actual charges associated with the operation of all vehicles across a particular class. The costs are summarized to determine an average cost per unit. Additionally, the operating cost will be based on the current year's budget for vehicle maintenance and repair expenditures in the Fleet department. The administration and overhead expenses for the Fleet department will be covered by the tax levy. The operating component will be channeled into an operating account monthly and remain there to be utilized when a necessary action or charge has occurred to the piece of equipment or vehicle. This account will be monitored to ensure accurate rates are being charged to operating departments.

In the event of internal recoveries that result in a surplus in the Fleet department the savings will be reconciled and transferred back to the department or alternatively if the surplus amount is small (under \$250,000) it will be channelled into a operating Fleet Maintenance Reserve for future fleet operating expenses. This reserve will be used in the subsequent year to offset vehicle maintenance and repair expenses or be used in the event of major unanticipated breakdowns



of equipment. This reserve will be mandated to not exceed \$500,000 at any given time and any major overhauls will be documented in a report to Council to request permission to utilize the reserve following purchasing policy.

Capital Replacement

This component is intended to cover the capital replacement cost based on the depreciation of the asset over its useful life.

The replacement portion charge rate is based on the current purchase price less any anticipated residual value of the vehicle/equipment at the time of disposition. The cost is calculated based upon straight line depreciation over the estimated life of the vehicle or piece of equipment.

The capital component will be credited to the Fleet Replacement Reserve. All vehicle and equipment replacements will be funded from the reserve on an annual basis as approved by Council through the budgetary process.

All rates will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Fleet Services Division with assistance from the Finance Department. New rates will be established prior to commencement of the preparation of the annual operating budget so that suitable allowances for vehicle and equipment use can be incorporated into all departmental budgets (See Schedule B 2019 Charge Out Rate Summary).

Vehicle Use

Personal use of a municipal vehicle is not permitted unless specifically approved or under the employee's terms of employment. All employees are expected to keep municipal vehicles clean, and to report any malfunction, defect or damage to their Supervisor as soon as possible.

Employees that are assigned vehicles for use at any time are expected to take reasonable precautions to ensure the safety and security of the vehicle and its contents. Vehicles should contain only those items for which the vehicle is designed.

Employees driving municipal vehicles shall obey all applicable traffic and parking regulations and employees who incur parking or other fines in municipal vehicles will be personally responsible for payment of such fines. All fines and enfractions occurred during the operation of a City vehicle shall be reported to their Supervisor and Fleet Services immediately.



Documentation

In order to manage the fleet, it is essential that proper records be maintained. The City's fixed assets and work order system will be the central repository for all fleet records. The Fleet Services Division will be responsible for maintaining all documentation relating to fleet assets. A detailed listing of all assets will be maintained and updated on a regular basis.

The use of all fleet assets must be documented to use for cost recovery from the operating departments. All expenses associated with the use of fleet assets must similarly be accounted for and must be apportioned to the vehicle to which they apply. Fuel charges will be captured through the use of a fuel FOB where this capability exists or recorded manually. Charges from external sources must similarly be charged against the vehicle. Goods and services purchased on Visa cards should be broken out separately and recorded against the vehicle to which they apply. Invoicing for goods and services will be handled through the accounts payable system and funded from the fleet operating account. All vehicle/equipment work orders, invoices, and parts issuance must be submitted to Fleet Services for proper documentation and approval by the Fleet Manager or his designate.

The maintenance and repair history of each vehicle will be retained centrally within the work order system. All maintenance and repair work to fleet assets will be documented through the creation of a work order for both in-house or work outsourced to private contractors. All assets will follow the Original Engine Manufacturers maintenance guidelines for repair and maintenance schedules or schedules will be developed and approved by the Fleet Manager. All requests for service and all service requirements must go through the Fleet Manager or his designate. In the case of outsourced maintenance and repair work, a copy of the original work order must accompany all invoices in order for payment to be approved.

Rental and Leasing of Vehicles

Rental and/or leasing of vehicles and equipment may offer a financially viable alternative to ownership in order to meet short-term needs. The economic advantage of these options will be assessed on a case-by-case basis in consultation with the Fleet Services Division and initiated by the operating department. This should occur prior to the annual capital budget process so that any acquisition can be identified and included in the budget. If it is determined that a lease or rental is the desirable approach, the operating department will define the requirement and include the full cost of the rental/lease within its operating budget.

The use of rental and leased units may also be justified where it may not be possible to take an asset out of service without compromising an ongoing operational activity. The Fleet Services Division will retain standing arrangements for the rental and leasing of



various types of vehicles and pieces of equipment. Fleet Services will assist the rental or leasing department in the procurement of the asset to ensure that CKL Policy is followed and at the most favorable rates available. A Fleet Rental Form (See Schedule C Equipment Purchase/Rental Request) must be submitted to the Fleet Services Division during the rental preparation time frame and this will provide the basis for review and approval.

Rental or leasing of additional vehicles and equipment (beyond that typically allocated for the department) must have the operating department Manager's approval. A minimum of four business days notice is required to arrange for the rental of most small vehicles. Longer periods will be required to arrange rentals for larger and less common items.

Fleet Acquisitions

Fleet Services Division will be responsible for the compilation of the annual fleet capital budget and all aspects of fleet acquisition, in consultation with the operating departments and the Purchasing Department. All vehicle/equipment acquisitions forms must have the combined approval of the Fleet Manager, Directors, Purchasing Department and Council in accordance with City Policy and a sound business plan. A Fleet Capital Form (See Schedule C Equipment Purchase/Rental Request) must be submitted to the Fleet Services Division during the capital budget preparation time frame as this will provide the basis for the budget report for Council review and approval.

Replacement of Existing Assets

The Fleet Services Division, in consultation with the operating departments, will review the condition of all vehicles due for replacement and will identify those requiring replacement in accordance with the approved schedule. Fleet Services will compile the annual replacement budget for inclusion in the annual capital budget forecast. The Fleet Replacement Reserve Fund will be used as the source of capital funding for the replacement of existing vehicles and equipment.

It is anticipated that the replacement portion of the charge rate collected over the estimated useful life of a vehicle/equipment will fully fund the replacement. As the charge rate for each vehicle/equipment includes regular and uniform contributions to the Fleet Replacement Reserve Fund, it will effectively reduce the need to annually finance major capital purchases of vehicles and equipment solely through the tax based capital budget process.



Replacement Schedules

Each unit which is due for replacement in a given year time span will be inspected by the Fleet Manager or designate using the Fleet Inspection Form. A representative from the operating department may participate in this process if necessary and consideration will be given to its replacement in the upcoming budget year. Factors to be considered include the current serviceability of the vehicle and the expectation for future maintenance costs. The lifespan of an individual unit may be extended based on the replacement inspection and annual review. Conversely life spans of certain individual units may have to be shortened in order to avoid major repairs or the replacement of vital expensive components.

New Acquisitions

Operating departments are responsible for proposing and justifying any new additions to the fleet. Each new acquisition request must be established on a sound business case that will be prepared by the Operating department in collaboration with the Fleet Services Division. This business case will be presented to the department Director for approval. All requests for new acquisitions shall be submitted to Fleet Services during the preparation of the capital budget process and be accompanied by the approved solid business case (or unless otherwise approved by Council). Fleet Services will assist the operating department with the preparation of the specification outlines sufficient for estimating purposes and with an estimate of ongoing operating expenses.

New acquisitions will be funded from the general levy. However, if it can be shown that the proposed asset is 'growth related', alternate funding may be considered (ie Development Charges). Ongoing operating and capital replacement costs will be covered by the user department's operating budget over the life of the acquisition.

The City will purchase only new vehicles and equipment except in unique circumstances (ie where 'demonstration' vehicles or equipment, with low mileage/hours are available and will provide a suitable substitute for new and prove to be a good opportunity for cost savings). This will allow the lifespan schedule to mature properly and keep budgets in control.

Specifications

The Fleet Services Division will develop standardized specifications for all vehicles and equipment where possible. The goal of having standardized specifications will be to acquire assets with similar needs in respect of parts inventory. This standardizing of equipment will be directed at saving costs on training, inventory and repair time to equipment. To ensure compatibility with an existing products or equipment, a minimum set of specifications will be developed for all common fleet assets. Additional standard specifications for common fleet assets will be developed in conjunction with user



groups. It is recognized that specific operational and unique requirements exist for some fleet assets and the Fleet Services Division will work with the operating departments and the Purchasing Department to meet those specific needs.

Based on operating trends and maintenance demands, Fleet Services Division will work with operating departments to "right-size" the fleet with vehicles appropriate for the use, determine the appropriate power train, fuel source or Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) for specific applications.

Identification and Colouring

Every vehicle and piece of equipment will be identified by a fixed asset number which shall be placed on the vehicle for operational and financial control identification purposes.

All new vehicle purchases shall be specified as "Fleet White". Vehicles involved in special operations where the colour white may be inappropriate may utilize another colour. In such cases, the selection of the colour will be made by the Fleet Manager and the Director of the operating department and shall be consistent on an ongoing basis.

All vehicles/equipment shall bear appropriate Kawartha Lakes logos for easy identification with the standard being a large logo, 60cm x 30cm affixed to the driver and passenger front cab and vehicle identification numbers, 6.5cm in height, located on both sides of the front fenders and one on the upper back rear. Wherever possible and appropriate, vehicles/equipment will have a red and blue reflective stripe down both sides.

Procurement and Acceptance

All new vehicles will be procured through the Purchasing system and delivered to Fleet Services.

The Fleet Manager or designate and a representative from the operating department will inspect newly purchased vehicles to ensure all specifications from the tender document have been met.

The new vehicle will be released to the user and department upon completion of the following:

- Administration functions (ie receiving into inventory, fuel FOB insurance etc.)
- Post Delivery Inspection



- Proper documentation
- Licensing and insurance
- Lettering and decals
- Rust coating
- Two-way radio installation (if required)
- Installation of other attachments as necessary.

Disposal of Redundant/Surplus Equipment

Each year the Fleet Manager will review the scheduled replacement program with the user-departments and confirm the need for each unit's replacement. Units to be replaced will be reported to Council during budget discussions for final approval. Replacement vehicles will be considered for disposal either as a trade against the value of the replacement or through public auction with the proceeds being returned to the Fleet Replacement Capital Reserve Fund.

Vehicles and equipment which become unnecessary or redundant through ongoing operational or organizational changes must be returned to Fleet Services. The Fleet Manager will be responsible for the disposition of surplus vehicles/equipment through reassignment to other departments who may require additional resources or auction in accordance with the Purchasing Management Directive. Proceeds will be credited to the Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund via the Fleet Department's Sale of Equipment Revenue Account.

In all cases, any disposition of fleet assets will be in keeping with the provisions of the City Purchasing Policy in effect at the time.

Pooling of Vehicles and Equipment

Departments should pool vehicles and or equipment whenever possible to eliminate the need of a rental or to reduce downtime from a maintenance related issue. The pooling concept should be simple with communication within the department or outside the department to see if the vehicle or equipment required is available. Availability may be limited on certain days and times but pooling should be encouraged.

Fleet Services will also maintain a small pool of equipment for periodic loan. These vehicles are generally replacement units or rightsized units from various City departments or have been returned because of new replacements and are waiting to be sold at City auction. These vehicles are checked to confirm operating condition and will be available for temporary use. Departments can call or email Fleet to check inventory.



Green Fleet initiatives

City vehicles conform to all Ministry of Transportation requirements for drive clean testing. Vehicles are selected when annual licence stickers are due and they are sent out for testing to confirm proper low emissions from exhaust systems. New vehicles, when available, are ordered with the Flex-Fuel option. This is an engine with a single fuel system that operates on either of two different fuels or a blend of two (e.g. an E85 vehicle can operate on gasoline alone or on any blend of gasoline and ethanol to a maximum of 85 per cent ethanol).

Hybrid and alternative vehicles are becoming very popular and technology advances are becoming more reliable. The effectiveness of alternative and hybrid equipment for City business has been reviewed in detail and to date as the cost difference of alternative vehicles and equipment cannot be justified at this time. Fleet Services will continue to review hybrids and alternative types of equipment and make recommendations when reasonable. City diesel engine vehicles that have been purchased in the last three to four years are tier 4i compliance and soon will be a full tier 4. These engines may emit less harmful exhaust gases then some gasoline engines.

Anti–Idling procedure to reduce green house gases and reduce costs from city vehicles and equipment has been developed by Fleet Services and approved by the CAO and is being followed by all staff.

Attachments



Fleet Inspection Form.xlsx



Schedule C v2018.docx

Revision History:



Proposed Date of Review:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By
0.0	January 1, 2017	Initial Release	140771-1-1-2173
1	January 1, 2018	Charge Out Rate Summary changes	
2	January 1, 2019	Charge Out Rate Summary changes, CKL Equipment Rental Request Schedule C, CKL Capital Equipment Purchase Request Schedule D	



SCHEDULE A
VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT CLASS LIFESPAN SCHEDULES

DE	SCRIPTION	LIFE SPAN YEARS	LIFE SPAN HOURS or KM (as noted)		
		1 S 1598			
1	Aerial truck	15	*		
2	Backhoe	15			
3	Buses	10			
4	Car Small	10	188,000		
5	Car Full Size	10	188,000		
6	Chippers	15			
7	Compactors	15			
8	Electric Generator	TBA			
9	Grader	25			
10	Lawn Tractor (under 15H.P.)	12			
11	Loaders	15			
12	Loader Landfill	15			
	14' Mower Deck for				
13	trackless	3			
14	Medium duty truck	10			
15	Pick-up truck ³ / ₄ with a plow	10	300,000 km		
16	Pick-up truck 1/2 ton	10	300,000 km		
17	Single Axle Plow	12			
18	Small Equipment	2	TBA		
19	Tandem Axle Plow	12			
20	Tractors (15 to 30 H.P.)	15			
21	Tractors (30 to 40 H.P)	15			
22	Tractors (40 to 80 H.P.)	15			
23	Trailers	20			
25	Mini-Vans/Vans Cargo	10	250,000 km		
26	Vans Cargo 3/4	15	300,000 km		
27	Sidewalk Machine	10	5000		
28	Steamer (culvert)	20	2000		
29	Vacuum Truck	15	15000		
30	Street Sweeper	15	6000		
31	Ice Resurfacers	12	4800		
32	Roller	15	7500		
33	ATV	10			
34	Valve Main Trailer	10	7500		
35	Tractor Brusher	15	7500		

CKL FLEET INSPECTION FORM Schedule A

City of KAWARTHA LAKE Catch the Kawartha spirit

VEHICLE INFORMA	TION							
DATE:			PLATE:	.e. 1	60781	UNIT #:		
VEHICLE MAKE:				-:	2.2. 9.2.2.	YEAR:		
						Π		
			HOURS					
			HOOK3					
COMPLETE FOR AL	L EQ	QUIPN	MENT					
Criteria overview for Truck, Trailer	, or Bus). Do vobiek	NOTE: use only items	pertai	ning to the	e vehicle type being inspected		112 A.
	OK	Defect	ITEM	OK	Defect	ITEM	OK	Defect
POWER TRAIN			QUICK RELEASE VALVES			TRAILER CORD		
ACCELERATOR PEDAL			RELAY/LIMITING/PROPORTIONING VALVE			BODY		
FUEL SYSTEMS			TRACTOR PROTECTION SYSTEM			HOOD		
EXHAUST SYSTEM			AIR SYSTEM CONTROL VALVES			TILT CAB		
BELTS			PARKING AND EMERGENCY BRAKE APP			AIR SUSPENDED CABS		Π
DRIVE SHAFT			SPRING BRAKE CONTROL VALVE			VEHICLE BODY		
CLUTCH			AIR BRAKE COMPONENTS			LOAD SECUREMENTS POINTS		
ENGINE/TRAN. MOUNT			MECHANICAL COMPONENTS			FRONT & REAR BUMPERS		
ENGINE SHUT DOWN			BRAKE CAMSHAFTS			STEP WELL		
NEUTRAL SAFETY SWITCH			CAMSHAFT ROTATION			SERVICE EXIT & EMERG. DOOR		
SUSPENSION			DRUM BRAKES			DOORS		
SUSPENSION ATTACH.			BRAKE DRUMS			CAB MOUNT HANDLE & STEP		
LEAF SPRING & ATTACH.			BRAKE ADJUSTMENTS			WINDSHIELD		
COIL SPRING SUSPENSION.			DISC BRAKES			SIDE WINDOWS		
TORSION BAR SUSPENSION.			ANTI-LOCK-BRAKE SYSTEM			REAR WINDOWS		
RUBBER LOAD CUSHION			STEERING			FRAME RAILS & MOUNTS		
TANDEM AXLE WALKING BEAMS			STEERING WHEEL TEST			SUN VISOR		
AIR SUSPENSION			TRAVEL			REAR VIEW MIRRORS		
AIR SUSPENDED NON-DRIVING AXLE			STEERING LINKAGE			SEATS		
SELF-STEERING AXLES			GAUGES & OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS			SEAT BELTS		
SHOCK ABSORBERS			KINGPIN PLAY			WINDSHIELD WIPERS/WASHERS		
HYDRAULIC BRAKE SYSTEM			BALL JOINTS			HEATER & WINDSHIELD DEFROSTER		
PARKING BRAKES			POWER STEERING			INTERIOR HEATERS		
DUAL BRAKE SYS. HYD. CIRCUIT			TELESCOPIC/TILT STEERING			BUS INTERIOR		
HYDRAULIC SYSTEM			INSTRUMENT & AUXILIARY			AUXILIARY COMPARTMENTS		
BRAKE LEAKAGE			FIRE EXTINGUISHER			FENDERS OR MUD FLAPS		
HYD. ASSISTED BRAKE SYS.			HAZARD WARNING KIT			BODY		
VACUUM ASSISTED POWER BRAKES			AUXILIARY EQUIPMENT			FRAME & CROSS MEMBERS		
VACUUM SYSTEM			FIRST AID KIT			REAR IMPACT GUARDS		
VACUUM BOOSTER			CLUTCH & BRAKE PEDAL			CORROSION		
VACUUM RESERVE			HORN ELECTRIC & AIR			EQUIP. FOR PHYSICALLY DISABLED		
VACUUM PUMP			SPEEDOMETER			TIRES AND WHEELS		
DRUM BRAKES			ODOMETER			TREAD DEPTH		
DISK BRAKES			INDICATION LAMPS			TREAD SECTION OF TIRE		
PROPORTIONING VALVE			INSTRUMENTS			SIDEWALLS		
ANTI-LOCK BRAKES			HEATER/REFRIGERATION UNIT			TIRE PRESSURE		
ELECTRIC BRAKES						HUBS		
AIRBRAKES			REFLEX REFLECTORS			WHEEL BEARINGS		
AIR COMPRESSOR						WHEEL/RIMS		
COMPRESSOR AIR-BUILD TIME						MULTI-PIECE WHEEL/RIM		
AIR GOVERNOR						SPOKE WHEEL/DEMOUNTABLE RIM		
LOW AIR PRESS, WARN, SYS.						DISC WHEEL SYSTEM		
COMPRESSOR AD DEC						WHEEL FASTENERS		
AID TANK & OUTOK VALVED			WIRING			COUPLERS & HITCHES		
			DATTERY			IRAILER HITCH		
			BALLERY			PERMANENTLY ATTACHED EQUIP		
I KAIL. BRAKE HAND CONTROL VALVE			ALTERNATOR					

	LEFT FRONT		
	LEFI FRONI	Diout	
	DRUMS/ROTORS*	RIGHI	mm
-OOF	LININGS/PADS®		_ pei
	PUSHROD TRAVEL*		
rom I I I I I	DRUMS/ROTORS*		
pei	LININGS/PADS*		mm per
	PUSHROD TRAVEL*	W SJOIKSV	
	DRIMS/ROTORS*		
ensen () ()	LININGS/PADS*	HOURSE	
	PUSHROD TRAVEL*		
	DRUMS/ROTORS*		
	LININGS/PADS*	being inspected	100
pei	PUSHROD TRAVEL*		poi
	<u> 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997</u>	<u>w.u.s. 1973 (0915) (0915)</u>	100
		ANT CONTRACT AND	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ATS I TROVIS C. C. C. C.	MECHANICAL COMPONSE	THUCH MARY
and the second part of the second			
ME OF INSPECTING MECHANIC (PR	INT) SIGNATURE OF INSPEC	TING MECHANIC	MECHANIC NUMBER
SPECTION STATION NUMBER	SIGNATURE OF I	NSPECTION LICENSEE OR RI	EPRESENTATIVE
		Loasues selo	
OMPLETE IF REQUI	RED	5/151	n
	KMIS	VIIN	# r.#
ange engine oil & filter		E = Filled A = Adjusted C	= Changed O = Okay B = Bonaire
eck fuel filter	NA - Not applicable	T = T med A = Adjusted C	
eck front differential level	16 1 0 s	denter early into a state	ERING AXLES
eck rear differential level	Invi Concel Ly	SAURINA DADA	anseroza.
eck transmission level		L P BAI JOINTS	LI LI MEIEYE BAARE
eck & set hoses		DAIX BLE DUVO B	G SHARES
eck tire pressures	11/ L19 L1 L1 210	maste chini score si i	
eck hydraulic oil level			M3167671
eck power steering level			
eck windshield washer level		and the second second	
eck batteries & connections		T0:01: 709.0	MIC RYS AN
neck autogreaser level	COMMENTS:		
eck autogreaser operation			N ₂ ESEN
eck air filter & winter intake operation	C/ 1180	SPLEDOMETER	DARFORD D. D. D.
eck cab air filter		見ててきがここう	23×/910 M
	(1 304) (1) (1) (1) (1)	NOICOTION LANS	L L BEXARD
eck coolant level		STREET STANDARD	States in the second
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA	57 3940	PANIARS IN SMILLING	JUK BRACES (L)
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA place coolant filter as required		Ex 70010403 Aprendition and the second	
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA blace coolant filter as required move vents & clean			
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA place coolant filter as required move vents & clean eck suspension			1
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA blace coolant filter as required move vents & clean eck suspension ck tailgate operation & lube pivots			
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA place coolant filter as required move vents & clean eck suspension eck tailgate operation & lube pivots eck tarp operation & mesh			
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA place coolant filter as required move vents & clean eck suspension eck tailgate operation & lube pivots eck tarp operation & mesh ease chassis			
eck coolant level eck coolant for DCA blace coolant filter as required move vents & clean eck suspension ck tailgate operation & lube pivots eck tarp operation & mesh tase chassis blace oil change sticker			

CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES Fleet Management Directive Charge Out Rate Summary - 2019

Vehicle Type	Net Cost (\$)	Life Span (years)	Annual Capital Replacement Cost	Average Annual Operating Cost	Total Annual Charge Rates	Total Monthly Charge Rates	Average Annual Usage (hours)	2018 Hourly Charge Rates	2018 Monthly Charge Rates	2019 Hourly Charge Rate	2019 Monthly Charge Rate
Aerial Truck	\$ 175,000	15	\$ 11,667	\$ 25,917	\$ 37,584	\$ 3,132	1500	\$ 24.00	\$ 3,056.00	\$ 25.00	\$ 3,132.00
Backhoe	\$ 160,000	15	\$ 10,667	\$ 11,545	\$ 22,212	\$ 1,851	500	\$ 43.00	\$ 1,806.00	\$ 44.00	\$ 1,851.00
Buses	\$ 190,000	10	Gas Tax	\$ 38,436	\$ 38,436	\$ 3,203	2200	\$ 17.00	\$ 3,125.00	\$ 17.00	\$ 3,203.00
Cars - Small	\$ 27,500	10	\$ 2,750	\$ 3,130	\$ 5,880	\$ 490	600	\$ 10.00	\$ 479.00	\$ 10.00	\$ 490.00
Cars - Full Size	\$ 35,000	10	\$ 3,500	\$ 4,000	\$ 7,500	\$ 625	600	\$ 13.00	\$ 625.00	\$ 13.00	\$ 625.00
Chippers	\$ 60,000	15	\$ 4,000	\$ 2,660	\$ 6,660	\$ 555	150	\$ 43.00	\$ 542.00	\$ 44.00	\$ 555.00
Compactor - Mid-Size Refurbished	\$ 250,000	20	\$ 12,500	\$ 43,972	\$ 56,472	\$ 4,706	500	\$ 109.00	\$ 4,542.00	\$ 113.00	\$ 4,706.00
Compactor - Full-Size Refurbished	\$ 525,000	15	\$ 35,000	\$ 74,668	\$ 109,668	\$ 9,139	1000	\$ 107.00	\$ 8,917.00	\$ 110.00	\$ 9,139.00
Electric Generators - Building	\$ 90,000	40	\$ 2,250	2000	\$ 4,250	\$ 354	100			\$ 43.00	\$ 354.00
Electric Generators - Portable	\$ 10,000	10	\$ 1,000	200	\$ 1,200	\$ 100	100			\$ 12.00	\$ 100.00
Graders - Used	\$ 325,000	25	\$ 13,000	\$ 35,168	\$ 48,168	\$4,014.00	800	\$ 59.00	\$ 3,917.00	\$ 60.00	\$ 4,014.00
Lawn Tractors	\$ 18,000	12	\$ 1,500	\$ 1,116	\$ 2,616	\$ 218.00	400	\$ 6.00	\$ 212.50	\$ 7.00	\$ 218.00
Loaders	\$ 175,000	15	\$ 11,667	\$ 23,865	\$ 35,532	\$2,960.97	500	\$ 69.00	\$ 2,889.00	\$ 71.00	\$ 2,961.00
Landfill Loader	\$ 300,000	15	\$ 20,000	\$ 52,708	\$ 72,708	\$6,059.00	1000	\$ 71.00	\$ 5,916.67	\$ 73.00	\$ 6,059.00
Mower Deck for Trackless	\$ 30,000	3	\$ 10,000	\$ 1,000	\$ 11,000	\$ 916.67	400	\$ 28.00	\$ 916.67	\$ 28.00	\$ 917.00
Medium Duty Truck	\$ 80,000	12 years or 288000 km	\$ 6,666.67	\$ 9,389	\$ 16,056	\$1,337.97	800	\$ 17.00	\$ 1,305.56	\$ 20.00	\$ 1,338.00
Pick-up - 3/4 ton 4X4	\$ 60,000	10 years or 240000 km	\$ 6,000.00	\$ 15,516	\$ 21,516	\$ 1,793	1250	\$ 17.00	\$ 1,750.00	\$ 17.00	\$ 1,793.00
Pick-up - 1/2 ton	\$ 33,000	10 years or 240000 km	\$ 3,300	\$ 8,280	\$ 11,580	\$ 965.00	1000	\$ 11.00	\$ 941.67	\$ 12.00	\$ 965.00
Single Axle Plow Truck	\$ 250,000	12	\$ 20,833	\$ 18,959	\$ 39,792	\$3,316.03	500	\$ 77.00	\$ 3,236.00	\$ 80.00	\$ 3,316.00
Tandem Axle Plow Truck	\$ 290,000	12	\$ 24,167	\$ 25,201	\$ 49,368	\$4,113.97	500	\$ 96.00	\$ 4,014.00	\$ 99.00	\$ 4,114.00
Tractors 15-30 HP	\$ 30,000	15	\$ 2,000	\$ 2,608	\$ 4,608	\$ 384.00	250	\$ 18.00	\$ 375.00	\$ 18.00	\$ 384.00
Tractors 30-40 HP	\$ 50,000	15	\$ 3,333	\$ 3,159	\$ 6,492	\$ 541	300	\$ 21.00	\$ 528.00	\$ 22.00	\$ 541.00

CITY OF KAWARTHA LAKES Fleet Management Directive Charge Out Rate Summary - 2019

Vehicle Type	Net Cost (\$)	Life Span (years)	Annual Capital Replacement Cost	Average Annual Operating Cost	Total Annual Charge Rates	Total Monthly Charge Rates	Average Annual Usage (hours)	2018 Hourly Charge Rates	2018 Monthly Charge Rates	2019 Hourly Charge Rate	2019 Monthly Charge Rate
Tractors 40-85 HP	\$ 75,000	15	\$ 5,000	\$ 10,372	\$ 15,372	\$ 1,281	450	\$ 33.00	\$ 1,250.00	\$ 34.00	\$ 1,281.00
Trailers - Mid-Size	\$ 10,000	20	\$ 500	\$ 700	\$ 1,200	\$ 100	200	\$ 6.00	\$ 100.00	\$ 6.00	\$ 100.00
Trailers - Large Float	\$ 35,000	20	\$ 1,750	\$ 1,250	\$ 3,000	\$ 250	200	\$ 15.00	\$ 250.00	\$ 15.00	\$ 250.00
Vans - Mini	\$ 35,000	10	\$ 3,500	\$ 5,176	\$ 8,676	\$ 723	1000	\$ 8.00	\$ 708.00	\$ 9.00	\$ 723.00
Vans - Cargo	\$ 35,000	10	\$ 3,500	\$ 4,696	\$ 8,196	\$ 683	1000	\$ 8.00	\$ 667.00	\$ 8.00	\$ 683.00
Vans - Cargo 3/4 ton	\$ 75,000	15	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,500	\$ 10,500	\$ 875.00	1000	\$ 10.00	\$ 854.17	\$ 11.00	\$ 875.00
Sidewalk Machine	\$ 160,000	10	\$ 16,000	\$ 15,764	\$ 31,764	\$2,647.00	500	\$ 62.00	\$ 2,583.00	\$ 64.00	\$ 2,647.00
Steamers	\$ 20,000	20	\$ 1,000	\$ 500	\$ 1,500	\$ 125	100	\$ 15.00	\$ 125.00	\$ 15.00	\$ 125.00
Street Sweeper	\$ 275,000	15	\$ 18,333	\$ 15,831	\$ 34,164	\$2,847.03	500	\$ 67.00	\$ 2,778.78	\$ 68.00	\$ 2,847.00
Vacuum Truck	\$ 600,000	15	\$ 40,000	\$ 21,500	\$ 61,500	\$5,125.00	750	\$ 80.00	\$ 5,000.00	\$ 82.00	\$ 5,125.00
Ice Resurfacer	\$ 100,000	12	\$ 8,333	\$ 3,271	\$ 11,604	\$ 967.03	400	\$ 28.00	\$ 944.44	\$ 29.00	\$ 967.00
Roller	\$ 40,000	15	\$ 2,667	\$ 1,595	\$ 4,262	\$ 355.14	200	\$ 21.00	\$ 347.00	\$ 21.00	\$ 355.00
ATV	\$ 12,500	10	\$ 1,250	\$ 1,054	\$ 2,304	\$ 192.00	200	\$ 11.00	\$ 188.00	\$ 12.00	\$ 192.00
Valve Main Trailer	\$ 120,000	10	\$ 12,000	\$ 3,000	\$ 15,000	\$1,250.00	500	\$ 30.00	\$ 1,250.00	\$ 30.00	\$ 1,250.00
Tractor Brusher	\$ 200,000	15	\$ 13,333	\$ 40,000	\$ 53,333	\$4,444.44	500	\$ 107.00	\$ 4,444.00	\$ 107.00	\$ 4,444.00

Rate Increase for 2019 New Rate Group for 2019

> ענסב - איי שארוק אבין ופק אלירוייק דרגיינערליקשי ללאר ער לפרו ד-ג'וויד'ד ארגעל, אפלארולד בבע

> > 성 약 성 · 사 약을 합니다.

SCHEDULE C

CITY (VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT	OF KAWARTHA LAKES [RENTAL / PURCHASE REQUEST FORM							
This form is to be used for all vehicle requested. Please	es / equipment where a rental or a new purchase is being a use one form per vehicle / equipment.							
DATE OF REQUEST: REQUESTER (NAME & DEPARTMENT):								
CHECK ONE:	RENTAL Or PURCHASE							
CAPITAL PROJECTProvide CaOPERATING COSTProvide BU	ipital Project #: J:							
Vehicle / Equipment requested:								
Specify if any other additional items/options are required (<i>i.e. special needs, unique circumstances</i>)								
Provide Business Case rationale for this vehicle / equipment addition request:								
RENTAL: START DATE:	DATE OF RETURN:							
NEW PURCHASE: IS THIS A REPLACEMENT? YES NO (if yes, answer next question) Will the old vehicle / equipment be returned to Fleet at the time of new purchase receipt? YES NO . If NO, please explain why.								
SIGNATURE * DATE * Dept. Director for Purchase Request; Manager for Rental Request								
FOR FLEET SERVICES OFFICE USE O								
Cost of Vehicle/Equipment	Estimated CostHSTTotal Cost\$\$\$							
Manager of Fleet Services - Approval	Director of Public Works – Approval (If Applicable)							

Ministry of TransportationRoad User Safety DivisionMinistère des TransportsDivision de Sécurité RoutièreSearch Date and Time: 2020-01-22 16:39:11Order #: 1-4867037269



COMMERCIAL VEHICLE OPERATOR RECORD

Carrier Information	State of Contract Name of	医心的 外下,此时,一两根是此				
CVOR / RIN #	090-965-052					
Client Name	THE CORPORATION	OF THE CITY OF KAWAR	THA LAKES			
Operating As	LIGHT ENG & PUBLI	C WORKS - AREA 3A LIGH	IT			
Address	26 FRANCIS ST					
	PO BOX 9000					
	LINDSAY ON K9V5	R8				
Mailing Address						
Phone #	(705) 324-9411					
Mobile #	(705) 328-4223	Fax #	(705) 324-4167			
Email	tbryant@kawarthalak	es.ca				
CVOR Status	Registered	Expiry Date	2020-06-21			
Overall Violation Rate	34.17 %	Carrier Safety Rating	Satisfactory Un-audited			
Start Date	1987-03-23	Original Issue Date	1989-09-20			
Type of Commercial Vehic	le	Bus Truck				
Dangerous Goods		Yes				
Ontario Kms* Travelled		3,242,000				
Rest of Canada Kms* Trav	elled	Not Applicable				
US / Mexico Kms* Travelle	d	Not Applicable				
Total Kms* Travelled		3,242,000				
*Kilometres shown are the	current annual rates	most recently reported by	the operator for			
the last 12 months (could i	include actual and est	imated travel).				
# of Commercial Vehicles		160				
# of Vehicles Double Shifte	ed	65				
# of Drivers		160				
US DOT #						

Collision Details From 2017-12-24 to 2019-12-24 (24 Months)							
# of Collisions with points		11					
Fatal	0	Personal injury	3				
Property damage	26						
# of Collisions not pointed		18	18				
Total # of Collisions		29					

Conviction Details From 2017-12-24 to 2019-12-24 (24 Months)							
# of Convictions with	h points	6					
Driver	5	Vehicle	2				
Load	0	Other	0				
# of Convictions not	pointed	1					
Total # of Convictions		7					

CVOR / RIN # 090-965-052

Ministry of Transportation Ministère des Transports Search Date and Time: 2020-01-22 16:39:11 Order #: 1-4867037269

Road User Safety Division Division de Sécurité Routière



Inspection Details	From 2017-12-24	to 2019-12-24 (24 Mo	nths)
Total # of Inspection:	s by level		
Level 1	15	Level 2	3
Level 3	1	Level 4	0
Level 5	3		
Total # of Inspection:	s Out of Service by	level	
Level 1	2	Level 2	0
Level 3	0	Level 4	0
Level 5	0		
Total # of vehicles inspected		22	
Out of Service Rates	(Excludes Level 4)		
Vehicle Out of Service %		9.52	
Driver Out of Service %		0.00	
Overall Out o	f Service %	9.09	

Performance Summary From 2017-12-24 to 2019-12-24 (24 Months)							
Event Type	% of set Threshold	% Weight	% Overall Contribution				
Collision	60.08	40	24.03				
Conviction	17.92	40	7.17				
Inspection	14.83	20	2.97				
Overall Violation R	ate%	34.17					

Most Recent Audit

Summary of Interventions From 20	018-01-23 to 2020-01-23 (24 Months)
Туре	Date
Warning Letter	2018-06-29

Collision Breakdown by Kilometric Rate Change								
Time	Date From	Date To	# of	KM Rate	# of	# of	Set Threshold	% of Set
Period			Months	Per Month	Events	Points	Points	Threshold
1	2019-04-01	2019-12-24	8.8	270,167	10	6	14.26	42.08
2	2018-04-01	2019-03-31	12	270,167	15	12	19.45	61.70
3	2017-12-24	2018-03-31	3.27	198,833	4	4	3.90	102.56
Total			24.00		29	22		60.08
*Collisi	*Collision threshold values are based on actual/actimated acts of kilometry thread to the							

*Collision threshold values are based on actual/estimated rate of kilometres travel per month reported by the carrier for each time period. Assumed value is used if rate not reported.

Conviction Breakdown by Kilometric Rate Change								
Time Period	Date From	Date To	# of Months	KM Rate Per Month	# of Events	# of Points	Set Threshold Points	% of Set Threshold
1	2019-04-01	2019-12-24	8.8	270,167	1	3	32.79	9.15
2	2018-04-01	2019-03-31	12	270,167	5	9	44.71	20.13
3	2017-12-24	2018-03-31	3.27	198,833	1	3	8.97	33.44
Total			24.00		7	15		17.92

*Conviction threshold values are based on actual/estimated rate of kilometres travel per month reported by the carrier for each time period. Assumed value is used if rate not reported.

SR-LV-29(A) 96.04 LCS CVOR / RIN # 090-965-052

Page 2 of 33 2020-01-23 1:47:48



Standard Operating Procedure

SOP No.:	SOP2018-006
SOP Name:	Cleaning of Municipal Vehicles & Equipment
Effective Date:	August 14, 2018
Revision Date:	
Related SOP, Management Directive, Council Policy, Forms	CP2016-012 Non-Emergency Fleet Policy, MD2016- 015 Non-Emergency Fleet Services Management Directive, MD2018-019 Municipal Vehicle & Equipment Use Management Directive

Corporate Standard Operating Procedure

General Introduction

This procedure is developed in conjunction with Council Policies, Management Directives and collective agreements and is considered the procedure to be followed by every employee of the City of Kawartha Lakes.

Authority

This procedure and its resulting processes have been developed as a result of a decision and commitment by the City of Kawartha Lakes to function more consistently as a Team. In the event a specific procedure references applicable legislation or existing Council Policy or Management Directive, those authorities shall supercede divisional influence.

Scope of Application

All regular processes followed by City of Kawartha Lakes employees are developed into this Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) to be applied for all City of Kawartha Lakes Municipal Vehicles and Equipment.

Operational Compliance

All employees shall be responsible to identify, record (where applicable) and comply with Standard Operating Procedures. All employees shall be responsible to comply with the Council Policy or Management Directive and related Public Works Department Standard Operating Procedures and Guidelines.

Procedure Amendments

This procedure will be periodically reviewed and updated; updates will be carried out by the Director of Public Works in consultation with Fleet Manager and Public Works staff members. Any operational situations that cannot be adequately addressed using the prescribed SOP shall be immediately brought to the attention of the Fleet Manager.



Standard Operating Procedure

Definitions

Debris- Something discarded; rubbish, garbage, remains.

Road Debris- Any substance such as mud, grime, dust, salt, sand, dirt etc.

Wash- To apply water and cleaning solution for the purpose of cleansing

Administration

This process is to explain the procedures for Cleaning Municipal Vehicles and Equipment.



ACTIONS	DETAILS							
DAILY	 Thoroughly wash exterior of vehicle removing all road debris as directed by Supervisor. Clean interior, floor, dash and seats of any debris. 							
WEEKLY	 Thoroughly wash exterior of truck removing all road debris Clean interior windows Clean and wipe dash, seats and floors Thoroughly wash exterior of truck after all other activities 							
MONTHLY	 Vacuum seats as required Wash floor mats Wash interior door panels Oil main and cross chains (Plow Trucks only)as 							

Cleaning of Municipal Vehicles & Equipment


	required (particularly important before inserting tray covers for seasonal operations)
QUARTLERY	1. Wax exterior of unit as directed. (Soap that contains wax is acceptable)

Revision History:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By
0.0	August 14, 2018	Initial Release	Todd Bryant

Staff Sign-off:

Date reviewed	
Date accepted	
Date of implementation	
Proposed Date of Review	

_ _



SOP No.:	SOP2018-003
SOP Name:	Plow and Wing Blade Utilization
	C C
Effective Date:	May 28, 2018
Revision Date:	
Related SOP, Management	CP2016-012 Non-Emergency Fleet Policy,
Directive, Council Policy, Forms	MD2016-015 Non-Emergency Fleet Services
	Management Directive

Public Works Standard Operating Procedure

General Introduction

This procedure is developed in conjunction with Council Policies, Management Directives and collective agreements and considered the procedure to be followed by every employee of the Public Works Department.

Authority

This procedure and its resulting processes have been developed as a result of a decision and commitment by all Public Works Department employees in order to function more consistently as a Team. In the event a specific procedure references applicable legislation or existing Council Policy or Management Directive, those authorities shall supercede divisional influence.

Scope of Application

All regular processes followed Public Works Department employees are developed into this Standard Operating Procedure (SOP).

Operational Compliance

All Public Works Department employees shall be responsible to identify, record (where applicable) and comply with Standard Operating Procedures for all regular work processes. All Public Works Department employees shall be responsible to comply with the Council Policy or Management Directive and related Public Works Department Standard Operating Procedures and Guidelines.

Procedure Amendments

This procedure will be periodically reviewed and updated; updates will be carried out by the Director of Public Works in consultation with Fleet Manager and Public Works staff members. Any operational situations that cannot be adequately addressed using the prescribed SOP shall be immediately brought to the attention of the Fleet Manager.



Administration

This process is to explain the procedures for Plow and Wing Blade Utilization.

PPE	SAFETY BOOTS	EYE PROTECTION	GENERAL SAFETY GLOVES	HEARING PROTECTION
REQUIRED:				

ACTIONS	DETAILS
	 Wear edges will be checked and monitored by unit operators daily. When the edge is at or within 0.5 cm of moldboard, the Supervisor shall assess and decide whether to change the edge or continue to use. Once the decision to change the edges is made, the operator shall acquire the necessary tools, materials and PPE. Operators shall be aware of hazards such as but not limited to sharp edges, noise, dust, vibration, flying objects.
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURE:	 3. The plow/ wing shall be raised off of the ground to a height no greater than that required to allow use of tools to loosen and remove nuts. Properly sized stands to support the weight shall be placed under the plow/wing. The plow/ wing shall then be lowered onto the stand so as to minimize the risk of equipment failure and staff being caught underneath. 4. When changing edges, extreme care should be taken
	to avoid over exertion. Proper lifting techniques and assistance of co-workers shall be considered at all times during this operation.
	 Removal of the worn edges should be done by first loosening and removing all but two of the holding bolts. A minimum of two alignment bars shall be placed into the vacant holes and the last two remaining bolts removed. The edge can now be carefully lowered to



the ground by removal of the alignment bars. This
process will be copied until all of the sections of the
plow/ wing are removed.
6. The area underneath the edge shall be cleaned of all
dirt and rust by brushing or cleaning the unit, inspected
for any signs of fatigue or damage. When this process
is being performed pre or post winter control season
this area should be painted prior to new edge
installation
INStallation.
. Installation of the new edges will be opposite of
removal. The edges will be raised and secured with a
minimum of two alignment bars. Two bolts and nuts
will now be used to secure the edge in place and the
alignment bars can now be removed. The remaining
bolts will now be installed and all bolts tightened to
manufacturers specifications.
3. Bolts shall be checked and retightened after two
plowing events
All blades remain the property of the City of Kawartha
Lakes and remain in possession of the assigned donat
The used blades will be returned to Elect Services at
the used blades will be returned to ried. Services at
the end of the winter control season for disposal.

Revision History:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By
0.0	2018 05 28	Initial Release	T. Bryant



Staff Sign-off:

Date reviewed by Public Works Department	2018 05 28
Date accepted	2018 05 28
Date of implementation	2018 05 28
Proposed Date of Review	



SOP No.:	SOP2018-005
SOP Name:	Tire Chain Install, Removal and Upkeep
Effective Date:	May 28, 2018
Revision Date:	
Related SOP, Management	CP2016-012 Non-Emergency Fleet Policy,
Directive, Council Policy, Forms	MD2016-015 Non-Emergency Fleet Services
	Management Directive

Public Works Standard Operating Procedure

General Introduction

This procedure is developed in conjunction with Council Policies, Management Directives and collective agreements and is considered the procedure to be followed by every employee of the Public Works Department.

Authority

This procedure and its resulting processes have been developed as a result of a decision and commitment by all Public Works Department employees in order to function more consistently as a Team. In the event a specific procedure references applicable legislation or existing Council Policy or Management Directive, those authorities shall supercede divisional influence.

Scope of Application

All regular processes followed by Public Works Department employees will be developed into a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP).

Operational Compliance

All Public Works Department employees shall be responsible to identify, record (where applicable) and comply with Standard Operating Procedures. All Public Works Department employees shall be responsible to comply with the Council Policy or Management Directive and related Public Works Department Standard Operating Procedures and Guidelines.

Procedure Amendments

This procedure will be periodically reviewed and updated; updates will be carried out by the Director of Public Works in consultation with Fleet Manager and Public Works staff members. Any operational situations that cannot be adequately addressed using the prescribed SOP shall be immediately brought to the attention of the Fleet Manager.



Administration

This process is to explain the procedures for Tire Chain Install, Removal and Upkeep.

PPE REQUIRED:	EYE PROTECTION	GENERAL SAFETY GLOVES
------------------	-------------------	-----------------------------

ACTIONS	DETAILS
PRE-OPERATIONAL SAFETY CHECKS:	 Alert co-workers in the area that the truck will be locked out while this procedure is ongoing. Apply lock out steering wheel device. If using tire chains on the passenger side front tire, ensure wing is chained in the up position. Ensure tire chains are in good condition with no broken links.
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURE: Front Tire	 On a flat surface, lay chains out to their full length with knobs facing downward and hooks on the inside of tire. Drive onto chain until tire is approximately in center of chain. Wrap chain around the top portion of the tire fastening the clasps. Use T Handle to turn Cam Locks. Tighten slack by installing bungee spider system across the hub portion of the wheel hooked into the chains. Ensure hooks are pointed away from tire.
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURE: Rear Tire	 Ensure tire chains are in good condition with no broken links. On a flat level surface, place a wooden ramp block under the front inside dual wheel and drive onto it to raise the wheel off the ground (that set of wheels should be approximately 2-3 inches off the ground).



	 Lay the chains out to their full length with knobs facing downward placing them under the bottom of the tire and proceed to wrap them around the top portion fastening the clips and hooks to the inside of tire. Use T Handle to turn Cam Locks. Tighten slack by installing bungee spider system across the hub portion of the wheel hooked into the chains. Ensure hooks pointed away from tire.
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURE:	Secure equipment.Remove bungee spider system.
Removal of tire chains Front and rear	Remove fastening clips.Drive away slowly from tire chains.
POST-OPERATIONAL SAFETY CHECKS:	 Inspect for damage, clean and hang on depot wall. After each use, ensure chains are straightened and hung on appropriate hooks at depot and rust proofing applied. Alert co-workers in the area that the truck is now not locked out.
NOTE:	 Do not use if chains are damaged or clasps are missing and contact fleet services. Ensure bungee spider system in good condition. When using tire chains, ensure one front and one set of rear chains are applied at minimum. When applying rear tire chains in the field follow front tire operational process. Do not exceed 30KM/h while using tire chains. Tire chains can be heavy and awkward to install. While this task can be completed by one person, it is recommended that two people complete this task.



Front Tire





Revision History:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By	
0.0	2018 05 28	Initial Release	T. Bryant	

Staff Sign-off:

Date reviewed by Public Works Department	2018 05 28
Date accepted	2018 05 28
Date of implementation	2018 05 28
Proposed Date of Review	



Council Policy #:	
Council Policy Name:	Non-Emergency Fleet Policy
Date Approved by Council:	
Date revision approved by Council:	September 20, 2016
Related SOP, Management Directive, Council Policy	Non-Emergency Fleet Management Directive Non-Emergency Fleet Standard Operating Procedures

Policy Statement and Rationale:

This policy statement does not include the fleet assets of Fire Services, EMS or Police Services.

The City of Kawartha Lakes is committed to a consistent, clear and uniform process to purchase, operate and maintain its Fleet. The overall goal is to maintain City services, provide equipment for City staff activities where required and have procedures that facilitate is these activities. This policy, and the accompanying Management Directive and Standard Operating Procedures, outline the process to be followed and service standards for all employees that operate City equipment.

The City of Kawartha Lakes recognizes the importance of managing all municipally owned and leased rolling stock and motorized equipment in a responsible and cost effective manner. Inherent within this approach is the need to maintain a central registry which accurately tracks and records the costs to purchase, operate and maintain City owned and leased vehicles and equipment. This includes the implementation and management of a cost recovery approach applies to all equipment considered as a capital asset.

Scope:

This policy applies to all municipally owned, rented and leased rolling stock and motorized equipment considered as a capital asset exclusive of those areas listed above. The policy covers all issues relating to the setting of usage rates, accounting for the use of equipment and the accumulation of associated costs, the acquisition of new and replacement vehicles and the disposal of these assets when they are no longer required.



Policy:

Requirements

Vehicles and equipment are assigned to the various departments to be used to achieve their operational mandates. It is the responsibility of the department to ensure that the vehicles are operated by qualified and properly trained individuals in accordance with City policies and procedures.

Operating departments are expected to manage the use of their assigned equipment in a manner that shall maximize the benefit of having the asset within the fleet. It is expected that the operating department, in concert with recommendations from the Fleet Services Division, will reassign from high use activities to lower use activities within its existing operations. This shall ensure that their operational requirements are met and that the vehicle reaches the end of its useful life.

Life Cycles

A Vehicle and Equipment Class Lifespan Schedule will form part of the Management Directive as a guideline for replacement. The objective of establishing life spans is to manage the replacement of fleet assets in a timely manner and maximize vehicle/equipment usage. The schedule is based on historical experience relating to the life spans associated with each class of equipment and average annual usage.

Service Standards

Fleet Services Division will be responsible for the compilation of the annual fleet capital budget and all aspects of fleet acquisition.

Fleet Services will be responsible for the maintenance of all Fleet assets and departments will coordinate all maintenance activities with Fleet Services.

Operating departments are responsible for proposing and justifying any new additions to the fleet. Each new acquisition request must be founded on a sound business case that will be prepared in collaboration with the Fleet Services Division.

The Fleet Services Division will develop standardized specifications for all vehicles and equipment where possible.

Departments shall pool vehicles and or equipment whenever possible to eliminate the need of a rental or to reduce downtime from a maintenance related issue.



Responsibilities

All municipal elected officials and municipal employees are to have knowledge and awareness of the City's Fleet Policy.

Managers and Supervisors are responsible for the understanding and following the Fleet Policy and Management directive.

Directors hold responsibility for departmental compliance to the Fleet Policy.

Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) will monitor corporate compliance with this policy.



Council Policy #:	CP2020-003
Council Policy Name:	Purchasing Policy
Date Approved by Council:	October 20, 2020, CR2020-304
Date revision approved by Council:	
Related SOP, Management Directive, Council Policy	Purchasing Policy Management Directive

Policy Statement and Rationale:

To ensure objectivity, accountability and transparency in the procurement process. To encourage competition among respondents by obtaining the highest quality goods, services or construction to maximize efficiencies, effectiveness, sustainability and cost savings, while ensuring that the Municipality has the flexibility to limit the purchase of goods and services where significant efficiencies and cost effectiveness may be achieved.

Scope:

The Purchasing Policy is intended to govern the manner in which the Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes purchases goods and services.

Municipal Boards and Corporations that have the authority through By-Law to establish their own Purchasing Policy shall not be bound by this policy.

Policy:

1.0 Definitions

- 1.1 **Accessibility** A general term for the degree of ease that something (e.g., device, service, physical environment and information) can be accessed, used and enjoyed by persons with disabilities. The term implies conscious planning, design and/or effort to make sure something is barrier-free to persons with disabilities. Accessibility also benefits the general population, by making things more usable and practical for everyone, including older people and families with small children.
- 1.2 **Aggregate Value** means the total amount anticipated to be spent for the initial term and any optional extensions, not including taxes.
- 1.3 **Award** is when a selected respondent and the City execute a legal contract for the respondent to supply or perform the goods and/or services.
- 1.4 **Budget** refers to the Council approved annual budgets.
- 1.5 **CAO** means the Chief Administrative Officer of the City.





- 1.6 **Change in Scope** shall mean any change to the scope of an awarded contract to accommodate a need not originally provided for in the contract.
- 1.7 **City** means the Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes.
- 1.8 **City Clerk** means the person appointed by Council to carry out the duties of the Clerk described in section 228 of the *Municipal Act, 2001*.
- 1.9 **Compliant Bidder** is used to describe a respondent or potential respondent who has complied with all the requirements of a procurement process.
- 1.10 **Contract** means a formal commitment by both parties, which may be in the form of an agreement executed by the respondent and the City or a Purchase Order issued by the City and confirmed by the respondent.
- 1.11 **Cooperative Procurement** means the participation of two or more public agencies in a procurement process.
- 1.12 **Council** means the Municipal Council for the City.
- 1.13 **Director** means the person who holds that position and his or her delegate or, in the event of organizational changes, another person designated by Council (includes the position of Fire Chief and Paramedic Chief).
- 1.14 **Emergency Procurement** is a situation where the immediate purchase of goods or services is essential to prevent serious delays, damage or injury, to restore minimum service or to ensure the health and safety of any person, including City staff or residents of the City.
- 1.15 **Employee-Employer Relationship** is applicable when a person's daily work is directed or controlled by the business, particularly when the method of executing duties is defined and an integral part of day-to-day operations.
- 1.16 **Expression of Interest** is a procurement method used to determine interest, where the scope of specifications of the required goods or services may not be clearly defined.
- 1.17 **Formal Procurement Process** is a procurement method where the bids are submitted in a sealed format.
- 1.18 **Goods, Services and Construction** include supplies, equipment, property, construction, maintenance and service contracts, consulting and professional services.
- 1.19 **Informal Quotation** is a procurement process issued by the Department for purchases under \$50,000, where three or more potential respondents have been contacted to provide a submission for specific and defined commodities.
- 1.20 **Lobbying** to communicate with, anyone other than the person designated in the procurement document, on the procurement of goods, services or construction and the



awarding of a contract for the purpose of swaying the results of an award of a procurement process.

- 1.21 **Non-Compliant Bidder** is a respondent or potential respondent who does not meet all the requirements of a procurement process.
- 1.22 **Person** refers to an individual, company or a corporate entity.
- 1.23 **Pre-qualification Request** would be used to invite prospective respondents to provide background information, capabilities and resources for upcoming specific procurements.
- 1.24 **Procurement Process** is the method selected to procure a good and/or service.
- 1.25 **Qualified Bid** is a bid that is restricted by a statement added to any portion of the submission or a covering letter that alters the intent of the procurement (counter offer).
- 1.26 **Request for Quotation/Proposal/Tender** is a procurement process issued by the Procurement Division.
- 1.27 **Segregation of Duties** is an internal control designed to prevent error and fraud by ensuring that at least two individuals are responsible for the separate parts of any task (ie. Purchase and approval).
- 1.28 **Single Source** means there is more than one source in the open market but for reasons of function or service, one respondent is being recommended.
- 1.29 **Sole Source** means there is only one known source of manufacture or supply of a particular good and/or service.
- 1.30 **Sustainable Procurement** Purchasing of environmentally preferable products (goods and services) that have a lessor or reduced effect on human health and the environment when compared with other goods and services that serve a similar process
- 1.31 **Top Ranked Respondent** means the lowest compliant or highest scoring respondent.

2.0 Responsibilities:

- 2.1 Council is responsible to establish the City's procurement philosophy through this policy.
- 2.2 The Chief Administrative Officer is accountable to approve the detailed management directives that establish the operational framework.
- 2.3 Corporate Services is responsible to ensure that the City's Policy and Management Directive are adhered to.



3.0 **Procurement Guidelines**

- 3.1 Procurement practices shall be in accordance with all applicable federal and provincial legislation and local By-Laws, Trade Ageements, Policies, Code of Conduct and the Discriminatory Business Practices Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. D.12.
- 3.2 The procurement of goods and services will be evaluated for the risk to the City's ability to perform public services in a safe, secure and healthy environment and shall consider safety, accessibility standards, financial stability and quality of workmanship.
- 3.3 The procurement of goods and services will be in accordance with the City's Sustainable Purchasing Policy.
- 3.4 The City shall implement terms and conditions with the respondent to keep safe the City's staff, funds, property and capital assets.
- 3.5 The City may ban a respondent from submitting any future bids for an undetermined amount of time for failing to enter into a contract upon award.
- 3.6 Access to formal procurement process results information shall be made available according to the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA).
- 3.7 The Procurement Division will provide debriefs within 60 days of notification of award. Debrief requests after the 60 days may be deferred to the Clerk's Office for a Municipal Freedom of Information request.
- 3.8 The Procurement Division will maintain a vendor performance program that all Departments can refer to for previous performance and incident reports.
- 3.9 A vendor listing will be available for Department internal use when requesting quotations for work under \$50,000.
- 3.10 The City will disqualify a respondent:
 - 3.10.1 if found to be engaging in lobbying with any elected official or City staff member for such purposes as to sway the results of an award of a procurement process. This period would cover the intent to procure (project conception/budget) up to the final award of the project.
 - 3.10.2 that has litigation against them that would affect their performance or reputation in performing the service or providing the goods and services requested by the City.
- 3.11 No expenditure or commitment shall be incurred or made and no account shall be paid by the City for goods and services, except as authorized in accordance with this policy or approved by the CAO or the Corporate Services Director and/or Council.



- 3.12 All respondents (including Council Members and City Employees if applicable) must disclose to the City any perceived, potential or actual conflict of interest that exists prior to accepting an award from the City. If one arises after an award has been made, the respondent must notify the City immediately.
- 3.13 All respondents shall ensure that they along with all of their employees, volunteers and others for which they are responsible comply with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act and associated Regulations and the City's Accessibility Policy. All information (studies, reports, procurement submissions, etc.) provided to the City from a respondent will be in an accessible format.
- 3.14 All submissions will be evaluated to determine if the expectations of the procurement have been met.
- 3.15 The City shall establish a management directive authorized by the CAO on behalf of Council that details the expectations of this Policy.

4.0 Financial Considerations

- 4.1 Procurement awards for contracts valued at an Aggregate Value of \$100,000 or greater must be approved by Council if:
 - It contains a change in scope;
 - It has an irregular result as per section 6.0;
 - The recommendation encumbers future operating budgets; or
 - It is a Single or Sole Source.
- 4.2 The Procurement Division shall provide, to Council, a quarterly information report of:
 - awards greater than \$100,000 where the award was within budget and within scope; and
 - all Emergency procurements.

This summary will show the project number, successful respondent, total budget and amount of award. Emergencies where money will be pulled from reserves require a Council resolution in the quarterly report.

- 4.3 Tender/RFP results that result in a budget deficit of \$10,000 or less will be awarded and funding will be adjusted, if necessary, as part of the Capital Close Process.
- 4.4 The City will establish, as part of the Management Directive, a table of authority for procurement limit spending.
- 4.5 In the case of Restricted Acts (Lame Duck), as it applies within Section 275 of the Municipal Act 2001, as amended, delegation of Council's purchasing authority will be given to the CAO. The CAO will report to the new Council, purchases authorized during this delegated authority.
- 4.6 Where a funding or granting agency has rules for a procurement process that exceed this policy, the agency's rules for tendering and risk management shall override this policy.



- 4.7 Where a funded independent Board or Corporation has been established by Council, the Board shall have the same level of authority as Council with respect to signing authority and the Chief Executive Officer, or equivalent, shall have the same level as the CAO.
- 4.8 An award may have optional renewal period(s) added to the term and must include the aggregate spend. All renewals must be included in the appropriate report, or will be subject to further approval at time of renewal
- 4.9 Procurements that encumber future operating budgets will be reported to Council if the annual aggregate value (including renewals) is over \$100,000.
- 4.10 Procurements by Visa (Pcard) are subject to the Management Directive and the Employee Expense Policy. No invoices are to be paid by Visa unless authorized by the Treasurer.

5.0 Procurement Process

- 5.1 An Open Competition will be advertised when the Goods and/or Service is valued over \$100,000.00.
- 5.2 An Invitational competition may be followed when the goods and/or service is valued greater than \$50,000, but less than \$100,000 (Aggregate Value including renewals).
- 5.3 Procurements that require specific equipment or materials to be used, must follow the Purchasing Policy where quotes were obtained or a single source has been approved prior to the items being included in the document.
- 5.4 The City may participate with other government agencies or public authorities in cooperative procurement opportunities, so long as they are in compliance with current legislation. The City will maintain a list of agencies they may participate with on an annual basis on the City's Website.
- 5.5 Emergency Procurement When an event occurs where the immediate purchase of goods or services is essential to prevent serious delays, damage or injury, to restore minimum service or to ensure the health and safety of any person, including City staff or residents of the City. The CAO or Corporate Services Director may authorize the immediate procurement of the good or service required. All Emergency procurements will be reported to council through a quarterly report, as noted in item 4.2.
- 5.6 Single/Sole Source may be used, under certain defined circumstances, when there is only one vendor that is able to supply the commodity or perform the work. The approval of a single/sole source will be agreed upon between the Department, Procurement Division and the CAO with Council approving over \$100,000.

Matters involving security, police matters, or confidential issues, a purchase may be made in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the contractor or the Corporation. Such purchases may be made as a Sole Source Purchase;



- 5.7 Rosters will have an authority level not to exceed \$50,000 per contract. Allowances for higher roster values may be considered, but must have Procurement and the CSD's approval. A Roster list will be used to pre-approve vendors to be on a list with second stage informal quotations being issued.
- 5.8 Any complaint on the Purchasing Policy and/or Management Directive or a complaint related to an award of a competetive process, shall be submitted in writing to the Corporate Services Director. All bid dispute resolutions will be in compliance with current legislation.
- 5.9 All bid dispute resolutions will be in compliance with current legislation.
- 5.10 The City may consider, when evaluating bids, whether a bid is unbalanced or unexpectedly low so as to indicate a failure on the part of a bidder to accurately assess scope and/or indicate a likelihood of extra claims. The City may request clarification which may or may not result in disqualification of the respondent.

6.0 Irregular Results

6.1 Irregular Result of a Competitive Procurement Process

Irregular results of a competitive procurement process require that the selection of the respondent for an award be approved by Council. The results of a competitive procurement process are considered to be irregular when any of the following occurs:

- all responsible and responsive submissions exceed the budget by more than \$10,000.00 and additional funds are required; and/or
- An award of the contract to the Top Ranked Respondent is considered to not be in the best interest of the City.

6.2 **Major or Minor Irregularity**

For the purposes of this policy, a submission showing irregularities are classified as "major irregularities" or "minor irregularities":

- A "major irregularity" is a deviation from the competitive procurement process request that affects the price, quality, quantity or delivery, and is material to the award. The bidder will be disqualified from the process. The City must reject any offer submitted, which contains a major irregularity. The person will be notified of the rejection due to the major irregularity.
- A "minor irregularity" is a deviation from the competitive procurement process request, which affects form rather than substance. The effect on the price, quality, quantity or delivery is not material to the award. The bidder will be given the opportunity to adjust the irregularity and continue in the process. The City may permit the person to correct a minor irregularity to make the submission compliant.



7.0 Real Estate Developer Finance Capital

Where a real estate developer has requested in writing the use of a particular respondent for services being performed on a project, for which the real estate developer is funding the entire cost, no procurement process shall be required, provided the respondent is acceptable to the City.

8.0 Sponsorships and Donations

Where a donation or sponsorship request is received by the City, the Department will consult with the Procurement Division to ensure any process remains fair, open and transparent.

9.0 Standardization of Equipment

The City will endevour to standardize goods and services through a competitive process whenever possible and must be in compliance with legislation. The Procurement Division will work with the Department/Division, to determine the best procurement process for standardization. This Purchasing Policy will take precendence over any other Policy or Management Directive with regards to standardization.

10. Procurement Exemption List

If the procurement falls within this list, no competitive process is required. Purchase orders may be issued according to the table of authority if required.

- Advertising (not intended to cover the cost of creative fees or project management fees associated with media expenditures, advertising or marketing)
- Building Leases
- Charges from area Municipalities in association with legal agreements
- Committee, witness and honoraria fees
- Conference/Trade show staff attendance, including travel and accomodations
- Debenture and sinking fund payments
- Election expenses
- Employment Agencies
- Grants to Government and Council approved Agencies
- Insurance Claim Payments
- MPAC Fees
- Legal Settlements
- Licenses (vehicles, elevators, radios, etc.)
- Licenses and maintenance costs for integrated software and systems
- Maintenance for specialty equipment (i.e. Equipment that is not easily moved and will incur float charges)
- Payments made under authority of the City's Service Manager role for Human Services
- Periodicals, books, magazines and subscriptions
- Postage



- Professional licensed services: Legal Services, Notaries, Health Professionals, Land Surveyors, Arbitrators, Interpreters, Court Reporters
- Real Property and property appraisals (covered under By-Law)
- Renovation at a leased space where the lessor can only perform the renovation
- Statutory Employment expenses
- Staff Training (education and professional membership fees and associated costs)
- Utilities where there is only one provider
- Water/sewer connections for landowners
- Water and Wastewater Chemicals

11. Disposal of Assets

- 11.1 The City shall determine the best method to dispose of City assets no longer required for operations. Some of the methods may include but not limited to:
 - Sale by Tender;
 - Local Auction House;
 - Donation to a not for profit agency;
 - Government Auction.
- 11.2 Employees and elected officials of the City may bid on items provided that:
 - they do not possess nor do they try to ascertain relevant insider information that would influence their offer;
 - they remove themselves from submitting an offer on items that may be construed as a conflict of interest;
 - they comply with all the requirements of the public sale.

Revision History:

Revision	Date	Description of changes	Requested By





Heavy Truck Utilization

Fleet Services Brenda Stonehouse



Executive Summary

- Considered the 66 trucks used for plowing looked at utilization, maintenance, age, make, type
- Compiled data and did statistical analysis which resulted in:
 - Contracting out 4 routes
 - Reduced fleet by 8 trucks
 - Saved \$224,222.98 in maintenance/contracts
 - Cost avoidance of \$1.8 million (8 trucks eliminated)
 - Productivity in maintenance & admin \$50,720
 - Eliminated internal transactions

Define Phase



- LOS Level of Service
- MMS Minimum Maintenance Standards
- PW Public Works

Definition of lerins

Definition of Terms

- PW Public Works
- MMS Minimum Maintenance Standards
- LOS Level of Service
- CVOR Commercial Vehicle Operator's Registration

Step #1 - Develop Business Case

Problem Statement

There is significant variation in truck utilization and we are not sure we have reliable data. Understated utilization is causing an accounting problem.

Project Goals

- Consistent utilization of trucks
- Utilization >=500 hours annually 95% of the time
- Eliminate internal financial transactions for utilization

Scope

In scope: Single, tandem and tri-axle trucks Out of scope: All other vehicles

Step #1 - Financial Implications

	Projected savings
Reduced maintenance costs	\$138,370.98
Estimated sale value of surplus trucks	\$28,000.00
Winter control contracts savings	\$37,852.00
Improved Productivity – Maintenance	\$32,000.00
Cost avoidance (8 trucks)	\$1,800,000.00
Problem Statement There is significant variation in thick	\$2,036,222.90

ep #1 - Develop Business Case

Step #2- Voice of the Customer

S			Р	0		С	
Suppliers	Inputs	Critical to Quality	Process	Outputs	Critical to Quality	Customers	Undesirable Effects
Fleet	Use requirements - where is it going?	Specifications Council approval	Determine the Need for a Truck	The Right Truck	Needs to meet the specs	PW - Roads	Not getting the right vehicle for the right purpose
Purchasing & Fleet	Fleet policy Purchasing policy	Adherence to policy	Buy the Truck and Prepare for delivery	The Right Truck	Need it at the right time	PW - Roads	Trucks not on time - have to keep old trucks on the road longer
PW - Roads	Minimum Maintenance Standards (MMS)	Compliance with standards	Use the Truck	Work being done	Level of Service (LOS)	Ratepayers Citizens	Customer complaints
Payroll/Finance	Vehicle hours from time cards	Accurate records	Billing for use of the truck	Monthly Report	Accuracy of data (number of hours used)	Fleet	Usage can be low due to cost to operate
Fleet	Preventative maintenance statement CVOR	Circle Checks Clean Trucks Accurate records for usage details of breakdown	Fuel and Maintain the Truck (daily, scheduled, unscheduled)	Skilled Technicians Parts on hand	Timely - Maintenance schedule (2x/year)	PW - Roads	Trucks out of service waiting for repair
Fleet	Supervisors & Managers - is it reliable? Regular replacement cycle	Usage data maintenance costs age of vehicle	Assessment of Asset	Fleet determines what happens with the asset	Having correct data to analyze - maintenance history	Fleet	Keeping a vehicle too long or not long enough
Fleet	disposal decision	We know what to take off to De- CKL vehicle	Decomission	send to auction delivery	Vehicle Info - lifecycle of truck	Auction company	Selling assets before their time

Slude #7

Step #2- Voice of the Customer

CTQ METRIC		DEFINITION	STANDARD OR SPECIFICATION	
CVOR	Overall Safety Rating	The CVOR (Commercial Vehicle Operator Rating) is provided to the City semi- annually. The review considers collisions, convictions, safety inspections under taken by MTO and ministry interventions with respect to the City Fleet with CVOR status (120 trucks and 10 buses).	Overall Safety Rating is Satisfactory	
On time delivery of the truck	cycle time	The time it takes from ordering to delivery	Adherence to schedule outlined in tender	
True data on truck - maintenance, use, cost, life cycle	accuracy	Recording of truck usage (in hours) for billing purposes	None	
Utilization	Hours and/orRecording of truck usage to determineUtilizationkmutilization and maintenance schedule		% utilization based on 750 hours/year	

Step #2 - VOC – Operational Definitions

- Define the Measure Truck utilization in hours, maintenance costs per vehicle
- Purpose To determine the optimal number of trucks that can be used to the benchmark of similar municipalities of 500.

The Fleet Policy uses 750 hours as average annual usage to determine hourly rate which is causing an accounting issue.

Data is located in Fleet and Finance – hours billed and maintenance cost per truck, type, make and age for 2011, 2012 and 2013.

1.1.3.1.1.8.9.9.1.1.2.9.1.9.1.4 - 4.5 0

51102 69

Step #4 - Project Management

maintenance	October	November	December	January	February
Launch Project		t and Fin	ance – h	ours bille	9, 9,29
Training Sessions					
Define Phase		C MUICU	a conorri		606008
Measure Phase		50 hours	as avero	de suurs	
Analyze Phase	of 500.				
Improve Phase	sed to the	e benchn		nilar	0404/0
Control Phase	al second se	no tho or	dimplou		and the particular
Certification Exam	mara hai	ACUICIC			
Presentations to Team	ainepai		uixadou		
Defense Date	an a				
Financial Sign-off	nc - c	perauc	nai ne	UNICION	

Step #4 - Project Management

Team Members	
Michelle Hendry Director of Public Works	Process Champion
Todd Bryant Manager of Fleet	Process Owner
Brenda Stonehouse Process Improvement Facilitator	Facilitator
Pat Russell Area Manager, Public Works Operations	
Scott Berdan Supervisor, Public Works Operations	
Ian Parker Supervisor, Fleet Maintenance	
Rod Porter Supervisor, Public Works Operations	

SU#: #11

Define Phase Summary & Conclusions

Clear understanding of customer requirements Financial waste estimated at \$2,036,222.90 Project scope is sufficient Team in place

Brenda Stonehouse Process Improvement Facilitator

Michelle Hendry Director of Public Works Todd Bryant Manager of Fleet

ream Members

#4 - Project Management



Measure Phase



SIPD #5 - Project Metrics

Step #5 - Project Metrics




Operating cost includes maintenance and fuel. The median is \$19,215 in 2011 \$18,009 in 2012





2012 Usage Hours

The median for revenue hours has been relatively consistent: 423 hours in 2011 412 hours in 2012

Usage hours are recorded on a time card by Roads operators each day

Fleet charges an hourly rate for use of the vehicle based on this data. The hourly rate has two components: operating costs (fuel, maintenance, repairs) and capital replacement

The charges are outlined in the City's Fleet Management Policy adopted in 2011



Vehicle Type	Total Annual Charge Rate	Total Monthly Charge Rate	Avg.Annual Usage (hours)	Hourly Charge Rate	What the hourly rate should be	Gap
Single Axle	\$25,334	\$2,111	500	\$50	\$50	\$0
Tandem Axle	\$35,350	\$2,946	750	\$53	\$80	\$27
Tri-axle	\$45,000	\$3,750	750	\$60	\$90	\$30

The rate is based on a target annual usage of 750 hours – a target only 19.7% of the 66 trucks reached in 2012

card by Roads

Slide #18

- 300 P # 20

Step #5 - Project Metrics



46.7% of the variation in maintenance cost is due to hours of use.

5/100 219

Step #5 - Project Metrics



1. Sheer 4.4

Step #6 - Process Capability

	500 hours	650 hours	750 hours
Trucks utilized to benchmark	16	7	7
Trucks underutilized (fleet average hours compared to target)	6	20	26
% conforming	24%	10.6%	10.6%

VIEW THE CUTTERT PROCESS

Sude 2.23

Step #7 - View the Current Process



Step #7 - View the Current Process



Step #8 - Identify Variables that affect the Process Output



Step #9 - Assess the Strength of Relationships between Input and Outputs

		ISE, ERE FREIDO		Ke	y Pr	rocess	s Outp	outs			
		Customer Importance	4	5	4	5	3	5	1	(1-5)	
			Needs to meet the specs	Need it at the right time	Level of Service (LOS)	Accuracy of Data (number of hours used)	Timely - Maintenance schedule (2x per year)	Having correct data to analyze - maintenance history	Vehicle Info - lifecycle of truck		
	Process Step	Key Process Inputs	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Rank	Total
	Determine the Need for a Truck	Use Requirements	9			3		3	3	8	69
	Buy the Truck and Prepare for Delivery	Fleet Policy	9		5	3		9		3	96
		Purchasing Policy	9	9	1		N. 7.14	0.7572		6	81
	Use the Truck	MMS		9	9					6	81
		No SOP for recording hours			in all	9	9	9	(2	117
SO		Projects may change	1		3	Minelei	3			14	21
Step	Billing for the Use of the Truck	Vehicle hours from time cards	-			9	9	9	9	1	126
ess	eren parte	Recording goes through too many hands	.or	No.	40	9	2.2	9	96	4	90
roc	Fuel and Maintain the Truck	Preventative Maintenance Statement	d	IC.	90	9	9	3	I Q	5	87
0		Cost/amount of inventory			1			9	3	10	48
	and the second	Lack of standardization					9			12	27
		Parts no longer available					9			12	27
	Assessment of Asset	Regular replacement cycle				3		9	9	8	69
	Decommission	disposal decision	Energy a	3.00		18_	3	3	9	11	33

Top 3 input factors: Vehicle hours from time cards, no SOP for recording hours, Fleet policy updates

S1100 425

Step #10 - Assess the Integrity of the Data

Interviews were conducted at each depot to determine how truck usage is recorded on time cards.

Depot	record time out of depot	circle check included	Fuel/clean included	Run time not time out of depot	Lunch, breaks removed
Burnt River	X	Х	Х	3 80	
Eldon	X	Х	Х	9 93	
Manvers	X	X	Х		
Fenelon	X				
Lindsay	X	Х	Х		
Coboconk	X	Х	Х	10%	20%
Oakwood	70%	50%	50%	30%	
Emily	90%	Х	Х	10%	
Bobcaygeon	X	Х	Х		

The trucks assigned to the Oakwood depot have been removed from the data set. Otherwise, the method of recording is sufficiently consistent to conclude that the hours recorded are a reasonable representation of the actual truck utilization.

Slide #26

Strandth of Relationships

874 8448 -

Step #12 - Failure Modes and Effect Analysis

Process Step/ Requirements	Potential Failure Mode	Potential Effect(s) of Failure	Severity	Potential Cause(s) / Mechanism(s) of Failure	Occurrence	Current Process Controls Prevention	Current Process Controls Detection	Detection	Risk Priority Number
Buying the truck	Not delivered on time	We can't use it Have to maintain older vehicle	5	Delay in process Vendor has issues (staff loss)	10	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	3	150
61.53 X 83 1.53 X 85 1	Not the right truck (not within specs)	We can't use it Have to maintain older vehicle	7	Delay in process, specs not clear	10	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	3	210
Using the truck	Out of Service in winter	Can't do the work (plowing snow)	8	Mechanical	8	Spare vehicles, graders, on- call mechanics, mobile units	Maintenance records	1	64
	Hourly billing use of the tr ranked highes	g for the uck was st for risk		Mechanical Annual Inspection Lack of staff	7	Need fewer trucks in summer, flexibility in scheduling	Scheduling	1	21
Billing for use of the truck	priorit	y. data for future plans Poor justification for council decision making		No SOP for data collection Time cards not reviewed properly	7	None	None	10	700

SM22 #27

Quick Hits & Factors impacting utilization

	Summary of Defin	e and M	easure Phases		
a the track	ltem	SIPOC	Process Flow	Cause and Effect Diagram	Cause and Effect Matrix FMEA Group Knowledge
Quick Hit #1	Create SOP for recording truck usage	X	Х	Х	Х
Quick Hit #2	Billing - change to annual charge	X	X	Х	Х
Quick Hit #3	In-house training program		Х	X	Х
Quick Hit #4	SOP for cleaning vehicles		Х	Х	
Quick Hit #5	Fleet Policy updates		Х	20	Х
Potential X #1	Age of vehicle	Machanica	s Spare	Х	
Potential X #2	Make of vehicle (standardization?)	805C8 0010	Х	Х	240
Potential X #3	Depot a construction of the second seco	n elak i bi	Х	Х	Х
Potential X #4	Storage - inside or out	inspes (sta	Х	ane states	120
Potential X #5	Maintenance cost	X		Х	Х
Potential X #6	Seasonality	N AND AND	X		artic: 14.242.0924
Potential X #7	Staffing levels	011201	Х	Х	S-Diminister

Slide #29

Measure Phase Summary and Conclusions

- Truck utilization is well below the benchmark used to calculate the hourly rate for fleet (750 hours)
- Recording of utilization hours is inconsistent resulting in inaccurate data
- A lot of resources are used to pay ourselves (approximately \$10,000 in processing time)
- Changing the billing structure is a high priority



Analyze Phase

Changing the billing structure is a high priority



calculate the hourly rate for fleet (750 hours)

Truck utilization is well below the benchmark used to

Measure Phase Summary and Conclusions

Slide #32

Step #13 - Data Collection Plan

8			Data Col	llection Plan f	or Analyze	Phase			N MERS	and the	and the second
	Theories To Be Tested (Selected From The				Where Applic Null and A	able, State The		Γ	Data To B	e Collect	ed
Ref	C-E Diagram, FMECA, and/or FDM)	List Of Questions That Must Be answered To Test Each Selected Theory	Data Type	Tools To Be Used	Ho	H _A	Sam ple Size, Num ber of Sam ples	Where to Collect Data	Who will Collect Data	How Will data Be Recorded	Remarks
×	Usage hours are a factor for maintenance cost	Do usage hours impact maintenance cost? (without fuel)	Interval Continuous	Correlation (Scatter)	H ₀ :No correlation	H _a :Correlation		Fleet Finance			
Х	Hours of use being recorded are not accurate	Are operators recording the usage correctly?	Nominal	Interviews			20 - 30	PW Fleet	Brenda		Need to test the integrity of the data.
	The life cycle of a heavy truck is 12 - 15 years (other municipalities going to a 7-10 year cycle)	Where is the 'sweet spot' for replacement?	Interval Continuous		Aver	o abe	6 20	Fleet Finance industry trends	ไอเท	GUS	IICG
x	Are the following factors affecting utilization: type, make, age	What are the factors affecting utilization?	Interval Continuous	Simple Linear Regression and Correlation	H ₀ :βi=0	H _a :βi≠0	8.	Fleet Finance	36.	12	
X	Are the following factors affecting maintenance costs: type, make, age	Maintenance cost by age of vehicle, type of vehicle	Interval Continuous	Multiple Regression	Η0:βi=0	Ha:βi≠0	6 11	Fleet Finance			100 D.C.
	Utilization is seasonal	Does the season affect utilization?	Interval Continuous	Correlation	H ₀ :No correlation	H _a :Correlation		Finance			Need monthly data
	Utilization by job type	does job type affect utilization? (winter control, ditching, brushing, etc.)	Nominal count	Boxplot				PW Finance			
14	Number of operator vacancies affects utilization	Do staffing levels affect utilization?	Interval Continuous	400		12 1		HR			Need data from HR on vacations, vacancies
191695	Compliance to minimum maintenance standards	What is our level of compliance?	Interval Continuous	Line Chart				PW			
X	Depot location affects utilization	Is there a difference in utilization by depot?	Interval Continuous	Anova: Single Factor	H _o :μ1=μ2=μ3=μ4	H _a : at least 2 means differ		Fleet Finance			
X	Depot location affects maintenance cost	Is there a difference in maintenance cost by depot?	Interval Continuous	Anova: Single Factor	H _o :μ1=μ2=μ3=μ2	H _a : at least 2 means differ		Fleet Finance	200	a 140	611.24

step #14 - Univization and maintenance by depote

51176 431

Step #14 - Utilization and maintenance by depot

Depot	% utilization	% maintenance
Fenelon	5.81%	5.80%
spares coulous	5.98%	6.85%
Emily	7.78%	7.81%
Eldon	9.76%	9.72%
Lindsay	10.00%	9.49%
Burnt River	10.89%	10.78%
Coboconk	11.62%	11.64%
Bobcaygeon	12.15%	12.02%
Manvers	12.26%	12.20%
Oakwood	13.75%	13.69%

Average of 2013 Usage Hours



Average of 2013 Maintenance Cost



Although the spares have the lowest average usage and operating cost they account for almost 6% of total utilization and 6.85% of maintenance cost.

Step #17 - Is depot location a factor for maintenance cost?

SUIVIIVIARY		and the second second	1. Same			And the second second second second	And the second s								
Groups	Count	Sum	Average	Variance					Lindsay						
Coboconk	8	197329.78	24666.22	189463334.81			Depot		Smallest = 17625 Q1 = 17643.75		٠	****	٠		
enelon	L	98222.25	24555.56	95129286.77				Sector Sector	Median = 26762.5 Q3 = 32818						
Dakwood	7	232113.50	33159.07	141838047.29		locat	ion is	not	Largest = 42550		-				
Idon	7	164830.00	23547.14	67480105.39		locat		1100	Outliers:						
indsay	6	160924.00	26820.67	85183752.67		a fa	octor f	or		0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Bobcaygeon	7	203757.25	29108.18	90011638.18		aic									
Burnt River	7	182808.11	26115.44	94587703.09		mair	tonar	200	Bobcaygeon						
Emily	e	132469.50	22078.25	48017846.18		IIIall	ilenai	ILE	Smallest = 18444 Q1 = 20484.5		***	* *	• •		
Manvers	7	207018.00	29574.00	271295326.75			anat		Median = 27533.5 O3 = 38372		0.6%				
		fielt and the	2.2014	und Error	1.550		COSL		Largest = 43234.75						
									Outliers:						
ANOVA										0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
rce of Variati	SS	df	MS	F	P-value	F crit									
Between Grou	641867313 10	8.00	80233414.15	0.64	0.74	2.13			Burnt River						
				0.01	0.7				Employe - 12020						
Within Groups	5268016122 20	50.00	125278222 //5			000000000			Smallest = 12626		* * *	**	* *		
Within Groups	6268916122.39	50.00	125378322.45						Q1 = 16925 Median = 26182						
Within Groups	6268916122.39	50.00	125378322.45						Q1 = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5		-=	-	<u>}</u>		
Vithin Groups	6268916122.39 6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	TE DE LE	22895327 				Q1 = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outlings		-=		3-		
Vithin Groups	6268916122.39 6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45		2389532 Vvi				Q = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers:	0 1000	2000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Vithin Groups	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	21193 BT 3	1369230 PM	AC			QI = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Within Groups	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	र र र	299333 Via	00			All 16925 Median 256182 Q3 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR 19857 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Vithin Groups	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	Oakwood Smallest = 18	285		A The		Smallest # Lobo Q = 16925 Median = 26182 Q = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers: Emily	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Nithin Groups	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 2356,5	285		· · ·		Emily Emily Emily Emily Smallest = 14257 Q = 1965.5	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Cobaconk Cotal	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	<i>Oakwood</i> Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5	285		•		Emily Emily Emily Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 1765.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Coboconk Imallest = 6350 11 = 12857.75 Aredian = 24108.64 13 = 3699.125 argest = 44891	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Larget = 525. IOR = 21004	285 54 23	••••	• • •		Emily Smallest = 12525 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 34370.5	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
'abacank `otal 'abacank mallest = 6530 Li = 12857.75 kedian = 24108.64 Bi = 36391.125 argest = 44891 XR = 2533.375 willers:	6910783435.58	50.00	125378322.45	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525. Largest = 525. IQR = 21094 Outliers:	285 54 23	••••	• • •		Emily Emily Smallest = 14257 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 34370.5 IQR = 9669.375 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Coboconk Imallest = 6350 11 = 12857.75 Ardenia = 24108.64 13 = 3591.125 argest = 44891 QR = 23533.375 Dutliers: 0	6268916122.39 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00	125378322.45	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525. IQR = 21094 Outliers:	285 54 23	• • • •	40000 50000	60000	Emily Smallest = 1225 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 34370.5 IQR = 9669.375 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Smallest = 6350 01 = 12857.75 Median = 24108.64 03 = 36391.125 Largest = 44891 IQR = 23533.375 Outliers: 0	6910783435.58 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00 58.00	125378322.45 5000 6000	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525. IQR = 21094 Outliers:	285 54 23	* * * ·	40000 50000	60000	Emily Smallest = 14257 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39352.5 IQR = 19857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 34370.5 IQR = 9669.375 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Smallest = 6530 01 = 12857.75 Median = 24108.64 03 = 3591125 Largest = 44891 IQR = 23533.375 Outliers: 0	6910783435.58 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00 58.00	125378322.45 50000 60000	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525. Largest = 525.1 IQR = 21094 Outliers:	285 54 23	* * * · 	40000 50000	60000	Emily Smallest = 14257 Median = 26182 Q = 36782 Largest = 39532.5 IOR = 19857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 2731.4575 Largest = 34370.5 IOR = 9669.375 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Coboconk Smallest = 6350 12 = 12857.75 Vedian = 24108.64 33 = 36391.125 argest = 44891 QR = 23533.375 Dutliers: 0	6910783435.58 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00 58.00	50000 60000	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Larget = 525. Larget = 525. UR = 21094 Outliers: Eldon Smallest = 13	285 54 23 912.5	 * * * 2000 30000 	40000 50000	60000	Smallest = 16255 Median = 26182 Q = 36782 Largest = 39557 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Fortal Coboconk Smallest = 6500 01 = 12857.75 Median = 24108.64 03 = 36311.25 Largest = 44891 QR = 23533.375 Outliers: 0 Fencion Smallest = 13700.5 Q1 = 15886.75	6268916122.39 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00 58.00	50000 60000	Oakwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 23505.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Larget = 525. Larget = 525.1 UR = 21094 Outliers: Bildon Smallest = 13 Q1 = 17728.5 Q1 = 17728.5	285 54 23 912.5		40000 50000	60000	Smallest = 16255 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645,5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314,875 Largest = 34370,5 Largest = 34370,5 UR = 9669,375 Outliers: Manivers Smallest = 7579 Q1 = 20537,5	0 30000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Total Coboconk Smallet = 6550 Q1 = 12857.75 Median = 24108.64 Q3 = 3691125 Largest = 44891 QR = 23533.375 Outliers: 0 Fencion Smallet = 13700.5 Q1 = 15886.75 Median = 23598.25 Q3 = 34181.6875		50.00 50.00 58.00	50000 50000	Ookwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 2305.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525. Largest = 525. LOR = 21094 Outliers: Eldon Smallest = 13 Q1 = 17728.5 Median = 224 Q3 = 27480.5 Median = 224	285 54 23 912.5 772		40000 50000	60000	Emily Emily Smallest = 18255 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39857 Outliers: Emily Smallest = 18257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 2731.4875 Largest = 34370.5 Lorgest = 34370.5 Outliers: Monvers Smallest = 7579 Q1 = 20537.5 Median = 25500 Q3 = 42020.5	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Smallext = 6350 Q1 = 2587.75 Mordian = 74108.64 Q3 = 36391.125 Largest = 44891 Q4 = 2353.375 Outliers: 0 Fenelon Smallext = 13700.5 Q1 = 15886.75 Median = 23398.25 Q3 = 3438.6875 Largest = 43725.25 Largest = 4775.25		50.00 50.00 58.00	125378322.45 50000 60000	Ookwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 2350.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 535 Largest = 535 IQR = 21094 Outliers: Eldon Smallest = 13 Q1 = 17728.5 Median = 224 Q3 = 27480.5 Largest = 382 Largest = 382 Largest = 382	285 54 23 912.5 772 39.5		40000 50000	60000	Smallest = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39857 Outliers: Data Smallest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 20052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 143205 UQR = 9669.375 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000
Coboconk Smallest = 6350 Q1 = 128827.75 Median = 24108.64 Q3 = 36391.125 Largest = 44891 Q0 = 23833.375 Outliers: 0 Fencion Smallest = 13700.5 Q1 = 15886.75 Q1 = 15886.75 Q1 = 15886.75 Median = 23398.25 Q3 = 34181.6875 Largest = 37325.25 Q04tiers:	6910783435.58 6910783435.58	50.00 50.00 58.00	125378322.45 50000 60000	Ookwood Smallest = 18 Q1 = 2350.5 Median = 327 Q3 = 44599.5 Largest = 525 Largest = 525 IQR = 21094 Outliers: Bidon Smallest = 13 Q1 = 17728.5 Median = 224 Q3 = 27400.5 Largest = 382 LQR = 9752 Outliers:	285 54 23 912.5 772 39.5		40000 50000	60000	Smallest = 16925 Median = 26182 Q3 = 36782 Largest = 39857 Outliers: Data Bandlest = 14257 Q1 = 17645.5 Median = 2052 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 14305.5 Q4 = 9669.375 Q4 = 9669.375 Q4 = 9669.375 Q4 = 9663.375 Q3 = 27314.875 Largest = 54300 Q3 = 42500 Q3 = 426500 Q3 = 19663 Q4200.5 Largest = 5837 U(R = 19663 Outliers:	0 10000	20000	30000	40000	50000	60000

Slide #33

Fleet\maintenance by depot.xlsx

Step #17 - Does type, make, age of vehicle affect maintenance costs?

Regression Statistics							
Multiple R	0.615855607						
R Square	0.379278129						
Adjusted R Squ	0.262302149						
Standard Error	7517.833714						
Observations	60						

ANOVA

201 - 2010 - 201	df	SS	MS	F	gnificance F
Regression	9	1761231153.91	195692350.43	3.90	0.00
Residual	51	2882409011.11	56517823.75		
Total	60	4643640165.03			

Vehicle age and type are factors for maintenance cost. Make of vehicle is not a factor.

	Coefficients	Standard Error	t Stat	P-value	Lower 95%	Upper 95%	ower 95.0%	pper 95.0%
Intercept	38589.55	6739.49	5.73	0.00	25059.45	52119.65	25059.45	52119.65
vehicle age	-516.56	248.03	-2.08	0.04	-1014.49	-18.63	-1014.49	-18.63
International	2507.92	6531.77	0.38	0.70	-10605.16	15621.01	-10605.16	15621.01
Volvo	2347.99	6317.50	0.37	0.71	-10334.92	15030.91	-10334.92	15030.91
Mack	-5909.68	7403.42	-0.80	0.43	-20772.66	8953.30	-20772.66	8953.30
Ford	-8754.79	9742.65	-0.90	0.37	-28313.97	10804.39	-28313.97	10804.39
Western Star	572.82	9742.65	0.06	0.95	-18986.36	20132.00	-18986.36	20132.00
Single	-22887.96	6908.71	-3.31	0.00	-36757.77	-9018.15	-36757.77	-9018.15
Tandem	-15998.27	6330.02	-2.53	0.01	-28706.32	-3290.23	-28706.32	-3290.23
Tri-axle	0.00	0.00	65535.00	#NUM!	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Slide #34

Fleet\regression data.xlsx

Step #17 - Vehicle type is a factor for maintenance costs



417

Step #17 - Vehicle age is a factor for maintenance costs

# of vehicles	Туре	Average age (years)	Median age (years)	
9	Single	8.5	6	
55	Tandem	6.98	jeuc 5u sxie	
3	Tri-axle	9.67	10	



We currently have 15 vehicles that are over 12 years old.

Step #17 - Vehicle age is a factor for maintenance costs



5//de #37

Step #17 - Optimal Replacement Time



The optimal time for truck replacement is 8 – 10 years

Step #17 - Does type, make, age of vehicle affect utilization?

state of the first well of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the	Children of the Local Control of the	Contract Statement of the local	1000
Regression Sta	tistics		
Multiple R	0.659358		
R Square	0.434753		
Adjusted R Square	0.326479		
Standard Error	173.2215		
Observations	60		

ANOVA

	df	SS	MS	F	gnificance F
Regression	9	1177006	130778.4333	L	1.90 <mark>0.00</mark>
Residual	51	1530291	30005.70149		
Total	60	2707297			And the second s

- Mr. Halle	Coefficientsa	ndard Err	t Stat	P-value	Lower 95%U	pper 95%0	wer 95.0%p	per 95.0%
Intercept	451.63	155.29	2.91	0.01	139.87	763.38	139.87	763.38
vehicle age	-24.89	5.71	-4.36	0.00	-36.36	-13.42	-36.36	-13.42
International	169.20	150.50	1.12	0.27	-132.95	471.34	-132.95	471.34
Volvo	134.56	145.56	0.92	0.36	-157.67	426.80	-157.67	426.80
Mack	88.54	170.59	0.52	0.61	-253.92	431.01	-253.92	431.01
Ford	7.61	224.48	0.03	0.97	-443.06	458.28	-443.06	458.28
Western Star	108.89	224.48	0.49	0.63	-341.78	559.56	-341.78	559.56
Single	39.89	159.19	0.25	0.80	-279.69	359.47	-279.69	359.47
Tandem	57.13	145.85	0.39	0.70	-235.69	349.94	-235.69	349.94
Tri-axle	0	0	65535	#NUM!	0	0	0	0

38% of the variance in usage hours is due to the age of the vehicle.

Slide #39

Vehicle age is a factor for utilization – make and type are not factors.

Vehicle age and 2013 Usage Hours	
Pearson Coefficient of Correlation	-0.6203
t Stat	-6.0231
df	58
P(T<=t) one tail	0
t Critical one tail	1.6716
P(T<=t) two tail	0
t Critical two tail	2.0017



421

Step #17 – Does utilization vary throughout the year?

Anova: Single Factor

SUMMARY

Groups	Count	Sum	Average	Variance
January	60	6073.17	101.2195	2280.563
February	60	6668	111.1333	2942.988
March	60	2826.5	47.10833	1009.069
April	60	1771.25	29.52083	542.6743
May	60	1927.5	32.125	1136.929
June	60	1538.5	25.64167	747.7042
July	60	1371.5	22.85833	850.7381
August	60	1199.5	19.99167	541.6991
September	60	848.5	14.14167	284.7804
October	60	833	13.88333	206.4607
November	60	969.75	16.1625	279.631

There are differences in utilization between months

ANOVA

Source of Variation	SS	df	MS	F	P-value	F crit
Between Groups	710755.02	10.00	71075.50	72.24	0.00	1.85
Within Groups	638570.94	649.00	983.93			
Total	1349325.96	659.00				

Step #17 – Does utilization vary throughout the year?



Step #17 Is depot location a factor for utilization?

SUMMARY

Groups	Count	Sum	Average	Variance
1	. 8	3702.26	462.78	68654.09
2	4	1853.25	463.31	33865.89
3	7	4279.5	611.36	61277.48
4	. 7	3110	444.29	24022.82
5	6	3185	530.83	33522.87
6	7	3869.75	552.82	31057.06
7	7	3468.37	495.48	32618.03
8	6	2477.5	412.92	17812.94
g	7	3906	558.00	96580.75

Depot location is not a factor for utilization



ANUVA	ANOVA
-------	-------

Slide #42

urce of Variati	SS	df		MS	F		P-value	F crit		
Between Gro	217327.7		8	27165.96		0.59	0.78	2.13		
Within Group	2312192		50	46243.84						
Total	2529520		58							
Coboconk Smallest = 127 Q1 = 221.5	• ••	• • •	••	•		Ooks Smal Q1 =	wood lest = 245 443.5	•	• •	•
Median = 454.88 Q3 = 686.625 Largest = 847 IQR = 465.125 Outliers:			3	-		Q3 = Large IQR = Outli	841.5 est = 991 = 398 eers:			-+-

Eldon

Fenelon Smallest = 258.5 Q1 = 299.75 Median = 445.25 Q3 = 644,9375 Largest = 704.25 IQR = 345.1875 Outliers: 200 400 600 800 1000 1200



Fleet\utilization by depot.xlsx

Step #17 - Is staffing level a factor for utilization?



Decreased staffing levels may have an effect on utilization however a significant amount of the work during the summer doesn't require the use of a heavy truck.

Analyze Phase – Summary

Test#	Potential vs. Identified X's	Critical X	Non Critical X	Comments
1	Does type, make, age of vehicle affect utilization?	Age	Vehicle Type Make of Vehicle	Utilization decreases as vehicles get older
2	Does type, make, age of vehicle affect maintenance costs?	Age Vehicle Type	Make of Vehicle	Maintenance costs increase as vehicles get older. Higher costs for tri- axles.
3	Is depot location a factor for maintenance cost?	No	Yes	
4	Is depot location a factor for utilization?	No	Yes	
5	The Lifecycle of a heavy truck - 'sweet spot' for replacement	Yes	No	Current replacement schedule is 12 - 15 years, optimal is 8 - 10
6	Is utilization seasonal?	Yes	No	Trucks are used mainly for winter control
7	Do staffing levels affect utilization?	No	Yes	
8	Does parking the vehicles outside affect maintenance cost?	No	Yes	Not enough data to infer it is a factor

Utilization?

1 SUDE 1540

Improve Phase



Slide #45

Step #18 - Affinity Diagram

Tracking - Activity Management	Attachments	Budget	Staffing Levels	Activities	Maintenance	Contracting
Time cards	Additional trays for	More \$\$\$ to use	Spread vacation	Weekly work plan	Ready vehicles for	Contract
Time cards	patching	trucks	year round	(post it)	winter (wax)	management
Tracking of activities	Hot box for asphalt patch	One pot of \$	Seasonal summer staff	Ditching program	Preventative Maintenance	True cost of contracting
SOP - time tracking & cost	Attachments - one person units for brushing, sweeping	Reactive vs Proactive	Eliminate contracting	Find more uses for trucks ie. Landfill use (cover)		
Change time cards	Trailers to increase trucking volumes		Training	Gravel trucking		COULOR
Better tracking of use	tri-axles vs tandems	42362		Other department using trucks		
True cost of contracting				Sharing equipment		S
				Level of Service - too high?	pulae:	Control of the Control of Control

Improve Phase

2 1100 248

Step #18 - Interrelationship Digraph



429

Step #17 - Model - What if we contracted out 4 winter control routes?

Average annual maint cost/truck for surplus trucks	\$ 12,918.00
Maintenance savings for 4 trucks	\$ 51,672.00
Reduced annual labor savings for 4 routes	
(per route: 2 seasonal @ \$30,160= \$60,320)	\$241,280.00
Total truck and labor savings	\$292,952.00
Number of plow routes	4
Average contracted cost per plow route per season	\$ 63,775.00
Annual contracted cost for 4 plow routes	\$ 255,100.00
Winter Control Savings	\$37,852.00

Productivity opportunity = \$32,000 in savings

Implementation Schedule

#	Quick Hit	Potential X's	Activity	Deliverable	Assigned Date	Responsibility	Due Date
1)	X		Create SOP for recording truck usage	Standard Operating Procedure	10-Dec-13	Todd Bryant	01-May-14
2)	X		Billing	Change to annual charge	10-Dec-13	Todd Bryant	01-May-14
3)	X		SOP for cleaning vehicles	Standard Operating Procedure	10-Dec-13	Todd Bryant/Pat Russell	17-Jan-14
4)	-	Х	Fleet Policy updates	Report and updated policy to Council	10-Dec-13	Todd Bryant	01-May-14
5)		X	Contract out 4 routes	Tender issued for contract	10-Dec-13	Michelle Hendry	31-Mar-14

2014 capital approval ren 5 rentacement trucks.

Qurrent Fleet Policy has life cycle replacement between 12 – 15 years. Recommendation 8 – 10 years

Lee Cycle Replacement

1.10 1.13

Life Cycle Replacement

Current Fleet Policy has life cycle replacement between 12 – 15 years. Recommendation: 8 – 10 years

2014 capital approval for 5 replacement trucks:

Truck #	2011 cost	2012 cost	2013 cost	3 year cost
S32	\$13,068.34	\$13,377.31	\$12,426.08	\$38,871.73
T44	\$34,138.58	\$35,666.20	\$23,099.33	\$92,904.11
T45	\$23,520.57	\$19,559.05	\$17,752.17	\$60,831.79
T46	\$26,149.65	\$28,664.63	\$30,094.38	\$84,908.66
T47	\$28,091.91	\$19,631.04	\$22,139.37	\$69,862.32
Total	\$124,969.05	\$116,898.23	\$105,511.33	\$347,378.61

Implementation Schedule
Life Cycle Replacement

- Reduce the fleet age to an 8 10 year replacement by 2018 budget
- Maintain current replacement cycle as detailed in the 2014 proposed capital Budget
- Recording Truck Utilization
- 2015 4 tandem, 1 tri-axle
- 2016 4 tandem, 1 tri-axle
- 2017 3 tandem, 1 tri-axle
- 2018 3 tandem, 1 single-axle

Standard Operating Procedures

Suge 451

Standard Operating Procedures

Standard Operating Procedures have been created for:

- 2016 4 tandem, 1 tri-axle
- Cleaning of Vehicles
- Recording Truck Utilization

2014 proposed capital Budget

- by 2018 budget
 Maintain current replacement cycle as detailed in the
- Reduce the fleet age to an 8 10 year replacement.

Life Cycle Replacement

Step #19 - Determine Optimum Operating Windows of KPIVs – Updated FMEA

Process Step/ Requirements	Potential Failure Mode	Potential Effect(s) of Failure	Severity	Potential Cause(s) / Mechanism(s) of Failure	Occurrence	Current Process Controls Prevention	Current Process Controls Detection	Detection	Risk Priority Number	Recommended Action(s)	Responsibility & Target Completion Date	Actions Taken & Completion Date	Severity	Occurrence	Detection	R P. N
Buying the truck	Not delivered on time	We can't use it Have to maintain older vehicle	5	Delay in process Vendor has issues (staff loss)	10	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	3	150	Maintain bi- weekly meetings	Fleet - ongoing					0
	Not the right truck (not within specs)	We can't use it Have to maintain older vehicle	7	Delay in process, specs not clear	10	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	bi-weekly updates with salesperson	3	210	Maintain bi- weekly meetings	Fleet - ongoing	75,255				0
Using the truck	Out of Service in winter	Can't do the work (plowing snow)	8	Mechanical	8	Spare vehicles, graders, on- call mechanics, mobile units	Maintenance records	1	64	53,500.) 53,500.)	00 00	511,941 519,351	5		200	0
	Out of service in summer	Can't do the work	3	Mechanical Annual Inspection Lack of staff	7	Need fewer trucks in summer, flexibility in scheduling	Scheduling	1	21	23,500.1	00	130,44				0
Billing for use of the truck	Inconsistent Reporting	Lack of revenue for fleet Lack of good data for future plans Poor justification for council	10	No SOP for data collection Time cards not reviewed properly	7	None	None	10	700	Create SOP for data recording Annual charge to replace hourly rate	Finance & fleet - May 2014	Utilization hours tracked by Fleet	10	2	2	40

After analysis, 4 trucks have been declared surplus.

Step #21 - Cost savings



Step #21 - Cost savings

After analysis, 4 trucks have been declared surplus.

Truck #	2013 Maintenance Cost	Decommissioning	Average sale price	Total savings
T27	\$26,941.03	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$30,441.03
T29	\$8,445.56	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$11,945.56
T30	\$15,852.99	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$19,352.99
T39	\$10,486.32	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$13,986.32
				\$75,725,90

Savings in maintenance + average sale price

Windows of KPIVs - Updated FME/

Slide #54

28.20

Step #21 - Cost savings

Based on analysis 4 winter control routes will be contracted out and an additional 4 trucks will be decommissioned.

Truck #	2013 Maintenance Cost	Decommissioning	Average sale price	Total savings
T24	\$6,088.08	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$9,588.08
T31	\$31,633.81	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$35,133.81
T34	\$41,434.18	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$44,934.18
T35	\$17,489.01	Spring 2014	\$3,500.00	\$20,989.01
			(\$110,645.08

Savings in maintenance + average sale price

P Ellize #55

Step #21 - Cost savings

2014 Savings	Projected Savings
4 surplus trucks	\$75,725.90
4 trucks surplus due to new contracts	\$110,645.08
Savings due to contracts	\$37,852.00
Improved productivity – maintenance	\$32,000
2013 Truck # Maintenaince Docommissioning Av	\$256,222.98

Future Cost Avoidance	Projected Savings
One time savings – less replacement cost for 8 trucks	\$1,800,000.00
LOLAT 21 - Cost savings	\$2,056,222.98

Sude #58

Improve Phase – Summary and Conclusions

- Utilization benchmark set at 500 hours per year
- Tracking of utilization addressed, SOP to be finalized after new process implemented
- Annual charge to be implemented after pilot project in Finance complete
- Changes to fleet policy to be recommended to Council
- Contracted out 2 routes in winter 2013, another 2 to be contracted in fall 2014
- 8 trucks have been decommissioned and will not be replaced

Slide #58

Improve Phase - Summary and Conclusions

- Utilization benchmark set at 500 hours per year
- Tracking of utilization addressed, SOP to be finalized after new process implemented
- Annual charge to be implemented after pilot project



 Contracted out 2 routes in winter 2013, another 2 to be contracted in fall 2014

Control Phase

P STIde #60

Step #20 - Control Plan

Heavy Truck Utilization Hours >=500 per year 95% of the time

Heavy Truck Maintenance Costs Overall maintenance cost =< previous year

Both tracked bi-weekly by the Process Owner



Step #20 - Fleet dashboard



Step #20 - 90 day results - utilization



Step #20 - 90 day results - utilization

* 5/d2 #61

Step #20 - 90 day results - utilization



Step # 20 - 90 day results - jutilizatio

Step #20 - 90 day results - utilization



SLED 720 - EFFOR-PROOF KPEVS

Step #20 - Error-proof KPIVs

	Countermeas	sures Log			
Problem	Causes	Interim Containment Actions	Who	Start Date	End Date
Recording truck utilization on time cards	Admin Assistants not inputting truck hours properly into the payroll system - 20% error rate - found after 6 weeks	Problem identified and utilization numbers corrected for February	Todd, Nadine		10-Mar-14
Water trucks have higher utilization hours	Used more often - a 24 hour truck in most cases	Looked at switching out water equipment to lower utilization trucks - cost was \$4000/truck - determined to be cost prohibitive	Todd	15-Mar-14	30-Mar-14
Broblom	Causas	Permanent Containment Actions	Who	Start	End Date
Recording truck utilization on time cards	Admin Assistants not inputting truck hours properly into the payroll system	Admins trained on process for inputting truck utilization hours	Todd, Nadine	Date	17-Mar-14
Water trucks have higher utilization hours because they are used more often	Used more often - a 24 hour truck in most cases	Working with supervisors to ensure water truck is used on a day route in the winter rather than a 24 hour route to help keep hours in line with benchmark	Todd		30-Mar-14

West Area

Step # 20 - 90 day results ~ 000000

Lessons Learned

- Watch out for 'bunny trails' that can take you away from your core issues
- Communication is key before, during and after

Lessons Learned

- Watch out for 'bunny trails' that can take you away from your core issues
- Communication is key before, during and after

P Slide #65



Date:	February 9, 2020	
То:	Committee of the Whole	
From:	Councillor Yeo	
Re:	Pool Covers	

Recommendation

That the Memorandum from Councillor Yeo, regarding Protective Pool Covers, be received;

That staff bring back a report by the end of the second quarter regarding the use of Protective Covers on swimming pools as an option in lieu of fencing; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Rationale

Protected pool covers are widely accepted across North America as a safe and reliable alternative to fencing around a pool. Unlike a fence that can be climbed or a gate that can be left open, these covers can only be removed using a key and when in place, are able to bear traffic.



Date:	ebruary 9, 2020	
То:	Committee of the Whole	
From: Councillor Yeo		
Re:	Fishing Over Bridges and Causeways	

Recommendation

That the Memorandum from Councillor Yeo, regarding Fishing Over Bridges and Causeways, be received;

That staff bring back a report by the end of Q2 regarding the use of municipally owned bridges and causeways for fishing;

That the report back include options for banning fishing from bridges and causeways, regulating fishing through local licensing, patrolling and cleaning areas on a daily basis, or doing nothing at all; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Rationale

Fishing is a wonderful pastime enjoyed by many in Kawartha Lakes. The majority of complaints that have arisen over the past summer and fall were in regads to the state of our bridges and causeways after fishers have left. The amount of garbage being strewn about on the shoulders and ditches, not to mention the waterways, is unacceptable.



I would hate to see a ban on fishing because that would punish the majority for the actions of the minority. Yet this is a situation we cannot ignore.

Through some sort of licensing there would be a sense of ownership on the situation that may result in some level of self policing amongst those that enjoy fishing. Cleaning and patrolling can be costly and doing nothing at all is unacceptable to the rate payer.



Date:	February 9, 2021	
То:	Committee of the Whole	
From:	Councillor Veale	
Re:	Mariposa Elementary School Zone Flashing Beacons	

Recommendation

That the memorandum from Councillor Veale, regarding Mariposa Elementary School Zone Flashing Beacons, be received;

That Engineering be directed to change the signage for the school zone on Eldon Road in front of Mariposa Elementary School to flashing beacons indicating when the reduced speed limit is in effect;

That the new signage be implemented at a cost of \$16,000; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Rationale

The by-law for that school zone already indicates that it is in effect only from 7am to 5pm Monday to Friday. With the amalgamation of the oakwood and Little Britain fire halls, it will be helpful for volunteers travelling from oakwood to the new hall to have an indication of when the reduced speed is in effect.



Date:	February 9, 2021
То:	Committee of the Whole
From:	Councillor Ashmore
Re:	Speed Reduction of Pigeon Lake Road from 1899 Pigeon Lake Road to Perdue Road

Recommendation

That the memorandum from Councillor Ashmore, regarding Speed Reduction of Pigeon Lake Road from 1899 Pigeon Lake Road to Perdue Road, be received;

That staff conduct a traffic study into the reduction of speed on the section from 1899 Pigeon Lake Road to Perdue Road;

That staff report back by Q3 2021; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Rationale

This segment of road has met many of the criteria to warrant a speed reduction from the current 80km/hr to a lower speed. On this segment, there are 18 full time residential homes and 10 recreational properties. Of these properties, many have waterfront; residents frequently need to cross the highway to access them in all seasons.

There is also a significant land base and several boat launches where many vehicles back up onto these lots. This section also serves as a land base for island residents on Pigeon Lake.



The speed, especially of large vehicles, has made it very unsafe for the community and many have expressed a desire for a lower speed to prevent a possible loss of life in the future.



Date:	February 9, 2021	
То:	Committee of the Whole	
From:	Councillor Ashmore	
Re:	Medical Supply Manufacturing	

Recommendation

That the memorandum from Councillor Ashmore, **regarding Medical Supply** Manufacturing, be received;

That Economic Development initiate the recruitment of medical supply manufacturers;

That Economic Development work to attract companies to set up healthcare manufacturing facilities in available existing buildings currently vacant; and

That this recommendation be brought forward to Council for consideration at the next Regular Council Meeting.

Rationale

Canada is experiencing a dire need for medical supplies, PPE equipment and vaccine development which began when the pandemic hit our shores in March of 2020.

Canada, specifically Ontario is in a very vulnerable position for the foreseeable future as we are dependent on a global supply chain of healthcare products. Given that Canada is in need and in short supply of critical products like therapeutics, PPE and vaccines, we need to begin manufacturing these products locally again.



In 2019 Council passed an innovative way of attracting business and manufacturing to our municipality by dropping all commercial development charges to 0% for the first 2500 sq metres or 27,000 sq ft of newly constructed facilities. By encouraging this type of manufacturing we are creating jobs, generating taxes for our municipality and, most importantly, saving lives by manufacturing our own healthcare supplies.